
 
 

Please ask for: 

Lisa Young 
Direct dial: 

(023) 9254 5340 
Fax: 

(023) 9254 5587 
E-mail: 

lisa.young@gosport.gov.uk 
 

7 March 2023 
 

S U M M O N S 
 
MEETING: Policy and Organisation Board 
DATE: 15 March 2023 
TIME: 6.00 pm 
PLACE: Council Chamber 
Democratic Services contact: Lisa Young 

 

 
DAVID WILLIAMS  
CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
 

 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

 

The Mayor,   (ex-Officio) 
Chairman of the Policy and Organisation Board,  

                                                     Councillor Chegwyn (Chairman) 
  

 

Councillor Burgess 
Councillor Hylands 
Councillor Marshall 
 

Councillor Pepper 
Councillor Philpott 
Councillor Raffaelli 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 
FIRE PRECAUTIONS 

 
(To be read by the Chairman if members of the public are present) 

 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: 
 

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request. 

 
If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page). 

 
NOTE: 
 

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak.  

 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting. 

 

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 

consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded.  

 



Policy and Organisation Board 
15 March 2023 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1.   Apologies for non-attendance   

2.   Declarations of interest   

 All Members are required to disclose at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting of the board held on 18 January 2023 
(Pages 7 - 14) 

 

 To sign as a true and correct record the minutes of the meeting held 
on 18 January 2023. 
 

 

4.   Deputations - Standing Order 3.4   

 
(NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 

which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 

intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 

Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 13 March 2023.  The total 

time for deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not 

exceed 10 minutes). 

 

 

5.   Public Questions - Standing order 3.5   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from Members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 
13 March 2023). 
 

 

6.   New Council Branding (Pages 15 - 26)  

 This report seeks the Board's approval for the updated Gosport 
Borough Council branding and provides the rationale and 
implementation plan to support the recommended change.  
 

 

7.   Council plan (Pages 27 - 50)  

 To seek approval from the Board for Gosport Borough Council Plan  



Policy and Organisation Board 
15 March 2023 

 
 

2023-24.  
 

8.   Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 (Pages 51 - 72)  

 To seek approval from Members in regards to the draft Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS) 2021/22 
 

 

9.   EY - Audit Results Report 2021/22 (Pages 73 - 130)  

 This report summarises the findings to date from the 2021/22 
external audit, which is well progressed. It includes the messages 
arising from our audit of your financial statements and the 
arrangements you have put in place to secure economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in the use of your resources. 
 
Our report includes only matters of governance interest that have 
come to our attention in performing the audit under the requirements 
of the National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice and 
International Standards of Auditing (ISAs). 
 
This is an important report that is a requirement of ISA 260 and must 
be presented to you in your role as those charged with governance, 
before you approve the financial statements. 
 

 

10.   Final Accounts 2021/22 (Pages 131 - 262)  

 This report summarises the outturn position for the 2021/22 financial 
year and recommends the approval of the Statement of Accounts for 
2021/22. 
 

 

11.   Treasury Management Strategy and MRP Policy 2023/24 (Pages 
263 - 278) 

 

 This report outlines the Council’s policy for charging unfinanced capital 
expenditure to revenue (MRP) together with the expected treasury 
operations for this period. It fulfils a key legislative requirement. 
 

 

12.   GBC Waterfront - Bus Station Redevelopment  Dedication of 
Council Freehold Land as Public Highway to facilitate 
construction and operation of New Bus Station (Pages 279 - 
290) 

 

 This Report sets out the details of the Council's proposed dedication 
of land to become public highway at Mumby Road and South Street, 
to facilitate the construction and operation of the new bus station, 
taxi rank, drop-off & short-term parking. 

 



Policy and Organisation Board 
15 March 2023 

 
 

 

13.   Consultation draft Statement of Community involvement (Pages 
291 - 352) 

 

 To seek Members’ approval to undertake public consultation on a 
draft Statement of Consultation.  
 

 

14.   Local Development Scheme (Pages 353 - 394)  

 The Council is required by legislation to prepare a Local Plan for its 
area. The timetable for the preparation of a Local Plan must be 
published in a Local Development Scheme (LDS). This report seeks 
approval to publish the latest version of the LDS. 
 

 

15.   Any other items   



This page is intentionally left blank



Policy and Organisation Board 
18 January 2023 

 

1 

A MEETING OF THE POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD 
WAS HELD ON 18 JANUARY 2023 

 
 
 
Councillors Burgess, Chegwyn, Hylands, Marshall, Pepper, Philpott and Raffaelli 
 
 
65. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE  
 
There were none.  
 
66. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Chegwyn advised that he had a personal interest in the late item as he was a 
patient at the surgery.  
 
 
67. MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD HELD ON 30 NOVEMBER 2022  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 30 November 2022 be signed as a 
true and correct record.  
 
68. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4  
 
The Chairman put to the Board that a late deputation be heard from Dr Anandan from the 
Bury Road Surgery and Keeley Ellis from the Integrated Care Board.  
 
The Board RESOLVED that the deputations be heard. 
 
Dr. Anandan was invited to address the Board, he thanked the Council for allowing him to 
speak. He advised that he felt the that the Integrated Care Board (ICB) had tunnel vision, 
and lacked compassion and were fixed on the closure of the surgery as they had given no 
consideration to any alternative, viable options including nurse led, and alternative GP 
cover. He advised that he had offered to rescind his resignation to allow more time to 
consider the proposal.  
 
He advised that there was a practice willing to take on the Bury Road Surgery lease, 
contract, patients and staff and that the  ICB had caused worry and stress to patients and 
staff in announcing the closure to the press. He advised that there had been false and 
malicious rumours spread about the practice and that work was being undertaken to 
address the issues raised at the recent CQC inspection. External support had been sought 
to address issues with record keeping and that they were satisfied that shortcomings had 
been addressed and that and an improvement in grading would be seen.  
 
The surgery had been rated the best in Gosport through patient surveying and that this 
should not be ignored and that closure was not in the best interest of staff or patients and 
was damaging their reputation and that it seemed that all smaller surgeries were being 
allowed to close, as had happened with the Brockhurst surgery.  
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



Policy and Organisation Board 
18 January 2023 

 

2 

Concern was expressed that the options more preferable to patients had been dismissed as 
unviable and that people were concerned about the legality of the decisions that had been 
made and that the wishes of the staff and patients had been ignored. The decision would 
result in a popular, excellent practice being closed.  
 
The Board was advised that a presentation was being arranged for an upcoming Council 
meeting to address the Council on health matters in the Borough.  
 
A Member sought clarification from Dr. Anandan regarding the two available options.  
He advised the Board that there was a proposal for a nurse led model or the option to   
satellite from a different GP surgery. 
 
A nurse led approach was currently used in a surgery in London, this method would still 
utilise the two GPs based at the practice and locums as well as the nurses and the practice 
manager on site.  
 
If a satellite was set up the GMS contract would be signed by the owning practices and the 
practice would be renamed as copartners.  
 
The Board was advised that external contractors had been engaged with to address the 
improvements required for the CQC and that recording polices and clerical records had been vastly 
improved. The service delivery and the patient satisfaction were high and there had been no 
consultation with the practice patients about the closure.  

 
The Board was advised that the ICB had not advised why they did not support the satellite 
practice, and concern was expressed that other surgeries were fit to bursting and could not 
accommodate additional patients with the care being received being compromised.  
 
 
Members expressed concern that with the practice scheduled to close in March, it was 
disappointing that consultation had not been undertaken, just correspondence to inform 
patients that the surgery was closing. Concern was expressed that consultation should 
have taken place under the Health and Care Act 2022 as this required constitution on 
significant changes, which this was. Concern was expressed that if a consultation should 
have taken place and didn’t and why other business models had not been considered.  
 
Dr Anandan advised that these had been rejected without explanation, with no chance of 
remaining open, the surgery were aware of a late proposal for consultation but expressed 
concern that this would not be meaningful.  
 
Dr Anandan advised that it was too late to consult patients now and felt that the decision 
was being pushed through and this was wrong as an offer of recension of the notice had 
been made. Other surgeries in the area were bursting, contrary to what the ICB was 
advising and that the reality would be that it would be impossible to close the surgery 
without their being a detrimental impact to patients.  
 
Members sought clarification with regard to the events leading up to the present situation.  
 
They were advised that the resignation of Dr Anandan had initiated the process and that the 
alternative options for the practice had been identified after it had been submitted and as a 
result he had offered to rescind his resignation to allow for matters to be progressed.  

Page 8



Policy and Organisation Board 
18 January 2023 

 

3 

 
This had been rejected, which had allowed no time to plan for the alternative options, 
including nurse led practice and GP cover. It had been stated that the nurse led practice 
would not have GP cover but that would not be correct as there were two salaried GPs as 
well as locums. There were currently no partners, but one had been identified to allow for 
the retention of the surgery, the leader and the medical contract. This had been rejected 
due to the short timescale.  
 
The Board was advised that there had been no consultation with patients and that it was 
normal for this to take place. There had been significant changes to the GPs surgeries in 
Gosport with the creation of the Willow Group and there had not been consultation when 
this had happened. Patients were satisfied and happy with the service they received from 
BRS and were unhappy at its proposed closure. Patients had simply been sent letters 
advising that the surgery was closing. 
 
Keeley Ellis was invited to address the Board.  
 
She advised that she welcomed the opportunity to address the Board and also advised that 
there had been a lot of emotion and opinion detailed so far and that she could only 
comment with the facts.  
 
She advised the Board that the ICB took the closure of any surgery extremely seriously and 
recognised the distress that such changes can cause. She advised that any allegation that 
the ICB had not taken the matter seriously was false and incorrect.  
 
She advised that the ICB had received the resignation letter of Dr Anandan on 9th 
December 2022 by email, and the subsequent day in hard copy. Instantly the process to 
consider available options for the practice was triggered. This was followed some 10 days 
later with an offer to rescind the resignation. This in turn prompted entry into a contractual 
process and action which and meant the normal consultation process could not be 
undertaken.  
 
The usual process upon the resignation would be that the views of patients would be 
sought, a consultation undertaken detailing potential options, with the feedback from said 
consultation taken on board. This would be followed by a second letter detailing the 
outcome and any steps that would be taken followed by confirmation of any changes. This 
could not take place as there was a contractual dispute meaning that the process could not 
be intervened with.  
 
The notice date given was 31 March, legal advise had been sought, and as a result, the 
Board was advised that BRS had been contacted on Monday, 16 January requesting that 
the surgery support a consultation, and the surgery had declined supporting the ICB to do 
this. As a result, the ICB would need to obtain patient details through a wider means, this 
complexity however meant that the consultation would not be able to begin for another 5-7 
days.  
 
The Board was advised that they had looked at the proposal for a nurse led option, but that 
the surgery had not provided details of the named contract holder as required for the BMS. 
This could not be a nurse and the proposal put forward did not detail who was eligible to 
hold the contract.  
 

Page 9



Policy and Organisation Board 
18 January 2023 

 

4 

Subsequently Dr Peters had advised that he would be prepared to hold the contract but he 
was currently a locum at the practice.  
 
The Board was advised that the recent CQC inspection had also set out that there was a 
lack of assurance for succession planning, quality record keeping and as a result the 
practice had been put into special measures that required improvement. This did not 
demonstrate that nursing stuff understood the liability associated with the GMS contract. In 
addition the London model referred to as existing was a social enterprise, social enterprises 
were also not permitted to hold the GMS contract.  
 
In offering to rescind the resignation had placed the existing contract in statue.  
 
The Board was advised that although they had been advised there was a high level of 
personal satisfaction with the surgery, the surgery had fallen short of all the ICB average 
scores for patient satisfaction.  
 
The Board was advised that the surgery becoming a satellite surgery could not be explored 
as this would need to be undertaken via a procurement process. The surgery would not be 
eligible to do this as it had 4500 patients which was not inline with the NHS strategy for 
satellite surgery options.  
 
It was reiterated to the Board that locums could not sign the GMS, but in addition, salaried 
partners could not sign it, not could nurses, it was only partners that could. It was also 
advised that legal advice has been sought on the contractual arrangements.  
 
It was advised that in its simplest form, as a recap the following had occurred.  
Dr Anandan had submitted his resignation, which had then been offered to be rescinded, 
this had not been accepted. The consultation could not be undertaken as a result of the 
resulting contractual dispute and therefore consultation could not take place.  
 
Satisfaction figures for the practice sat below those of the average for the trust.  
 
Dr Anandan could not hold the GMS contract as he had resigned, and therefore the 
practice was not viable under section 86. Alternative ways had been sought of holding the 
GMS, it could not be held under another practice nor could it be nurse led.  
 
Active conversations had been undertaken with other practices, but these had had to stop 
because of the contract negotiations, and no practice had been identified that could take on 
4500 additional patients in their current state.  
 
It was confirmed that action had been taken to achieve a resolution as the time between 
submitting notice and retirement of Dr Anandan was minimal at just over three months,  but 
plans to progress a consultation had been halted be Dr Anandan’s offer of rescinding. 
 
It had not been an individual decision but a board decision to take the action proposed.  
 
There was not a surgery currently capable of accepting 4500 patients in their entirety.  
 
Members felt the surgery had good access and was in a good venue for a surgery, and 
recognised that the proposed rescinding of the resignation had prevented merger options 

Page 10



Policy and Organisation Board 
18 January 2023 

 

5 

with other surgeries being considered. In addition, for this to happen a surgery would need 
to be prepared to take on the contract and the lease for the building.  
 
Members felt that there was the potential for HOSP to be involved in finding a solution, to 
consider whether there were any other practices willing to take on the existing contract.  
 
The Board were advised that in order to take on the additional consultation and extend the 
negotiations as to options for the surgery, Dr Anandan would need to consider extending 
his notice period. This was not something that could be insisted by the ICB, and it was also 
acknowledged that an extension of the consultation period would give no guarantee of the 
surgery remaining open.  
 
Dr Anandan would need to consider the personal implications of the surgery remaining 
open as he was currently practicing at the surgery.  
 
This process would allow for the surgery to give further detailed consideration to other 
options and provide them to the ICB for evaluation. It was reiterated that the satellite option 
did not fall within the strategy of the NHS due to the size of the patient list. In addition, for 
any merger to take place sufficient due diligence would need to be undertaken.   
 
For Dr Anandan to extend his notice period he would need to be comfortable with the risk 
associated with it and it was recommended that both he and the ICB get their own legal 
advice.  
 
Members discussed the deputations and the implications of the proposals. It was felt that 
there was room for better communications and further discussions on both side.  
 
Members accepted that there was not a straightforward solution to keeping he surgery open 
but proposed a motion that   
The Council expresses concern about the proposed closure and the timeframe in which the 
decision has been made.  
 
The Council asks that consideration be given to delay the proposed closure of 31st March 
long enough for both sides to undertake full due diligence and consideration of various 
options to enable an informed decision of a viable solution to maintain a general practice on 
the site. 
 
 
 
69. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5  
 
There were none.  
 
70. HONORARY FREEMAN PROPOSAL  
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Chief Executive requesting that consideration be 
given to appointing former Councillor Mark Hook as an Honorary Freeman.  
 
The Board recognised the usual process followed and accepted that the proposal was 
emotive. 
 

Page 11



Policy and Organisation Board 
18 January 2023 

 

6 

RESOLVED: That the Board does not recommend to Full Council that former Councillor 
Mark Hook be made an Honorary Freeman.  
 
 
 
71. ADOPTION OF COMMERCIAL PROPERTY ASSET STRATEGY AND 

ASSOCIATED NEW POLICY  
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Chief Executive setting out the principles of the 
commercial property asset strategy, together with a proposal for three new policies covering 
the leasing and licensing of commercial land and buildings categorised under investment 
assets, community assets, and a specific policy on beach huts. 
 
The Board were advised of a number of small amendments to the polices as follows.  
 
Beach Huts Licensing Policy 
 
Paragraph 6.3 – time limit amended to 21 working days.  
 
Numbering needs updating to include paragraph 6.7 
 
It was acknowledged that the asset lists were working documents and would need updating 
to include such amendments as the criterion being included. 
 
A Member questioned why leases were not subject to increase in line with RPI as many 
other commercial leases were, this would insure that any annual increases met with 
inflation and as a result. The Board was advised that leisure assets can and should have 
appropriate increases added to them but these but that it would be unreasonable on 
community assets, most of which were at a reduced rate.  
 
A Member question whether reconsideration of concessions for beach huts was 
appropriate, given that 50% were allocated as a concession for those over 60. It was 
suggested that 60 was no longer an appropriate concession age and that it would perhaps 
be more beneficial to remove a concession reduction, but reduce the cost for all. Members 
were advised that 60 was the concession age set in the Council’s fees and charges.  
 
Members welcomed the work that had been undertaken to bring the report together and 
welcomed its presentation to the Board.  
 
Members felt that the statement ‘in consultation with the Leader’ should be removed from 
the points in the report at which it was felt they were not required, with decisions either 
being delegated to Council Officers, or requiring approval of the Policy and Organisation 
Board.  
 
It was agreed that this could be removed from the strategy at point 2.2.2. 2.2.3 and 2.2.4. 
 
Members sough clarification on the process of claiming exemption on business rates and 
were advised that all non residential properties were liable for non domestic rates. It was 
recognised that support would need to be offered to ensure that residents were able to 
complete the exemption request.  
 

Page 12



Policy and Organisation Board 
18 January 2023 

 

7 

The rateable value of the huts was £680 each so would qualify for exemption but it was 
reiterated how important it would be to support those renting to apply.  
 
It was requested that an amendment be made to paragraph 6.3.1 of the Community 
Buildings and Land Leasing Policy to add ‘if applicable’ after the Charity Number request as 
it was recognised that not all Charities had a charity number.  
 
 
 RESOLVED: That the Board:  

1. Approves the Commercial Property Asset Strategy  

2. Adopts the three policies listed in the report.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
72. ANY OTHER ITEMS  
 
There were none.  
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

 
Concluded at 8.26 pm 

 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Board/Committee: POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD 

Date of meeting: 16 March 2023  

Title: New council branding  

Author: Charlotte Smith, Head of Communications  

Status: FOR DECISION 

 

Purpose 

This report seeks the Board's approval for the updated Gosport Borough Council 
branding and provides the rationale and implementation plan to support the 
recommended change.  

Recommendation 

That the Board  

i) approves the new council branding 

 

1.0 Background 
 

1.1 The council's branding is important because it enables residents and other 
stakeholders to easily identify council services and facilities, both so they 
can make choices about the services and facilities they use and can hold 
the council to account for its service provision in the borough. The council's 
logo is a central to its branding.  
 
This report recommends the council's logo and associated visual brand are 
updated, sets out the rationale and provides the Board with an 
implementation approach.  
 

2.0 Report 
 

2.1 Rationale  
 
The rationale for updating the brand and logo is to create a visual identity 
for the council that is distinct from the borough crest, clarifying the services 
and facilities the council is, and is not, responsible for in Gosport.  
 
The borough crest is in widespread use across the borough, in some cases 
by companies and organisations with no connection to the council. This 
creates potential for confusion around responsibility and accountability for 
services and facilities and creates a further risk that the council may 
appear to be endorsing those organisations that are using the borough 
crest.  
 
Rather than taking an approach that could involve asking other 
organisations to cease using the borough crest, it is recommended the 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



council instead updates its own logo and brand to ensure it has a clear and 
unique visual identity as distinct from the crest, so its own services and 
facilities can be clearly identified.  
 
The historic borough crest will continue to be used by the council for civic 
purposes and by the mayor.  
 
 

2.2 New logo  
 
A new logo and associated visual brand have been created to give the 
council a distinct identity.  
 
The updated logo design is inspired by the historic crest, incorporating the 
sail from the longboat and using the predominant gold colour from the 
scrolls.  
 
In updating the logo and brand, consideration was given to creating a 
visual identity for the council that aligns with the visual identity created for 
Gosport as a place, following work by the council and partners to engage 
residents and organisations from across the borough in creating the 
Gosport Story.  
 
The updated logo can be seen in appendix A.  
 
 

2.3 Protecting the logo and ensuring appropriate future use   
 
The new logo will be trademarked, and versions created to clearly 
differentiate between services and facilities provided directly by the council, 
which will carry the main council logo, and services and facilities provided 
in partnership with other organisations or indirectly by contractors.  
 
The different logo options are included in Appendix A.  
 
A clear process will be put in place to ensure requests to use the council 
logo are approved by the head of communications or borough solicitor, or 
appropriate delegate, as appropriate, protecting the trademark.  
 
 

2.4 
 

Implementation  
 
The council's new logo will be adopted incrementally. This will ensure costs 
are kept to a minimum.   
 
Once approved, the new logo will be applied to the council's digital 
communications channels, including the website and social media. The 
new logo will also be applied to the digital templates for letterheaded 
paper. These changes can be made without incurring any costs.  
 

Page 16



The new logo will be applied to other assets, for example uniforms, council 
vehicles and council signage as these assets naturally need to be 
replaced, to ensure additional costs are not incurred to change the council 
logo and there is no unnecessary waste of, for example, printed materials.  
 

2.5 Cost  
 
The graphic design work undertaken to date to create the new logo and 
associated visual identity guidelines was outsourced, at a cost of £3,465. 
 

4.0 Conclusion 
 

  
It is recommended the Board approve the updated council logo and visual 
brand, creating a clear visual identity for the council that is distinct from the 
borough crest and aligns with the Gosport Story borough brand.  
 
The crest will continue to be used for civic purposes and by the mayor.  
 
The new logo will be trademarked to ensure its on-going use is protected 
and will be implemented incrementally to minimise costs.  
 
 
 

 

Financial Services comments: As set out in para 2.4 and 2.5 of the report.  

Legal Services comments: The decision to amend and adopt the new logo 
is a competent decision and one that would 
enable a clear basis of IP protection and future 
usage regularisation moving forward. The 
delegations are clear in that the basis of 
decision will vest with this Board. 

Equality and Diversity: NA 

Climate Change implications: NA 

Crime and Disorder: NA 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

NA 

Corporate Plan:  

Risk Assessment: NA 

Background Papers: NA 

Appendices: Appendix A: Gosport Borough Council logo  

 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



U P DAT E D  CO U N C I L LO G O

P
age 19



The Crest

The borough crest is distinct from 

the council’s logo. It is used widely 

in the borough, including by 

organisations such as the football 

club and is synonymous with 

the borough, rather than being 

specific to the council. The crest 

will continue to be used by the 

Mayor, for civic and ceremonial 

functions and for gifts. 

GOSPORT
Borough Council

Gosport Borough Council UPDATED COUNCIL LOGO 2

P
age 20



The logo is an elegant and 

modern deviation from the 

Gosport Crest, whilst still 

maintaining the borough’s 

nautical sensibilities.

The Logo

Gosport Borough Council UPDATED COUNCIL LOGO 3

P
age 21



The Sail icon is lifted from the 

Gosport Crest and given a 

modern, clean twist. Over time, 

the simple, minimal shape will 

contribute to a recognisable 

brand.

The Sail

Gosport Borough Council UPDATED COUNCIL LOGO 4

P
age 22



The logo has multiple colour 

variations, this is to aid legibility 

on a multitude of different 

backgrounds.

The Logo variations

Gosport Borough Council UPDATED COUNCIL LOGO 5

P
age 23



The logo has different variations, 

dependent on level of partnership, 

there is also a 100 years logo to 

note the centenary.

The Logo variations

Gosport Borough Council UPDATED COUNCIL LOGO 6

P
age 24



There is also a version of the logo 

featuring the strapline ‘Working 

for you’. In this instance, the 

strapline is set in extra bold and at 

80% opacity.

The Logo variations
WORKING FOR YOU

WORKING FOR YOU

WORKING FOR YOU

WORKING FOR YOU

Gosport Borough Council UPDATED COUNCIL LOGO 7

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Board/Committee: POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD 

Date of meeting: 15 March 2023 

Title: Council plan  

Author: David Williams, Chief Executive  

Status: FOR DECISION  

 

Purpose 

 

To seek approval from the Board for Gosport Borough Council Plan 2023-24.  

 

Recommendation 

That the Board approves the Council Plan 2023-24 

 

1.0 Background 
 

 The Gosport Borough Council Plan for 2023-24 updates the council's 
priorities for the borough and its residents, setting out how the 
organisation's strategies, capital projects and other initiatives, alongside 
the council's business as usual services, will work together to help shape a 
better Gosport for everyone.  
 

2.0  Report  
2.1  Engagement 

 
The Council Plan for 2023-24 updates the council's priorities for the 
borough and its residents. The updated priorities were developed building 
on engagement with residents about what is important to them, gathered 
through a council resident survey in 2021 which asked about priorities for 
the future of the borough, and engagement work conducted as part of the 
development of the Gosport Story, which created a refreshed identity for 
Gosport.  
 

2.2 Six priorities   
 
The plan sets out six clear priorities, focused on building a better Gosport 
for everyone. The first five priorities are centred around the outcomes the 
council is working to achieve for the borough. The final priority focuses on 
how the council works, seeking to ensure the organisation is in the best 
possible position to work with residents, communities, and partners to 
achieve the priority outcomes for Gosport.  
 

 The priorities set out in the Council Plan are as follows:  

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



 
Building a better Gosport for everyone by:  

1) Breathing new life into Gosport's high street, town centre and 
waterfront  

2) Protecting, enhancing, and promoting Gosport's unique rich heritage 
and natural coastal environment 

3) Making Gosport a cleaner and greener place to live, work and visit  
4) Growing our economy, encouraging investment in Gosport, and 

creating jobs, opportunities and affordable homes for local people  
5) Making sure Gosport has great facilities for arts, play, sports and 

leisure, enriching communities and helping people live healthy and 
happy lives  

6) We will do this by being a council that works together with our 
partners and communities to get things done, listening, innovating, 
and delivering value for money for the people of Gosport 

 
 

2.3 Business as usual services 
 
In addition to setting out the priorities the council will focus on here and 
now to take the council and the borough forwards, the plan also highlights 
the importance of the business as usual services at the heart of the 
organisation that our residents value. The plan shows our residents rely on 
us to deliver a range of services, including:  
 

• collect their bins, provide recycling services and keep the borough 
clean  

• maintain our parks and open spaces 
• offer housing services and provide housing benefit  
• collect council tax and business rates   
• provide planning services, including planning advice, determining 

planning applications and taking enforcement action when it is 
needed   

• encourage economic development 
• prepare for emergencies 
• support local democracy, including elections   
• provide environmental health and licensing services that help 

ensure everything from private hire vehicles to food premises are 
safe, and noise and environmental pollution is minimised  

2.4 The Council Plan encompasses the work of the council's business as usual 
services and the strategies, projects and initiatives that contribute to the 
priorities, to demonstrate how the council plans to build a better Gosport 
for the people of the borough. The plan will enable staff to better 
understand how their role and their work contributes to delivering the 
overall aspirations for the borough and the council and will enable 
residents and stakeholders to better understand what the council is 
working to achieve. 

Page 28



  
4.0 Conclusion 

 
 The Council Plan has been updated and sets out clearly the organisation's 

priorities for the borough, which have been informed by resident 
engagement. The Council Plan enables key audiences to understand what 
the council is working across its strategies, projects and business as usual 
services to achieve, and enables staff to better understand how they 
contribute to delivering the council's aspirations for the borough. The 
Council Plan also helps residents and other stakeholders to understand the 
council's priorities, so they can engage and get involved where 
appropriate, and hold the organisation to account. It is therefore 
recommended that the Board approves the Gosport Borough Council Plan 
2023-24.  
 
 

 

Financial Services comments: No direct financial implications arising from this 
report.  

Legal Services comments:  as per the Financial Services comments. 

Equality and Diversity: NA 

Climate Change implications: NA 

Crime and Disorder: NA 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

NA 

Corporate Plan: NA 

Risk Assessment: NA 

Background Papers: NA 
 
 

Appendices: Gosport Borough Council Corporate Plan 
2023/24  

Report Author/Lead Officer: Charlotte Smith, Head of Communications  

 

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Gosport Borough 
Council Corporate Plan 

2023/24
1

P
age 31



Corporate plan: introduction  
The purpose of the council’s corporate plan is to set out clearly what our priorities are 
for the borough, so our residents, staff and other stakeholders can understand what 
the council is working to achieve for Gosport, and where we think it is most important 
that we focus our attention and resources right now. 

Our overarching corporate plan is designed to be high level, setting out our overall 
priorities and some of the main projects and initiatives that contribute to those 
priorities, as well as highlighting the work we do every day that our residents rely on 
us to deliver. Our corporate plan will be supported by more detailed action plans. 

2

P
age 32



Foreword

“As a council, we are committed to working for you, the people of Gosport. We have 
big ambitions for the borough that are all about building a better Gosport so we can 
improve the lives of local people and communities. Our new council plan sets out our 
immediate priorities, that show where we will be focusing our attention over the 
coming months. Our plan highlights some of our most important and exciting projects 
as we work to enhance Gosport’s natural environment and help keep the borough 
clean, to improve facilities for arts, sports and leisure for our communities; to create 
affordable new homes, and to encourage new employment opportunities. We are 
doing all of this in addition to providing the business-as-usual services that we provide 
everyday and that we know our residents value and rely on. Although these are 
challenging times for all local councils, we know we can continue to work together to 
build a better Gosport for everyone, which is why we are absolutely committed to 
achieving the aspirations for the borough that are set out in our plan.” 

Council Leader, Cllr Peter Chegwyn

3

P
age 33



Council plan: business-as-usual 
While the council plan sets out the things we are doing here and now that work 
towards our priorities for Gosport, our business-as-usual services remain at the 
heart of the organisation. 
Our residents rely on us to do many things, including: 
• Collect their bins, provide recycling services and keep the borough clean 
• Maintain our parks and open spaces
• Offer housing services and provide housing benefit 
• Collect council tax and business rates  
• Provide planning services, including planning advice, determining planning 

applications and taking enforcement action when it is needed  
• Encourage economic development
• Prepare for emergencies
• Support local democracy, including elections  
• Provide environmental health and licensing services that help ensure 

everything from private hire vehicles to food premises are safe, and noise and 
environmental pollution is minimised

4

P
age 34



Council plan: partnerships 
In Gosport, we know we are stronger when we work together with our partners, 
including through: 

• Sharing services and council officers with other local authorities, including 
Fareham Borough Council and Portsmouth City Council 

• Working to keep the borough safe through the Community Safety Partnership

• Developing digital connectivity through the Gosport Digital Peninsula 
Partnership 

• Creating new opportunities for culture in Gosport in partnership with the 
Hampshire Cultural Trust and Arts Council England 

• Working with the Solent Local Economic Partnership on Gosport’s 
Infrastructure Investment Plan 

• Regenerating the borough through our Heritage Action Zones, working with 
Historic England 

• Working together with neighbouring councils, local attractions and the 
Gosport Ambassadors to promote Gosport as a destination for visitors 

5

P
age 35

https://www.safergosport.co.uk/about-us/


Delivering our priorities 
for the borough

6

P
age 36



Council priorities: introduction  
The council has six clear priorities, informed by what our residents have told us is 
important to them. The first five priorities set out the areas we will focus on as we 
work to build a better borough for local people and communities in Gosport. 

The sixth priority sets out how we will work as an organisation to make sure our 
council is providing the best possible service for the people of Gosport, by working 
together with partners and communities and delivering value for money. 

7

P
age 37



Council priorities 
Building a better Gosport for everyone by: 

1) Breathing new life into Gosport's high street, town centre and waterfront 

2) Protecting, enhancing, and promoting Gosport's unique rich heritage and 
natural coastal environment

3) Making Gosport a cleaner and greener place to live, work and visit 

4) Growing our economy, encouraging investment in Gosport, and creating 
jobs, opportunities and affordable homes for local people 

5) Making sure Gosport has great facilities for arts, play, sports and leisure, 
enriching communities and helping people live healthy and happy lives

6) Being a council that works together with our partners and communities to 
get things done: listening, innovating and delivering value for money for 
the people of Gosport

8

P
age 38



Council plan: delivering priorities  
Priority: Breathing new life into Gosport’s High Street, town centre and 
waterfront

We will do this by: 

• Transforming the old Criterion building into a multi-purpose arts and 
entertainment space for the benefit of the community, starting with pop-
up events in 2023 

• Revitalising Gosport’s High Street through the £1.78m High Street Heritage 
Action Zone (HAZ) project, including: 

• grants to repair historic shop fronts

• using vacant shops for community projects

• the transformation of Gosport Museum and Art Gallery into a vibrant 
community hub

• creating an ‘Imagination Refinery’ workspace

• relaunching the High Street market 

• creating a programme of events for the High Street 9

P
age 39



Council plan: delivering priorities  
Priority: Breathing new life into Gosport's high street, town centre and 
waterfront

We will do this by: 

• Investing £1.6m in regeneration of the waterfront area 

• Working to replace the old bus station with a People's Park, with plans for 
a bandstand and waterfront food and drink concessions

• Working in partnership with Hampshire County Council and other key 
stakeholders to deliver improvements to the transport interchange 

• Consulting on and developing Gosport’s Local Plan to provide a framework 
that encourages sustainable development and business investment 

• Introducing free parking in key locations to support local traders 

10

P
age 40



Council plan: delivering priorities 
Priority: Protecting, enhancing, and promoting Gosport's unique rich 
heritage and natural coastal environment

We will do this by: 

• Ensuring Gosport’s unique military history is sustained and heritage assets 
are refurbished through the Heritage Action Zone (HAZ), including: 

• developing new uses for the SETT 

• transforming the E-Magazine into the Powder Monkey Brewery and tap 
room

• restoring the Victorian military railings around St George Barracks 

• restoring and reusing the Police Barracks at Haslar Gunboat Yard

• launching a Submariners’ Memories oral history project

• Investing in coastal flood and erosion risk management

• Improving the Alver Valley country park 

11

P
age 41



Council plan: delivering priorities 
Priority: Making Gosport a cleaner and greener place to live, work and visit 

We will do this by: 

• Delivering Gosport’s climate change strategy and action plan, including:

• promoting energy efficiency measures and advice

• providing options for improving energy efficiency of council homes

• piloting Passivhaus principles when building new council homes

• optimising refuse collection routes to reduce fuel consumption

• promoting sustainable travel, including for staff 

• Including policies in the Local Plan to reduce emissions and encourage 
sustainable development

• Installing solar panels on leisure centre and other council buildings 

• Introducing new electric vehicle charging points 

12

P
age 42



Council plan: delivering priorities 
Priority: Making Gosport a cleaner and greener place to live, work and visit 

We will do this by: 

• Clearing and restoring Bastion 1 as a public park

• Improving street cleansing, including more bins and increased patrols 

• Introducing community skips to reduce fly-tipping 

• Planting new trees and wildflower verges

• Protecting the coastline, including through the coastal pollution plan

• Supporting, and working in partnership with, Hampshire County Council 
and other key stakeholders to add to, and improve, the Borough-wide 
cycle infrastructure

13

P
age 43



Council plan 
Priority: Growing our economy, encouraging investment in Gosport, and 
creating jobs, opportunities, and affordable homes for local people 

We will do this by: 

• Raising the profile of the borough to encourage investment and build the 
visitor economy

• Working with partners and continuing to invest in the development of 
Daedalus Waterfront to create employment opportunities 

• Delivering a new digital strategy for 2023-25, including:

• giving our residents and businesses access to the digital connections 
they need

• creating digital infrastructure in the borough

• building digital skills 

• improving digital access for local people

14

P
age 44



Council plan 
Priority: Growing our economy, encouraging investment in Gosport, and 
creating jobs, opportunities, and affordable homes for local people 

We will do this by: 

• Using the High Street and Heritage Action Zone schemes to actively create 
opportunities for employment and economic growth 

• Continuing to invest in improvements to council homes, for example 
refurbishing Chester Courts 

• Refurbishment of 15 new council homes for local people, including family 
homes and accessible accommodation, piloting Passivhaus principles 

• Starting an options appraisal for the Wilmott Lane depot housing project, 
aiming to deliver 225 new homes, including affordable homes 

• Consulting on and developing Gosport’s Local Plan to provide a framework 
that encourages sustainable development and business investment 

15

P
age 45



Council plan 
Priority: Making sure Gosport has great facilities for arts, play, sports, and 
leisure, enriching communities and helping people live healthy and happy 
lives 

We will do this by: 

• Transforming the old Criterion building into a multi-purpose arts and 
entertainment space

• Investing in upgrading playgrounds and play areas and maintaining splash parks for 
local children

• Making improvements to leisure centres and sports pavilions 

• Reviewing our approach to grants to make more funding directly available to 
community groups and projects 

• Investing in improving and providing more allotments  

• Developing a new cultural strategy, supported by Hampshire Cultural Trust

16

P
age 46



Council plan 
Priority: Being a council that works together with our partners and 
communities to get things done: listening, innovating, and delivering value 
for money for the people of Gosport

We will do this by: 

• Running resident consultations and listening and responding to the 
results, informing the services we provide 

• Facilitating the community safety partnership to keep the borough safe, 
including:

• producing and supporting the delivery of an annual community safety 
plan

• supporting local engagement events and awareness campaigns 
including the Summer Passport programme for young people

• delivering improvements that reduce opportunities for anti-social 
behaviour through a successful bid to the Safer Streets fund 

17

P
age 47



Council plan 
Priority: Being a council that works together with our partners and 
communities to get things done: listening, innovating, and delivering value 
for money for the people of Gosport

We will do this by: 

• Undertaking a review of the council’s buildings and assets to maximise 
value and generate income to support local services

• Focusing on income generation, looking at everything from fees and 
charges to rental from beach huts 

• Developing a social value statement that helps ensure we include 
considerations around sustainability, environmental issues and 
opportunities for local economic regeneration in procurement processes

• Engaging local businesses, both to make sure we understand the local 
market and to encourage local businesses to bid for council procurement 
opportunities, actively supporting the local economy 

18

P
age 48



Council plan 
Priority: Being a council that works together with our partners and 
communities to get things done: listening, innovating, and delivering value 
for money for the people of Gosport

We will do this by: 

• Reviewing our approach to funding, for example CIL and s.106, to 
maximise investment in facilities for local people and communities 

• Supporting our staff, including through hybrid and flexible working, and 
development and training 

• Recruiting good people by enhancing our employer brand and promoting 
Gosport Borough Council as a great place to work 

19

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose 
 

To seek approval from Members in regards to the draft Annual Governance Statement 
(AGS) 2021/22 

 
 

Recommendations 
 

a. That the Policy and Organisation Board approve the Annual Governance Statement 
2021/22. 
 
 

 
1. Background & Purpose 

 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Policy and Organisation Board with an 
overview of the governance arrangements in place at the Council. 

1.2 The annual governance statement forms part of the Council’s Statement of 
Accounts. 

1.3 The authority has a duty to produce and publish an Annual Governance Statement 
(AGS). This sets out how Gosport Borough Council has complied with the Local 
Code of Governance, and how the authority meets the requirements of Regulation 4 
(3) of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 

1.4 The Annual Governance Statement also includes the annual opinion on the 
effectiveness of the internal system of control from the Chief Internal Auditor 

 
. 

 
 

 
2. Report 

 
2.1 Appendix A is the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 2021/22. 

  
 

 
3. Conclusion 

 
3.1 That the Board approve the draft Annual Governance Statement 2021/22. 

 
 

Financial Services 
comments: 

Nil 

Board/Committee: Policy and Organisation Board 

Date of Meeting: 15th March 2023 

Title: Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 

Author: Chief Internal Auditor 

Status: FOR APPROVAL 

Page 51

Agenda Item 8



Legal Services comments: Nil 

Crime and Disorder: Nil 

Equality and Diversity: Nil 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

The delivery of the Annual Governance Statement is a key 
function of the service.  

Corporate Plan: It supports the Council in pursuit of excellence through delivering 
an effective and high quality governance evaluation and 
monitoring. 

Risk Assessment: Not to take this action would have legal, governance, and risk 
management implications for the Council 

Background papers: None 

Appendices/Enclosures: Appendix A – Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 
 

Report author/ Lead Officer: Paul Somerset - Chief Internal Auditor 

 

Page 52



 

1 
 

 GOSPORT BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2021/22 
 
 
Scope of responsibility 
 
Gosport Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards; that public 
money is safeguarded and properly accounted for; and is used economically, efficiently and effectively.  Gosport Borough Council also has a 
duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are 
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
In discharging this overall responsibility, Gosport Borough Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of 
its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, and which includes arrangements for the management of risk.  
 
This statement explains how Gosport Borough Council has complied with the Code and also meets the requirements of Regulation 6 of the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 
 
The purpose of the governance framework 
 
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by which the authority is directed and controlled 
and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the community.  It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its 
strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services. 
 
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level.  It cannot eliminate 
all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of 
effectiveness.  The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of 
Gosport Borough Council’s policies, aims and objectives to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be 
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 
 
 
 

P
age 53



 

2 
 

The governance framework 
Gosport Borough Council's Governance Framework derives from the updated 2016 publication 'Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government'. The Framework identified 7 principles that should underpin the governance arrangements in a Local Authority.   

 

C. Defining outcomes 
in terms of sustainable 
economic, social and 

environmental benefits 

D. Determining the 
interventions 

necessary to optimize 
the achievement of 

the intended 
outcomes 

E. Developing the 
entity's capacity. 

Including the capability 
of its leadership and the 

individuals within it 

F. Managing risks and 
performance through 

robust internal control and 
strong public financial 

management 

G. Implementing 
good practices in 

transparency, 
reporting, and audit, 
to deliver effective 

accountability 

A. Behaving with 
integrity, demonstrating 
strong commitment to 

ethical values, and 
respecting the rule of law 

B. Ensuring openness 
and comprehensive 

stakeholder engagement 

P
age 54



 

3 
 

 
 
Each principle will be outlined below and how the Council meets them: 

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law 

 

Constitution 

The Constitution sets out how the Borough Council operates, the roles and responsibilities of officers and members, how decisions are made 

and the procedures that are followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and accountable to local people. The constitution is 

managed by the Borough Solicitor/Monitoring Officer and was subject to a review to update the Member Code of Conduct and arrangements 

for dealing with complaints about Members during 2021/22. The Constitution is often a working document to enable changes made in relation 

to boards and Council decisions. Further amendments will be required following the change in administration in May 2022 to reflect changes to 

the board structure of the Council. This will be covered within the Annual Governance Statement for 2022/23. 

 

Key Statutory officers 

Head of Paid Service - Section 4 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 requires a Local Authority appoint a Head of Paid Service and 

provide that officer with such staff, accommodation and other resources as are, in his opinion, sufficient to allow his duties under this section to 

be performed. For Gosport Borough Council this officer is David Williams, Chief Executive. 

Monitoring Officer - An officer, appointed under section 5 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, who is required to report to the 

Council where it appears to them the authority has done, or is about to do, anything which would contravene the law or which would constitute 

maladministration. For Gosport Borough Council Paul Grant was the Borough Solicitor and from the 10th  February 2023 Peter Baulf was 

appointed as Monitoring Officer to Gosport Borough Council.   

S151 Officer - As required with the Local Government Act 1972, s151, every local authority shall make arrangements for the proper 

administration of their financial affairs and shall secure that one of their officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs. For 

Gosport Borough Council, this responsibility is that of the Borough Treasurer, Chris Ward.  

 

Councillors 

Local government is accountable and transparent in a number of ways. Elected local authority members are democratically accountable to their 
local area and this gives them a clear leadership role in building sustainable communities. All members must account to their communities for 
the decisions they have taken and the rationale behind those decisions.  

 

Councillor Board Structure 

P
age 55



 

4 
 

As the Council chose to adopt ‘alternative arrangements’ following publication of the Local Government Act 2000, a Board/Committee structure 

is in place and each party is represented proportionally on each Board and Committee according to the number of seats held. Consequently the 

Council enjoys a high level of transparency when it comes to decision making and any Member of the Council is afforded the right to sit on the 

Boards if they are nominated for such a position at the commencement of the Municipal Year. 

 

All decision making reports are structured and the contents demonstrate all relevant information in order to reach an informed decision. 

 

A report on Governance was taken to Council in May 2016 to review the arrangements for the discharge of the Council’s Functions and 

proposed changes to the Boards and Committees. The composition remained unchanged for 2021/22: 

 

Composition of Boards 

  

The following is the composition of the Boards;- 

  

  

Board/Sub Board Number of 

Members 

  

Policy and Organisation Board 12 

Community Board 12 

Economic Development Board 12 

Regulatory Board 12 

Standards and Governance Committee 12 

Housing Board 13 

Climate Change Board 12 

 
  
Decisions are made by Boards and Sub-Boards of the Council with the following having the responsibility for the majority of decision making: 

  

               Council 

P
age 56



 

5 
 

               Policy and Organisation Board 

               Community Board 

               Economic Development Board 

               Regulatory Board (Licensing Sub-Boards) 

 

 

 

As the Regulatory Board deals only with planning applications and the Licensing Sub-Boards with Licensing matters the law does not allow 

their work to be scrutinised by other Councillors. This is because the decisions made by these Boards are already subject to an appeal 

process, either through an independent inspector or the courts. 

 

In addition to the Boards, there is also a Standards and Governance Committee in place to promote and maintain the highest standards of 

conduct by members and officers of the Council. The Committee undertakes the core functions of an Audit Committee identified in CIPFA’s 

practical guidance. Additionally, the Monitoring Officer is enabled to convene an Initial Filtering Panel with three Councillors of the Standards 

and Governance Committee and/or the Council's Independent Person to determine allegations of failure to comply with the Council’s Code of 

Conduct, in accordance with the Council’s arrangements for dealing with such allegations. 

 

Officers of the Council 

Officers give advice, implement decisions and manage the day-to-day delivery of its services. Some officers have specific duties to ensure that 

the Council acts within the law and uses its resources wisely. A protocol contained in the Constitution governs the relationship between officers 

and members of the Council. In certain circumstances, senior and other officers of the Council can make decisions under delegated authority, 

as detailed in the Borough’s Constitution. 

 

The Council Management Team (CMT), consisting of Chief Executive, Assistant Chief Executive, and Monitoring Officer, Head of Finance, 

Head of Benefits Procurement and Insurance, Head of Streetscene, Head of Housing, Chief Internal Auditor and Head of IT, meets periodically 

to develop policy and strategic issues commensurate with the Council’s strategic priorities. Members of CMT meet collectively and individually 

with the Leader of the Council and other leading members of the Administration to consider new policies and strategies as well as managing, 

monitoring and reviewing existing policy and strategy. The Leader holds frequent meetings with the Chief Executive Officer, Assistant Chief 

Executive and Monitoring Officer to review progress in achieving the Council’s strategic priorities for action, performance management and 

finance forward planning for major issues and projects. 

 

P
age 57



 

6 
 

Information that would be of benefit to other members of the Council staff is disseminated through regular meetings between Line Managers 

and the relevant Senior Manager, and then through to the rest of the Council via periodic section meetings. 

 

Information on policy, priorities, procedures and current issues is also disseminated to all staff through the Chief Executive (email) and 

staffroom (email) communications at least monthly. 

 

The Council has also adopted a number of codes and protocols that will govern both member and officer activities. These include: 

 

 Code of Conduct for Members of Gosport Borough Council 

 Code of Conduct for the Guidance of Employees 

 Code of Conduct for Councillors in the Regulatory Process  

 Protocol for Councillor/Officer Relationships 

 Whistleblowing Policy 

 

 

It is the shared responsibility of the Chief Officers [primarily the Chief Executive, Assistant Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and Borough 

Treasurer] and the Human Resource section to ensure compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and regulations. Issues of 

conduct and governance must often be considered by the Standards and Governance Committee, in which case a report and 

recommendations are prepared by the Monitoring Officer. All posts within the authority have a detailed job specification and training needs are 

identified on an on-going basis and also through the Personal Development Scheme. 

 

Boundary Review 

The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) informed the Council that they would be undertaking a statutory review of 

the electoral arrangements with regard to the Electoral Ward boundaries at an informal meeting with The Leader of the Council, the Chief 

Executive and the Electoral Registration Officer in January 2020. 

The LGBCE stated they are 'conducting a review of Gosport Borough Council (‘the Council’) as the value of each vote in borough elections 

varies depending on where you live in Gosport. Some councillors currently represent many more or fewer voters than others. This is ‘electoral 

inequality’. Our aim is to create ‘electoral equality’, where votes are as equal as possible, ideally within 10% of being exactly equal.' 

This electoral review is being carried out to ensure that: 

• The wards in Gosport are in the best possible places to help the Council carry out its responsibilities effectively. 

P
age 58



 

7 
 

• The number of voters represented by each councillor is approximately the same across the borough. 

 

Following the review the LGBCE, the following recommendations were made 

 Gosport should be represented by 28 councillors, six fewer than there are now. 

 Gosport should have 14 wards, three fewer than there are now. 

 The boundaries of all wards should change except Lee East and Lee West wards. 

 

The recommendations were consulted on until 30th August 2021. Following the consultation, the recommendations of the Boundary Review 

were accepted and were put in place for the 5th May 2022 Local Elections. 

 
B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
 
Complaints 
Gosport Council has a clear and publicised 3 stage complaints procedure in place to allow the public an opportunity to raise an issue where 
they feel the Council has not performed the service is should have. In addition, should a complaint not be resolved within the process, the 
option to raise the issue with the Local Government Ombudsman is also advertised. GBC report statistical information on complaints relating to 
the Ombudsman. 
 
Partnerships 
Partnerships allow the Council to work with organisations, other local authorities and groups to aid in the delivery of the Councils services and 
objectives. The Borough has strong links with Hampshire County Council in relation to education within the Borough and highways 
management. In addition GBC also has formal partnership agreement with Fareham Borough Council in relation to Environmental Health, 
Licensing and Building Control Engagement. In addition, Gosport has a partnerships with Portsmouth City Council in relation to the sharing of 
senior management and services such as HR, Communications and Internal Audit. 
A recent audit review has highlighted that currently there is no best practice guidance on how to monitor and review the effectiveness of Local 
Authority partnerships and as such, GBC will be looking to liaise with the Local Government Association (LGA) in determining best practice for 
the ongoing monitoring of performance for Local Authority Partnerships. 
Gosport also works with local organisations such as Citizens Advice and Gosport Voluntary Action to ensure further engagement with the local 
area. 
 
 
 

P
age 59



 

8 
 

Consultations 
The Council frequently consults residents both where there is a legal duty to consult and also on matters of particular interest including, but not 
limited to planned developments within the Borough. 
 
 
The Council makes decisions at public meetings of its Boards and Committees. Members of the public are able to address the Council’s Boards 
and Committees using the Council’s process for public questions and deputations available in the Council’s Constitution and on the Council’s 
website. During 2020/21 all Council meetings were held remotely due to the Covid 19 Pandemic and therefore the meetings were live streamed 
on the internet to ensure the meetings were still deemed as public. Following Government guidance, the meetings of the Council's boards 
resumed being held in public for all of the 2021/22 financial year.. 
 
 
The Council complies with the Freedom of Information Act (2000) and requests can be submitted electronically or in person to be considered by 
the service unit concerned within 20 working days. 
 
 

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits &  

D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes  
 
Financial Planning 
Over the past 10 years (since 2011/12), Central Government funding to Councils has reduced by over 40% in real terms. The Council has a 
strong track record of being able to live within its means, make savings and secure financial resilience. 
 
The medium term financial strategy is designed to meet the following criteria "In year" expenditure matches "in year" income over the medium 
term whilst providing sustainable high quality public services, improving the overall prosperity of residents and businesses and ensuring 
adequate financial resilience.  
Over the next 3 years, the Council has a forecast budget deficit to remedy amounting to £1.7m (+/- £0.5m arising from future uncertainty). This 
compares to a forecast deficit of £2.1m estimated in February 2021 and reflects the following: (i) An improved position regarding future 
estimates of Pension obligations (£0.3m) ii) An improved position for Waste Recycling Income (£0.3m) iii) The rolling 3 year forecast moving on 
a further year to now incorporate 2025/26 
 

P
age 60



 

9 
 

However, it is important to note, as last year, there remains significant uncertainty regarding the future forecast which is estimated could vary 

between +/- £0.5m arising from the following:  The outcome of the Fair Funding Review  The outcome of the Business Rate Retention review 

 The legacy impact of Covid 19, and in particular, its effect on Council Tax Income and Business Rates Income. 
 
Financial Management Code 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (“CIPFA”) has published a new Financial Management Code for authorities to 
adhere to. The CIPFA Financial Management Code 2019 (FM Code) is designed to support good practice in financial management and to 
assist local authorities in demonstrating their financial sustainability. The FM Code sets out the standards of financial management for local 
authorities, based on broad principles. It does not prescribe the financial management processes that local authorities should adopt but 
requires each authority to demonstrate that its processes satisfy the principles of good financial management. 2020/21 was the ‘shadow’ year 
for the implementation of the FM Code with the first year of compliance being 2021/22.  
  
The Council will undertake a rapid review against the new FM Code in order to identify any areas for development.   
 
Climate change 
In 2020 Gosport Borough Council voted to implement a Climate Change Board. This board has the responsibility to formulate policies and 
initiatives in relation to climate change.  
 
 
Council Plan 
The Council’s plan on a page sets out Gosport Borough Council’s mission and core values (ambitious, supportive, collaborative, adaptable and 
efficient). The  Plan also identifies the Council’s strategic priorities (raise aspirations, enhance the environment, develop the economy, 
empower our residents and deliver effective services) which are based on a combination of factors including what matters most to local people, 
national priorities set by the Government and the challenges from Gosport’s changing social, economic and environmental context.  The 
Council continues to keep its plan relevant and up to date; the plan has been developed through engagement with both the Council 
Management Team and officers of the Authority. 
 
The Council also has a Local Plan 2011-2029. The Local Plan sets out the Council’s proposals for the development and use of land from 2011 
– 2029, and forms the basis for dealing with planning applications. The Local Plan has gone through several stages to adoption and was 
supported by an evidence base and a Sustainability Appraisal. In accordance with Government guidance the Council is required to keep its 
Local Plan up to date.  The Council has now started to prepare a revised Local Plan to cover the period to 2038. 
 

P
age 61

https://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/your-council/council-services/planning-section/local-development-framework/gosport-borough-local-plan-2036/


 

10 
 

 
 
The Council’s Mission statement: 
 
“Build on our strengths to empower and support our communications and ensure the potential of the borough and all of our 
residents is achieved” 
 
The Council has continued to evolve its approach to performance management by promoting a transparent and open performance culture 
amongst Section Heads, who are responsible for managing performance on a day-to-day basis.   Whilst in transition, key outcome based 
performance management measurements have been retained whilst new and relevant measures are being further developed.  Section Heads 
are accountable for performance to the Council's Management Team and to elected members.     
 
  

 

E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it  

 

Recruitment & training 

The Council has a robust recruitment process in place which includes tailored applications and interviews with the view to ensuring the right 

candidates are selected for the roles advertised. The Council also has an induction process linked to essential training and mandatory policies 

which must be read and understood by all new starters.  

Gosport Borough Council also has access to the Portsmouth Learning Gateway (PLG) which has a host of Local Authority specific training 

courses for all staff to access as and when required.  

The Council also utilises its partnership with Portsmouth City Council to recruit and employee individuals on the apprenticeship scheme, 

utilising the Government funded Apprenticeship Levy. Apprenticeships provide an opportunity for us to develop our workforce and provide 

employment and training opportunities for people in our community. As at March 2022 GBC has 4 apprentices and 1 member of staff studying 

an apprenticeship as part of their existing role. 

The Council plans to continue to recruit fresh talent into the workplace as well as looking at career pathway opportunities for existing staff. 

 

A designated Members’ Portal covers a wide range of useful materials and guidance. This is available for Members to view on the intranet 

system. This resource enables the Council to better provide for Members the opportunity to locate important stored information and data. Within 

P
age 62



 

11 
 

the Portal is the Members’ Information Pack which provides Members with detailed corporate, strategic and financial information as well as 

relevant policies and other useful information such as floor plans and complaints guidance.. 

 

New Members are provided with an induction training programme to prepare them for their new role, commencing with an induction evening 

hosted by the Chief Executive, Assistant Chief Executive, Borough Solicitor and Borough Treasurer that covers topics such as the role of the 

councillor, finance, standards, code of conduct and major projects. Briefings such as those on planning and licensing issues are held 

throughout the year to correlate with the Board cycle. 

 
There is a wide range of further training opportunities available to Members to increase their knowledge base from skills development (e.g. 
chairing skills, dealing with challenging people and media and image) to need-to-know subjects (e.g. Code of Conduct, planning local 
government finance) detailed in the ‘ Training Opportunities for Members’ booklet within the Members Information Pack.  
 

 

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management &  

G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit, to deliver effective accountability 

 

Risk Management 

The Council is committed to embedding a culture of risk awareness within everyday activities such that formal processes and unnecessary 

documentation can be minimised, but that risk management remains an effective part of the governance framework. 

GBC approved a new risk management policy in 2020 (reviewed in 2022) which aimed to embed risk management throughout the Authority 

with all sections taking ownership of their risks. Periodically, section risk registers are reviewed and analysed by a Risk Management Group to 

determine the risks which will form the Council's strategic risk register. The Risk Management Group consists of the Assistant Chief Executive, 

Borough Solicitor, Chief Internal Auditor and Senior Auditor. 

 

The Corporate Governance Group, consisting of the Chief Executive, Assistant Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and Chief Internal Auditor, 

deep dive on the corporate risk register to challenge the risk level, mitigation and any subsequent actions on a quarterly basis. 

 

Value for money 

The Council has put significant focus on improving procurement processes within the organisation which has included the implementation of a 

new electronic procurement system. In addition, the Council had its Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs) reviewed by a specialist at CIPFA to 

ensure they are robust in ensuring compliance with relevant procurement legislation. These currently remain in draft for 2021/22. A 2019 

P
age 63



 

12 
 

internal audit has highlighted areas for improvement in relation to the adherence to the Council's CPRs and suitable actions have been agreed 

to address this issue. 

 

External Auditors reviewed progress against the action plan and noted that  

'Action plans have been developed since the publication of the report.  However, the extent of progress has not been as we would have 

expected for an issue of this significance. 

 Two were rated ‘Complete’  

 Seven were ‘In Progress’ 

 Four had ‘Not Yet Started’ 

 

Whilst it appears progress is being made to address compliance and contract management within its procurement process, the supporting 

evidence is still somewhat limited.' 

The council continues to work on the actions from the initial audit. A further audit will be conducted by the Internal Audit Team in 2022/23 as 

part of the audit plan. 

 

 

Financial management 

The Council maintains an objective and professional relationship with their appointed external auditors (Ernst & Young LLP) and statutory 
inspectors, as evidenced by the various reports being presented to the Standards and Governance Committee (available on the Council’s 
website). The Council uses the evidence and recommendations contained in those reviews to support performance improvement and risk 
management. 
 

The Financial Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure Rules are under constant review and these are incorporated in the Council’s 

Constitution 

 

Data Management 

The organisation is a registered data controller with the Information Commissioners Officers and has both a Senior Information Risk Owner 

(SIRO) and a Data Protection Officer (DPO). In 2020 the Information Governance Group was setup, including the aforementioned officers, to 

tighten controls on data protection and ensure continued compliance with the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and Freedom of 

Information Act. All staff are required to sign acceptance of the Council's information governance policy and data protection forms part of the 

induction process for all employees. 

P
age 64



 

13 
 

Transparency agenda. On an annual basis, from 2021, the SIRO will report to the Standards and Governance Committee, information on the 

Council's effectiveness regarding information governance including any data breaches which may have occurred.  

 

 
Review of effectiveness 
 
Gosport Borough Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its governance framework 
including the system of internal control.  The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the senior managers within the authority who 
have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Chief Internal Auditor's annual report, and also 
by comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. 
 
 
The process that has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the governance framework includes: 

 

1. The Monitoring Officer has a duty to monitor and review the operation of the Constitution to ensure its aims and principles are given full 

effect.  The Council reviews the Constitution regularly to incorporate any necessary changes.   

 

2. Internal Audit is responsible for monitoring the quality and effectiveness of systems of internal control.  The reporting process for 
Internal Audit requires a report of each audit to be submitted to the relevant service manager.  The report includes 'agreed actions' for 
any issues/risks that have been identified. These issues/risks are graded as Critical, High, Medium or Low. All critical risk issues/risks 
are followed up within 3 months of the final report being issued. If a high risk issue is raised, the audit will be followed up in the next 
financial year.   
 

3. An Internal Audit Annual Report is taken to the Standards & Governance Committee (as per the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015) 
and this provides the overall opinion on the Council's internal control environment.  

 
 
The Standards & Governance Committee also received Internal Audit monitoring reports throughout 2021/22. 
 
The Council entered into an arrangement with Portsmouth City Council for shared Senior Management primarily as a means to address the 
future financial challenges faced by the Council.  The roles and responsibilities of the shared posts will continue to include those relating to the 
Governance of this Council in accordance to the policies and procedures of this Council.  

P
age 65



 

14 
 

 
The shared management arrangement has brought costs savings (through the reduction in the cost of Senior Management) and improved 
operational resilience with the ability to call on resources and expertise from Portsmouth City Council which otherwise were not readily 
available.  
 
The Senior Management Team have been charged by the Administration to review the effectiveness of all of the Council's activities on a 
continuous basis.  Service reviews are ongoing across the Council focused on ensuring that customer demands are met with the changing 
landscape and working practices enforced by the global pandemic. Ensuring processes are effective, and that services have adequate capacity 
and resilience. These are especially prevalent since the Covid-19 pandemic which has required services to work remotely and flexibly to meet 
the current demands. 

 

 

The financial management of the Authority is conducted in accordance with the financial rules set out in the Constitution and underpinned with 

Financial Procedure Rules. The Council has designated the Borough Treasurer as Chief Finance Officer complying with  the  CIPFA statement 

on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2010) requiring the Chief Finance Officer to report directly to the Chief 

Executive and to be a member of the ‘Management Team’.  

 

The Standards and Governance Committee promotes, monitors and enforces probity and high ethical standards amongst the Members, as well 

as providing a vessel for audit, risk and compliance issues to be considered. All Governance reviews and the results of audits are considered 

by the Standards and Governance Committee 

 
Annual Audit Opinion  
During 2021/22, 22 audit reviews, 6 Grant sign offs & 5 full follow up reviews were undertaken and completed. 

85% of the audits undertaken achieved a level of ‘Full Assurance’ or ‘Reasonable Assurance and 15% of the audits completed resulted in a 

'Limited Assurance' level. This is an increase of 13% of Full or Reasonable Assurance being given for audits on the previous year and therefore 

a reduction of 9% in 'Limited Assurance' results.  

The number of High risk exceptions raised has reduced from 19 to 17 this year and the number of Medium risk exceptions grew by 18. 

However 8 more pieces of audit work were completed in 2021/22 compared to the previous year so this will have contributed to this increase. 

P
age 66



 

15 
 

The implementation of 'Agreed Actions' from previous year's audits has been low for another year. Only 29% of the agreed actions stated by 

Sections has been closed as part of the follow up testing undertaken, which is a minor increase from 27% in 2020/21. The reasoning given for 

the majority of the open exceptions is that sections are still managing their workload and resources since the pandemic. While this is 

understandable, the risks identified in the audits are current and should be prioritised and managed. Given the continued low completion rate of 

previously raised issues, all follow up audits with open exceptions will be reported to the Corporate Governance Group for corporate oversight 

and action. 

Significant work and discussions have been held throughout the year to aid in the management of governance issues arising from the Covid 19 

pandemic. A Covid summary report reviewed 7 areas including 6 substantial grants received as part of the Government response to the 

pandemic. The results of these were positive, especially with regards to confirming the eligibility of the grants paid. Any errors which were found 

within the grants reviews were highlighted to the service and steps have been taken to reclaim that money. Audit will continue to provide 

assurance on the grants into the 2022/23 Audit Plan. 

Four audit opinion levels are in place and these are: no assurance, limited assurance, reasonable assurance and full assurance. Where there 

are mainly medium or low risk exceptions the annual audit opinion would be reasonable or full assurance. 85% of audits completed obtained 

Reasonable or Full Assurance, therefore the Annual Audit Opinion for 2021/22 is Reasonable Assurance on the internal control governance 

and framework for risk management and control within Gosport Borough Council, however there needs to be an increase in completion level of 

actions from exceptions improves to maintain this level of assurance 

 
   

Internal Audit will continue to work with Section Heads, the Assistant Chief Executive and the Chief Executive to improve on specific areas of 

control, risk management and governance weaknesses 

Any significant corporate weaknesses and agreed actions will be reflected in the Annual Governance Statement. The impact of the Internal 

Audit work for 2021/22 may affect that year's work for External Audit. It may also inform their work for 2022/23 and where they consider there 

No Assurance  Limited Assurance Reasonable Assurance Full Assurance 

P
age 67



 

16 
 

are weaknesses in control that could materially affect the accounts they may need to carry out further work to gain the necessary audit 

assurance required for a true and fair view of the financial position and compliance with professional codes of practice. 

 

 

 

 
Coronavirus Governance 
 
On the 17th March 2020, as a result of the global pandemic regarding Covid-19, Gosport Council moved to running business critical services 
only. This resulted in the majority of staff either working from home or being redeployed to critical services. GBC enacted its emergency 
procedures and created a Covid-19 Emergency Response Team lead by the Assistant Chief Executive. The composition of the team includes 
leads in the key areas of the Council deemed critical along with statutory officers such as the Monitoring Officer and Head of Emergency 
Planning. 
Decisions made by the Covid-19 Response group have been documented. 
 
As part of the audit plan a number of Covid related grants and processes were audited to ensure the Council had managed the fast paced 
challenging environment created by the pandemic.  
As a result of the global Covid 19 pandemic the Authority along with multiple agencies and organisations have responded and performed their 
role in safeguarding lives, maintaining critical services and functions and protecting the most vulnerable amongst our communities. The 
Authority has also administered government grants at pace and on some occasions against a changing framework. Internal Audit has aided the 
Authority in various activities one of which has been to provide independent assurance on normal activities, but also for those additional areas 
of service performed.  
 
Significant work and discussions have been held throughout the year to aid in the management of governance issues arising from the Covid 19 
pandemic. A Covid summary report reviewed 6 grants and the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) programme 
 
Significant governance issues 
 
The following governance issues have been identified as a result of the review of arrangements and by the work of external and internal audit in 
2021/22.   
 

P
age 68



 

17 
 

NO YEAR 
RAISED 

GOVERNANCE ISSUE SOURCE ACTION PROGRESS 
TO DATE 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER 

1 2020/21 Procurement Compliance Chief Internal 
Auditor 

An audit of Procurement 
has been conducted, 
together with work with 
Cipfa on potential 
improvements to the 
CPRs to address 
localised issues and 
anticipated national 
changes 
 
 
. 

Contract 
Procedure 
Rules are 
completed and 
approved by 
Full Council in 
December 2022 

Chief Executive 

2 2020/21 New ways of working in 
relation to pandemic, 
remote working, hybrid 
teams 

Risk Register Meetings to be held with 
Section Heads re future 
service delivery and 
transition from current 
arrangements, factoring 
in results from staff 
survey and views from 
Leadership. 

Completed Assistant Chief 
Executive 

3 2020/21  Significant increase in 
COVID grants creating 
demand on stretched 
resources 

CMT  
Recruitment underway 
for an officer to manage 
the grants and 
appropriate resources 
needed to deliver them 

Completed Assistant Chief 
Executive 

P
age 69



 

18 
 

NO YEAR 
RAISED 

GOVERNANCE ISSUE SOURCE ACTION PROGRESS 
TO DATE 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER 

within the criteria 

4 2020/21 Staff capacity and 
succession planning. In 
addition, staff wellbeing 
following the pandemic. 

Risk Register Review of vacant posts 
has been undertaken 
with job evaluation and 
design considered where 
posts have been hard to 
fill.  Significant attention 
and support given to staff 
well-being during the 
pandemic and this will 
continue. Promotion of 
recruitment and retention 
tools to increase potential 
retention of skills 

Ongoing Chief Executive 

5 2020/21 Compliance with GDPR 
and protecting the 
Council's information 

Audit Report Actions have been put in 
place and are 
progressing to meet 
ongoing requirements of 
GDPR 

Follow up audit 
highlighted 
improvement in 
this area. 
Completed 

Senior Information 
Risk Owner 

6 2021/22 Cost of living impact may 
cause reliance on Local 
Authorities to deliver 
Government schemes with 
limited resources 

Corporate 
Governance 
Group 

Recruitment underway 
for an officer to manage 
the grants and 
appropriate resources 
needed to deliver them 
within the criteria 

Ongoing Chief Executive 

P
age 70



 

19 
 

 
 
 
 
 
We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our governance arrangements.  We are 
satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their 
implementation and operation as part of our next annual review. 
 
 
 
Signed …………………………                                         ………….…………… 
 
      

Leader of the Council       Chief Executive P
age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
 

  
  

  

Board/Committee: Policy and Organisation Board Meeting 
 

Date of Meeting: 15 March 2023 

Title: EY – Audit Results Report 2021/22 

Author: Kevin Suter 

Status:  Policy and Organisation Board to consider and note 
the 2021/22 Audit Results Report 

  
Purpose 
  
This report summarises the findings to date from the 2021/22 external audit, 
which is well progressed. It includes the messages arising from our audit of 
your financial statements and the arrangements you have put in place to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of your resources. 
 
Our report includes only matters of governance interest that have come to our 
attention in performing the audit under the requirements of the National Audit 
Office’s Code of Audit Practice and International Standards of Auditing (ISAs). 
 
This is an important report that is a requirement of ISA 260 and must be 
presented to you in your role as those charged with governance, before you 
approve the financial statements. 
 
Recommendation 
  

 That the Board review and note the conclusions to date set out in the 
Audit Results Report  

  
1 Background 

  
1.1 

 
The NAO’s Code of Audit Practice requires us to report to 
those charged with governance on the work we have carried 
out to discharge our statutory audit responsibilities, together 
with any governance issues identified. 

  
2 2021/22 Audit Results Report 

  
2.1 

 
 
 

2.2 
 
 
 

Financial statements 
As of 15 March 2023, we expect to issue an unqualified audit 
opinion 
 
Value for money conclusion 
As of 15 March 2023, we expect to conclude that you have not 
put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of your resources. 

Page 73

Agenda Item 9



2 
 

 
 

 
 

2.3 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.4 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Audit certificate 
As of 15 March 2023, we have not yet been able to perform 
the procedures required by the National Audit Office (NAO) on 
the Whole of Government Accounts submission for 2021/22. 
However, do not expect any issues in performing this work as 
the Council falls below the threshold set within the guidance 
from HM Treasury and the group audit instructions for 2021/22 
on which our work is based. The audit certificate will be issued 
once this work is complete. 
 
A verbal update on the progress of the audit since the drafting 
of the Audit Results Report will be provided at the meeting on 
15 March 2023. 

 
Audit Fees 
Our audit scale fee for 2021/22 is £40,844. Any fee variations 
will be agreed with the Borough Treasurer and PSAA in due 
course 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 

There are no risks associated with the Audit Results Report. 
 
Conclusion 

 
The 2021/22 Audit Results Report is attached for consideration. 

 

  

Financial Services comments: The Audit Results Report was shared with 
finance officers for comment before being 
finalised. 

Legal Services comments: N/A 

Crime and Disorder: N/A 

Equality and Diversity: N/A 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

N/A 

Corporate Plan: N/A 

Risk Assessment: N/A 

Background papers: N/A 

Enclosures: Audit Results Report 2021/22 

Report author/ Lead Officer: Kevin Suter, Partner, Ernst & Young 

 

Page 74



Gosport Borough
Council
Audit results report
Year ended 31 March 2022

February 2023

P
age 75



2

February 2023

Gosport Borough Council
Town Hall, High Street
Gosport
Hampshire
PO12 1EB

Dear Policy and Organisation Board Members

2021/22 Audit results report

We are pleased to attach our audit results report, summarising the status of our audit for the forthcoming meeting of the Policy and Organisation
Board. We will update the Policy and Organisation Board at its meeting scheduled for 15 March 2023 on further progress to that date and explain
the remaining steps to the issue of our final opinion.

The audit is designed to express an opinion on the 2021/22 financial statements and address current statutory and regulatory requirements.
This report contains our findings related to the areas of audit emphasis, our views on Gosport Borough Council’s accounting policies and
judgements and material internal control findings. Each year sees further enhancements to the level of audit challenge and the quality of
evidence required to achieve the robust professional scepticism that society expects. We thank the management team for supporting this
process. We have also included an update on our work on value for money arrangements.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Policy and Organisation Board, other members of the Council and senior
management. It is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss the contents of this report with you at the Policy and Organisation Board meeting on 15 March 2023.

Yours faithfully

Kevin Suter

Partner

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Encl

P
age 76



3

Contents
Executive
Summary01 Audit Report02 Areas of

Audit Focus 03 04 Audit
Differences

05 09Other
Reporting
Issues

06 Independence07 Appendices08Value for
Money

Assessment of
Control
Environment

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-
quality/statement-of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National
Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Policy and Organisation Board and management of Gosport Borough Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Policy and Organisation Board, and management of Gosport Borough Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Policy and Organisation Board and management of Gosport Borough Council for this report or for the opinions we have
formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

V
F
M

P
age 77

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities/


4

Executive Summary01

P
age 78



5

Executive Summary

Scope update

In our audit planning report presented at the 17 November 2022 Standards and Audit Sub Board meeting, we provided you with an overview of our audit scope and
approach for the audit of the financial statements. We carried out our audit in accordance with this plan.

Status of the audit

Our audit work in respect of the Council opinion is ongoing. Details of each outstanding item, actions required to resolve and responsibility is included in Appendix B.

Given that the audit process is still ongoing, we will continue to challenge the remaining evidence provided and the final disclosures in the Narrative Report and
Accounts which could influence our final audit opinion, a current draft of which is included in Section 3.

We will continue to work with management to ensure appropriate adjustments and disclosures are made to the financial statements in line with this issued guidance.

Subject to satisfactory completion of the outstanding items included in Appendix B, we do not expect to modify our opinion. However, until our audit work is complete,
further amendments may arise.

We do not expect to issue the audit certificate at the same time as the audit opinion. We have not yet been able to perform the procedures required by the National
Audit Office (NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts submission for 2021/22. However, do not expect any issues in performing this work as the Council falls below
the threshold set within the guidance from HM Treasury and the group audit instructions for 2021/22 on which our work is based. The audit certificate will be issued
once this work is complete.

Auditor responsibilities under the new Code of Audit Practice 2020

Under the Code of Audit Practice 2020 we are still required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness on its use of resources. The 2020 Code requires the auditor to design their work to provide them with sufficient assurance to enable them to report to the
Council a commentary against specified reporting criteria (see below) on the arrangements the Council has in place to secure value for money through economic,
efficient and effective use of its resources for the relevant period.

The specified reporting criteria are:

• Financial sustainability
How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;

• Governance
How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness:
How the Council uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

P
age 79



6

Executive Summary

Status of the audit – Value for Money

In the Audit Plan, we reported that we had yet to complete our value for money (VFM) risk assessment although we had identified a risk of significant weakness in
respect of the governance and improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness criteria. We communicated our planned procedures which included assessing the
progress the Council has made in implementing it’s action plan.

We have completed our planning procedures in relation to VFM and have not identified any further risk of significant weakness against the three reporting criteria we
are required to consider under the NAO’s 2020 Code.

We have completed our planned procedures over the identified risk of significant weakness and consider that there is a weakness in the Council’s arrangements where
the body commissions or procures services;
• how the body ensures that this is done in accordance with relevant legislation, professional standards and internal policies, and
• how the body assesses whether it is realising the expected benefits

The issues are the same as those we raised in our previous year’s report.  The Council has made progress improving its arrangements, but in our judgement had not
made sufficient progress by 31 March 2022 to enable us to conclude that the arrangements were in place during the year.

As a result of completing our planned VFM procedures we will reported by exception details of the significant weakness in the auditor’s report (see Section 03).
We plan to issue the VFM commentary as part of issuing the Auditor’s Annual Report.

We include further details in Section 05.

P
age 80



7

Executive Summary
Audit differences

At the time of writing, we have identified one unadjusted audit difference.

The unadjusted misstatement relates to the value of the PPE additions included in the financial statements. We identified three additions transactions which have been
included within the 2021/22 financial statements which relate to the 2020/21 financial year. We have extrapolated these errors across the untested PPE additions
balance which results in an extrapolated difference of £617k. As the error of £617k is extrapolated, we would not request the Council to amend the financial
statements.

Our work is currently ongoing and our work on expenditure recorded in the Net Cost of Services has identified transactions which have been included within the
2021/22 financial statements which relate to either the 2020/21 or 2022/23 financial year. We are in the process of determining the impact of these differences on
the remainder of the Council’s expenditure balance however, we anticipate the total value of this misstatement to be in the region of £150k. We expect this
misstatement to remain unadjusted within the Council’s financial statements.

Minor disclosure changes have been made throughout the financial statements in response to auditor queries.

We will provide the Policy and Organisation Board with a verbal update on any further audit differences on 15 March 2023.

Other reporting issues

At the time of writing, we have yet to review the information presented in the Annual Governance Statement for consistency with our knowledge of the Council. However,
through the other work performed, we do not expect to have any matters to report as a result of this work.

We will perform the procedures required by the National Audit Office (NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts submission following the completion of the financial
statements audit. The NAO have released their group instructions for 2021/22, and the Council remains below the threshold for detailed procedures.

We have no other matters to report.

P
age 81



8

Executive Summary

Areas of audit focus

In our Audit Plan we identified a number of key areas of focus for our audit of the financial report of Gosport Borough Council. This report sets out our observations and
status in relation to these areas, including our views on areas which might be conservative and areas where there is potential risk and exposure. Our consideration of
these matters and others identified during the period is summarised within the “Areas of Audit Focus" section of this report.

Fraud Risk Findings & Conclusions

Misstatements due to fraud or error We have not identified any material weaknesses in controls or evidence of material management override, instances of
inappropriate judgements being applied; or any other transactions during our audit which appear unusual or outside the
Council‘s normal course of business. However, we note that the work is still ongoing on this area.

Risk of fraud in revenue and
expenditure recognition, through
inappropriate capitalisation of
revenue expenditure

We have not identified any evidence of manipulation of expenditure through inappropriate capitalisation of revenue
expenditure. We have however, identified a misstatement where additions transactions have been included within the
2021/22 financial statements which relate to the 2020/21 financial year, with an extrapolated total of £617k. This
misstatement remains uncorrected.

Our sample testing of additions to PPE and Revenue Expenditure Funded by Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) did not identify
any transactions which were incorrectly classified as capital or included at the incorrect value. We are therefore satisfied that
there is no material fraud arising.

Other Areas of Audit Focus Findings & Conclusions

Pension Liability Valuation We have tested the Council’s pension liability valuation and assessed the work of the Council’s actuary, Aon Hewitt. We are
satisfied that the pension liability and associated balances within the financial statements are not materially misstated. We
have undertaken additional audit procedures in response to ISA540 regarding accounting estimates. These have included the
production of a parallel IAS 19 report by an EY pensions expert which was then compared to the report prepared by Aon
Hewitt. No material differences were identified from this process.

Valuation of Land & Buildings in
Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE)
under Existing-Use-Value (EUV) and
Investment Properties (IP) under
Fair Value (FV)

We employed the use of our own expert to support the work in relation to the valuation of investment properties valued on a
FV basis. At the time of writing, this work is still ongoing.

We are also completing our testing over the remaining sample of assets which have not been selected for review by our own
expert.

P
age 82



9

Executive Summary

Control observations

We have adopted a fully substantive approach, so have not tested the operation of controls.

As part of our work, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and extent of testing performed.
Although our work was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to communicate to you sufficient deficiencies in
internal control identified during our audit.

We have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material misstatement in your financial
statements and which is unknown to you.

Independence

Please refer to Section 08 for our update on Independence. We have no matters to draw to your attention.

Areas of audit focus

We request that you review these areas of audit focus included on the previous page and other matters set out in this report to ensure:
• There are no residual further considerations or matters that could impact these issues
• You concur with the resolution of the issue
• There are no further significant issues you are aware of to be considered before the financial report is finalised
There are no matters, other than those reported by management or disclosed in this report, which we believe should be brought to the attention of the Policy and
Organisation Board or Management.

P
age 83



10

Areas of Audit Focus02

P
age 84



11

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free from material misstatements whether caused by fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to
manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding
controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We identify and respond to this fraud risk on every audit
engagement.

We have considered the areas in which management could seek to override controls at Gosport Borough Council, and
this has fed into our consideration of the risk of fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition as set out on page 13.

What judgements are we focused on?

Our assessment of risk led us to create a series of criteria for the testing of
journals, focusing specifically on areas that could be open to management
manipulation. We have also focused specifically on capitalisation of assets as a
potential area of manipulation, which is recorded as a separately identified fraud
risk – inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure.

Our work on estimates focused on the valuation of Land & Buildings in PPE under
EUV and IP under FV and IAS 19 pension liability valuation estimates as areas of
higher inherent risk and are reported further in this report.

Misstatements due to fraud or error

What did we do?

We have performed the procedures described in our original audit plan. Please
see the following page for full details.

What is the status of our work?

To date, our audit work has not identified any material issues, inappropriate
judgements or unusual transactions which indicated that there had been any
misreporting of the Council’s financial position, or that management had
overridden controls.

However, our journals testing remains in progress and work around certain
material estimates relating to the valuation of land and buildings remains ongoing.

At the time of writing, our work in these areas has not resulted in amendment to
the financial statements, and no indication of fraud was identified. There were also
no unusual transactions identified.

P
age 85



12

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
Further details on procedures / work performed

We carried out the following procedures:
• Identified fraud risks during the planning stages.
• Inquired of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in place to address those risks.
• Understood the oversight given by those charged with governance of management’s processes over fraud.
• Considered the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address those identified risks of fraud.
• Determined an appropriate strategy to address those identified risks of fraud.
• Performed mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified fraud risks, including:

• Testing the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made in the preparation of the financial statements.
• Assessing accounting estimates for evidence of management bias, include estimates with a higher level of inherent risk relating to the valuation of PPE, IP &

surplus assets and pension liability and asset valuation.
• Evaluating the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.

We utilised our data analytics capabilities to assist with our work.

Having re-evaluated this risk, we have considered whether we need to perform other audit procedures not referred to above. We continued to conclude that only those
procedures included under ‘Risk of fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition, through inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure’ were required – see the
next page for further details.

P
age 86



13

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper revenue recognition. In the
public sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which states
that auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur through the manipulation of
expenditure recognition.
We have assessed that the risk is most likely to occur through the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure,
as there is an incentive to reduce expenditure which is funded from Council Tax. This would result in funding
expenditure that should properly be defined as revenue, through inappropriate sources such as capital receipts,
capital grants, or borrowing. We believe the significant risk manifests itself within PPE Additions.
The manipulation of capitalising expenditure could occur through management override of controls.

What judgements are we focused on?

We focused on the Council’s judgements exercised in determining whether
expenditure is capital in nature, and therefore, appropriate to be capitalised
rather than charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Risk of fraud in revenue and expenditure
recognition, through inappropriate
capitalisation of revenue expenditure

What did we do?

We selected a sample of PPE additions using lowered testing thresholds, to
ensure that they are appropriately supported by documentary evidence, and that
the expenditure incurred and capitalised was clearly capital in nature.

We used our data analytics tools to identify and understand the basis for any
significant journals transferring expenditure from non-capital codes to PPE
additions or from revenue to capital codes on the general ledger at the end of the
year.

What are our conclusions?

We found no evidence of incorrect capitalisation of revenue expenditure within
the PPE Additions balance.

We sample tested the PPE additions balance. Of the sample of 17 items tested, 3
were incorrect and were recorded in the 2021/22 financial year, despite relating
to purchases made in 2020/21. We have extrapolated these errors across the
untested PPE additions balance which results in an extrapolated difference of
£617k. As the error is extrapolated, we would not request the Council to amend
the financial statements.

At the time of writing, we have yet to complete our testing over journals
transferring expenditure from non-capital codes to PPE additions or from revenue
to capital codes on the general ledger at the end of the year.

P
age 87



14

Areas of Audit Focus

Our response to areas of audit focus

Further details on procedures/work performed

What is the risk / area of focus? What did we do?

Pension Liability Valuation

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the
Council to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements
regarding its membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme
administered by Hampshire County Council.

The Council’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance and the
Code requires that this liability be disclosed on the Council’s balance
sheet. At 31 March 2022 the Council had a net pension deficit of £33.3m.

The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the
Council by the actuary to the County Council.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement
and therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the
calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to
undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the
assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

We:
• Liaised with the auditors of Hampshire County Council Pension Fund, to obtain

assurances over the information supplied to the actuary in relation to Gosport Borough
Council.

• Assessed the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Aon Hewitt) including the assumptions
they have used by relying on the work of PWC – Consulting Actuaries commissioned by
the National Audit Office for all local government sector auditors, and considered any
relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team.

• Evaluated the reasonableness of the Pension Fund actuary’s gross liability calculations
by comparing them to the outputs of our own auditor’s actuarial model.

• Reviewed and tested the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Council’s
financial statements in relation to IAS 19.

We also considered outturn information available at the time we undertook our work after
production of the Council’s draft financial statements, for example the year-end actuarial
valuation of pension fund assets. We used this to inform our assessment of the accuracy of
estimated information included in the financial statements and whether any adjustments
were required.

What are our findings and conclusions?

We were satisfied there was no evidence of material misstatement arising from the work completed above.

In response to the requirements of ISA540, the auditing standard on accounting estimates, we based our audit approach on procedures to evaluate management’s
process. The standard requires auditors to test the method of measurement of accounting estimates to determine whether the model is appropriately designed,
consistently applied and mathematically accurate, and that the integrity of the assumptions and the data has been maintained in applying the model. Neither we, nor
PWC as consulting actuaries commissioned by the NAO for all local public sector audits, are able to access the detailed models of the actuaries in order to evidence
these requirements. Therefore, we undertook further procedures to create an auditor’s estimate, to gain assurance. We employed the services of an EY pensions
specialist to review the Council’s IAS 19 reports and run a parallel actuarial model which was compared to that produced by Aon Hewitt. This confirmed there was no
material misstatement arising from those estimation procedures undertaken by Aon Hewitt.

P
age 88



15

Areas of Audit Focus

Our response to areas of audit focus

Further details on procedures/work performed

What is the risk / area of focus? What did we do?

Valuation of Land & Buildings in PPE under
EUV and IP under FV

The value of land & buildings in PPE under
EUV and in IP under FV represent significant
balances in the Council’s accounts and are
subject to valuation changes and impairment
reviews. Management is required to make a
high degree of material judgemental inputs
and apply estimation techniques to calculate
the year-end balances recorded in the
balance sheet.

We:
• Considered the work performed by the Council’s valuers, including the adequacy of the scope of the work performed,

their professional capabilities and the results of their work.
• Challenged the assumptions used by the Council’s valuers by reference to external evidence and our EY valuation

specialists.
• Sample tested key asset information used by the valuers in performing their valuation (e.g. yield).
• Considered the annual cycle of valuations, ensuring that EUV assets have been valued within a 5 year rolling

programme as required by the Code for PPE, and annually for IP. We also considered whether there were any
specific changes to assets that have occurred and confirmed that these have been communicated to the valuers.

• Reviewed any EUV and FV properties not subject to valuation in 2021/22 to confirm that the remaining asset base is
not materially misstated.

• Considered changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation.
• Tested that accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.

What are our findings and conclusions?

We employed the use of our own expert to support the work in relation to the valuation of investment properties on a FV basis. As the time of writing, this work is still
ongoing.

We are also completing our testing over the remaining sample of assets which have not been selected for review by our own expert.

We will update the Board of the progress in this area.

P
age 89



16

Audit Report03

P
age 90



17

Audit Report

the Council in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard
and the Comptroller and Auditor General’s AGN01, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Chief Finance
Officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively,
may cast significant doubt on the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern
for a period of 12 months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer with
respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.
However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this
statement is not a guarantee as to the Council’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of
Accounts 2021/22, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the other information
contained within the Statement of Accounts 2021/22.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GOSPORT
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Gosport Borough Council (‘the
Council’) for the year ended 31 March 2022 under the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 (as amended). The financial statements comprise
the:
• Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
• Movement in Reserves Statement,
• Balance Sheet,
• Cash Flow Statement
• the related notes 1 to 37
• Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement, the

Movement on the HRA Statement, and the related notes 1 to 11
• Collection Fund and the related notes 1 to 4

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22.

In our opinion the financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the financial position of Gosport Borough

Council as at 31 March 2022 and of its expenditure and income for the
year then ended; and

• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of

Our opinion on the financial statements

Draft audit report

P
age 91



18

Audit Report

On the basis of our work, having regard to the Code of Audit Practice 2020 and
the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2021, we
have identified the following significant weakness(es) in the Council’s
arrangements for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Significant weakness in arrangements

Our judgement on the nature of the weakness identified:

Internal Audit’s Procurement report published 8 July 2021 concluded a ‘No
Assurance’ rating over Gosport Borough Council’s overall procurement process
based on the audit of two control areas:

1. Compliance with Policies, Laws and Regulations: No Assurance
2. Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations: Limited Assurance

Internal Audit’s testing was designed to assess compliance across three
predominant controls:
1. All procurement spend which occurred in three financial years (2018/19,

2019/20 and the period April 2020 to December 2020) has been in
accordance with procurement regulations;

2. All procurement spend for the financial year 2020/21 has been undertaken
using the Council’s electronic procurement solution to ensure all bids
(quotations and tenders) and supporting information are stored for
management and transparency purposes; and

3. Where applicable, all contract spend has been recorded on the Council’s
contract register to enable the Council to comply with the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015.

All three tests resulted in significant findings, driving the ‘No Assurance’ rating
assigned to compliance.

The Council has developed an action plan responding to the review. As at the
completion of our work on the prior year audit in January 2022, of its thirteen
action:
 Two were rated ‘Complete’
 Seven were ‘In Progress’

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies
or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether
there is a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we report by exception

We report to you if:
 in our opinion the annual governance statement is misleading or

inconsistent with other information forthcoming from the audit or our
knowledge of the Council

 we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as amended)

 we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section
24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as amended)

 we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of
account is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 (as amended)

 we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 (as amended)

 we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as amended)

We have nothing to report in these respects

In respect of the following, we have matters to report by exception:

We report to you, if we are not satisfied that the Council has put in place
proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Our opinion on the financial statements

P
age 92



19

Audit Report

Responsibility of the Chief Finance Officer

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Responsibilities set out on page
16, the Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement
of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper
practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22, and for being satisfied that they give
a true and fair view and for such internal control as the Chief Finance Officer
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Finance Officer is responsible for
assessing the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Council either intends to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper
stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and
effectiveness of these arrangements.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above,
to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example,

 Four had ‘Not Yet Started’

A number have been subject to delays between action plan updates.

Based on our review of the Council’s progress as reported in September 2022,
six months after the end of the financial year:

 Seven were rated 'Complete'
 Three were rated 'In Progress'
 Three had 'Not Yet Started'

While there is progress in the action plan, the progress has not been sufficient
by 31 March 2022.

The evidence on which our view is based:

 Internal Audit’s review of Procurement, published 8 July 2021
 Our review of the Council’s progress against the subsequent Action Plan

The impact on the Gosport Borough Council:

The Council’s procurement process is at risk of challenge by external
suppliers, residents and the public.

The action the Council needs to take to address the weakness.

The Council needs to continue to implement the remaining items from the
Action Plan in response to Internal Audit’s procurement review, responding to
the weaknesses identified.

This issue is evidence of weaknesses in proper arrangements for:
 ensuring appropriate governance in the procurement of services by

making informed decisions and properly managing its risks; and
ensuring it can demonstrate compliance with appropriate legislative
requirements, professional standards and internal policies;

 improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness by assessing whether it
is realising the expected benefits when procuring services.

Our opinion on the financial statements

P
age 93



20

Audit Report

We assessed the susceptibility of the Council’s financial statements to material
misstatement, including how fraud might occur by understanding the potential
incentives and pressures for management to manipulate the financial statements,
and performed procedures to understand the areas in which this would most likely
arise. Based on our risk assessment procedures, we identified inappropriate
capitalisation of revenue expenditure and management override of controls to be
our fraud risks.

To address our fraud risk of inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure we
tested the Council’s capitalised expenditure and revenue expenditure funded from
capital under statute (REFCUS) to ensure the capitalisation and classification
criteria were properly met and the expenditure was genuine.

To address our fraud risk of management override of controls, we tested the
appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the
judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential
bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any identified significant
transactions that were unusual or outside the normal course of business.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.  This description forms part of
our auditor’s report.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of resources

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice
2020, having regard to the guidance on the specified reporting criteria issued by
the Comptroller and Auditor General in December 2021, as to whether the
Council had proper arrangements for financial sustainability, governance and
improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness. The Comptroller and Auditor
General determined these criteria as those necessary for us to consider under the
Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Council put in place
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2022.

forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.   The extent to
which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and
detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the entity
and management.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are
applicable to the Council and determined that the most significant are:

• Local Government Act 1972,
• Local Government and Housing Act 1989 (England and Wales)
• Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Local

Government Finance Act 1992),
• Local Government Act 2003,
• The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England)

Regulations 2003 as amended in 2018 and 2020,
• The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as amended), and
• The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

In addition, the Council has to comply with laws and regulations in the areas of
anti-bribery and corruption, data protection, employment Legislation, tax
Legislation, general power of competence, procurement and health & safety.

We understood how Gosport Borough Council is complying with those
frameworks by understanding the incentive, opportunities and motives for
non-compliance, including inquiring of management, the head of internal
audit, those charged with governance and the monitoring officer, and
obtaining and reading documentation relating to the procedures in place to
identify, evaluate and comply with laws and regulations, and whether they are
aware of instances of non-compliance. We corroborated this through our
reading of the Council’s committee minutes, through enquiry of employees to
confirm the Council policies, and through the inspection of other information.
Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-
compliance with such laws and regulations. Our procedures had a focus on
compliance with the accounting framework through obtaining sufficient audit
evidence in line with the level of risk identified and with relevant legislation.

Our opinion on the financial statements

P
age 94



21

Audit Report

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of Gosport Borough Council as a body,
in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as
amended) and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement
of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector
Audit Appointments Limited. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Council and the
Council’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on
our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to
form a view on whether, in all significant respects, the Council had put in place
proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources.

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 (as amended) to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources.

We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects
of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

Delay in certification of completion of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate until we
have issued our Auditor’s Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2022.
We have completed our work on the value for money arrangements and will
report the outcome of our work in our commentary on those arrangements
within the Auditor’s Annual Report.

Until we have completed these procedures, we are unable to certify that we
have completed the audit of the accounts in accordance with the requirements
of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as amended) and the Code of
Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office.

Our opinion on the financial statements

P
age 95



22

Audit Differences04

P
age 96



23

Audit Differences

In the normal course of any audit, we identify misstatements between amounts we believe should be recorded in the financial statements and the disclosures and
amounts actually recorded. These differences are classified as “known” or “judgemental”. Known differences represent items that can be accurately quantified and
relate to a definite set of facts or circumstances. Judgemental differences generally involve estimation and relate to facts or circumstances that are uncertain or open to
interpretation.

At the time of writing, we have not identified any adjusted misstatements greater than £957k. Minor disclosure changes have been made throughout the financial
statements in response to auditor queries.

However, our work is currently ongoing and our work on expenditure recorded in the Net Cost of Services has identified transactions which have been included within
the 2021/22 financial statements which relate to either the 2020/21 or 2022/23 financial year. We are in the process of determining the impact of these differences on
the remainder of the Council’s expenditure balance however, we anticipate the total value of this misstatement to be in the region of £150k. We expect this
misstatement to remain unadjusted within the Council’s financial statements.

We will provide the Policy and Organisation Board with a verbal update on any audit differences on 15 March 2023.

Unadjusted misstatements are set out on the subsequent page.

Summary of adjusted differences

P
age 97



24

Audit Differences

In addition we highlight the following misstatements to the financial statements and/or disclosures which were not corrected by management. We request that these
uncorrected misstatements be corrected or a rationale as to why they are not corrected be considered and approved by the Policy and Organisation Board and provided
within the Letter of Representation:

Summary of unadjusted differences

Uncorrected misstatements
2021/22 (£’000)

Effect on the
current period:

Net assets
(Decrease)/Increase

OCI
Debit/(Credit)

Comprehensive
Income and

Expenditure
Statement

Debit/(Credit)

Assets
current

Debit/
(Credit)

Assets non
current

Debit/
(Credit)

Liabilities
current

Debit/
(Credit)

Liabilities
non-current

Debit/
(Credit)

Equity
Components

Errors

Judgemental differences:

• PPE Additions – Overstated 2021/22 Land and Building
additions which relates to 2020/21 (617) 617

• Net Cost of Service Expenditure – Overstated 2021/22
Expenditure which relates to 2020/21 or 2022/23 (150) 150

Balance sheet totals (150) (617) 617 150

Cumulative effect of uncorrected misstatements (150) (617) 617 150

There are no amounts that we identified that are individually or in aggregate material to the presentation and disclosures of the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2022.

P
age 98



25

Value for Money05 01

P
age 99



26

Value for money

The Council’s responsibilities for value for money (VFM)

The Council is required to maintain an effective system of internal control that supports the achievement of its policies, aims and objectives while
safeguarding and securing value for money from the public funds and other resources at its disposal.

As part of the material published with its financial statements, the Council is required to bring together commentary on its governance framework and
how this has operated during the period in a governance statement. In preparing its governance statement, the Council tailors the content to reflect its
own individual circumstances, consistent with the requirements set out in the Cipfa code of practice on local authority accounting. This includes a
requirement to provide commentary on its arrangements for securing value for money from their use of resources.

Arrangements for
Securing value for

money

Financial
Sustainability

Improving
Economy,

Efficiency &
effectiveness

Governance

V
F
M

Risk assessment

We have previously reported to the Standards and Audit Sub Board on 17 November 2022 that our risk
assessment was not yet complete although we had identified one risk of significant weaknesses in the
Council’s VFM arrangements in relation to the Council’s arrangements where the body commissions or
procures services;

• how the body ensures that this is done in accordance with relevant legislation, professional standards
and internal policies, and

• how the body assesses whether it is realising the expected benefits

We have completed our risk assessment procedures and have not identified any additional risks.

Status of our VFM work

We have completed our planned procedures over the identified risk of significant weakness and consider
that there is a weakness in the Council’s arrangements. We therefore have matters to report by exception
in the auditor’s report (see section 03).

We set out the work performed against this risk and our findings on the subsequent pages.

Our full VFM commentary will be issued within our Auditor’s Annual Report.

P
age 100



27

Value for Money

What is the risk of
significant weakness?

What arrangements did this
impact?

What did we do?

We identified a significant risk
against the sub-criteria of
Governance, and Improving
Economy, Efficiency and
Effectiveness.

We identified that a risk that the
Council may not have proper
arrangements to ensure that
where the Council procures
services, it can demonstrate how
it ensures that this is done in
accordance with relevant
legislation, professional
standards and internal policies,
and how the Council assesses
whether it is realising the
expected benefits.

The risk was initially identified within our prior year audit, from the Internal Audit Annual Report
presented to the 3 August 2021 Standards & Governance Committee meeting, whereby Internal
Audit concluded ‘No Assurance’ from their Procurement audit.

As reported in our 2020/21 Audit Results Report, we previously:
• Obtained an understanding of the procurement process, by performing a walkthrough of the

procurement process flow with the officers responsible for procurement reviewing GBC’s
procurement guidelines as outlined in the Constitution, considering any applicable laws and
regulations

• Reviewed the Internal Audit Report for the procurement function and:
• Identified the significant findings and recommendations
• Assessed the extent to which recommendations were being implemented

• Assessed GBC’s control environment, by sampling transactions to determine whether GBC
adhered to the procurement process. Where there was any variance from the process we:

• Identified the risks of not adhering to the procurement process
• Determined how the Council assessed the risk of non-adherence and how it mitigated the

same risks

This work included the assistance of our Forensics & Integrity Services (FIS) colleagues.

As part of our 2021/22 assessment, we sought to assess the progress the Council has made in
implementing it’s action plan, taking into account the findings of Internal Audit’s follow up review.

Responding to a risk of significant weakness in VFM arrangements

V
F
M

P
age 101



28

Value for Money

Responding to a risk of significant weakness in VFM arrangements

Findings

V
F
M

Internal Audit’s Procurement report provided the significant evidence for the year to 31 March 2021.  It concluded a ‘No Assurance’ rating over GBC’s overall
procurement process based on the audit of two control areas:

• Compliance with Policies, Laws and Regulations: No Assurance
• Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations: Limited Assurance

Internal Audit undertook testing to assess compliance across three predominant controls:
• All procurement spend which occurred in three financial years (2018/19, 2019/20 and the period April 2020 to December 2020) has been in accordance with

procurement regulations;
• All procurement spend for the financial year 2020/21 has been undertaken using the Council’s electronic procurement solution to ensure all bids (quotations and

tenders) and supporting information are stored for management and transparency purposes; and
• Where applicable, all contract spend has been recorded on the Council’s contract register to enable the Council to comply with the Public Contracts Regulations

2015.

All three tests resulted in significant findings, driving the ‘No Assurance’ rating assigned to compliance.

Therefore, in our judgement the report provided clear evidence of a lack of appropriate arrangements to ensure compliance with internal procedures during the
2020/21 year.

Action plans were developed after publication of the report and progress has continued to be made against these actions.  However, the extent of progress within the
2021/22 financial year has not been as we would have expected for an issue of this significance to allow us to conclude the arrangements were in place during the year.

The action plan includes the lead officer responsible for each action, alongside a completion date and has been graded to show progress: not yet started, in progress and
complete.

From our review of the thirteen action points identified, it is clear that some of the actions which will have the most impact on compliance have not been addressed as of
September 2022, which was 6 months after the end of the year we are assessing:
- Seven were rated 'Complete'
- Three were rated 'In Progress'
- Three had 'Not Yet Started'

The three 'Not Yet Started’ had been subject to various delays between the action plan updates.

P
age 102



29

Value for Money

Responding to a risk of significant weakness in VFM arrangements

Findings - continued

V
F
M

In our view, prioritisation should centre on the further recommended investigations, staff training and the publication of the Contract Procedure Rules and Procurement
Strategy, in order to see significant improvements in the Council's procurement process.

Of these identified priorities:
• The Procurement Strategy was identified as 'Complete' in February 2022 with staff training 'Complete’ as at July 2022.
• The remaining two actions remained 'In Progress’ as at September 2022.

Of these actions, only the Procurement Strategy was prepared prior to the financial statement date of 31 March 2022.

As at the completion of our audit work in January 2023, the CPRs have been prepared, approved by the Standards and Audit Sub Board on 17th November 2022, and
by Council on 15th December 2022.  The further investigations have also been completed.

Training was provided in July 2022, to avoid any delays until final CPRs were produced and approved. This meant that the training was completed prior to their
publication and therefore, further training has been identified as required, due to be held in March 2023.

Internal Audit have undertaken further testing of the procurement arrangements in place between January 2022 and July 2022, including reviewing progress against
the identified action plan, and identified that improvements have been made. It concluded a ‘Reasonable Assurance’ rating based on the audit.

Whilst progress has continued to be made against the action plan, we have concluded that the risk of not adhering to the procurement process was still prevalent during
the 2021/22 financial year. As such, the Council remained at risk of challenge by external suppliers, residents and the public.

In the prior year we reported that this issue is evidence of weaknesses in proper arrangements for where the Council procures services, and whether it can demonstrate
how it ensures that this is done in accordance with relevant legislation, standards and internal policies, and how the council assesses whether it is realising the expected
benefits.

These findings provide evidence that the significant weakness in arrangements continues during 2021/22.  We recognise the Council is making progress, but the actions
were not sufficiently progressed by 31 March 2022.

P
age 103



30

Value for Money

Responding to a risk of significant weakness in VFM arrangements

Conclusions

V
F
M

The issue is evidence of weaknesses in proper arrangements for where the Council procures services, it can demonstrate how it ensures that this is done in accordance
with relevant legislation, standards and internal policies, and how the Council assesses whether it is realising the expected benefits.

The findings provide evidence of a significant weakness in arrangements during 2021/22.

The impacted VFM criteria are:

Governance:

• How the body monitors and ensures appropriate standards, such as meeting legislative/regulatory requirements and standards in terms of officer or member
behaviour (such as gifts and hospitality or declarations/conflicts of interests), and for example where it procures or commissions services

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness:

• Where the body commissions or procures services, how the body assesses whether it is realising the expected benefits.

Recommendation
The Council has an action plan in place which addresses the issues raised from the Internal Audit review. The concern from our review has been the pace of the actions.

Recommendation:

The Council needs to continue to implement the remaining items from the Action Plan in response to Internal Audit’s procurement review, responding to the weaknesses
identified.

P
age 104



31

Other reporting issues06 01

P
age 105



32

Consistency of other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement

We must give an opinion on the consistency of the financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts 2021/22 with the audited financial statements

We must also review the Annual Governance Statement for completeness of disclosures, consistency with other information from our work, and whether it complies
with relevant guidance.

At the time of writing, we have yet to review the information presented in the Annual Governance Statement for consistency with our knowledge of the Council.
However, through the other work performed, we do not expect to have any matters to report as a result of this work.

We will revisit these conclusions at the completion of all audit procedures.

Other reporting issues

Other reporting issues

Whole of Government Accounts

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office on your Whole of Government Accounts return. The extent of
our review, and the nature of our report, is specified by the National Audit Office.

We have not yet completed the procedures required by the National Audit Office (NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts submission for 2021/22. However, we
do not expect any issues in performing this work as the Council falls below the threshold set within the guidance from HM Treasury and the group audit instructions for
2021/22 on which our work is based.

The audit certificate will be issued once this work is complete.

P
age 106



33

Other powers and duties

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the course of the audit,
either for the Authority to consider it or to bring it to the attention of the public (i.e. “a report in the public interest”). We did not identify any issues which required us
to issue a report in the public interest.

Other reporting issues

Other reporting issues

Other matters

As required by ISA (UK&I) 260 and other ISAs specifying communication requirements, we must tell you significant findings from the audit and other matters if they
are significant to your oversight of the Council’s financial reporting process. They include the following:

• Significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures;
• Any significant difficulties encountered during the audit;
• Any significant matters arising from the audit that were discussed with management;
• Written representations we have requested;
• Expected modifications to the audit report;
• Any other matters significant to overseeing the financial reporting process;
• Findings and issues around the opening balance on initial audits (if applicable);
• Related parties;
• External confirmations;
• Going concern;
• Consideration of laws and regulations; and
• Group audits

We have no matters to report.

P
age 107



34

Assessment of Control
Environment07

P
age 108



35

Assessment of Control Environment

As part of our audit of the financial statements, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and
extent of testing performed.

Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to communicate to you.

We have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material misstatement in your financial
statements.

We considered whether circumstances arising from Covid-19 resulted in a change to the overall control environment of effectiveness of internal controls, for example
due to significant staff absence or limitations as a result of working remotely. We identified no issues which we wish to bring to your attention.

Financial controls

P
age 109



36

Independence08

P
age 110



37

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

The FRC Ethical Standard requires that we provide details of all relationships between Ernst & Young (EY) and the Council, and its members and senior management and
its affiliates, including all services provided by us and our network to the Council, its members and senior management and its affiliates, and other services provided to
other known connected parties that we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on the our integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise
independence and the related safeguards that are in place and why they address the threats.
There are no relationships from 1 April 2021 to the date of this report, which we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and objectivity.

Services provided by Ernst & Young

The next page includes a summary of the fees that you have paid to us in the year ended 31 March 2022 in line with the disclosures set out in FRC Ethical Standard and
in statute. Full details of the services that we have provided are shown below.

As at the date of this report, there are no future services which have been contracted and no written proposal to provide non-audit services has been submitted.

We confirm that we have not undertaken non-audit work.

EY Transparency Report 2022

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence
and integrity are maintained. Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual
Transparency Report which the firm is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year end 30 June 2022:
EY UK 2022 Transparency Report | EY UK

P
age 111

https://www.ey.com/en_uk/about-us/transparency-report


38

Independence

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards
Services provided by Ernst & Young

Description

Final Fee
2021/22

£

Planned Fee
2021/22

£

Final Fee
2020/21

£

PSAA Scale Fee 40,844 40,844 40,844

2020/21 Scale Fee Variation (Note 1) 38,913

Total agreed fees 79,757

Proposed Scale Fee Rebasing (Note 2) 18,114 18,114

Scale Fee Variation (Note 3) 8,500 8,500

Scale Fee Variation (Note 4) 1,000 1,000

Scale Fee Variation (Note 5) 4,605 1,482

Total audit 73,063 69,940 79,757

We have updated the table above to estimate the fee based on the work completed at the point of issuing this report. These figures could change, and need to be
communicated with officers and submitted for determination to the PSAA. Any further additional fees for 2021/22 will be communicated to the CFO following the
completion of the audit.

All fees exclude VAT

Note 1: Since the presentation of the Audit Planning Report, the scale fee variation for the 2020/21 audit has been approved by PSAA. This reflects the changes in work
required to address professional and regulatory requirements and scope associated with risk.

Note 2: In 2020/21 we submitted a proposed rebasing of the scale fee to reflect changes in work required to address professional and regulatory requirements and scope
associated with risk. PSAA have approved this as a scale fee variation for the 2020/21 year. As such, we have rolled this forward for the purposes of the 2021/22
planned fee.

Note 3: The 2020/21 fee included a proposed additional fee of £8,500, for additional work undertaken in relation to the impact of amended auditing standards
(specifically ISA 540), and the changing requirements for our VFM responsibilities. This additional fee was approved in full by PSAA as part of the above determined scale
fee variation.  We have rolled this forward for the 2021/22 planned fees, based on this approved value.

Continued….

P
age 112



39

Independence

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards
Services provided by Ernst & Young

Note 4: The 2020/21 Code work included a proposed additional fee of £7,999, for additional work undertaken in relation to the identified significant weakness in
arrangements for our Value for Money work. This additional fee was approved in full by PSAA as part of the above determined scale fee variation. For 2021/22, we have
estimated a reduced fee compared to the prior period VFM work, as the scope of our work was narrower focusing on the Council’s progress with its action plan.

Note 5: The 2020/21 Code work included a proposed additional fee of £8,427, for additional work undertaken in relation to the accounting for Covid Grants, EY Pensions
internal specialist work on the Actuary’s model and additional Going Concern procedures caused by Covid. This additional fee was approved in full by PSAA as part of the
above scale fee variation.

For 2021/22, we have removed the fee in relation to the Covid Grants and Going Concern caused by Covid as these were specific to 2020/21. We have retained planned
fees for the specialist’s work on the pensions liability, and IAS19 assurances from the Hampshire Pension Fund that the fund does not pay.  We have also included an
estimate of the specialists time for property valuations.

P
age 113



40

Appendices09

P
age 114



41

Appendix A

Required communications with the Policy and Organisation Board
There are certain communications that we must provide to the those charged with governance of UK entities. We have detailed these here together with a reference of
when and where they were covered:

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Policy and Organisation Board of acceptance of terms of engagement
as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter. Audit Planning Report – 17 November 2022

Planning and audit
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the
significant risks identified.
When communicating key audit matters this includes the most significant risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) including those that have the greatest effect on
the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts
of the engagement team.

Audit Planning Report – 17 November 2022

Significant findings
from the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management
• Written representations that we are seeking
• Expected modifications to the audit report
• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit Results Report – 15 March 2023

P
age 115



42

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability
to continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty related to going

concern
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation

and presentation of the financial statements
• The appropriateness of related disclosures in the financial statements

We have yet to completed our testing over the
going concern assumption. However, in the
work performed to date, no conditions or
events have been identified, either individually
or together to raise any doubt about Gosport
Borough Council’s ability to continue for the
12 months from the date of our report.

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited
by law or regulation

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
• Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit Results Report – 15 March 2023

Subsequent events • Enquiry of the Policy and Organisation Board where appropriate regarding whether any
subsequent events have occurred that might affect the financial statements.

Audit Results Report – 15 March 2023

Fraud • Enquiries of the Policy and Organisation Board to determine whether they have
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a
fraud may exist

• Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the entity, any
identified or suspected fraud involving:
a. Management;
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial statements.

• The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the audit when
fraud involving management is suspected

• Any other matters related to fraud, relevant to Policy and Organisation Board
responsibility.

Audit Results Report – 15 March 2023

P
age 116



43

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Related parties Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties
including, when applicable:
• Non-disclosure by management
• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
• Disagreement over disclosures
• Non-compliance with laws and regulations
• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

Audit Results Report – 15 March 2023

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence.
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity

and independence
Communications whenever significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place.

Audit Planning Report – 17 November 2022

Audit Results Report – 15 March 2023

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.

Audit Results Report – 15 March 2023

Consideration of laws
and regulations

• Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, other than those which are clearly
inconsequential and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected non-compliance
may also include those that are brought to our attention that are expected to occur
imminently or for which there is reason to believe that they may occur

• Enquiry of the Policy and Organisation Board into possible instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements
and that the audit committee may be aware of

Audit Results Report – 15 March 2023

P
age 117



44

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Significant deficiencies in
internal controls identified
during the audit

• Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit. Audit Results Report – 15 March 2023

Written representations
we are requesting from
management and/or those
charged with governance

• Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with
governance

Audit Results Report – 15 March 2023

Material inconsistencies or
misstatements of fact
identified in other
information which
management has refused
to revise

• Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which
management has refused to revise

Audit Results Report – 15 March 2023

Auditors report • Key audit matters that we will include in our auditor’s report
• Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report

Audit Results Report – 15 March 2023

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit planning report is agreed
• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
• Any non-audit work

Audit Planning Report – 17 November 2022

Audit Results Report – 15 March 2023

P
age 118



45

Appendix B

Outstanding matters
The following items relating to the completion of our audit procedures are outstanding at the date of the release of this report:

Item Actions to resolve Responsibility

Council Tax and Business Rates
Walkthroughs

EY to complete documentation on Council Tax and Business Rates walkthroughs based on final
information received in February 2023.

EY

Capital and Revenue Grants
Received in Advance

EY to complete sample testing on capital and revenue grants received in advance balances once final
information has been received from Management.

Management and EY

Property, Plant and Equipment
and Investment Property
Existence

EY to review and document evidence from Management to support the existence of Property, Plant
and Equipment and Investment Property assets.

Management and EY

Property, Plant and Equipment
and Investment Property
Valuations (excluding Council
Dwellings)

Audit team to assess the results of testing completed by EY Real Estate on completion.
EY to complete sample testing of asset valuations not subject to review by EY Real Estate on receipt
of further information from Management.

Management and EY

Council Dwellings Procedures EY to complete testing on Council Dwellings, including existence, depreciation and valuation testing. EY

Other Disclosures EY to complete testing over some disclosures and other information included within the financial
statements including the Annual Governance Statement, Narrative Statement and Expenditure and
Funding Analysis

EY

Expenditure and Income Testing EY to complete testing over expenditure and income balances recorded within the net cost of
services. This includes reviewing the Module 2 and Module 5 information prepared by management
in the audit of the Housing Benefit expenditure balance.

Management and EY

Going concern review and
disclosures

EY to complete testing over the going concern assumption adopted by management, including
review of the disclosures included within the financial statements.

EY

Journals Testing EY to complete journals testing as responsive to our risk of management override. EY

P
age 119



46

Appendix B

Outstanding matters
The following items relating to the completion of our audit procedures are outstanding at the date of the release of this report. However, these are areas which are
finalised after the conclusion of all other work required for the audit.

Item Actions to resolve Responsibility

Final review of completed audit
procedures

EY to complete EY

Receipt and review of the final
version of the financial
statements

Council to prepare final version of accounts Management and EY

Update of subsequent events
procedures to the date of our
opinion

EY to complete at point of signing EY

Receipt and review of the
Management representation
letter

Council to prepare letter on headed paper Management and EY

Until all our audit procedures are complete, we cannot confirm the final form of our audit opinion as new issues may emerge or we may not agree on final detailed
disclosures in the Annual Report. At this point no issues have emerged that would cause us to modify our opinion, aside from those detailed within section 05 on Value
for Money, but we should point out that key disclosures on property, plant and equipment, going concern, and our journals testing remain to be finalised and audited. A
draft of the current opinion is included in Section 03.

P
age 120



47

Appendix C

Management representation letter

LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2021/22.

2. We acknowledge, as members of management of the Council, our
responsibility for the fair presentation of the financial statements.  We
believe the financial statements referred to above give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance (or results of operations)
and cash flows of the Council in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22,
and are free of material misstatements, including omissions.  We have
approved the financial statements.

3. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
financial statements are appropriately described in the financial
statements.

4. As members of management of the Council, we believe that the Council has
a system of internal controls adequate to enable the preparation of
accurate financial statements in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22,
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
We have disclosed to you any significant changes in our processes, controls,
policies and procedures that we have made to address the effects of the
COVID-19 pandemic on our system of internal controls and the effects of
the conflict and related sanctions in Ukraine, Russia and/or Belarus on our
system of internal controls.

5. We believe that the effects of any unadjusted audit differences, summarised
in the accompanying schedule, accumulated by you during the current audit
and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a
whole.  We have not corrected these differences identified by and brought
to the attention from the auditor because [specify reasons for not
correcting misstatement].

Ernst & Young

Grosvenor House

Grosvenor Square
Southampton
SO15 2BE

This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the
financial statements of Gosport Borough Council (“the Council”) for the year
ended 31 March 2022.  We recognise that obtaining representations from us
concerning the information contained in this letter is a significant procedure in
enabling you to form an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as of 31 March 2022
and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended in accordance with
the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2021/22.

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial statements is to
express an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing (UK), which involves an examination
of the accounting system, internal control and related data to the extent you
considered necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to identify -
nor necessarily be expected to disclose - all fraud, shortages, errors and other
irregularities, should any exist.

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the
best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records.

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory
authorities, for the preparation of the financial statements in
accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and CIPFA

Management Rep Letter

P
age 121



48

Appendix C

Management representation letter

C. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions

1. We have provided you with:

 Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and
other matters;

 Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of
the audit; and

 Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined
it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

2. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and
all material transactions, events and conditions are reflected in the financial
statements, including those related to the COVID-19 pandemic and
including those related to the conflict and related sanctions in Ukraine,
Russia and/or Belarus.

3. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the Council
and committees (or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which
minutes have not yet been prepared) held through the period to the most
recent meeting on the following date: [list date].

4. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the
identification of related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the
Council’s related parties and all related party relationships and transactions
of which we are aware, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers of
assets, liabilities and services, leasing arrangements, guarantees, non-
monetary transactions and transactions for no consideration for the period
ended, as well as related balances due to or from such parties at the period
end.  These transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in the financial statements

B. Non-compliance with law and regulations, including fraud

1. We acknowledge that we are responsible to determine that the
Council’s activities are conducted in accordance with laws and
regulations and that we are responsible to identify and address any
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations, including fraud.

2. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation
and maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud.

3. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that
the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of
fraud.

4. We have no knowledge of any identified or suspected non-compliance
with laws or regulations, including fraud that may have affected the
Council (regardless of the source or form and including without
limitation, any allegations by “whistleblowers”), including non-
compliance matters:

 involving financial improprieties;

 related to laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the
determination of material amounts and disclosures in the
Council’s financial statements;

 related to laws and regulations that have an indirect effect on
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, but
compliance with which may be fundamental to the operations of
the Council’s activities, its ability to continue to operate, or to
avoid material penalties;

 involving management, or employees who have significant roles
in internal controls, or others; or

 in relation to any allegations of fraud, suspected fraud or other
non-compliance with laws and regulations communicated by
employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

Management Rep Letter

P
age 122



49

Appendix C

Management representation letter

E. Going Concern

1. Note 1 to the financial statements discloses all the matters of which we are
aware that are relevant to the Council’s ability to continue as a going
concern, including significant conditions and events, our plans for future
action, and the feasibility of those plans.

F. Subsequent Events

1. Other than described in Note 5 to the financial statements, there have been
no events, including events related to the COVID-19 pandemic, and including
events related to the conflict and related sanctions in Ukraine, Russia and/or
Belarus, subsequent to period end which require adjustment of or disclosure
in the financial statements or notes thereto.

G. Other information

1. We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the Narrative Report and the
Annual Governance Statement.

2. We confirm that the content contained within the other information is
consistent with the financial statements.

H. Use of the Work of a Specialist

We agree with the findings of the specialists that we engaged to evaluate the
valuation of property, plant and equipment, investment property, HRA
properties and IAS19 pension fund liability and have adequately considered
the qualifications of the specialists in determining the amounts and
disclosures included in the financial statements and the underlying
accounting records. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to
the specialists with respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt
to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware of any matters that have
had an effect on the independence or objectivity of the specialists.

5. We believe that the methods, significant assumptions and the data we
used in making accounting estimates and related disclosures are
appropriate and consistently applied to achieve recognition,
measurement and disclosure that is in accordance with the CIPFA
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2021/22.

6. We have disclosed to you, and the Council has complied with, all aspects
of contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the
financial statements in the event of non-compliance, including all
covenants, conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt.

7. From the date of our last management representation letter through the
date of this letter we have disclosed to you, to the extent that we are
aware, any (1) unauthorized access to our information technology
systems that either occurred or to the best of our knowledge is
reasonably likely to have occurred based on our investigation, including
of reports submitted to us by third parties (including regulatory
agencies, law enforcement agencies and security consultants) , to the
extent that such unauthorized access to our information technology
systems is reasonably likely to have a material impact to the financial
statements, in each case or in the aggregate, and (2) ransomware
attacks when we paid or are contemplating paying a ransom, regardless
of the amount

D. Liabilities and Contingencies

1. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with
guarantees, whether written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are
appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and
claims, whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel.

3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related
to litigation and claims, both actual and contingent.

Management Rep Letter

P
age 123



50

Appendix C

Management representation letter

J. Retirement benefits

1. On the basis of the process established by us and having made appropriate
enquiries, we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the
scheme liabilities are consistent with our knowledge of the business. All
significant retirement benefits and all settlements and curtailments have
been identified and properly accounted for.

Yours faithfully,

_______________________

(Borough Treasurer and Section 151 Officer)

_______________________

(Chairman of the Policy & Organisation Board)

I. Estimates

1. We confirm that the significant judgments made in making the
revaluation of land and buildings classified as property, plant and
equipment, investment property, and HRA properties, and the pension
liability and asset valuation have taken into account all relevant
information and the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic of which we are
aware.

2. We believe that the selection or application of the methods, assumptions
and data used by us have been consistently and appropriately applied or
used in making the land and buildings classified as property, plant and
equipment, investment property, and HRA properties, and the pension
liability and asset valuation.

3. We confirm that the significant assumptions used in making the land and
buildings classified as property, plant and equipment, investment
property, and HRA properties, and the pension liability and asset
valuation appropriately reflect our intent and ability to carry out these
valuations on behalf of the entity.

4. We confirm that the disclosures made in the financial statements with
respect to the accounting estimates, including those describing
estimation uncertainty and the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, are
complete and are reasonable in the context of CIPFA LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22.

5. We confirm that appropriate specialized skills or expertise has been
applied in making the land and buildings classified as property, plant and
equipment, investment property, and HRA properties, and the pension
liability and asset valuation.

6. We confirm that no adjustments are required to the accounting
estimates and disclosures in the financial statements, including due to
the COVID-19 pandemic

Management Rep Letter

P
age 124



EY  |  Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit
ey.com.

© 2017 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 125



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Version 2  S.Lucking  7.11.22 

GBC Procurement -Action Plan. 

Key:  

 Not yet started 

 In progress 

 Complete 

 

 Action Lead Officer Cost/Impact Start Date Completion 
Date 

Comments 

1.  Procurement Strategy to be prepared to 
confirm Gosport’s vision for the future, 
purpose and values of the Authority, aims 
and objectives of the Procurement function. 

Head of 
Procurement 

Cost neutral August 
2021 

02/02/22 P&O Board 27/1/2022, full 
Council 02/02/2022-
complete. 

2.  Revision of Gateway process/forms to 
include additional guidance to Officers on 
the appropriate process required for the 
financial level of the procurement. Will 
incorporate all requirements /guidance in 
relation to updated CPR’s. Will also include 
inclusion of Equality Impact questions as per 
procurement Strategy IIEA to ensure 
compliance with PSED. Will include 
evaluation of gateway process. 

Head of 
Procurement/Proc
urement Officer 

Cost neutral September 
2021 

31/7/22 Complete-Will be revised 
if necessary with reviewed 
CPRs. 
2.3.23- revisions 
complete. 

3.  Develop a Social Value statement 
incorporating sustainability, environmental 
issues and opportunities for local economic 
regeneration, to be included in scorings for 
relevant procurements. Provide evaluation 
templates to reflect said scorings. Provide 
training and advice to Officers as relevant 

Head of 
Procurement/Corp
orate policy unit. 

Cost neutral Jan 2022 31/12/22 Work commenced on 
social value statement 
however social value is 
currently included as part 
of any procurement 
where a compliant 
framework is being used 

P
age 127



Version 2  S.Lucking  7.11.22 

including the “lotting” of tenders to 
encourage bids from SME’s and other local 
businesses. 

i.e ESPO and CCS 
frameworks. 

4.  Engage with local businesses to understand 
available market and encourage registering 
for Council opportunities- Initial electronic 
comms message followed by possible 
business events to include awareness and 
training sessions for the use of Proactis if 
required. 

Head of 
Procurement/Econ
omic Development 

Small cost-
under £1000 

March 
2022 

31/12/202
2 

Delayed due to Head of 
Procurement undertaking 
additional projects 
including Household 
Support Fund and Energy 
grants. 
 
23/1/23 Initial work now 
commenced to approach 
all local businesses. 

5.  Re-write of Contract Procedure Rules Borough Solicitor/ 
Head of 
Procurement 

CIPFA costs March 
2021 

Audit sub 
Board 
17.11.22 
then to full 
Council 
14.12.22 

Approved at Council on 
the 15/12/22 

6.  Borough Solicitor and Head of Procurement 
to carry out mandatory workshops with all 
Section Heads, Budget Holders and staff 
members involved in any buying capacity 
during September and October 2021. It is 
recognised that the CPRs will be formally 
revised and we will use the opportunity to 
emphasise key Procurement messages 
through the same workshops with all 
procuring staff  
 

Head of 
Procurement. 

Cost neutral July/August 
22 

30/7/22 Final sweep up session 
complete 10/10/22. 
 
23.1.23- Further sessions 
currently being arranged 
for all SH and officers to 
enhance training and deal 
with any changes under 
the revised CPR’s. 

7.  Report to CMT to investigate key findings 
and Head of Procurement and Head of 
Finance to prepare action plan to deal with 

Head of 
Procurement/Head 
of Finance 

Cost neutral August 
2021 

31/3/2022 Complete and on-going-
Process now in place as 
below at 8 to ensure 

P
age 128



Version 2  S.Lucking  7.11.22 

non-compliant spend and liaise with Section 
Heads regarding required actions. The 
Council recognises that it needs to monitor 
and report on this to result in greater 
governance.  

 

compliance for raising of 
PO. Procurement Team 
will now work with 
Accountancy to identify 
and rectify any Invoices 
being raised without a PO, 
also having been raised as 
an issue in a separate 
audit report. Compliance 
will be monitored. Non 
compliance to CPR’s has 
been formally reported to 
CMT on the 24/10/22 and 
will continue on a monthly 
basis.  

8.  Investigations to be undertaken on linking 
both the Purchase Order system and 
Proactis to allow for ongoing reporting of 
PO's without a contract attached.  
 

Head of 
Procurement/Head 
of Finance 

Cost neutral August 21 24/10/22 Complete-Financial 
system upgraded to 
ensure a Proactis or 
Contract number must be 
input when raising a PO. 
Compliance now being 
undertaken by 
procurement staff on-
going.  Reported back to 
CMT and minuted on 
24/10/22. Further 
reminder issued to all staff 
via bulletin 28/10/22 

9.  Procurement Pipeline to be reported at 
fortnightly CMT to highlight any delays in 
the process and relevant actions taken. 

Head of 
Procurement/All 
Section Heads 

Cost neutral August 
2021 

August 
2021 

Implemented and on-
going 

10.  
 

Tender for low value repairs work to form 
Framework for potential call off/direct 

Head of 
Procurement/ 

Cost neutral 1/5/2022 30/5/23 Data currently being 
collected to ensure a 

P
age 129



Version 2  S.Lucking  7.11.22 

award to local suppliers. Borough Solicitor. financially viable contract 
is achievable for a 
framework agreement. 
Several areas of work now 
fall under the Kier 
contract so data needs to 
be collated and a report 
will go to CMT in 6 months 
time for further 
discussion/decision SL 
7.11.22  

11.  Tender for low value offices 
supplies/uniform to provide catalogues. 

Head of 
Procurement/ 
Procurement 
Officer 

Cost neutral Dec 2021 31/3/2022 23.1.23 Office supplies 
complete, Sanitary 
supplies complete, 
uniform underway. 

12.  Email to be sent to all Section Heads from 
Chief Executive regarding the population of 
the contract register. Replies will be 
required from all Section Heads to confirm 
that all contracts have been added to the 
register and contract paperwork provided. 
 

Head of 
Procurement/ 
All Section Heads 

Cost neutral August 21 January 
2022 

E-mail sent and further 
reminder, HOP to report 
back to CMT in January 
2022 

13.  Additional resource for procurement 
support to be recruited, initially on a 
temporary contact 

Head of 
procurement 

Within 
Budget 

August 21  In place. 

       

 

P
age 130



 

 

 
GOSPORT BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

BOARD: POLICY & ORGANISATION 
 

DATE OF MEETING: 15th MARCH 2023 
 

TITLE: FINAL ACCOUNTS 2021/22 
 

AUTHOR: BOROUGH TREASURER 

STATUS: FOR APPROVAL 
 

 

Purpose 
 
This report summarises the outturn position for the 2021/22 financial year 
and recommends the approval of the Statement of Accounts for 2021/22. 
 
Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that: 
 

i)    The Board note the outturn position summarised in the report and 
the Narrative Report contained in the Statement of Accounts 
(Appendix A) 

 
ii)   The Board approves the Statement of Accounts for 2021/22 at 

  Appendix A 
 
iii)  The Board approve the Letter of Representation at Appendix B. 

 
iv)  The Board delegate to the Borough Treasurer in consultation with        

the Chairman of the Policy & Organisation Board the decision to      
agree any final changes to the financial statement arising from the 
completion of the audit.  

 
1.0 Background 

 
1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 as amended by The 

Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2022 require the 
2021/22 annual Statement of Accounts to be formally approved by 
members after the external audit has taken place with the subsequent 
publication of the Statement taking place by the 30th November 2022. 
 
The external audit of the draft statement of accounts for the year ended 
31 March 2022 is nearing completion by our external auditors, EY LLP, 
the delay is due to the ongoing impact of various difficulties in Local 
Public Audit, and the impact it has had on both preparers and auditors 

Page 131

Agenda Item 10



 

2 

 
 

of accounts to complete their work as quickly as would normally be 
expected. This situation is allowed for by Regulation 10, paragraph (2a) 
of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.  
 

See http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/regulation/10/made 
  
Consequently the Council was unable to publish the audited 2021/22 
final statement of accounts in line with the deadline of 30th November 
2022. 
 
Members therefore receive and consider a final Statement that has 
been amended for any items arising out of the audit. 

 
2.0 Report 
 
2.1  The audit of the accounts was undertaken by Ernst and Young and 

commenced November 2022 and has continued through March 2023 
formally concluding when the audit opinion is issued prior to publication 
of the statement. Ernst and Young’s opinion is set out in the "Audit 
Results" report to members and is a separate item on this agenda. It 
describes, in their opinion, whether the Accounts provide a true and fair 
view of the financial position of the Council and whether they have 
been prepared in accordance with proper practice. Their report also 
sets out their Value for Money Conclusion which considers whether the 
Council has put in place the proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. 

 
2.2 The accounts have been available for public inspection and the 

Council’s auditor has been available to receive questions from any 
Gosport local elector. 

 
2.3 The Statement of Accounts for 2021/22 which includes any 

amendments arising from the external audit to date is included at 
Appendix A. The key points within the statement are summarised 
below.  

 
3.0 OUTTURN 2021/22 
 
3.1  A summary of the key outturn figures is set out below. More detail can 

be found in the narrative report included within the statement of 
accounts. 

 
 General Fund Budget 

 
At the year end £836,000 was transferred to the Revenue Financing 
Reserve compared to a revised budgeted contribution from the reserve 
of £20,510, this translates into a net underspending compared to the 
budget of £856,510. The underspending can be split between 
operational activities £690,330 and revenue financing of the Capital 
programme £166,180. 
 

Page 132

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/regulation/10/made


 

3 

 
 

The main variations giving rise to the revenue underspend of £690,330 
as compared to the revised budget are summarised below. 
  
Reduced expenditure / additional income 
 
 Slippage in budgeted spending for 2021/22 which has been 

approved to be carried forward and spent in 2022/23 (£403,000). 
 Open Spaces expenditure (£92,000) 
 Additional Government Grants (£97,000) 
 Saving in Staffing Costs primarily vacancies (£110,000) 
 
Additional Expenditure / reduced income 
 
 Reduction in Development Control income (£53,000) 
 Additional Net Interest Costs (£49,000) 

 
At the 31st March 2022 the balance on the Stability and Resilience 
Reserve was £3,047,000 a decrease of £1,327,000 during the year. 
During 2021/22 £2,444,000 was transferred from the reserve to fund 
the Council’s share of the 2021/22 business rates collection fund deficit 
that arose in 2020/21 and similarly £1,117,000 was transferred to the 
reserve in 2021/22 to fund in 2022/23 the Council’s share of the 
business rates collection fund deficit that arose in 2021/22.   
 
The deficits referred to above mainly arose due to government support 
to business following Covid 19 by introducing new business rate relief’s 
primarily within the retail and hospitality sectors. These reliefs have 
been funded by S31 grant received by the Council as compensation for 
the lost business rate income.  
 
Capital Programme 

 
The revised 2021/22 capital programme was budgeted at £8,851,000. 
The actual spend amounted to £5,399,000 with scheme slippage of 
£3,337,000 being carried forward into 2022/23. The outturn position 
has no significant impact on the overall resources available for the 
future capital programme. 

 
 Housing Revenue Account 

 
At the year end £256,000 was transferred from the new build & loan 
repayment reserve compared to a revised budgeted contribution to the 
reserve of £184,000, this translates into a net HRA revenue 
overspending £440,000 for 2021/22 compared to the revised budget.  
 
The net overspending can be split between operational activities (over 
spend £811,000) and revenue funding of the HRA capital programme 
(under spending of £371,000). 
 
The main reason for the operational overspending compared to the 
revised budget are summarised below. 

Page 133



 

4 

 
 

 
 

 Increased cost of repairs and maintenance of the Housing Stock 
(£905,000) 

 Increased cost of Supervision and management (£47,000) 
 
Offset by 
 

 Additional income from rents and service charges (£134,000) 
 Reduction in net interest costs on HRA debt (£49,000) 

 
 
There was a transfer of £166,000 to the Major Repairs Reserve (MRR) 
at the year end being the excess of the depreciation charged to the 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) compared with the capital 
expenditure subsequently financed from the MRR reserve. The balance 
in the MRR at 31st March 2022 is £978,000 and represents capital 
resources available to fund future HRA capital expenditure. 
 
 

4.0 LETTER OF REPRESENTATION 
 
4.1  The Letter of Representation (Appendix B) is the formal letter from the 

Council to the Council’s external auditors that provides assurances on 
key matters that are contained in the audited Statement of Accounts for 
2021/22. 

 
4.2 It is a requirement of the external audit to provide an opinion on 

whether the financial statements give a true and fair view of the 
financial position of the Council at 31 March 2022 and once approved it 
is signed by the Borough Treasurer and the Chairman of Policy and 
Organisation Board. 

 
5.0 Risk Assessment 
 
5.1  Council budgets operate in what can be a changing and demand led 

environment and some service areas may be deemed to have a higher 
risk of significant budgetary variation against actuals than others. 

 
5.2  While informed and realistic budgets are set and monitored, in practice 

there will always be variations between budgets and outturn figures as 
managers seek to deliver services with limited resources. 

 
 
6.0 Conclusion 
 
6.1  This report summarises the outturn position for 2021/22 and requests 
 members to approve the formal Statement of Accounts for 2021/22. 
 

Financial Services 
comments 

As set out in the report 

Page 134



 

5 

 
 

Legal Services comments The Council is required to 
approve and publish the 
Statement of Accounts for 2021/22 
by 30th September  2022, the 
reasons for not meeting this date 
are set out in the report 

Equality and Diversity N/A 

Climate Change No direct impact 

Crime and Disorder N/A 

Service Improvement Plan  
 

N/A 

Corporate Plan: N/A 

Risk Assessment: Section 3 of the report 

Background papers: Final accounts working papers 

Appendix  
 

A Statement of Accounts 
2021/22 
B Letter of Representation 

Report Author/Lead Officer Keith Price 

 

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS  
 

2021/22 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 137



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 138



 

 

 

 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2021/22 

 

 CONTENT PAGE 

1 NARRATIVE REPORT  1 

2 STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES  16 

3 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 1. Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 17 

 2. Movement in Reserves Statement 18 

 3. Balance Sheet 19 

 4. Cash Flow Statement 20 

4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 1. Accounting Policies 21 

 2. Accounting Standards issued, not adopted 37 

 3. Critical Judgements in applying Accounting Policies 37 

 4. Uncertainties relating to Assumptions and Estimates used 38 

 5. Events after the Reporting Period 40 

 6. Other Operating Expenditure 40 

 7. Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 40 

 8. Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure 40 

 
9. Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under 

Regulations 
40 

 10. Expenditure and Funding Analysis 43 

 11. Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis 44 

 12. Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature 45 

 13. Property, Plant and Equipment and Impairments 46 

 14. Heritage Assets 50 

 15. Investment Properties 51 

 16. Intangible Assets 52 

 17. Financial Instruments 53 

 18. Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments 56 

 19. Debtors  59 

 20. Cash and Cash Equivalents 59 

 21. Creditors 59 

Page 139



 

 

 

 22. Provisions 60 

 23. Agency Services 60 

 24. Usable Reserves  61 

 25. Unusable Reserves 63 

 26. Members Allowances 66 

 27. Officers Remuneration 66 

 28. External Audit Costs  68 

 29. Grant Income 69 

 30. Related Parties 70 

 31. Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 73 

 32. Leases 74 

 33. Pensions 76 

 34. Contingent Liabilities 82 

 35. Contingent Assets 83 

 36. Cash Flow Statement Notes  84 

 37. Certification and authorisation of the Accounts 86 

5 SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   

 1. Housing Revenue Account 87 

 2. Collection Fund 93 

6 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  98 

7 AUDIT OPINION  (blank page not in draft) 111 

8 GLOSSARY OF TERMS 112 

Page 140



 

 

1 
 

 

NARRATIVE REPORT 

This narrative report is divided into four sections 

1. An overview of Gosport  
2. A summary of the financial performance for the year 
3. An explanation of the financial statements 
4. Outlook and key issues 
 
 

1. GOSPORT AREA AND ORGANISATION OVERVIEW 
 
This report provides a detailed summary of the financial performance of Gosport Borough Council 
for the financial year 2021/22. At the February 2021 Council meeting a robust budget was set as 
well as setting Medium Term Financial Forecast estimates for the following financial years up to 
2024/25. 
 
The budget was prepared to continue all services, improve on front line services and to 
accommodate the continued impact of Covid19.  
 
Covid-19 Pandemic 
 
During 2021/22 the provision of Council Services was once again set against the need to provide 
several additional key services to enable a continuation of a resilient response to Covid-19. Across 
the Council staff have been called upon to continue the efforts to help the local community against 
the impact of the pandemic. 
 
These included 
 
Support to Local Businesses 
 
During 2021/22 the Council made 1773 grant payments to local businesses covering a number of 
different grant schemes amounting to £6.5 million. Apart from the government funded discretionary 
grant scheme (£2.3 million)  these payments do not appear in the Council’s financial statements as 
for the majority of the business support grant schemes the Council was acting as an agent of 
Central Government.  
 
Any unspent government grant at 31st March 2022 will be returned to Central Government as all 
the various support schemes are closed. 
 
Welfare Support Role -  
 
 Distributed £342,500 (685 cases) of Self Isolation Payments to low income residents, 

providing financial support to people who had been told to self-isolate. 
 

 Homelessness Support - In response to the Government ‘Everybody In’ directive as a result of 
the pandemic GBC initially procured 30 welfare Cabins from Bunkabin, which were placed at 
our Walpole Car Park in order to keep everybody safe. As we moved out of COVID, the pods 
were closed on the 30th June 2021 and all those that were still resident at this time were 
placed in alternative accommodation.  We no longer have any COVID applicants in 
emergency accommodation as all have been placed in alternative accommodation such as 
supported accommodation via our homelessness provision through the social inclusion 
contract, Housing First Schemes, social housing, private rented as well as accommodation via 
our sub-let accommodation. The cost to the Council in 2021/22 amounted to £155,000. 

 
 Housing Support Fund Grant Scheme – the Council received £63,000 by way of Household 

Support grant from Hampshire County Council which was used to support 619 Households 
within the Borough who would otherwise struggle to meet housing costs (in exceptional cases 
of genuine emergency) during the winter as the economy recovers. 
 
 

Page 141



 

 

2 
 

 

NARRATIVE REPORT 

Government financial support in 2021/22 continued and was provided through a number of 
government grants including 
 

 non ring-fenced grant recognising Council’s faced additional costs and responsibilities arising 
from Covid 19 £750,000 
 

 Specific Government Grants 
o Sales Fees and Charges Compensation Scheme : the scheme was extended to 

cover the first quarter of 2021/22 and partially funds lost income from sales, fees 
and charges, with the Council meeting the first 5% and then 25% of the remaining 
loss with central government funding the difference £145,000 

o Contain Outbreak Management Funds (COMF) – funds received to be used in a 
variety oy ways to limit the spreading of Covid-19 throughout the Borough 
£117,000 
 

As part of the 2021/22 budget a Covid 19 Reserve was established, at the 31st March the balance 
remaining within the reserve is £452,000 which is available to fund any legacy impact of Covid-19. 

 
Delivery of Council priorities in 2021/22 

 
The Council has a number of key priorities and functions which it undertakes on behalf of the 
residents of the Borough of Gosport.  These include: 

 
• Raising aspirations in the Borough; 
• Enhancing the environment in the Borough; 
• Developing the local economy; 
• Empowering our residents; and 
• Delivering effective services. 

 
Despite the ongoing impact of the Covid-19 pandemic progress continues to be made against each 
of these areas as detailed below: 

 
Raising aspirations 

 
• The Council has long supported the Summer Passport scheme for young people in the 

Borough.   
 
Enhancing the environment 
 

• The Council employs an officer dedicated to the climate change agenda, has committed 
to installing solar panel and battery technology to Gosport Leisure Centre; investing in 
technology for electric vehicles; rewilding parts of the Borough to attract flora and fauna; 
as well as our tree planting programme and special planting for the Queens Platinum 
Jubilee. 

 
• The Council Grounds Maintenance service has been brought back in house with the 

Council investing in this service via better training, new equipment and more weed-
spraying, which will further enhance the environment of our Borough. 

 
Developing the local economy 
 

• Working with the County Council we have successfully submitted a combined 
Transforming Cities bid for £5.2million which will see considerable further investment in 
our local infrastructure.  For Gosport, this will be focussed around improved facilities at 
our main public interchange in the town centre;  

 
• The Council has successfully submitted a bid for £2.2million of capital funding through the 

Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities’ Brownfield Land Release Fund. 
The funding will be used to support two projects to help transform underused brownfield 

Page 142



 

 

3 
 

 

NARRATIVE REPORT 

sites. These projects are the regeneration of the Gosport Bus Station for a mixed use 
scheme; and the redevelopment of the Wilmot Lane Council Depot into new homes.  

 
• Repairs to a Scheduled Monument “Bastion No. 1” – funding was received form Historic 

England to carry out brick repair work to make this an open space in an area of 
deprivation. 
 

• The Council received capacity funding of £125,000 from the Government’s Levelling Up 
Fund. This funding was allocated to local authorities identified as most in need of levelling 
up in England. This funding will help the Council to develop high quality bids from future 
bidding rounds of the Levelling UP Fund which aims to invest in local infrastructure that 
has a visible impact on people and their communities. 

 
Empowering our residents 
 

• The Council has identified a large number of Council owned sites that, over the next three 
years, could add to our existing housing stock. Funding of £6.3 million over the next three 
years has been earmarked to enable a build programme and Project managers have 
been appointed. 

 
• The Council also recognises the vital contribution that volunteering groups make in 

Gosport.  The Council have routinely increased its financial contributions to them each 
year;  

 
Delivering effective services 
 

• As outlined in this report; the Council has delivered effective and secure stewardship of 
its financial affairs and has set a balanced budget with appropriate level of reserves for 
the next financial year despite the financial pressures arising from Covid-19; 

 
• The Council seeks to enhance income generation from existing or new investments such 

as the property portfolio and financial investments; the Council's Capital Investment in the 
Alver Valley which will deliver new rental streams. 

 

Council Structure 
 
Following the Local elections held in May 2022 the Council has 28 local councillors.  The current 
political structure of the council is: 

• 10 Conservatives 
• 16 Liberal Democrats 
• 2 Labour  
 

Full Council meets every two months to review strategic issues and decisions affecting the entire 
Council.  The Council is supported by a series of Boards and Committees that allow councillors to 
review issues and make decisions in areas of particular detail.  These Committees are: 
 

• The Policy and Organisation Board covering all issues of Council wide policy and strategy 
as well as any key financial and procurement considerations; 

 
• The Community and Environment Board which covers issues associated with Council 

services regarding Waste, Leisure, Open Spaces, environment and health and climate 
change; 

 
• The Housing Board which covers issues associated with the Council’s housing stock, 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) financial oversight and issues with General Fund 
Council Housing services including Homelessness and Private Sector Housing  
 

 
 

Page 143



 

 

4 
 

 

NARRATIVE REPORT 

• The Regulatory Board which reviews proposed planning applications, carries out 
regulatory functions of the Council as a Building Control Authority. 

 
• The councillors are supported by officers of the Council.  The Council Senior     

Management Team is provided by Portsmouth City Council; the Chief Executive and 
Borough Treasurer are shared between the two authorities.   
 

2. Financial Narrative 
 
In undertaking this important work, the Council also needs to ensure it operates with a system 
of sound financial management and stewardship.  Not least as the vast majority of funding that 
the Council receives is provided by Gosport residents either in the form of Council Tax or 
Business Rates.   
 
For 2021/22, the Council has had a strong financial performance despite the impact of the 
Covid-19 pandemic; ensuring investment in key services are maintained and some enhanced, 
capital schemes to develop the Borough are funded in the context of significant financial 
uncertainty in Local Government as a sector.   
 

      The Council reviews its financial performance in a number of different ways: 
 
• Performance of the General Fund (this is the funding the Council has for its day-to-day 

activities which is predominantly funded by Council Tax and Business Rates); 
 
• The extent to which the Council holds adequate financial Reserves (holding reserves 

enables the Council to fund future specific projects or services and also to ensure it has 
sufficient financial resilience in the event of unexpected financial impacts); 

 
• Performance of its Housing Revenue Account (HRA) (the HRA is where income and costs 

for our 3,000+ social housing units is monitored, including specific HRA reserves); 
 
• Performance of the Council’s Capital Programme (as well funding for day-to-day services, 

the Council undertakes in the region of £8million per annum of capital investment in its 
services, social housing stock, economic opportunities and other development plans); and 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 144



 

 

5 
 

 

NARRATIVE REPORT 

General Fund  
 
The following table shows outturn against Budget, including how the General Fund is financed 
and the main reserves. It is presented in the Council’s Budget Book format (which mirrors the 
Council’s decision making structure) as opposed to the statutory reporting format in the 
following financial statements.   
 
The General Fund Underspent by £857,000 compared to the 2021/22 revised budget. The 
underspending can be split between operational activities £691,000 and revenue financing of 
the Capital programme £166,000. The underspending was transferred to the Revenue 
Financing Reserve.  

 
In Summary the main variations giving rise to the revenue (operational) underspend of 
£691,000 are set out below. 
 
The need to carry forward activity to 2022/23 that was unable to be completed in 2021/22, 
amounting to £403,000. The carry forwards reflect work associated with the completion of the 
repairs to Stokes Bay Sea Defence wall, Local Development Plan studies, a range of Economic 
Development initiatives and a number of Leisure open space schemes. 

 

 Service net underspending -£288,000; mainly in the following areas 
 

Main favourable variances 

Staffing Costs – vacancies etc. -£110,000 

Open Spaces -£92,000 

Additional Government Grants (excludes 
grants transferred to earmarked reserves) 

-£97,000 

Play Area incl. Sports -£36,000 

Additional Licensing Income -£27,000 

Gosport Leisure Centre – additional 
management charge income 

-£22,000 

Main adverse variances 

Reduction in Development Control income £53,000 

Additional Net Interest Costs £49,000 

Commercial Property Review £36,000 

  

All other variances across services -£42,000 

 
 
The table also shows the transfer to and from reserves during the year, in particular: 
 

 Revenue Financing Reserve – under spend compared to revise budget during 2021/22 
including budget carry forwards to 2022/23 and revenue funding of the capital programme. 
 

 Stability and Resilience Reserve - £2.444 million was transferred from this reserve during 
2021/22 which funded the Council’s share of an exceptional deficit arising on the Collection 
Fund during 2020/21. Additionally £1.117 million was transferred to the reserve which 
reflects additional government business rate relief granted during 2021/22 which was 
funded by S31 grant to support Businesses impacted by Covid 19. This is not an additional 
resource as it is required to fund an exceptional balance which has arisen on the Collection 
Fund account in 2021/22.  
 

 Covid 19 Reserve – this reserve was established to deal with any legacy Covid-19 costs 
and was funded by central government £452,000 and a budget contribution of £200,000 to 
cover an estimated net loss of income not covered by government grant. The use of this 
reserve balance will be reviewed during 2022/23.  

 
 

Page 145



 

 

6 
 

 

NARRATIVE REPORT 

GENERAL FUND - OUTTURN

REVISED 

BUDGET
ACTUAL MOVEMENT

 2021/22 31-Mar-22

£'000 £'000 £'000

 GENERAL FUND BUDGET

Community Board 5,672           5,424           (248)             

Housing Board 779              731              (48)               

Economic Development Board 1,193           960              (233)             

Policy and Organisation Board 3,413           3,170           (243)             

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 11,057          10,285          (772)             

REVENUE CONTRIBUTION TO CAPITAL 427              318              (109)             

TRANSFER TO/(FROM) RESERVES

Revenue Financing Reserve (21)               836              857              

Stability and Resiliance Reserve (1,277)          (1,327)          (50)               

Income Compensation Reserve (127)             (127)             -                  

Covid-19 Reserve 264              454              190              

Capital Grants Unapplied CIL -                  (28)               (28)               

Revenue Reserve for Capital -                  (51)               (51)               

Other Earmarked Reserves -                  182              182              

 BUDGET TOTAL 10,323          10,542          219              

 FINANCED BY

Council Tax (6,297)          (6,297)          -                  

Government Grants (1,634)          (1,897)          (263)             

Business Rates Retention (2,392)          (2,348)          44                

(10,323)        (10,542)        (219)             

# (Red) figures are income & in the variance column indicate an underspending or additional income

 

 
GENERAL FUND - MAIN REVENUE RESERVES ACTUAL ACTUAL MOVEMENT

01-Apr-21 31-Mar-22

£'000 £'000 £'000

General Fund Working Balance (1,000)          (1,000)          0

Revenue Financing Reserve (4,904)          (5,740)          (836)

Stability and Resiliance Reserve (4,374)          (3,047)          1,327

Homelessness Support Grant Reserve (595)             (553)             42

Revenue Reserve for Capital (632)             (581)             51

 
 
 
 
 

Page 146



 

 

7 
 

 

NARRATIVE REPORT 

 
Housing Revenue Account  
 
The following table summarises the movement in useable reserves arising from the Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) outturn compared to the approved budget. 
 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT - OUTTURN REVISED ACTUAL MOVEMENT

2021/22 2021/22

£'000 £'000 £'000

Net HRA (Surplus) / Deficit for Year (555) 256 811

Revenue Funding of Capital Programme 371 (371)

Transfer (to) / from the New Build and Loan Repayment 

Reserve
(184) 256 440

Net transfer (to) / from the Major Repairs Reserve 0 (166) (166)

# (Red) figures are income & in the variance column indicate an underspending or additional income

 
The HRA over spent by £811,000 during 2021/22 compared to the 2021/22 revised budget.  
 
In Summary the net overspend can be explained as follows 
 

 Increased cost of repairs and maintenance of the Housing Stock £905,000. This was 
primarily due to an increase in demand for post Covid response repairs and an increase in 
repairs to void properties as access to these properties was allowed. 

 Increased costs of Supervision and Management £47,000 

 Increased depreciation costs transferred to the Major Repairs Reserve to fund capital 
expenditure £47,000 

 Reduced interest costs on HRA Debt (-£49,000) 

 Additional income from rents and service charges (-£134,000) 

 All other variations (-£5,000). 
  

The approved 2021/22 revised HRA capital programme assumed a contribution from the HRA 
new build reserve of £371,000, this contribution was not required primarily due to slippage 
within the approved programme. 
 
The 2021/22 deficit on the HRA account of £256,000 was funded by a transfer from the New 
Build and Loan Repayment Reserve. 
 
A net transfer of £166,000 was made to the Major Repairs Reserve. This transfer is the 
difference between depreciation charged to the HRA and the capital expenditure subsequently 
financed from the MRR reserve. The increase represents a reduction in capital expenditure on 
Improvements to Housing Stock schemes compared to that forecasted. The balance on this 
reserve is available to fund future Capital expenditure. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 147



 

 

8 
 

 

NARRATIVE REPORT 

 
 
 
Useable Reserves available to the HRA are summarised below. 
 

        

HRA - REVENUE RESERVES ACTUAL ACTUAL MOVEMENT 

  01-Apr-21 31-Mar-22   

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

  
  

  

Revenue Account Balance (992) (992) 0 

New Build & Loan Repayment Reserve (3,498) (3,488) 10 

  (4,490) (4,480) 10 

  
  

  

HRA - CAPITAL RESERVES ACTUAL ACTUAL MOVEMENT 

  01-Apr-21 31-Mar-22   

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

  
  

  

Capital Receipts New Build  (1,115) (1,959) (844) 

Major Repairs Reserve  (812) (978) (166) 

  (1,927) (2,937) (1,010) 

        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 148



 

 

9 
 

 

NARRATIVE REPORT 

 
 
Capital Programme 
 

  A summary of capital expenditure for 2021/22 is detailed in the table below, presented in the 
Budget Book format.  The programme overall underspent by £3,452,000 compared to the 
revised forecast. This underspend will not result in additional resources as the schemes will 
complete during 2022/23 and beyond. Major scheme variations are set out in the table below. 

  
 

SCHEME REVISED ACTUAL VARIANCE SLIPPAGE

2021/22 2021/22 to 2022/23

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

BY BOARD

Community Board - Housing (HRA) 3,630 3,316 (314) 0

Housing Board 684 809 125 84

Community Board 3,518 797 (2,721) 2,740

Economic Development Board 586 360 (226) 217

Policy & Organisation Board 433 117 (316) 296

8,851 5,399 (3,452) 3,337

BY MAJOR SCHEME

Improvements to Housing Stock (HRA) 3,100 3,073 (27) -

Coastal Flood Schems (All) 1,342 359 (983) 983

Disabled Facilities Grant 600 809 209 -

Stokes Bay Seawall 500 116 (384) 384

Splash Park Stokes Bay 430 7 (423) 424

Purchase of Properties (HRA) 280 97 (183) -

New Build (HRA) 250 146 (104) -

Leisure Centre Solar Panels 188 0 (188) 188

Waterfront (Bus Station) Regeneration 175 65 (110) 110

Purchase of Grounds Maintenance Equipment and 

Machinery
158 158 0 -

IT Systems Upgrades 140 36 (104) 104

Walpole Park - Inclusive Play Zone 135 0 (135) 135

Provision of New Cemetery 130 33 (97) 97

Heritage Action Zone 130 123 (7) 4

Tukes Avenue Open Space - Play Zone 120 0 (120) 120

IT - Desktop Upgrades 110 8 (102) 102

Play Area Kings Road 86 87 1 -

Forton Lake Opening Bridge - Renewal of Motors, 

Gears, Sprockets and Chains & Electrical Upgrade
86 87 1 -

Stokes Bay Home Park - Upper Site Store Shed 

Replacememt
84 - (84) 84

All other schemes 807 195 (612) 602

8,851 5,399 (3,452) 3,337

# (Red) figures in the variance column indicate an underspending

Page 149



 

 

10 
 

 

NARRATIVE REPORT 

3. THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

The Statement of Accounts sets out the Council’s financial position at 31 March 2022 and a 
summary of its income and expenditure in the year to 31 March 2022. It is, in parts, a complex 
document which is prescribed by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy 
(CIPFA) Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2021/22 (the Code) which is 
underpinned by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). It comprises of core and 
supplementary statements together with disclosure notes and is subject to external audit. 
These are summarised over four headings below: 
 
a. Core financial statements  

 
 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CI&ES) 
 
This statement records all of the Council’s income and expenditure for the year. The top 
half of the statement provides an analysis in line with the Council’s reporting structure and 
the bottom half includes corporate transactions and funding.  
 
The content shows the service cost in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation and rents. Authorities raise 
taxation and rents to cover expenditure in accordance with statutory requirements and this 
may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in both the 
Movement in Reserves Statement and the Expenditure and Funding Analysis. 
 

 Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS) 
 
This statement summarises the change in the Council’s reserves over the year – with the 
reserves being divided into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be used to fund 
expenditure) and ‘unusable reserves (i.e. those which are set aside for specific purposes) 
 
It includes the adjustments needed to show the Council’s net expenditure and income in 
line with statutory requirements as reported to the Council’s management and members 
 

 Balance Sheet 
 
The Balance Sheet provides a snapshot of the Council’s assets, liabilities, cash and 

reserves at the year end date. 
 
 Cash Flow Statement 
 
The Cash Flow Statement shows the reasons for the changes in the Council’s cash 
balances over the year by analysing them over operating, investing and financing 
activities.  

 
b. Notes to the financial statements 

 
These provide supporting information and analysis including detail about the Council’s 
accounting policies which underpin the reported figures. 
 
The Expenditure and Funding Analysis (E&FA) note underpins the CI&ES and the MIRS – 
the latter reconciling the CI&ES to the Council’s statutory funding arrangements. The 
E&FA shows the reconciling adjustments from the MIRS in more detail against the 
Council’s main reporting structure, as included in the CI&ES, to show the annual change 
in usable reserves 

 
 
 

Page 150



 

 

11 
 

 

NARRATIVE REPORT 

c. Supplementary financial statements 
 

 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and notes 
 
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) reflects the statutory obligation to maintain a 
separate revenue account for income and expenditure on council housing and related 
activities in accordance with the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. The notes 
provide further supporting information.  
 

 Collection Fund and notes 
 
The Collection Fund is the statutory account that billing authorities must maintain 
separately from the rest of their accounts. It summarises council tax and business rate 
transactions for the Borough, County Council, Police & Crime Commissioner, Fire & 
Rescue Authority and Central Government. The notes provide further supporting 
information.  

 
d. Important governance statements 

 
 Statement of Responsibilities 
 
This sets out the Council’s and the Chief Financial Officer's responsibilities in relation to 
the administration of the Council's affairs. 
 

 Annual Governance Statement 

 
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to conduct a review at least 
once a year of the effectiveness of its system of internal control, and to include a 
statement reporting on the review with the Statement of Accounts. 

 
 

4. KEY ISSUES AND OUTLOOK  

 
Key financial figures included in the statement 

 
 Pensions liability  

 
The Balance Sheet shows a reduction the net pension liability of £10.594 million during 
2021/22. This is mainly due to a reduction in pension liabilities of £5.902 million and an 
increase in the fair value of assets of £4.692 during the year. 
 
The reduction in pension liabilities arising from actuarial assumptions reducing the 
estimated pension liabilities i.e. increased discount rate and an increase in both CPI 
Inflation rate and the rate of Salary increases. The liability is a volatile figure and has a 
tendency to vary by several millions from year to year depending on actuarial 
assumptions and government guidance.  
 
The Hampshire Local Government Pension Fund is subject to triennial valuations and 
employee and employer contributions are adjusted accordingly to ensure a fully funded 
pension position over the life of the fund.  The Council’s budget and forward projections 

fully provide for required pension fund contributions. 
 

Page 151



 

 

12 
 

 

NARRATIVE REPORT 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

£'000 £'000

(43,869) Net Pension Liability (33,275)

 
 

 Borrowing and Cash 
 
The table below summarises the Council’s net borrowing position at the year end. Local 
Authority treasury management functions are closely regulated and the Council complies with 
all managerial and reporting guidelines 

 
 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

£'000 £'000

2,002 Short Term Investments 2,002

11,275 Cash and Cash Equivalents 11,275

(8,143) Short Term Borrowing (8,143)

(49,650) Long Term Borrowing (49,650)

(44,516) Net Borrowing position (44,516)

 
 
 Capital Financing Requirement 
 
The Council’s capital financing requirement (or the underlying need to borrow) is essentially a 
measure of the outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for from either 
revenue or capital resources and is set out below. This is the combined figure for both the 
general fund and housing revenue account.  

 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

£'000 £'000

82,273 Capital Financing Requirement 81,898

Explanation of movement in the year

- Increase in need to borrow to fund capital expenditure 211

(202) Decrease in need to borrow due to Minimum Revenue 

Provision (586)  
 
 Resources 

 
The council’s available reserves at the end of 2021/22 to meet both General Fund and 
Housing Revenue Account capital and revenue expenditure plans are summarised below: 

 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

£'000 £'000

Revenue

(12,135) General Fund (GF) (12,152)

(4,736) Housing Revenue Account (HRA) (4,480)

Capital

(1,940) General Fund (GF) (1,862)

(1,927) Housing Revenue Account (HRA) (3,266)

(20,738) (21,760)

 

Page 152



 

 

13 
 

 

NARRATIVE REPORT 

 The Council’s year on year balances on available reserves (£’000) 

 
 

 

 In addition the Council has £6.113 million of developers' contributions and other grants and 

contributions available to spend at 31st March 2022 (£3.616 million at 31 March 2021).  

These are categorised as ‘Receipts in Advance – Capital Grants’ as they are subject to conditions 

as to the nature and timescale of their use and could therefore be returnable.  The Council 

manages these sums to mitigate that possibility. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

2020/21

2021/22

General Fund
HRA

Page 153



 

 

14 
 

 

NARRATIVE REPORT 

Outlook 
 
 General Fund (GF) 

 
Over the next 3 years, the Council has a forecast budget deficit to remedy amounting to £1.7m. 
There remains significant uncertainty regarding the future forecast which is estimated could 
vary between +/- £0.5m arising from the following: 
 
Government Reviews affecting funding of Local Government 

 

 The outcome of the Fair Funding review 

 The outcome of the Business Rate Retention review 
 

Health of Economy and other cost pressures 
 

 The legacy impact of Covid 19, and in particular, its effect on Council Tax Income and 
Business Rates Income 

 Inflationary cost increase outstripping the rate of increases in funding. 
 

Our Response (Strategy) 
 
The Council has a strong track record of being able to live within its means, make savings and 
secure financial resilience. Adequate reserves are a necessary requirement of financial 
resilience enabling any in-year deficits between funding and spending to be “smoothed out” 
over time as well as enabling investments to be made that will improve the financial 
sustainability of the Council in the future.  Given the widely expected funding reductions to 
District Council’s over the coming years, the Council’s known future cost pressures and the 
desire to support the Borough's recovery from the pandemic, the adequacy and targeted use of 
reserves has never been more important.  
 
Looking forward, the Council’s financial strategy will: 
 

 Undertake a strategic review of all Council property assets to determine where there 
are opportunities for income generation, regeneration, efficiencies or disposal 
 

 Enhance income generation through spend to save initiatives and the introduction of a 
commercialisation programme. 
 

 Continue to pursue efficiency by undertaking a full review of existing Capital Schemes.  
 

 Invest in the Borough for regeneration to stimulate employment and also to increase 
funding by improving the Business Rate Base and the Council Tax Base for the 
Council; this will also positively improve prosperity for the Borough generally and 
reduce the dependency on Council Services. 

 
Conclusion 
 
Significant risks to the Council's future funding still remain over the next 3 years, particularly 
relating to legacy of the Covid-19 pandemic, inflation and the forthcoming overhaul of the Local 
Government funding system.  The Council's forecast of a 3 year deficit of £1.7m is a central (or 
base case") assumption which could realistically change by +/- £0.5m.  
The level of the Council’s useable reserves puts the council on a sound footing to meet the 
financial challenges ahead. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 154



 

 

15 
 

 

NARRATIVE REPORT 

 Housing Revenue Account (HRA)  
 
Notable points from the latest HRA Business Plan and budget report include 

 
•  Over the 30 year period, the Business Plan is forecast to remain in balance with 

HRA Reserves at the end of the period amounting to £74 million. It provides a 
smooth profile of repairs and maintenance funding at average levels of £8 million per 
annum, and takes into account key variables relating to social housing guidance on 
rent increases and forecast Right to Buy sales; 

 
• Government policy on social rents have allowed increases of CPI +1% since April 

2020 for the next five years. As a result of this rents increased by 4.1% in April 2022.
  

•  Gross HRA borrowing at 31 March 2021 is £46.8 million. The HRA’s capital 
financing requirement (underlying need to borrow) is £61.4 million and so the HRA is 
therefore presently under-borrowed by £14.6 million; effectively this amount is 
borrowed from the Council’s General Fund. 

 
• The Council currently has three social house building schemes identified, estimated 

to cost £5.4m, these costs can be met from reserves and 1-4-1 RTB receipts with no 
additional borrowing being required.  

 

 Capital Programme 
 
The currently approved capital programme covers the four year period from 2022/23 to 
2024/25 for both the GF and the HRA and is summarised below. 
 
The programme will be updated following the 2021/22 outturn to incorporate any slippage, re-
phasing and under or over spends. 
 
 

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Total

£,000 £,000 £,000 £'000

CAPITAL BUDGETS BY BOARD

COMMUNITY BOARD - HOUSING (HRA) 5,985 6,000 5,500 17,485

COMMUNITY BOARD - HOUSING (GF) 600 600 600 1,800

COMMUNITY BOARD - NON HOUSING 2,921 315 105 3,341

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD 1,276 150 - 1,426

POLICY & ORGANISATION BOARD 421 165 165 751

11,203 7,230 6,370 24,803

FUNDING

DEPRECIATION, REVENUE AND 

RESERVES (HRA) 5,985 6,000 5,500 17,485

EXTERNAL GRANTS AND 

CONTRIBUTIONS 1,557 670 600 2,827

REVENUE AND RESERVES (GF) 1,507 333 115 1,955

CAPITAL RECEIPTS 115 100 - 215

BORROWING (GF) 2,039 127 155 2,321

11,203 7,230 6,370 24,803

 
 

  

Page 155



 

 

16 
 

 

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES 

   
The Authority’s responsibilities 
 
The Authority is required to: 
 

 make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that 
one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs.  In this 
Authority, that officer is the Chief Finance Officer; 

 
 manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and 

safeguard its assets. 
 

 approve the Statement of Accounts.   
 
 
 
Councillor P Chegwyn 
Chair of Policy and Organisation Board     
 
 
 
The Chief Finance Officer’s responsibilities 
 
The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Statement of 
Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code). 
 
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Finance Officer has: 
 

 selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 
 made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
 complied with the local authority Code. 

 
The Chief Finance Officer has also: 
 

 kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and 
 taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 
I hereby certify that the Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position 
of the authority at the reporting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31st March 
2022.  
 
 
 
 
 
Mr Chris Ward 
Borough Treasurer, Section 151 officer       
  

Page 156



 

 

17 
 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

 
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation (and 
rents). Authorities raise taxation (and rents) to cover expenditure in accordance with statutory 
requirements; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in both 
the Movement in Reserves Statement and the Expenditure and Funding Analysis. 
 

Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net

Exp Income Exp Exp Income Exp

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

9,764 (2,398) 7,366 Community Board 9,330 (2,360) 6,970

3,673 (2,454) 1,219 Housing Board 4,102 (3,144) 958

1,306 (231) 1,075 Economic Development Board 1,493 (361) 1,132

27,024 (22,260) 4,764 Policy and Organisation Board 26,250 (21,100) 5,150

13,009 (15,006) (1,997) Housing Revenue Account 14,331 (15,394) (1,063)

54,776 (42,349) 12,427 Cost Of Services 55,506 (42,359) 13,147

2,552 Other Operating Expenditure 6 3,618

2,321 Financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure 7 423

(12,924) Taxation and Non Specific Grant 

Income and Expenditure 8 (13,049)

4,376 Deficit on Provision of Services 4,139

(7,927) Surplus on revaluation of Property, 

Plant and Equipment assets 25 (15,239)

1,566 Actuarial losses / (gains) on pension 

assets / liabilities 25 (13,579)

(6,361) Other Comprehensive (Income) (28,818)

(1,985) Total Comprehensive 

(Income)/Expenditure (24,679)

2020/21 2021/22

N
o

te
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 157



 

 

18 
 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
Movement in Reserves Statement 

 
This statement shows the movement from the start of the year to the end on the different reserves 
held by the authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund 
expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other ‘unusable reserves’. The Statement shows how the 
movements in year of the authority’s reserves are broken down between gains and losses incurred 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory adjustments required 
to return to the amounts chargeable to council tax (or rents) for the year. The Net 
Increase/Decrease line shows the statutory General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account  
Balance movements in the year following those adjustments 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 

B
a
la

n
c
e

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

 

U
n

a
p

p
li

e
d

T
o

ta
l 

U
s
a
b

le
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

U
n

u
s
a
b

le
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

T
o

ta
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 31 March 

2021 (12,135) (4,736) (1,801) (812) (1,254) (20,738) (73,851) (94,589)

Movement in reserves 

during 2021/22

Total Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure
(274) 4,413 4,139 (28,818) (24,679)

Adjustments between 

accounting basis & 

funding basis under 

regulations (Note 9) 257 (4,157) (1,123) (166) 28 (5,161) 5,161 0

(Increase)/decrease in 

2021/22 (17) 256 (1,123) (166) 28 (1,022) (23,657) (24,679)

Balance at 31 March 

2022 (12,152) (4,480) (2,924) (978) (1,226) (21,760) (97,508) (119,268)

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 

B
a
la

n
c
e

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

 

U
n

a
p

p
li

e
d

T
o

ta
l 

U
s
a
b

le
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

U
n

u
s
a
b

le
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

T
o

ta
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 31 March 

2020 (8,400) (4,490) (1,740) 0 (1,006) (15,636) (76,968) (92,604)

Total Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure
1,767 2,609 4,376 (6,361) (1,985)

Adjustments between 

accounting basis & 

funding basis under 

regulations (Note 9) (5,502) (2,855) (61) (812) (248) (9,478) 9,478 0

(Increase)/decrease in 

2020/21 (3,735) (246) (61) (812) (248) (5,102) 3,117 (1,985)

Balance at 31 March 

2021 (12,135) (4,736) (1,801) (812) (1,254) (20,738) (73,851) (94,589)

Movement in reserves during 

2020/21

 

 
 
 

Page 158



 

 

19 
 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Balance Sheet 
 

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities 
recognised by the Council. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched 
by the reserves held. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves 
are usable reserves i.e. those reserves that the Council may use to provide services, subject 
to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use 
(for example the capital receipts reserve may only be used to fund capital expenditure or 
repay debt). The second category of reserves is those that the Council is not able to use to 
provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and 
losses (for example the revaluation reserve), where amounts would only become available to 
provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement line 'Adjustments between accounting basis and funding 
basis under regulations'. 
 
 

31-Mar-21 Notes 31-Mar-22

£'000 £'000

190,933 Property, Plant & Equipment 13 200,005

480 Heritage Assets 14 599

6,603 Investment Properties 15 8,426

132 Intangible Assets 16 133

4,697 Long Term Debtors 19 4,639

202,845 Long Term Assets 213,802

2,000 Short Term Investments 17 2,002

12,946 Short Term Debtors 19 9,314

9,262 Cash and Cash Equivalents 20 11,275

24,208 Current Assets 22,591

(12,146) Short Term Borrowing 17 (8,143)

(15,174) Short Term Creditors 21 (18,765)

(1) Short Term Liabilities 32 0

(972) Short Term Provisions 22 (972)

(28,293) Current Liabilities (27,880)

(1,121) Long Term Creditors 21 0

(45) Long Term Provisions 22 (45)

(52,750) Long Term Borrowing 17 (49,650)

(144) Other Long Term Liabilities 32 (143)

(2,626) Receipts in Advance - Revenue Grants 29 (19)

(3,616) Receipts in Advance - Capital Grants 29 (6,113)

(43,869) Net Pension Liability 33 (33,275)

(104,171) Long Term Liabilities (89,245)

94,589 Net Assets 119,268

(20,738) Usable Reserves 24 (21,760)

(73,851) Unusable Reserves 25 (97,508)

(94,589) Total Reserves (119,268)

 
 

Page 159



 

 

20 
 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
The unaudited Statement was issued on 29th July 2022 and the audited Statement was issued on 
15/03/2023. 
 
 
 
Chris Ward CPFA 
Borough Treasurer,  
15/03/2023 
 
 

Cash Flow Statement 
 

The Cash Flow statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during 
the reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash 
equivalents by classifying cash flows as; operating, investing and financing activities. The amount 
of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the 
operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of 
services provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows 
have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Council's future service 
delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash 
flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the authority. 
 

2020/21 Notes 2021/22

£'000 £'000

(4,376) Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services (4,139)

19,635 Adjustments to surplus or deficit on the provision of services 

for non-cash movements 36 12,999

(1,972) Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the 

provision of services that are investing and financing 

activities 36 485

13,287 Net Cash flows from Operating Activities 9,345

3,109 Net Cash flows from Investing Activities 36 (2,872)

(12,994) Net Cash flows from Financing Activities 36 (4,460)

3,402 Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,013

5,860 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 9,262

9,262 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 11,275

 
 

 
 

 

Page 160



 

 

21 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
1. Accounting Policies 

 
a) General Principles 
 

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2021/22 financial year and 
its position at the year end of 31 March 2022.  
 
The Council is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 in accordance with proper accounting practices.  
  
These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2021/22, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory 
guidance issued under section 12 of the 2003 Act. 
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified 
by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 

b) Going Concern and Covid 19 
 
The accounts are prepared on a going concern basis; that is, on the assumption that the functions of 
the Council will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future from the date that the 
accounts are authorised for issue. 
 
The Covid pandemic has had an impact on Gosport Borough Council’s finances through a combination 

of increased costs and a reduction in income and this includes 

 Loss of income on a service by service basis, due to temporary closures, reduction in demand, 

and impact on collection rates. 

 Additional expenditure on a service by service basis, e.g. provision of new and expanded services 

in response to the crisis (such as additional costs relating to temporary accommodation for the 

homeless and rough sleepers), costs associated with the closure of Gosport Leisure Centre and 

additional costs associated with changes to working practices (such as remote working). 

 Changes to government policy, e.g. changes to business rate reliefs, business support grants, 

additional funding for local authorities, and additional responsibilities which sit alongside this. 

 The impact of all of the above on the Councils cash flow and treasury management, including 

availability of liquid cash 

 The estimated overall impact on the Council’s General Fund and Housing Revenue Account 

reserves 

 

The Council has created a earmarked reserve to cover the legacy impact of Covid 19, at 31st March 

2022 the balance remaining in this reserve is £452,000.  

It is not anticipated that the availability of cash will be a concern. At the 31st March 2022 the Council 

held short term investments and cash and cash equivalents of £13,277,000 and generally holds these 

balances at a minimum £10,000,000 during the year which it can reduce if required and can borrow a 

further £24,000,000 (within the currently approved Treasury Management Strategy) from a number of 

sources including the Public Works Loans Board as it has deferred borrowing to fund its prior year's 

capital programme.  In the unlikely circumstance that this level of cash is insufficient, the Council could 

approve a higher Authorised Borrowing Limit. The Council has prepared a detailed cash flow up to 31st 

March 2024 and remains confident in its ability to maintain sufficient cash for its services throughout 

the medium term. The Council is of course also able to borrow short term for cash management if ever 

needed.  

 

Page 161



 

 

22 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Council has minimal commercial investment income streams (such as commercial property) and 

as such is not exposed to material income risk from this income source. 

The Councils useable reserves at 31st March 2022 are as follows 

General Fund General Fund Earmarked 

Reserves 

Housing Revenue Account 

Reserves 

£1,000,000 £11,152,000 £4,480,000 

 

The current medium term financial strategy (including the impact of Covid-19) assumes cumulative 

savings of £1,726,000 over the period 2023/24 to 2025/26 are required to produce a balanced budget, 

any shortfalls in individual years being met by using existing reserves. 

 

It is therefore noted that there is significant headroom within the General Fund to absorb the estimated 

future financial impact of COVID-19 in the short to medium-term. Furthermore, the Code requires that 

local authorities prepare their accounts on a going concern basis, as they can only be discontinued 

under statutory prescription. For these reasons, the Council does not consider that there is material 

uncertainty in respect of its ability to continue as a going concern for the foreseeable future. 

c) Accruals of Income and Expenditure  

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or 

received.  In particular: 
 

 Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision 
of goods, is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service 
recipient in accordance with the performance obligations in the contract. 
 

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap between 
the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the 
Balance Sheet. 
 

 Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded 
as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made. 
 

 Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as 
income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial 
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. 
 

 Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a 
debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.  Where debts may not 
be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income 
that might not be collected. 
 

d) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with the Councils main bank account. 
 
Cash equivalents are deposits with financial institutions, including money market funds, repayable 
without penalty within one day for known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 
In the cash flow statement, the cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management. 

 

Page 162



 

 

23 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

e) Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors  

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a 

material error.  Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and 

future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the 

change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and 

conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance.  Where a change is made, it is 

applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative 

amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. 

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening 

balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 

f) Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 

Services and support services are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding non-

current assets during the year: 
 

 depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

 revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated 
gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off  

 amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service 

The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses 

or amortisation.  However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the 

reduction in its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis 

determined by the Council in accordance with statutory guidance. Depreciation, revaluation and 

impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund 

Balance of the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital 

Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two. 

g) Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates (NDR)  

Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on behalf of the 

major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting council tax and NDR for 

themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund (i.e. the Collection 

Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax and NDR. Under the 

legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors and central 

government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of council tax and NDR 

collected could be less or more than predicted.  

 
Accounting for Council Tax and NDR  

The council tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is 

the authority’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine the amount of 

council tax and NDR that must be included in the Council’s General Fund. Therefore, the difference 

between the income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the 

amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund 

Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  

The Balance Sheet includes the Council’s share of the end of year balances in respect of council tax 

and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, overpayments and 

prepayments and appeals 

Page 163



 

 

24 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
h) Employee Benefits  

Benefits Payable During Employment 
 

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end.  They 
include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-
monetary benefits (i.e. Cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in 
the year in which employees render service to the Council.  An accrual is made for the cost of holiday 
entitlements (including flexi time but not time off in lieu which is judged not to be material) earned by 
employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial 
year.  
 

The accrual is calculated at the wage and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, 
being the period in which the employee takes the benefit and charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services. It is then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that 
holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. 

Termination Benefits 
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate an 
officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary 
redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those 
benefits or when the Council recognises costs for a restructuring. 
 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the 
General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or 
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  In 
the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve 
to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace 
them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable 
but unpaid at the year-end. 

Post-Employment Benefits 
 
The majority of the Council’s employees belong to the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 
administered by Hampshire County Council. The scheme provides defined benefits to members 
(retirement lump sums and pensions) earned as employees worked for the Council. Detailed 
regulations govern rates of contribution and scales of benefit. 
 

 The Local Government Pension scheme is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme: 

 The liabilities of the LGPS attributable to the Council are included in the balance sheet on an 
actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments that 
will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions 
about mortality rates, employee turnover rates etc. and projections of earnings for current 
employees 

 Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 2.7% based on 
the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the 
scheme liabilities.  

 Assets of the LGPS attributable to the council are included in the balance sheet at their 
fair value.  

 quoted securities – current bid price 

 unquoted securities – professional estimate 

 unitised securities current bid price 

 property – market value 
 

The change in the Council’s net pension liability is analysed into the following components 
 

 

Page 164



 

 

25 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Service cost comprising 

Current service cost The increase in liabilities as a result of years of service 
earned this year – allocated in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for 
which the employees worked 

Past service cost The increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme 
amendment or curtailment whose effect relates to 
years of service earned in earlier years – debited to 
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs 

Net interest on the net defined benefit 
liability (asset) i.e. the net interest 
expense for the authority 
 
 

The change during the period in the net defined 
benefit liability (asset) that arises from the passage of 
time charged to the Financing and Investment Income 
and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement – this is calculated by 
applying the discount rate used to measure the 
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the 
period to the net defined benefit liability (asset) at the 
beginning of the period – taking into account any 
changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) 
during the period as a result of contribution and benefit 
payments. 

Remeasurements comprising 

The return on plan assets 
 

Excluding amounts included in net interest on the net 
defined benefit liability (asset) – charged to the 
Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure 

Actuarial gains and losses Changes in the net pensions liability that arise 
because events have not coincided with assumptions 
made at the last actuarial valuation or because the 
actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged 
to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 

Contributions paid to the Hampshire 
Pension Fund 

Cash paid as employers’ contributions to the pension 
fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an 
expense 

 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged 

with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the 

amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves 

Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the 

notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the 

pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative 

balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General 

Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as 

benefits are earned by employees. 

Discretionary Benefits 

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event 

of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are 

accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as 

are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme. 

 

Page 165



 

 

26 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

i) Events after the Reporting Period  

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur 

between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for 

issue. Two types of events can be identified: 

 those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the 
Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events 

 those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement of 
Accounts are not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a 
material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated 
financial effect. 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of 

Accounts. 

 
j) Financial Instruments 
 

Financial instruments can be described as contracts that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and 

a financial liability of another entity.  

 
Financial Liabilities 
 

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried 

at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line 

in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the 

carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The 

effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of 

the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised. 

For the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is 

the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest) and interest charged to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year according to the loan 

agreement.  

 
Financial Assets 
 
Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects the 
business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics. 
 
There are three main classes of financial assets measured at: 
 

 amortised cost 

 fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and 

 fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The Council does not have any assets 
that fall into this class. 
 

The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. Financial assets 
are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual payments are not solely 
payment of principal and interest (i.e. where the cash flows do not take the form of a basic debt 
instrument). 
 
 
 
 

Page 166



 

 

27 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost 
 
Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the authority 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair 
value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
(CIES) for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective 
rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the financial assets held by the authority, this means that 
the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued 
interest) and interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
Expected Credit Loss Model 
 
The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets (if considered material) held 
at amortised cost [or where relevant FVOCI], either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected 
credit loss model also applies to lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are 
recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the Council. 
 
Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not take 
place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in 
assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, 
losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, 
losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month expected losses. 
 
Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit of Loss 
 
Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the authority 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and 
carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit 
on the Provision of Services. 
 
Fair value measurements of financial assets 
 
Fair value of an asset is the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. 
 
The fair value measurements of the Council’s financial assets are based on the following techniques: 
 

 instruments with quoted market prices – the market price 

 other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis. 
 

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following 
three levels: 

 Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the Council 
can access at the measurement date. 

 Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are            
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly. 

 Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset. 
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 
 

k) Government Grants and Contributions 

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions 

and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable assurance that: 

 the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

 the grants or contributions will be received. 

Page 167



 

 

28 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. 

Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied 

in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as 

specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried 

in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to 

the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific 

Grant Income (non-ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement. 

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are 

reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant 

has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. 

Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital 

Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been 

applied to fund capital expenditure.  

 
Community Infrastructure Levy  

 

The Council has elected to charge a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The levy will be charged on 

new builds (chargeable developments for the Authority) with appropriate planning consent. The Council 

charges for and collects the levy, which is a planning charge. The income from the levy will be used to 

fund a number of infrastructure projects to support the development of the area.  

CIL is received without outstanding conditions; it is therefore recognised at the commencement date of 

the chargeable development in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in accordance 

with the accounting policy for government grants and contributions set out above. CIL charges will be 

largely used to fund capital expenditure. However, a proportion of the charges may be used to fund 

revenue expenditure.  

 

l) Heritage Assets 

The Council’s Heritage Assets are  

 held in the Town Hall. 

 Heritage related regeneration capital schemes  under the Council’s Heritage Action Zone status 

The heritage assets largely comprise items of civic regalia and paintings as well as a mayoral chain 

and other miscellaneous items. They are all held in support of their primary objective of contributing to 

knowledge and culture and have cultural and historic associations that make their preservation for 

future generations important. 

Heritage assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of revaluation gains and losses) 

in accordance with the Council’s accounting policies on property, plant and equipment. However, some 

of the measurement rules in relation to heritage assets are permitted to be relaxed as detailed, together 

with a description of the assets held, in Note 14.  

Page 168



 

 

29 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment i.e. where 

an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage or where doubts arise as to its authenticity. Any 

impairment is recognised and measured in accordance with the Council’s general policies on 

impairment. 

Acquisitions and donations are rare. Where they do occur, acquisitions are recognised at cost and 

donations are recognised at valuation ascertained in accordance with the Council’s policy on va luation 

of heritage assets. 

The proceeds of any disposals are accounted for in accordance with the Council’s general provisions 

relating to the disposal of property, plant and equipment. Disposal proceeds are disclosed separately in 

the notes in the financial statements and are accounted for in accordance with statutory accounting 

requirements relating to capital expenditure and capital receipts.  

Heritage assets apart from regeneration projects are considered to have an indefinite life and no 

depreciation is therefore charged. Depreciation will be charged on regeneration projects in accordance 

with the Council’s depreciation policy. 

m) Intangible Assets 

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the 

Council as a result of past events (i.e. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future 

economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Council. 

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is technically 

feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available) and the Council will 

be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential by being able to sell or use the 

asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as attributable to the asset and is 

restricted to that incurred during the development phase (research expenditure cannot be capitalised). 

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily 

intended to promote or advertise the Council’s goods or services. 

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the 

assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no 

intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised 

cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant 

service lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the 

disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 

amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on 

the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund 

Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and 

(for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

 
n) Joint Arrangements 

The Council has a 25% share in the Portchester Crematorium that is disclosed in note 30 to the 

accounting statement. The Council’s share of the assets and liabilities are also disclosed in note 30 as 

they are not considered of sufficient materiality to warrant inclusion in the Council’s Balance Sheet. 

 
 
 
 

Page 169



 

 

30 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

o) Inventories and Long Term Contracts 

Inventories, where applicable, are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable 

value.  

Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 

of Services with the consideration allocated to the performance obligations satisfied based on the 

goods and services transferred to the service recipient during the financial year. 

 

p) Investment Property 

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The 

definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production 

of goods or is held for sale. 

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the price that 

would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 

measurement date. As a non-financial asset, investment properties are measured at highest and best 

use. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the 

year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is 

applied to gains and losses on disposal. 

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment 

Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal 

gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund 

Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the 

Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale 

proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

 
q) Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 

and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. 

All other leases are classified as operating leases.  

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered 

separately for classification. 

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return 

for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on 

the use of specific assets. 

The Council as Lessee 

Finance Leases   

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the 

commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of 

the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation 

to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to the carrying amount of the asset. 

Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are 

charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 

Lease payments are apportioned between: 

Page 170



 

 

31 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to write 
down the lease liability, and 

 a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies 

applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is 

shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the 

Council at the end of the lease period). 

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment 

losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds 

towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation and 

revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the General 

Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the 

Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two. 

Operating Leases  

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or 

equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not 

match the pattern of payments (i.e. there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease). 

The Council as Lessor 

Finance Leases 

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the relevant 

asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease, the 

carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets 

Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the Council’s net 

investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the 

asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet. 

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 

 a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property – applied to write down the lease debtor 
(together with any premiums received), and 

 finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not 

permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a capital 

receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the 

Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the amount due in relation 

to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out 

of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves 

Statement. [When the future rentals are received, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of 

the asset is used to write down the lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts are 

transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve). 

Page 171



 

 

32 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully 

provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore appropriated to 

the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 

Statement. 

Operating Leases 

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment the asset 

is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in 

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over 

the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (i.e. there is a premium paid at 

the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are 

added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on 

the same basis as rental income 

 

r) Overheads and Support Services 

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance with the 

Council’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance.  

 
s) Property, Plant and Equipment  

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 

services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during 

more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 

Recognition 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 

capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or 

service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item can be 

measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future 

economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it 

is incurred. 

Measurement 

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 

 the purchase price 

 any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner intended by management 

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction. 

A de-minimus level of £10,000 has been set below which the initial cost of assets is not capitalised. 

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the 

acquisition does not have commercial substance. In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an 

exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council. 

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any 

consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made conditionally. 

Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account. Where gains are credited 

to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund 

Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Page 172



 

 

33 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

 infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – depreciated historical cost 

 dwellings – current value, determined using the basis of existing use value for social housing 
(EUV-SH) 

 surplus assets – the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at highest and best 
use from a market participant’s perspective 

 all other assets – current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its 
existing use (existing use value – EUV). 

Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of an asset, 

depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of current value. 

Where non-property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost 

basis is used as a proxy for fair value. 

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that 

their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-end, but as a 

minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve 

to recognise unrealised gains. (Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a 

service). 

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 

 where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated 
gains) 

 where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its 

formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital 

Adjustment Account. 

Impairment 

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be 

impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the 

recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the 

asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:  

 where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated 
gains) 

 where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service 

line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, 

adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 

 

 

 

Page 173



 

 

34 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of 

their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a 

determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. 

assets under construction). 

Depreciation is not charged on Community Assets or Garages as it is the Council’s view that most of 
their value is held in land and it is not therefore depreciable.  
 
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method, based on the opening balance plus any 
material movement and assuming a nil residual value, on the following bases: 
 

 Council Dwellings – straight line method over the estimated useful life of the property  

 Buildings - straight-line method over the useful life of the property as estimated by the Valuer 

 Vehicles, Plant and Equipment - straight line method over the estimated useful life of the asset 

 Infrastructure – straight line method over the estimated useful life of the asset 

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant 

in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately in line with the 

following policy: 

Componentisation of an asset will be considered where the carrying value of an asset is greater than 

£1,000,000, the component is at least 20% of the carrying value of the asset and there is a potentially 

significant impact on depreciation.  

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value 

depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their 

historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment 

Account. 

Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale  

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a 

sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The 

asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and 

fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the 

loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised 

in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. 

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back 

to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as 

held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised 

had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision 

not to sell. 

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.  

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance 

Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other 

Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the 

gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. 

netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains 

accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment 

Account. 

Page 174



 

 

35 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A proportion 

of receipts relating to housing disposals are payable to the Government under the Government’s 

pooling arrangements. The balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts 

Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s 

underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the 

Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully 

provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the 

Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

 

t) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provisions 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive 

obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and 

a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation but where the timing of the transfer is 

uncertain. For instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the 

making of a settlement or the payment of compensation  

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the obligation, and are 

measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the 

obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties. 

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. 

Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than 

probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than 

anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service. 

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from 

another party (i.e. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if 

it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council settles the obligation. 

The Council maintains a provision for bad debts, MMI Insurance claims and successful business rates 
appeals. 
 
Contingent Liabilities  

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible obligation 

whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not 

wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a 

provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 

required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts. 

Contingent Assets  

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible asset 

whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not 

wholly within the control of the Council. 

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts 

where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 

Page 175



 

 

36 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

u) Reserves 

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 

contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the 

Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is 

charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 

of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then 

appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that 

there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure. 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial 

instruments, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council – 

these reserves are explained in the relevant policies. 

The Council’s main reserves are described further in Notes 24 and 25 to the accounting statements 
 

v) Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute  

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does 

not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant 

service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Council has 

determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a 

transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital 

Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is no impact on the level of 

council tax. 

 
w) Value Added Tax 

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s 
Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.  

 
x) Fair Value Measurement of non-financial assets 

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets and financial instruments at fair value at the 
end of the reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement 
assumes that the transaction to sell the asset takes place either: 
 
a) in the principal market for the asset, or 
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset. 
 
The Council uses external valuers to provide a valuation of its assets using the assumptions that 
market participants would use when pricing the asset, assuming that market participants act in their 
economic best interest.  
 
When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into account a market 
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
 
The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. 
 
Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets for which fair value is measured or disclosed are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy as follows: 
 

 Level 1 - quoted figures in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Council can 
access at the measurement date. 

 Level 2 - other observable information/data available for the asset or liability. 

 Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset 

Page 176



 

 

37 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2. Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted 
 

The Code requires the Council to disclose information relating to the impact of an accounting change 
that will be required by a new standard that has been issued but not yet adopted. This applies to the 
adoption of new or amended standards in the 2022/23 Code.  
 
 The new standards in the 2022/23 Code that apply from 1 April 2022 are:  

 
 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020. The annual IFRS improvement programme 

notes 4 changed standards: 

 IFRS 1 (First-time adoption) – amendment relates to foreign operations of acquired    
subsidiaries transitioning to IFRS 

 IAS 37 (Onerous contracts) – clarifies the intention of the standard 

 IFRS 16 (Leases) – amendment removes a misleading example that is not referenced in 
the Code material 

 IAS 41 (Agriculture) – one of a small number of IFRSs that are only expected to apply to 
local authorities in limited circumstances.  

  

None of the matters covered in the annual improvements are dealt with in detail in the 2022/23 
Code. During the consultation process on the 2022/23 Code CIPFA/LASAAC did not envisage 
them having a significant effect on local authority financial statements.  

 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16.  
 
 It is not expected that these new standards will have a material impact on the Council’s financial 
statements.  

3. Critical Judgements in applying Accounting Policies 
 
In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Council has had to make certain judgements 
about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.  The most significant 
are: 
 

 Future funding for local government – while there is a high degree of uncertainty about future 
levels of funding for local government, the Council has determined that this uncertainty is not 
sufficient to provide an indication that the Council’s assets might be impaired as a result of a need 
to close facilities and reduce levels of service provision.  

 Asset classifications – the Council has made judgements on whether assets are classified as 

Investment Property or Property, Plant and Equipment. These are based on the main reason that 
the council is holding the asset with the classification determining the valuation method to be 
used. 

 Lease classifications – the Council has made judgements on whether its lease arrangements 

are operating leases or finance leases.  There is an element of subjectivity in these assessments 
and de-minimus levels have been applied. The accounting treatment for operating and finance 
leases is different (see accounting policy on Leases) and may have a significant effect on the 
accounts.      

 Contractual arrangements - the Council has made judgements on whether its contractual 
arrangements contain embedded leases (i.e. arrangements that are not legally leases but take 
the form of payments in return for the use of specific assets). 

 Joint Arrangement - The four member authorities of the Portchester Crematorium Joint 
Committee (PCJC) have made an assessment of the relationship against IFRS11, Joint 
Arrangements, to determine the appropriate accounting treatment. PCJC decisions take place 
through majority voting with no one authority having overall control, although each can exercise a 
significant influence over the PCJC. This joint arrangement means that each member authority 
has equal 25% voting rights. PCJC is an entity in its own right, with the ability to make binding 

Page 177



 

 

38 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

decisions, employ staff and enter into contracts. The entity (PCJC) has been assessed as being 
an Associate and each member is required to reflect its 25% share of the PCJC assets and 
liabilities in its respective statement of accounts. The Council has made a judgement on the 
grounds of materiality that group accounts are not required and has therefore disclosed its share 
of the assets and liabilities as part of the Related Parties disclosure note (Note 30) rather than 
incorporate them into its Balance Sheet. 

 Potential Liabilities - the Council has made judgements about the likelihood of potential 
liabilities and whether any provisions should be made. The judgements are based on the degree 
of certainty and an assessment of the likely impact. Note 22 refers. 

 Doubtful debts allowances - the council has made judgements on a prudent level of allowances 
for doubtful debts. These are based on historical experience of debtor defaults and the current 
economic climate. 

 
 

4 Uncertainties relating to Assumptions and Estimates used  

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the 

Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain.  Estimates are made taking into account 

historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors.  However, because balances cannot 

be determined with certainty, actual results could be different from the assumptions and estimates. 

The items in the Authority’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2022 for which material assumptions and 

estimates have been made are: 

 

Item Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ from 

Assumptions 

Business Rates The introduction of Business Rates 

Retention from 1 April 2013 has placed a 

significant risk for shortfalls in business 

rate funding onto the Council and 

precepting authorities. This is particularly 

true for factors outside of the Council’s 

direct control such as rating appeals. 

A provision is held in the Collection Fund 

for the estimated total value of rating 

appeals that may require refunding but 

have not yet been formally agreed by the 

Valuation Office.  

At 31 March 2022, the Council’s share 

of the total provision of £2.460 million 

(£2.431 million in 2020/21) is £0.984 

million (£0.972 million in 2020/21).   

The actual cost of appeals – whether 

above or below the provision - will 

impact on retained business rate 

income. 

 

Property, Plant and 

Equipment 

Assets are depreciated over useful lives 

that are dependent on assumptions about 

individual assets service delivery and 

level of repairs and maintenance.  The 

current economic climate makes it 

uncertain that the Council will be able to 

sustain its current spending on repairs 

and maintenance which may bring into 

doubt the useful lives assigned to assets. 

If the useful life of assets is reduced, 

depreciation increases and the carrying 

amount of the assets falls. 

It is estimated that the annual 

depreciation charge for buildings would 

increase by £40,000 for every year that 

useful lives had to be reduced 

Pensions Liability Estimation of the net liability to pay 

pensions depends on a number of 

The effects on the net pensions liability 

for funded LGPS benefits of changes in 

Page 178



 

 

39 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

complex judgements relating to the 

discount rate used, the rate at which 

salaries are projected to increase, 

changes in retirement ages, mortality 

rates and expected returns on pension 

fund assets.  A firm of consulting 

actuaries is engaged to provide the 

Council with expert advice about the 

assumptions to be applied. 

individual assumptions can be 

measured and a sensitivity analysis is 

included in note 33 (i.e. the projected 

service cost is estimated to decrease 

by £124,000 for a 1 year increase in 

the 2021/22  mortality rate assumption) 

However, the assumptions interact in 

complex ways. During 2021/22, the 

authority’s actuaries advised that the 

net pensions liability had decreased 

by £0.481 million  as a result of 

estimates being corrected as a result 

of experience and decreased by 

£9.190 million attributable to updating 

of the assumptions  
 

Doubtful Debt 

Allowances 

The Covid 19 pandemic and legacy 

impact has increased the risk of non-

payment of debt. 

The Council has made allowances for 

doubtful debts of £3.626 million in 

2021/22 (£3.695 million in 2020/21) 

based on what it believes to be a prudent 

but realistic level.  

Payment terms are being allowed in 

certain situations to help mitigate 

defaults. 

 

If debt collection rates were to 

deteriorate or improve, a 5% change in 

the General Fund allowances would 

require an adjustment to the allowance 

of £181,000 (£185,000 in 2020/21). 

Fair Value 

Measurements 

When the fair values of financial assets 

and financial liabilities cannot be 

measured based on quoted prices in 

active markets (i.e. Level 1 inputs), then 

fair value is measured using valuation 

techniques, which, where possible, are 

based on observable data. Where this is 

not possible then judgement is required in 

establishing fair values – including 

comparison with market transactions of 

similar properties, Depreciated 

Replacement Cost (DRC), cash flow 

analysis etc. 

 

Information about the valuation 

techniques and inputs used in 

determining the fair value of the 

Council’s Investment Properties and 

Financial Instruments are disclosed in 

notes 15 and 17 to the financial 

statements. 

The judgements and unobservable 

inputs used  include considerations of 

uncertainty and risk and changes in 

these assumptions and inputs could 

affect the fair value of the authority’s 

assets and liabilities 

           

 

 

Page 179



 

 

40 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

5. Events after the Reporting Period 
 

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Borough Treasurer on xxx.  Events taking 
place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where events taking place 
before this date provided information about conditions existing at 31 March 2022, the figures in the 
financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this 
information. No events have been identified. 

6. Other Operating Expenditure 

2020/21 2021/22

£’000 £’000

301 Payments to the Government Housing Capital Receipts Pool 278

2,251 (Gain) or Loss on the disposal of non-current assets 3,340

2,552 3,618

 

 
7. Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 
 

 

2020/21 2021/22

£’000 £’000

1,930 Interest payable and similar charges 1,784

917 Pension interest on net defined benefit liability 907

(242) Interest receivable and similar income (236)

(284) Net income and expenditure in relation to investment properties and 

changes in their fair value (2,032)

2,321 423

 
 

8. Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure 

 

2020/21 2021/22

£’000 £’000

(6,193) Council Tax Income (6,403)

154 Retained Business Rates (1,898)

(6,512) Non-Ringfenced Government Grants (Note 29) (3,944)

(373) Capital Grants and Contributions (Note 29) (804)

(12,924) (13,049)

 

 

9. Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations 

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure 

recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources 

that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Council to meet future capital and 

revenue expenditure. The Council’s reserves against which the adjustments are made are described 

in Notes 24 and 25 

Page 180



 

 

41 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

General 

Fund 

Balance

Housing 

Revenue 

Account

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments to Revenue Resources

Pensions costs (transfers to or (from) the 

Pensions Reserve) (2,281) (704)

Council Tax and Business Rates (transfers to 

or (from) the Collection Fund adjustment 

account) 1,645

Holiday pay (transferred to the Accumulated 

Absences Reserve) 39 28

Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or 

Deficit on the Provision of Services in relation 

to capital expenditure (these items are 

charged to the Capital Adjustment Account) (1,595) (8,254)

(2,192) (8,930) 0 0 0

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources

Usable Reserves

2021/22

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

are different from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with statutory requirements:

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources

Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds 

from revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve 11 1,839 (1,850)

Administrative costs of non-current asset 

disposals (funded by a contribution from the 

Capital Receipts Reserve (27) 27

Payments to the government housing receipts 

pool (funded by a transfer from the Capital 

Receipts Reserve) (278) 278

Posting of HRA resources from revenue to 

the Major Repairs Reserve 3,239 (3,239)

Statutory provision for the repayment of debt 

(transfer from the Capital Adjustment 

Account) 586

Capital expenditure financed from revenue 

balances (transfer to the Capital Adjustment 

Account) 318

Transfers to / (from) Capital Reserves (79) 51 28

836 4,773 (1,494) (3,239) 28

Total Adjustments between Revenue and 

Capital Resources

Adjustments to Capital Resources

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to 

finance capital expenditure 411

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance 

capital expenditure 3,073

Application of capital grants to finance capital 

expenditure 1,613

Cash payments in relation to deferred capital 

receipts (40)

1,613 0 371 3,073 0Total Adjustments to Capital Resources

257 (4,157) (1,123) (166) 28Total Adjustments 

Page 181



 

 

42 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

General 

Fund 

Balance

Housing 

Revenue 

Account

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments to Revenue Resources

Pensions costs (transfers to or (from) the 

Pensions Reserve) (1,321) (473)

Council Tax and Business Rates (transfers to 

or (from) the Collection Fund adjustment 

account) (3,059)

Holiday pay (transferred to the Accumulated 

Absences Reserve) (76) (39)

Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or 

Deficit on the Provision of Services in relation 

to capital expenditure (these items are 

charged to the Capital Adjustment Account) (3,213) (5,956)

(7,669) (6,468) 0 0 0

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources

2020/21

Usable Reserves

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

are different from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with statutory requirements:

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources

Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds 

from revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve

200 703 (903)

Administrative costs of non-current asset 

disposals (funded by a contribution from the 

Capital Receipts Reserve (6) (12) 18

Payments to the government housing receipts 

pool (funded by a transfer from the Capital 

Receipts Reserve) (301) 301

Posting of HRA resources from revenue to 

the Major Repairs Reserve 3,027 (3,027)

Statutory provision for the repayment of debt 

(transfer from the Capital Adjustment 

Account) 202

Capital expenditure financed from revenue 

balances (transfer to the Capital Adjustment 

Account) 462 196

Transfers to / (from) Capital Reserves 383 (321) (248)

1,241 3,613 (905) (3,027) (248)

Total Adjustments between Revenue and 

Capital Resources

Adjustments to Capital Resources

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to 

finance capital expenditure 882

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance 

capital expenditure 2,215

Application of capital grants to finance capital 

expenditure 926

Cash payments in relation to deferred capital 

receipts (38)

926 0 844 2,215 0Total Adjustments to Capital Resources

(5,502) (2,855) (61) (812) (248)Total Adjustments 

 

Page 182



 

 

43 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

10.  Expenditure and Funding Analysis 
 

This note shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (government grants, 
rents, council tax and business rates) by local authorities in comparison with those resources 
consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. It 
also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the Council’s 
boards. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is 
presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 

Net 

Expenditure 

chargeable to 

the GF & 

HRA 

Balances

Adjustments 

between 

Funding & 

Accounting 

Basis

Net Expenditure 

in the 

Comprehensive 

Income & 

Expenditure 

Statement

Net 

Expenditure 

chargeable to 

the GF & 

HRA 

Balances

Adjustments 

between 

Funding & 

Accounting 

Basis

Net Expenditure 

in the 

Comprehensive 

Income & 

Expenditure 

Statement

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

4,994 (2,372) 7,366 Community Board 4,644 (2,326) 6,970

845 (374) 1,219 Housing Board 549 (409) 958

697 (378) 1,075 Economic Development 687 (445) 1,132

6,553 1,788 4,764 Policy and Organisation 6,703 1,552 5,151

(2,075) (77) (1,997) Housing Revenue Account (1,524) (460) (1,064)

11,014 (1,413) 12,427 Cost Of Services 11,059 (2,088) 13,147

(15,378) (7,327) (8,051) Other Income and 

Expenditure (10,741) (1,733) (9,008)

(4,364) (8,740) 4,376 (Surplus) or Deficit 318 (3,821) 4,139

(13,896)

Opening General Fund and 

HRA Balance (18,125)

(4,364) Less / Plus (Surplus) or 

Deficit on General Fund and 

HRA Balance in Year 318

135 Less Transfer to Revenue 

Reserve for Capital (51)

(18,125)

Closing General Fund and 

HRA Balance at 31 March # (17,858)

# for a split of this balance between the General Fund and the HRA - see the Movement in Reserves Statement and Note 24

2020/21 2021/22

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 183



 

 

44 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

11.   Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis 
This note provides a further analysis of the reconciling adjustments shown in the Expenditure and 
Funding Analysis that convert the Code based presentation in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement to the Council reporting structure presentation. 
 

 

Adjustments between 

Funding and Accounting 

Basis 2021/22

Adjustments 

for Capital 

Purposes

Net change 

for the 

Pensions 

Adjustments

Other 

Differences

Total 

Adjustments

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Community Board (1,662) (436) (228) (2,326)

Housing Board (215) (78) (116) (409)

Economic Development Board (338) (55) (52) (445)

Policy and Organisation Board 904 (1,027) 1,675 1,552

Housing Revenue Account (6) (482) 28 (460)

Net Cost Of Services (1,317) (2,078) 1,307 (2,088)

Other income & expenditure 

from the Expenditure & Funding 

Analysis

(1,231) (907) 405 (1,733)

Difference between the 

General Fund surplus or 

deficit & the Comprehensive 

Income & Expenditure 

Statement surplus or deficit 

on the provision of services

(2,548) (2,985) 1,712 (3,821)

Adjustments between 

Funding and Accounting 

Basis 2020/21

Adjustments 

for Capital 

Purposes

Net change 

for the 

Pensions 

Adjustments

Other 

Differences

Total 

Adjustments

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Community Board (2,034) (154) (184) (2,372)

Housing Board (208) (47) (119) (374)

Economic Development Board (290) (31) (57) (378)

Policy and Organisation Board 665 (422) 1,545 1,788

Housing Revenue Account 185 (223) (39) (77)

Net Cost Of Services (1,682) (877) 1,146 (1,413)

Other income & expenditure 

from the Expenditure & Funding 

Analysis

(2,088) (917) (4,322) (7,327)

Difference between the 

General Fund surplus or 

deficit & the Comprehensive 

Income & Expenditure 

Statement surplus or deficit 

on the provision of services

(3,770) (1,794) (3,176) (8,740)

 

Page 184



 

 

45 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Adjustments for Capital Purposes – this column adds in depreciation and impairment and 

revaluation gains and losses in the service line, Minimum Revenue Provision; Refcus expenditure 

and grant income included in services and for  
 

 Other operating expenditure – gain or loss on disposal of capital assets including adjustments     
for income and asset derecognition; payments to the Government’s Housing Capital Receipts 
Pool  

 Financing and investment income and expenditure – investment property changes in value 

 Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure – capital grants applied to funding 

the capital programme  

Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments – adjustment for the removal of pension contributions 

and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income:  

Other Differences - include   
 

 Financing and investment income and expenditure – interest and similar items paid and 
received; investment property expenditure and income 

 Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure - the difference between what is 

chargeable under statutory regulations for Council Tax and Business Rates that was projected 
to be received at the start of the year and the income recognised under generally accepted 
accounting practices in the Code. This is a timing difference as any difference will be brought 
forward in future surpluses or deficits on the Collection Fund.  

12.  Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature 

  
The Council’s surplus or deficit on the provision of services from the Comprehensive Income and       
Expenditure Statement may also be shown by the type of expenditure or income as below 

 

2020/21 2021/22

£’000 £’000

784 Employees (excludes Business Unit staff) 646

6,299 Premises 6,689

22 Transport 19

3,845 Supplies & Services 4,274

5,438 Third Party Payments (includes major contracts) 3,650

21,577 Transfer Payments (includes Benefit payments) 20,571

12,099 Support Services (see note below #) 14,642

9,988 Depreciation, amortisation, impairment 9,247

2,139 Capital/Financing (includes interest, MRP) 2,371

(4,629) Fees & Charges (see analysis below) (4,853)

(53,186) Non Fees & Charges (see analysis below) (53,117)

4,376 Deficit on Provision of Services 4,139

 
 

# Support service costs are the recharges to services (both General Fund and Housing Revenue 

Account) from the Council’s administrative business units. The gross cost of those services (i.e. 

including their share of apportioned administration and overheads) is £14.0 million in 2021/22 (£12.5 

million in 2020/21). The total employee related costs included are £10.2 million and £8.9 million 

respectively.  

 

 

Page 185



 

 

46 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Income can be further analysed over the following headings 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£’000 £’000

Fees & Charges (see segmental analysis below)

(332) Cust & Client Receipts - Sales (268)

(1,802) Cust & Client Receipts - Rents (1,998)

(2,495) Cust & Client Receipts - Fees & Charges (2,587)

Non Fees & Charges

(29,154) Government Grants (includes Business Rates, Revenue Support 

Grant & Benefits Subsidy payments) (29,367)

(1,369) Other Grants, Reimbursements & Contributions (a broad range of 

service grants & contributions, including Business Rates Cost of 

Collection)

(3,105)

(2,115) Interest (includes interest reimbursed by the HRA to the GF) (2,061)

(6,125) Taxation & Non Specific Grants (includes Council Tax precept) (3,959)

(14,439) HRA - income (includes Benefits rental income) (14,608)

16 Other (17)

(57,815) (57,970)

Fees & Charges by reporting segment 

(1,775) Community Board (2,069)

(1,402) Housing Board (1,560)

(485) Economic Development Board (225)

(401) Policy and Organisation Board (398)

(566) Housing Revenue Account (601)

(4,629) (4,853)

 

 

13. Property, Plant and Equipment and Impairments 
 

Depreciation 
 

The table below summarises the methods of depreciation used for the Council’s assets. In line with 
the CIPFA Code of Practice, land and investment properties are not depreciated.  

 

Asset Depreciation Method 
Council Dwellings Straight line method over the estimated useful life of the 

asset which on average is 50 years 
Other Land & Buildings (Operational 
Property and Garages) 

Straight line method over the estimated useful life of the 
asset which range between 2 and 60 years 
Garages are not depreciated as it is the Council’s view 
that most of the value is in the land 

Vehicles Plant & Equipment 
Infrastructure 

Straight line method over the estimated useful life of the 
asset which are between 3 and 20 years 
Straight line method over the estimated useful life of the 
asset which are between 15 and 60 years 

Community Assets No charge – it is the Council’s view that most of the value 
of Community Assets is held in land and is not therefore 
depreciable 

Page 186



 

 

47 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Council 

Dwellings

Land & 

Buildings

Vehicles, Plant 

& Equipment

Infrastructure Community 

Assets

Surplus Assets Assets Under 

Construction

Total Plant, 

Property & 

Equipment

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2021 151,960 23,615 3,120 13,632 4,444 728 1,858 199,357

Additions 3,170 383 216 87 1 733 4,590

Revaluation increases/(decreases) to RR 11,988 (184) 45 11,849

Revaluation increases/(decreases) to SDPS (716) 0 (716)

De-recognition - Disposals (1,839) 0 0 (1,839)

De-recognition of replacement parts (3,170) (142) 0 0 (3,312)

Assets reclassified 393 0 0 0 0 (606) (213)

At 31 March 2022 162,109 23,349 3,336 13,719 4,445 773 1,985 209,716

Accummulated Depreciation & Impairment

At 1 April 2021 0 (80) (1,398) (6,946) 0 0 0 (8,424)

Depreciation Charge (3,239) (651) (402) (373) (4,665)

Depreciation & Impairment written out to RR 3,239 151 3,390

De-recognition - Disposals 0 (19) (19)

De-recognition of replacement parts 7 7

Assets reclassified 0

At 31 March 2022 0 (573) (1,800) (7,319) 0 (19) 0 (9,711)

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2022 162,109 22,776 1,536 6,400 4,445 754 1,985 200,005

Movement in Plant, Property and Equipment for 2021/22

 

P
age 187



 

 

48 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Council 

Dwellings

Land & 

Buildings

Vehicles, Plant 

& Equipment

Infrastructure Community 

Assets

Surplus Assets Assets Under 

Construction

Total Plant, 

Property & 

Equipment

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2020 146,969 25,924 4,607 13,632 4,419 726 1,172 197,449

Additions 2,754 18 450 0 25 686 3,933

Revaluation increases/(decreases) to RR 5,156 (1,177) 2 3,981

Revaluation increases/(decreases) to SDPS (932) 0 (932)

De-recognition - Disposals (703) 0 0 (703)

De-recognition - Other (2,216) (218) (1,937) 0 (4,371)

Assets reclassified 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2021 151,960 23,615 3,120 13,632 4,444 728 1,858 199,357

Accummulated Depreciation & Impairment

At 1 April 2020 0 (307) (3,003) (6,575) 0 0 0 (9,885)

Depreciation Charge (3,027) (692) (332) (371) (4,422)

Depreciation & Impairment written out to RR 3,027 919 3,946

Impairment losses/(reversals) to RR 0 0

Impairment losses/(reversals) to SDPS 0 0

De-recognition - Disposals 0 0

De-recognition - Other 1,937 1,937

Assets reclassified 0

At 31 March 2021 0 (80) (1,398) (6,946) 0 0 0 (8,424)

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2021 151,960 23,535 1,722 6,686 4,444 728 1,858 190,933

Movement in Plant, Property and Equipment for 2020/21

P
age 188



 

 

49 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Capital Commitments  
 

Significant commitments for future expenditure at 31 March 2022 include: 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£’000 £’000

- Provision of New Cemetery (Design) 68

- Housing New Build 540

175 DSO Grounds Maintencence Machinery -

56 Financial System Upgrade 51

231 659

 
 
Revaluations  
 
The table below shows the progress of the Council’s programme of fixed asset valuations in line with 
the valuation methods set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies. Valuations are carried out for 
Council Dwellings and General Fund properties by Savills (UK) Ltd and Capita Ltd respectively. The 
valuations are gross balance sheet value before depreciation. 
 

Historical  Total

2021/22 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19

Property, Plant & Equipment £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Council Dwellings - 162,109 - - - 162,109

Operational Property 2,344 19,679 163 - 22,186

Garages - 1,163 - - - 1,163

Equipment 3,336 - - - - 3,336

Infrastructure 13,719 - - - - 13,719

Community Assets 4,445 - - - - 4,445

Surplus Assets - 773 - - - 773

Assets under Construction 1,985 - - - - 1,985

23,485 166,389 19,679 163 0 209,716

Fair Value - revalued when 

indicated

 
 

 
The outbreak of COVID-19, declared by the World Health Organisation as a “Global Pandemic” on the 
11th March 2020, has and continues to impact many aspects of daily life and the global economy - 
with some real estate markets having experienced lower levels of transactional activity and liquidity. 
Travel, movement, and operational restrictions have been implemented by many countries. In some 
cases, “lockdowns” have been applied to varying degrees and to reflect further “waves” of COVID-19; 
although these may imply a new stage of the crisis, they are not unprecedented in the same way as 
the initial impact. 
 
The pandemic and the measures taken to tackle COVID-19 continue to affect economies and real 
estate markets globally. Nevertheless, as at the valuation date some property markets have started to 
function again, with transaction volumes and other relevant evidence returning to levels where an 
adequate quantum of market evidence exists upon which to base opinions of value. Accordingly, and 
for the avoidance of doubt both Capita Ltd and Savills (UK) Ltd consider their valuations are not 
reported as being subject to ‘material valuation uncertainty’ as defined by VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the 
RICS Valuation – Global Standards.  
 
 
 

Page 189



 

 

50 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Surplus Assets 
 
Surplus Assets have been value assessed as Level 3 on the fair value hierarchy for valuation 
purposes (see Note 1 Accounting Policy (y) for an explanation of the fair value levels).  
A desktop valuation has been used to determine Level 3 fair value for surplus assets, the assets have 
not been inspected, reliance has been placed on similar development opportunities for these assets 
being offered for sale in similar towns or district centres across the Hampshire area some beyond. 
 
 
Impairments 

 
There were no general impairments identified in 2021/22 or 2020/21. 
 
Any revaluation gains or losses for those assets that were reported on by the Council’s valuers for 
2021/22 have been reflected in the Revaluation Reserve or the Capital Adjustment Account (the latter 
through the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement) as appropriate. 

 
Assets Held For Sale 
 
The Council does not have any assets that meet the Code definition of Assets Held for Sale. 

14. Heritage Assets 
 

Movement of the carrying value of Heritage Assets held by the Authority 
 

Civic 

Regalia 

inc 

Mayoral 

Chain

Paintings Other
Historical 

Sites
Total

(Held in the Town Hall)

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Cost or Valuation

01-Apr-20 260 117 18 51 446

Additions - - - 36 36

Depreciation - - - (2) (2)

31-Mar-21 260 117 18 85 480

Additions - - - 123 123

Depreciation - - - (4) (4)

31-Mar-22 260 117 18 204 599

 

 

The Council’s Heritage Assets are held by the Council in the Town Hall and cost of work on sites of 

a Historical Nature are accounted for and valued as follows: 

 Civic Regalia – annually updated insurance valuation 

 Mayoral Chain and Badge – annually updated insurance valuation 

 Paintings and Prints – a collection of 64 paintings and prints located throughout the Town Hall - 
annually updated insurance valuation 

 Other Items – include a plaster cast of Nelson and D Day plaque at Stokes Bay are held at 
historic cost 
 
The Council’s Heritage Assets held at the Town Hall are considered to have an indefinite life and 
no depreciation is therefore charged. 
 

Page 190



 

 

51 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 Historical Sites – the borough of Gosport has been designated as a Heritage Action Zone by 
Historic England which is aimed at preserving the town’s military heritage. Works to Historic Sites 
are valued at Depreciated Historic Cost. 

The existing inventory of items remains unchanged for 2021/22 and the insurance cover has been 

re-evaluated. 

In addition to the Council’s heritage assets held in the Town Hall and included in this statement of 

accounts, a Gosport Museum collection is also held by the Hampshire County Council. Objects in 

the collection that were accessioned before 1 April 1991 are owned by Gosport Borough Council 

and are on loan to Hampshire County Council. These objects are now part of the Temporary 

Collection of items listed and detailed in the Hampshire County Council Accessions Register, which 

from 1 November 2014, the Commencement Date of the Hampshire Cultural Trust, are on loan from 

Hampshire County Council to the Trust. The majority of these objects are located in the stores or are 

on display at the Gosport Discovery Centre and some items are held separately in specialised 

storage conditions at Hampshire County Council premises outside of Gosport. The objects 

accessioned after this date are owned by Hampshire County Council. No total valuation exists for 

this collection which is covered by the County Council’s insurance arrangements. 

15. Investment Properties 
 

The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and 

Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 

2020/21 2021/22

£’000 £’000

48 Direct operating expenses arising from investment property 53

(428) Rental income from investment property (502)

(380) Net gain (449)

 
 

Fair Value Hierarchy 
 

All the Council’s investment properties have been value assessed as Level 3 on the fair value        
hierarchy for valuation purposes (see Note 1 Accounting Policy (x) for an explanation of the fair 
value levels). 

 
Valuation Techniques used to determine Level 3 Fair Values for Investment Property 

 
Desktop valuations of the Councils investment property portfolio. The properties have not been 
inspected nor have any leases or other tenancy information been reviewed. Reliance has been 
placed on copies of previous valuations, spreadsheet tenancy schedules and interviews with Council 
staff.  

 
There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment 

properties. 

Highest and best use 
 

In estimating the fair value of the Council’s investment properties, the highest and best use is their 
current use. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 191



 

 

52 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Valuation process for Investment Properties 
 

The Council’s investment property has been valued as at 31 March 2022 by Capita Ltd in 

accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of 

the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.  

 

The valuations are not reported as being subject to material valuation uncertainty (see note 13)  

 

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the 

year. 

 

2020/21 2021/22

£’000 £’000

6,700 Balance at the start of the year 6,603

- Subsequent expenditure 26

- Assets reclassified 214

(97) Net gains or (losses) from fair value adjustments 1,583

6,603 Balance at the end of the year 8,426

 
 

16.  Intangible Assets 
 

The Authority accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that the software is not an 

integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the hardware item of Property, 

Plant and Equipment.  Intangible assets primarily comprise purchased licenses and software. 

 
The carrying amount of intangible assets is based on historic cost and is amortised on a straight-line 
basis on estimated lives between 3 and 10 years.  The amortisation of £57,000 charged to revenue 
in 2021/22 (£94,000 in 2020/21)  was charged to the IT Administration cost centre and then 
absorbed as an overhead across all the service headings in the Net Expenditure of Services.  It is 
not possible to quantify exactly how much of the amortisation is attributable to each service heading. 
 
The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows: 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£’000 £’000

Balance at the start of the year

1,197 Gross carrying amount 549

(1,011) Accumulated amortisation (417)

186 Net carrying amount at the start of the year 132

40 Purchases 58

(688) Derecognition - gross carrying amount -

688 Derecognition - amortisation -

(94) Amortisation for the year (57)

132 Net carrying amount at the end of the year 133

Comprising

549 Gross carrying amount 607

(417) Accumulated amortisation (474)

 
 

Page 192



 

 

53 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

17. Financial Instruments 

 
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Non-exchange transactions, such as those relating to 
taxes and government grants, do not give rise to financial instruments.  
 
Financial Liabilities  
A financial liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the Council and can be 
represented by a contractual obligation to deliver cash or financial assets or an obligation to 
exchange financial assets and liabilities with another entity that is potentially unfavourable to the 
Council. 
 
Financial Assets    
A financial asset is a right to future economic benefits controlled by the Council that is represented      
by cash, equity instruments or a contractual right to receive cash or other financial assets or a right 
to exchange financial assets and liabilities with another entity that is potentially favourable to the 
Council.   
 
The following categories of Financial Liabilities and assets held at the year end are shown in the 
table below. 

 

Long Term Current Long Term Current

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial Liabilities

(52,750) (3,100) PWLB Debt (49,650) (3,100)

- (43) PWLB Debt - Accrued Interest - (42)

- (9,000) Market Loans - (5,000)

- (3) Market Loans - Accrued Interest - (1)

- - Bank Overdraft ** - (282)

(52,750) (12,146) Total Borrowings (49,650) (8,425)

- (2,860) Trade Payables at amortised cost - (4,460)

(52,750) (15,006) Total Financial Liabilities (49,650) (12,885)

Financial Assets

- 2,000 Investments at amortised cost - 2,002

Cash and Cash Equivalents

- 3   - Amortised cost - 3

- 9,000   - Fair Value through profit or loss - 11,554

Debtors at amortised cost

49 1 Staff Loans (Car, Bike and Bus Pass) 34 0

4,612 40 Finance Lease 4,570 42

- 3,238 Trade Receivables - 4,017

4,661 14,282 Total Financial Assets 4,604 17,618

** Bank Overdraft is netted of cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

All borrowing is at fixed rates and is shown at amortised cost

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 193



 

 

54 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Income, Expense, Gains and Losses 
 

The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 
relation to financial instruments are made up as follows: 

 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

£’000 £’000

Financial Liabilities:

1,930 Interest from financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 1,784

Financial Assets:

(242) Interest from Financial Assets (236)

1,688 Included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 1,548

 
 
Financial Instruments – Fair Values  
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities represented by loans and receivables and long term debtors 
and creditors are carried on the balance sheet at amortised cost.  Their fair value can be assessed by 
calculating the net present value of the remaining contractual cash flows at 31 March 2022,  using the 
following methods and assumptions: 
 

 Loans borrowed by the Council have been valued by discounting the remaining contractual cash 
flows over the remaining life of the instrument at the appropriate market rate for local authority 
loans. 

 The fair values of other long-term loans and investments have been discounted at the market 
rates for similar instruments with similar remaining terms to maturity on 31 March. 

 No early repayment or impairment is recognised for any financial instrument. 

 The fair value of short-term instruments, including trade payables and receivables, is assumed to 
approximate to the carrying amount given the low and stable interest rate environment. 

 The fair value of finance lease assets have been calculated by discounting the contractual cash 
flows at an estimate of an appropriate corporate bond yield reflecting the creditworthiness of the 
lessor. 

 
Fair values are shown in the table below, split by their level in the fair value hierarchy: 
 

 Level1 – fair value is only derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities, e.g. bond prices 

 Level 2 – fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the 
asset or liability, e.g. interest rates or yields for similar instruments 

 Level 3 – fair value is determined using unobservable inputs, e.g. non-market data such as cash 
flow forecasts or estimated creditworthiness 

 

Page 194



 

 

55 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Carrying 

Amount

Fair Value Fair Value 

Level

Carrying 

Amount

Fair Value

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial Liabilities held at amortised cost

(55,893) (70,400) PWLB Loans (Long and Short Term) 2 (52,792) (59,191)

(55,893) (70,400) Total Financial Liabilities (52,792) (59,191)

(11,863) Liabilities for which fair value is not 

disclosed * (9,461)

(67,756) Total Financial Liabilities (62,253)

Recorded on the balance sheet as

(52,750) Long Term Borrowing (49,650)

- Bank Overdraft (282)

(12,146) Short Term Borrowing (8,143)

(2,860) Short Term Creditors (4,460)

(67,756) Total Financial Liabilities (62,535)

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

 
 

Carrying 

Amount

Fair Value Fair Value 

Level

Carrying 

Amount

Fair Value

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial Assets held at amortised cost

4,612 3,597 Long Term Lease receivables 3 4,570 3,488

49 49 Long Term Staff Loans (Car, Bike and Bus 

Pass)
3

34 34

4,661 3,646 Total 4,604 3,522

14,282 Assets for which fair value is not 

disclosed
*

17,618

18,943 Total Financial Assets 22,222

Recorded on the balance sheet as:

4,661 Long Term Debtors 4,604

3,279 Short Term Debtors * 4,059

2,000 Short Term Investments * 2,002

9,003 Cash and Cash Equivalents * 11,557

18,943 Total Financial Assets 22,222

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

 
 

* The fair value of short-term financial liabilities/assets including trade payables/receivables is 
assumed to approximate to the carrying amount. 
 
The fair value of financial liabilities held at amortised cost is high than their balance sheet carrying 
amount because the authority’s portfolio of loans includes a number of loans where the interest rate 
payable is lower  than the current rates available for similar loans as at the Balance Sheet date. 

Page 195



 

 

56 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The fair value of financial assets held at amortised cost is lower than their balance sheet carrying 
amount because the interest rate on similar financial transactions is now higher than that obtained 
when the financial transaction was originally made. 

18. Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments 
 
The Council complies with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management and Prudential Code 
for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, both revised in December 2017. 
 
In line with the Treasury Management Code, the Council approves a Treasury Management Strategy 
before the commencement of each financial year. The Strategy sets out the parameters for the 
management of risks associated with financial instruments. The Council also produces Treasury 
Management Practices specifying the practical arrangements to be followed to manage these risks.  
 
The Treasury Management Strategy includes a Treasury Investment Strategy in compliance with the 
Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government Guidance on Local Government 
Investments.  This Guidance emphasises that priority is to be given to security and liquidity, rather 
than yield.  The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy and its Treasury Management Practices 
seek to achieve a suitable balance between risk and return or cost. 
 
The key risks are: 
 

 Credit Risk: The possibility that the counterparty to a financial asset will fail to meet its contractual 

obligations, causing a loss to the Council. 

 Liquidity Risk: The possibility that the Council might not have the cash available to make 

contracted payments on time. 

 Market Risk: The possibility that an unplanned financial loss will materialise because of changes in 

market variables such as interest rates or equity prices. 

Credit Risk 

Treasury Investments: The Council manages credit risk by ensuring that investments are only 
placed with organisations of high credit quality as set out in the Treasury Management Strategy.  
These include commercial entities with a minimum long-term credit rating of A-, the UK government 
and other local authorities.  Recognising that credit ratings are imperfect predictors of default, the 
Council has regard to other measures including credit default swap and equity prices when selecting 
commercial entities for investment. 
 
A limit of £3million is placed on the amount of money that can be invested with a single counterparty 
(other than the UK government). For unsecured investments in banks and building societies a smaller 
limit of £2million applies. The Council also sets limits on investments in certain worldwide 
geographical areas. 
 
The table below summarises the credit risk exposures of the Council’s short term treasury investment 
portfolio at 31st March by credit rating (includes investments categorised as cash and cash 
equivalents). 
 
 

Page 196



 

 

57 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Credit Rating 2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

A 1,500 -

Unrated Local Authorities 2,000 2,000

Total 3,500 2,000

Credit risk not applicable * 7,500 11,550

Total Investments 11,000 13,550

* Credit risk is not applicable to Money Market Funds where the 

Council has no contractual right to receive any sum of money  
 
Loss allowances on treasury investments have been calculated by reference to historical default data 
published by credit rating agencies adjusted for current and forecast economic conditions; these 
allowances are not significant and have not been included within the accounts on grounds of 
materiality. 
 
Lease Receivables: The Council’s credit risk on lease receivables is mitigated by its legal ownership 
of the assets leased, which can be repossessed if the debtor defaults on the lease contract.   
 
Trade Receivables: The following analysis summarises the council’s potential maximum exposure to 
credit risk based on experience of default and future collectability. (the Council’s debtors include 
Council Tax, Business Rates and Housing Benefits. These are all statutory debts for which the 
Council is the responsible body and cannot influence who the counterparties are. Statutory debts are 
not classed as financial instruments). 
 
The Covid 19 pandemic and it’s legacy has increased the risk of default; the council is allowing 
payment terms with tenants to mitigate defaults. 
 
 

Note Amount at 

31 March 

2022

Historical 

experience 

of default

Adjustment 

for market 

conditions 

at 31 March 

2021

Estimated 

maximum 

exposure 

to default

£’000 % % £

General debtors a 313 -22.3% 14.1% 44

Housing rents a 1,942 54.8% 54.8% 1,065

Other a 1,762 0% 0% 0

Overpaid Housing Benefits 2,461 90.0% 90.0% 2,214

727 41.7% 41.7% 303

(a) The council does not generally allow credit for customers and the estimated risks are covered

by doubtful debt allowances which derive from aged debt analysis, historical experience and

assessment of future collectability.

In addition to the above Financial Instruments the Council is exposed to risk arising from non

payment of statutory Housing Benefit debt and costs associated with Council Tax and Business

Rates collection. The risks are shown below

Costs associated with Council Tax and

Business Rates Collection

 
 

Page 197



 

 

58 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Liquidity Risk 
 
The Council has ready access to borrowing at favourable rates from the Public Works Loan Board and 
other local authorities, and at higher rates from banks and building societies.  There is no perceived 
risk that the Council will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments.  It is however exposed to 
the risk that it will need to refinance a significant proportion of its borrowing at a time of unfavourably 
high interest rates.  This risk is managed by maintaining a spread of fixed rate loan maturities within 
approved parameters set out in the Council’s approved treasury and investment strategies.  
 
The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows: 
 

`

31-Mar-21

Amount Maturing within:- Minimum Maximum Amount

£'000 % % % £'000 %

12,100 19.0% Up to 1 year 0% 30% 8,100 14.0%

3,100 5.0% Over 1 but not over 2 years 0% 25% 3,100 5.0%

11,300 17.0% Over 2 but not over 5 years 0% 25% 11,300 20.0%

6,500 10.0% Over 5 but not over 10 years 0% 20% 3,500 6.0%

850 1.0% Over 10 but not over 20 years 0% 20% 750 1.0%

31,000 48.0% Over 20 but not over 40 years 0% 70% 31,000 54.0%

64,850 100.0% 57,750 100.0%

31-Mar-222021/22 Approved 

Limits

Maturity Structure of All Borrowings (excluding accrued interest)

 
 

 
Market Risk  
 
Interest Rate Risk – The Council is exposed to interest rate movements on its borrowings and 
investments. Movement in interest rates can have a complex impact on the Council, for instance, a 
rise in interest rates would have the following effects 
 
 Borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense will rise 
 Borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the borrowing will fall (no impact on revenue balances) 
 Investments at variable rates – the interest income credited will rise 
 Investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall (no impact on revenue balances) 
 
Investments measured at amortised cost and loans borrowed are not carried at fair value, so changes 
in their fair value will have no impact on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
However, changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments 
would be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and affect the General Fund 
balance.  

 
The Treasury Management Strategy aims to mitigate these risks by setting an upper limit of £12,000 
on the 12-month revenue impact of a 1% rise in interest rates. If all interest rates had been 1% higher 
(with all other variables held constant) the financial effect would have been -£153,000 in 2021/22 
(2020/21 -£75,900). 
 
The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy currently includes as a source of borrowing the use of 
internal funds. The cash held in these funds can be used short term to fund capital expenditure or the 
repayment of debt, thus delaying the need to borrow externally and reducing the Council’s overall 
interest cost. 

Page 198



 

 

59 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

19. Debtors 
 
Long Term Debtors 
 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

£’000 £’000

4,612 Finance Lease - Landing Stage 4,570

85 Other entities and individuals 69

4,697 4,639

 
 

 
Short Term Debtors (net of allowances for doubtful debts) 

 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

£’000 £’000

3,065 Central Government bodies 1,261

5,855 Other Local Authorities 3,253

4,026 Other entities and individuals 4,800

12,946 9,314

 

20. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

£’000 £’000

7,500 Money Market Funds 11,554

1,500 Call Accounts -

3 Cash imprests / cash in hand 3

259 Cash at bank / (Overdraft) [Grouped accounts] (282)

9,262 11,275

 

21. Creditors 
 

Long Term Creditors 
 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

£’000 £’000

(1,121) Other entities and individuals -

(1,121) 0

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 199



 

 

60 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
Short Term Creditors 
 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

£’000 £’000

(10,835) Central Government bodies (12,704)

(709) Other Local Authorities (987)

(3,630) Other entities and individuals (5,074)

(15,174) (18,765)

 

22. Provisions 

 

Balance Balance

01-Apr-21 Additional Amounts Unused 31-Mar-22

provisions used amounts

made reversed

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Business Rates Appeals S (972) (80) 37 43 (972)

MMI Scheme of Arrangement L (45) - - - (45)

(1,017) (80) 37 43 (1,017)

S
h
o
rt

 T
e
rm

 (
S

) 

L
o
n
g
 T

e
rm

 (
L
) < -------- 2021/22 -------- >

 
The provision for Business Rates valuation appeals is required by Business Rates Retention funding 
system - the Council’s share of the total provision of £2.430 million is £0.972 million.  
Provisions for doubtful debts are included within Note 19. 
 

23.    Agency Services 
 

A contribution is paid by the County Council towards grass cutting (environmental maintenance) and 
this is summarised below.  
 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

£’000 £’000

131 Grasscutting 179

(95) Hampshire County Council contribution (101)

16,590 Payment of Various Business Rate Lockdown Grants on Behalf of 

Central Government 4,187

16,626 4,265

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 200



 

 

61 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

24.    Usable Reserves 
Usable reserves are reserves that the Council may use to provide services, subject to the need to 
maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations. 

 
The Council’s main reserves are described below: 

 
Revenue - General Fund  

 
General Fund balance 
The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of an authority are required to be 
paid and out of which all liabilities of the authority are to be met, except to the extent that statutory 
rules might provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the financial year in which liabilities and 
payments should impact on the balance. It is effectively a working balance for both unforeseen 
events and fluctuating income streams. It may not be used to fund HRA services. 

 
Revenue Financing Reserve  
A reserve available for general use, although it is particularly targeted at ensuring that fluctuations in 
annual maintenance requirements can be met, underwriting uninsured risks and funding spend-to-
save revenue and capital initiatives. 

 
Stability and Resilience Reserve 
To cover the risk and volatility arising from the introduction of the Business Rate Retention and 
Council Tax Support Schemes together with the uncertainties in future levels of Revenue Support 
Grant. 

 
Other Usable Reserves  
Represent earmarked sums for contributing to specific service revenue expenditure includes 
commuted sums, major contract reserves and safety and housing related grants. 

 
Revenue - Housing Revenue Account 

 
HRA balance 
The Housing Revenue Account Balance reflects the statutory obligation to maintain a revenue 
account for local authority council housing provision in accordance with Part VI of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989. It contains the balance of income and expenditure as defined by 
the 1989 Act that is available to fund future expenditure in connection with the Council’s landlord 
function or (where in deficit) that is required to be recovered from tenants in future years.  It provides 
a working balance for Housing services and for unforeseen events. 

 
Major Repairs, New Build and Loan Repayment Reserve 
The reserve created to provide funding as described in the title. 

 
Capital – General Fund 

 
The Capital Receipts reserve holds proceeds from land and other asset disposals and may only be 
utilised to fund capital expenditure. The balance of £55,000 is the residual receipt from the sale of 
Camden Allotments which must be applied in accordance with the provisions of Section 32 of the 
Smallholdings and Allotments Act 1908. 

 
Capital – Housing Revenue Account 

 
Capital reserves from retained right to buy receipts which are to be used for the repayment of debt 
or new capital financing and the construction of new affordable housing. 

 
Major Repairs Reserve 
The Council is required to maintain the Major Repairs Reserve, which controls an element of the 
capital resources limited to being used on capital expenditure on HRA assets or the financing of 
historical capital expenditure by the HRA. The balance shows any capital resources that have yet to 
be applied at the year-end. 

 

Page 201



 

 

62 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The detailed balances and movements on usable reserves are shown below: 

01-Apr-20 Transfers Transfers 31-Mar-21 Transfers Transfers 31-Mar-22

In Out In Out

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Revenue

General Fund Balance (1,000) (1,000) (1,000)

Earmarked General Fund Reserves

Revenue Financing Reserve (4,092) (1,354) 542 (4,904) (1,097) 261 (5,740)

Stability & Resilience Reserve * (1,828) (2,546) (4,374) (1,117) 2,444 (3,047)

Cherque Farm Open Space (160) 19 (141) 19 (122)

Supporting Troubled Families (109) (2) 6 (105) (1) 11 (95)

Priddys Play Area Maintenance (38) 5 (33) 4 (29)

Building Control Partnership (112) 11 (101) (101)

Community Safety Partnership (46) 1 (45) 2 (43)

Preventing Repossessions (14) (14) (14)

High Street Innovations (23) 23 0 0

Open Spaces Maintenance (18) 3 (15) 1 (14)

Bus Shelter Maintenance (30) (30) (30)

Business Growth Incentive Grant 0 (22) (22) (22)

Urbaser Contract Reserve (107) (109) (216) (31) (247)

Healthy Homes (21) 1 (20) (20)

Benefits DWP External Funding (12) (7) 12 (7) (19) 7 (19)

Homeless Support Grant Reserve (595) (112) 112 (595) 42 (553)

Planning DCLG Grants Reserve (87) 5 (82) 13 (69)

EU Exit Preparation (40) 40 0 0

COVID-19 Govt Grant Reseve (17) 17 0 (708) 256 (452)

Income Compensation Reserve - (382) (382) 127 (255)

Civic Events Reserve (15) (15) (15)

Levelling Up Reserve 0 (125) (125)

Cyber Security Reserve 0 (108) (108)

All Other Reserves with balances 

less than £10,000

(36) 2 (34) 2 (32)

(7,400) (4,534) 799 (11,135) (3,206) 3,189 (11,152)

Housing Revenue Account

Housing Revenue Account (992) (992) (992)

New Build & Loan Repayment 

Reserve (3,498) (442) 196 (3,744) 256 (3,488)

(4,490) (442) 196 (4,736) 0 256 (4,480)

Capital

Capital Receipts Reserve (GF) (54) (238) 238 (54) (52) 51 (55)

Revenue Reserve for Capital (GF) (497) (392) 257 (632) 51 (581)

Capital Receipts Reserve (HRA) 0 (602) 602 0 (995) 666 (329)

Capital Receipts New Build (HRA) (1,189) (104) 178 (1,115) (844) (1,959)

Major Repairs Reserve (HRA) - (3,027) 2,215 (812) (3,239) 3,073 (978)

Capital Grants Unapplied (CIL) (1,006) (329) 81 (1,254) (52) 80 (1,226)

(2,746) (4,692) 3,571 (3,867) (5,182) 3,921 (5,128)

Total Usable Reserves (15,636) (9,668) 4,566 (20,738) (8,388) 7,366 (21,760)

2020/21 2021/22

* The Stability and Resilience reserve includes an exceptional balance of £1.048m ( £2.673m at 31/3/21) being S31 

grant received to offset reliefs given to businesses during lockdown. This is not additional resource; it is required to 

offset the counci's business rate collection fund deficit at 31st March 2022 as shown in note 25

Page 202



 

 

63 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

25.   Unusable Reserves 
 
 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

£’000 £’000

(67,287) Revaluation Reserve (82,452)

(48,588) Capital Adjustment Account (44,814)

(4,652) Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve (4,612)

43,869 Net Pension Reserve 33,275

2,583 Collection Fund Adjustment Account 938

224 Accumulated Absences Account 157

(73,851) (97,508)

 
 
Revaluation Reserve 

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value 

of its property, plant and equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains 

are: 

 revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost 

 used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation 

 disposed of and the gains are realised 

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the 

reserve was created.  Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance 

on the Capital Adjustment Account 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

(59,607) Balance at 1 April (67,287)

(9,863) Upward revaluation of assets (15,525)

1,936 Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not charged 

to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services 286

(7,927)

Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not posted to 

the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (15,239)

247 Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost 

depreciation 74

247 Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account 74

(67,287) Balance at 31 March (82,452)

 
 
Capital Adjustment Account  

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 

arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the 

acquisition, construction or additions to those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is 

debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or subsequent costs as depreciation, impairment 

losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

(with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical 

cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Council as finance for the 

costs of acquisition, construction and subsequent costs. 

Page 203



 

 

64 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on investment properties and any gains 

recognised on any donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the Authority. 

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on property, plant and equipment before 1 

April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains. 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

(52,813) Balance at 1 April (48,588)

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited 

to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

4,422 Charges for depreciation, impairment of noncurrent assets 4,669

932 Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment 716

94 Amortisation of intangible assets 57

487 Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 829

3,138 Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as 

part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement 5,161

9,073 11,432

(247) Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve (74)

8,826

Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets 

consumed in the year 11,358

Capital financing applied in the year:

(696) Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure and reduce CFR (411)

(2,215) Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure (3,073)

(367) Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital 

financing (809)

(373) Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital Grants 

Unapplied Account (804)

(202) Statutory and voluntary provision for the financing of capital 

investment charged against the General Fund and HRA balances
(586)

(845) Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and HRA 

balances (318)

(4,698) (6,001)

97 Movements in the market value of Investment Properties 

debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement (1,583)

(48,588) Balance at 31 March (44,814)

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 204



 

 

65 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 

The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-current 

assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under statutory arrangements, the 

Authority does not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital expenditure until they are 

backed by cash receipts. When the deferred cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are 

transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

(4,690) Balance at 1 April (4,652)

38 Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash 40

(4,652) Balance at 31 March (4,612)

 

Pensions Reserve 

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for 

accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory 

provisions. The Council accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating 

the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any 

resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to 

be financed as the Council makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any 

pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore 

shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the 

resources the Council has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that 

funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid. 

 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

40,509 Balance at 1 April 43,869

1,566 Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) (13,579)

3,095 Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited 

to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 4,323

(1,301) Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to 

pensioners payable in the year (1,338)

43,869 Balance at 31 March 33,275

 
 
 Collection Fund Adjustment Account 

This account manages the differences arising from the recognition of council tax and business rates 

income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from council tax 

payers and business rates payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across 

amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund. 

 The 2021/22 deficit balance on the Business Rates account includes an exceptional deficit balance 

of £0.972m (£2.561m at 31/3/2021) arising from reliefs given to businesses during lockdown and will 

be funded by additional S31 grant received in 2021/22 and held in the balance of the Stability and 

Resilience reserve at 31st March 2022 (see note 24). 

Page 205



 

 

66 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2020/21 2021/22

Council 

Tax

Business 

Rates

Council 

Tax

Business 

Rates

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

16 (492) Balance at 1 April 39 2,544

23 3,036 Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rates income 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

is different from council tax and non-domestic rates income 

calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements (106) (1,539)

39 2,544 Balance at 31 March (Surplus) / Deficit (67) 1,005

 
 

Accumulated Absences Account 
 

The account absorbs the differences from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken 

in the year i.e. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March and statutory arrangements 

requiring the impact on the General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from this Account. 

26. Members’ Allowances 

 
The following amounts were paid to members during the year. A detailed breakdown is on the 
Council’s website at http://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/democratic-services/members-allowances/ 

 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

272 Allowances 282

2 Expenses 2

274 284

 

27. Officers Remuneration 

Number of 

employees 

2020/21

Left during 

2020/21

The number of employees (excluding senior officers which are

disclosed individually in separate tables) whose remuneration,

excluding employer’s pension contributions, was £50,000 or more in

bands of £5,000 were:

Number of 

employees 

2021/22

Left during 

2021/22

 Remuneration band

9 - £50,000 - £54,999 6 -

4 - £55,000 - £59,999 6 -

1 - £60,000 - £64,999 1 -

1 - £65,000 - £69,999 1 -

1 - £70,000 - £74,999 1 -

- - £75,000 - £79,999 1 -

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 206

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/democratic-services/members-allowances/


 

 

67 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Exit Packages 
 

Exit package cost 

band (including 

special 

repayments)
2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22

£0 - £20,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

£20,001 - £40,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

£40,001 - £60,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

£60,001 - £80,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Number of 

compulsory 

redundancies

Number of other 

departures agreed

Total number of 

exit packages by 

cost band

Total cost of exit 

packages in each 

band £000's

 
 

SENIOR OFFICER EMOLUMENTS (Salaries more than £50,000 but less than £150,000 per 
year) 

 
The roles of the Chief Executive and Borough Treasurer are, fulfilled (from 1st October 2016) by 
Portsmouth City Council under a shared management arrangement. The remuneration details of the 
equivalent posts are disclosed in full by Portsmouth City Council at 
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/the-council/transparency/transparency-agenda.aspx 
 
The amount recharged to Gosport Borough Council relating to these posts is set out below. 

 

2020/21 2021/22

£000's £000's

69 Chief Executive 70

50 Borough Treasurer 51

119 121

 
 

2021/22

Senior Officer Emoluments - Salaries more than £50,000 but less than £150,000 per year

Post Title

Salary 

(Including 

Allowances)

Expense 

Allowances

Total 

Remuneration 

excluding 

pension 

contributions 

2021/22

Pension 

Contributions

Total 

Remuneration 

including 

pension 

contributions 

2021/22

£ £ £ £ £

82,113 - 82,113 15,732 97,845

Head of Legal Services and 

Monitoring Officer 69,603 - 69,603 13,364 82,967

151,716 0 151,716 29,096 180,812

Assistant to the Chief Executive and Head 

of Planning and Regeneration

 
 

Page 207

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/the-council/transparency/transparency-agenda.aspx


 

 

68 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
28.   External Audit Costs 

The Council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts and 
certification of grant claims provided by the Council’s external auditors. 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

Fee payable to Ernst & Young with regard to external audit services 

carried out by appointed auditors

41 External audit services 41

41 41

 

Page 208



 

 

69 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

29. Grant Income 

The Authority credited the following grants and contributions to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in 2021/22.  
 
 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

Non-Ringfenced Government Grants

Department for Communities and Local Government:

- Lower Tier Services Grant (107)

- Local Council Tax Support Scheme Grant (95)

(86) New Homes Bonus Grant (154)

- S31 - Cyber Support Grant (100)

- Levelling UP Funding (125)

(56) New Burdens Grants - various (95)

(3,982) S31 - Business Rate Relief Grants (1,989)

(1,284) Covid 19 Local Authority Support Grant (453)

(210) Covid 19 - New Burdens Grants (297)

(177) Covid 19 - Various Public Health Grants (165)

Department for Work and Pensions

(371) HB / CTB Administration (308)

(346) Community Infrastructure Levy (56)

(6,512) (3,944)

Capital Grants and Contributions

(7) Developers Contributions - Open Spaces (7)

(11) Heritage Action Zone (96)

- Donated Assets (226)

(355) Coast Protection (475)

(373) (804)

Department for Work and Pensions

(20,154) HB / CTB Subsidy (17,662)

Environment Agency

Department for Communities and Local Government

(367) Disabled Facilities Grant (809)

(75) NNDR Cost of Collection (79)

(689) Homelessness Prevention Grants (894)

(16) Re-opening High Street Grant (145)

(113) Historic England Grant (110)

(624) Covid 19 - Sales, Fees and Charges Grant (145)

(481) Covid 19 - Council Tax Hardship Fund -

(721) Covid 19 - Discretionary Business Rate Grants (2,445)

(114) Covid 19 - Leisure Centre Support Grant (59)

(192) Covid 19 - Other grants (219)

Cabinet Office

(16) Elections / Register of Electors Grants (27)

(23,562) (22,594)

Included in Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

Service Specific Revenue Grants and Contributions   (included 

in cost of services)

Grant Income

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 209



 

 

70 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Receipts in Advance 
 

In addition, the Council has received a number of grants, contributions and donations that have yet 
to be recognised as income as they have conditions attached to them which could require their 
return to the giver – a possibility that the Council seeks to mitigate by pro-actively managing the 
monies held.  An analysis of these sums is shown below analysed between Capital and Revenue 
Grants   
 

2020/21 2021/22

£’000 £’000

Receipts in Advance - Revenue Grants

(2,372) Covid 19 - Discretionary Business Rates Grants -

(79) Covid 19 - Hardship Fund -

(67) Covid 19 - Discretionary Self Isolation Payments Grant -

(108) Other grants and contributions (19)

(2,626) (19)

2020/21 2021/22

£’000 £’000

Receipts in Advance - Capital Grants

(10) Affordable Housing (19)

(1,050) Open Spaces and Play Areas (1,074)

(639) Transport Contributions (586)

(1,620) Disabled Facilities Grant (1,719)

- Brownfield Land Release Fund (2,200)

(297) Other grants and contributions (515)

(3,616) (6,113)

 
 
 

30. Related Parties 
 

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals 
that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the 
Council. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Council 
might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability 
to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council. 
 
Central Government 
Central government has significant influence over the general operations of the Council – it is 
responsible for providing the statutory framework, within which the Council operates, provides 
significant funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the 
Council has with other parties (i.e. council tax bills, housing benefits). Grants received from 
government departments are included in Note 29. 
 
Members 
Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies. The 
total of members’ allowances paid in 2021/22 is shown in Note 26. There were no other material 
related party transactions during the year 
 
Officers 
There were no related party transactions during the year by officers of the Council. 
 

Page 210



 

 

71 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
Portsmouth City Council – Shared Management arrangements 
In June 2016, the Council approved entering into a shared management arrangement with 
Portsmouth City Council (PCC). This encompasses the following posts and functions: Chief 
Executive; Borough Treasurer; Housing Services; Personnel and Pay and Central Services and 
other services as required. 
 
During 2021/22, the Council paid PCC £616,097 (£593,710 in 2020/21).   
There is no political merger and the two Councils remain distinct and separate entities, the 
collaboration is at officer level only. 
 
Gosport and Fareham Building Control Partnership 
The Partnership provides building control services on behalf of Gosport Borough Council, Fareham 
Borough Council and Portsmouth City Council; it has been in operation since 2003 and was 
expanded to include Portsmouth City Council from May 2015.  During 2021/22, the Partnership 
charged Gosport Borough Council £66,223 (£59,382 in 2020/21) for statutory building control 
services.  The Partnership has a policy of dividing generated surpluses between authorities based 
on fee generating work from each Authority.  At the 31 March 2022, the balance of retained surplus 
for future investment in the service held by Gosport Borough Council was £93,952 (£100,627 in 
2020/21), £156,143 (£167,236 in 2020/21) by Fareham Borough Council and £60,023 (£64,287 in 
2020/21) by Portsmouth City Council. 
 
Gosport and Fareham Environmental Services Partnership 
The Gosport and Fareham Environmental Health Partnership provides environmental health 
services to both Fareham and Gosport Borough Council.  The Partnership has been in operation 
since 2014.  During 2021/22, the Partnership charged Gosport Borough Council £634,226 for 
statutory environmental health services (£619,094 in 2020/21).  The Partnership has a policy of 
sharing expenditure (excluding internal recharges) on a 50/50 basis. All income is retained by the 
relevant authority.   
 
Portchester Crematorium 
The crematorium is a joint arrangement managed by the Council along with 3 neighbouring 
authorities through the Portchester Crematorium Joint Committee. The four constituent authorities: 
Gosport Borough Council, Fareham Borough Council, Havant Borough Council and  
Portsmouth City Council are equally represented – each having a 25% share. Further information 
can be obtained from: The Treasurer to the Joint Committee, Civic Centre, Civic Way, Fareham.  
 
During 2021/22 the Council received £180,000 (£200,000 in 2020/21) from the Joint Committee 
being its share of the distributable surpluses. The Council’s 25% share of the crematorium’s assets, 
liabilities, income and expenditure for 2021/22 are shown below 

 

2020/21 2021/22

£’000 £’000

Portchester Crematorium - Gosport share (25%)

1,866 Long Term Assets 1,768

809 Current Assets 856

(9) Current Liabilities (22)

(221) Long Term Liabilities (165)

(800) Usable Reserves (834)

(1,645) Unusable Reserves (1,603)

0 0

(593) Income (520)

593 Expenditure 520  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 211



 

 

72 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Other Public Bodies 
Subject to a common control by central government, transactions with other public bodies are shown 
below: 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

36,145 Hampshire County Council 36,992

5,697 Hampshire Police & Crime 

Commissioners 6,049

2,026 Hampshire Fire & Rescue 

Authority 1,984

1,301 Hampshire County Council Pension Fund payments 1,338

Building Control, Environmental Services 

Partnerships and other shared 

arrangements

881 Expenditure 761

(220) Income (163)

Business Rates (excluding Hampshire 

Police & Crime Commissioners) and 

Council Tax precepts

Fareham Borough Council

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 212



 

 

73 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

31. Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 
 
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including 
the value of any assets acquired under finance leases contracts), together with the resources that 
have been used to finance it.  Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges 
to revenue as assets are used by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the 
Council that has yet to be financed.  The CFR is analysed in the table below. 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£’000 £’000

82,475 Opening Capital Financing Requirement 82,273

Capital Investment

3,933 Plant, Property & Equipment 4,590

36 Heritage Assets 123

- Investment Properties 26

40 Intangible Assets 58

487 Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute 829

Sources of Finance

(696) Capital Receipts (411)

(740) Government Grants & Other Contributions (1,613)

(3,060) GF and HRA Revenue and Reserves including Major Repairs 

Reserve (3,391)

Other Adjustments

(202) Sums set aside from Revenue (including Minimum and Voluntary 

Repayments of Principal) (586)

82,273 Closing Capital Financing Requirement 81,898

Explanation of Movements in year

- Increase in underlying need to borrow (unsupported) 211

(202) (Decrease) in underlying need to borrow due to MRP, VRP and 

lease payments (586)

(202) (Decrease) / Increase in Capital Financing Requirement (375)

 
 

 

Revenue Expenditure Funded From Capital under Statute 
 
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute represents capital expenditure that does not 
result in the creation of an asset. Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute during the 
year is shown below. 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£’000 £’000

Housing Grants 367 809

Other Capital Schemes 120 20

Total 487 829

 
 
 
 
 

Page 213



 

 

74 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

32.   Leases 
 
 
Council as Lessee

Finance Leases

Operating Leases

The future estimated minimum lease payments are: 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

£'000 £'000

Not later than one year 896 874

Later than one year and not later than five years 2,665 3,097

Later than five years 46 18

3,607 3,989

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

£'000 £'000

Minimum lease payments 993 875

993 875

The Council does not currently have any items held under finance leases.

The Council has lease arrangements for vehicles, land and also uses a number of properties for 

temporary accommodation for its clients under short term licence arrangements.

The expenditure charged to the Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement during the year in relation to these leases was: 

 

Page 214



 

 

75 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Council as Lessor

Finance Leases

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

£'000 £'000

Finance lease debtor

current 40 42

non current 4,612 4,570

Unearned finance income 5,813 5,593

Gross investment in the lease 10,465 10,205

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

260 260 260 260

1,040 1,040 1,040 1,040

9,165 8,905 9,165 8,905

10,465 10,205 10,465 10,205

Operating Leases

the provision of community services

economic development purposes

the lease of the seabed and dolphins for the ferry landing stage

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

£'000 £'000

Not later than one year 634 629

Later than one year and not later than five years 2,579 2,516

Later than five years 14,833 15,503

18,046 18,648

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

£'000 £'000

Not later than one year 1 1

Later than one year and not later than five years 4 4

Later than five years 140 138

145 143

During 2015/16, the Council received a premium payment of £150,000 in respect of a revision to 

one of these leases. This is being credited to the Cost of Services over the life of the lease and is 

included in the balance sheet as deferred income as follows.

Finance Lease 

payments

The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following periods:

Gross Investment in 

the Lease

The Council has entered into a finance lease for the Gosport Ferry Landing Stage over a term of 50 

years. The Landing Stage opened on 27 June 2011.

Not later than one year

The minimum lease payments receivable do not include rents that are contingent on events taking 

place after the lease was entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews. 

The Council leases out land and property under operating leases primarily for:

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

Later than one year, not later than five years

Later than five years

 
 

Page 215



 

 

76 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

33. Pensions 

Introduction 
 
Funded - the disclosures below relate to the funded liabilities within the Hampshire County Council 
Pension Fund (the ‘Fund’) which is part of the Local Government Pension Scheme (the ‘LGPS’). The 
LGPS is a funded defined benefit plan with benefits earned up to 31 March 2014 being linked to final 
salary. Benefits after 31 March 2014 are based on a Career Average Revalued Earnings scheme. 
Details of the benefits earned over the period covered by this disclosure are set out in ‘The Local 
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013’ and ‘The Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014’. 
 
The council has pre-paid (£3.2million) it’s LGPS employer contribution for the 3 year period 1st April 
2020 – 31st March 2023 in order to receive a discount from the Hampshire Pension Fund) to benefit 
from a discounted employer contribution being offered by the Hampshire Pension Fund.  
 
Unfunded - the unfunded pension arrangements established by Gosport Borough Council relate to 
termination benefits made on a discretionary basis upon early retirement in respect of members of 
the LGPS. No Pension Fund exists to meet these benefits 
 
 
Funding / Governance Arrangements of the LGPS 
 
The funded nature of the LGPS requires Gosport Borough Council and its employees to pay 
contributions into the Fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension liabilities with 
investment assets. Information on the framework for calculating contributions to be paid is set out in 
the LGPS Regulations 2013 and the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement. The last actuarial valuation 
was at 31 March 2019 and the contributions to be paid until 31 March 2023 resulting from that 
valuation are set out in the Fund’s Rates and Adjustment Certificate.  
 
The Fund Administering Authority, Hampshire County Council, is responsible for the governance of 
the Fund. 
 
 
Risks associated with the Fund in relation to accounting 
 
Asset volatility - the liabilities used for accounting purposes are calculated using a discount rate set 
with reference to corporate bond yields. If assets underperform this yield this will create a deficit in 
the accounts. The Fund holds a significant proportion of growth assets which while expected to 
outperform corporate bonds in the long term creates volatility and risk in the short term in relation to 
the accounting figures. 
 
Changes in Bond Yield - a decrease in corporate bond yields will increase the value placed on the 
liabilities for accounting purposes although this will be marginally offset by the increase in the assets 
as a result. 
 
Inflation Risk - the majority of the pension liabilities are linked to either pay or price inflation. Higher 
inflation expectations will lead to a higher liability value. The assets are either unaffected or loosely 
correlated with inflation meaning that an increase in inflation will increase the deficit. 
 
Life expectancy - the majority of the Fund’s obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the 
member following retirement, so increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in the 
liabilities. 
 
Exiting employers - employers who leave the Fund (or their guarantor) may have to make an exit 
payment to meet any shortfall in assets against their pension liabilities. If the employer (or guarantor) 
is not able to meet this exit payment the liability may in certain circumstances fall on other employers 
in the Fund. Further, the assets at exit in respect of ‘orphan liabilities’ may, in retrospect, not be 
sufficient to meet the liabilities. This risk may fall on other employers. ‘Orphan liabilities’ are currently 
a small proportion of the overall liabilities in the Fund.  

Page 216



 

 

77 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fund Actuaries 
 
The reported figures and disclosure notes below are predominantly supplied by AON Hewitt Limited, 
the independent actuaries to the Fund. 
 
 
Estimated pension expenses for the year ending 31 March 2023 

The actuary has provided the following estimates of the pension expense recognised in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2022/23 based on assumptions at 31st March 

2022. 

 

Funded Benefits - £4.011m,  

Unfunded Benefits - £0.054m  
 

    Assumptions 
 

The latest actuarial valuation of Gosport Borough Council's funded liabilities and unfunded LGPS 
benefits took place as at 31 March 2019. Liabilities have been estimated by the independent 
qualified actuary on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of the 
pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary 
levels etc. The principal assumptions used by the actuary in updating the latest valuation of the Fund 
for IAS 19 purposes were  
 

2020/21 Key assumptions (% per annum) 2021/22

Funded

2.1% Discount rate 2.7%

2.7% CPI Inflation 3.0%

2.7% Pension increases 3.0%

2.7% Pension accounts revaluation rate 3.0%

3.7% Salary increases 4.0%

Unfunded

2.1% Discount rate 2.7%

2.7% CPI Inflation 3.0%

2.7% Pension increases 3.0%

2020/21 Assumed life expectancy at age 65 2021/22

Males

23.1 Member aged 65 at accounting date 22.9

24.8 Member aged 45 at accounting date 24.7

Females

25.5 Member aged 65 at accounting date 25.4

27.3 Member aged 45 at accounting date 27.1

 
  

Page 217



 

 

78 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Transactions Relating to Post-Employment Benefits 
 
The cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services is recognised when they are earned 
by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.  However, the charge 
that is required to be made against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real 
cost of post-employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement.  The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves 
Statement during the year 
 

Funded Unfunded Funded Unfunded

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement

Cost of Services

2,178 - Current service costs # 3,415 -

- - Past service costs 1 -

Financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure

867 50 Interest on net defined benefit liability 861 46

3,045 50
Pension expense recognised in the Surplus 

or Deficit on the Provision of Services
4,277 46

Remeasurements of the Net Defined Liability, 

comprising

(17,811) - Return on plan assets (in excess of) / below that 

recognised in net interest (4,870) -

20,705 161 Actuarial (gains) / losses due to change in 

financial assumptions (7,766) (51)

- - Actuarial (gains) / losses due to changes in 

demographic assumptions (1,337) (36)

(1,457) (32) Actuarial (gains) / losses due to liability 

experience 473 8

1,437 129
Total amount recognised in Other 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
(13,500) (79)

4,482 179
Total included in Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement
(9,223) (33)

Movement in Reserves Statement

(3,045) (50) Reversal of charges made for retirement benefits (4,277) (46)

1,128 173 Inclusion of employers contributions payable 1,169 169

(1,917) 123
Total included in Movement in Reserves 

Statement
(3,108) 123

18
# Allowance for administration expenses 

included in current service cost
21

2021/22Transactions relating to Post-employment 

Benefits

2020/21

 
 

 
  

Page 218



 

 

79 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2020/21 2020/21

£'000 £'000

Employers contributions paid to Pension Fund

1,128 Normal Funded Contributions 1,169

Employers contributions paid to Pensioners

173 Discretionary / Unfunded Added Years 169

1,301 1,338

 
 

 
Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet 
 
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Council’s obligation in respect of the LGPS 
is as follows 
 

31-Mar-21 Reconciliation to Balance Sheet 31-Mar-22

£m £m

Funded

96.500 Fair value of assets 101.192

(138.089) Present value of funded defined benefit obligation (132.389)

(41.589) Pension liability recognised on the Balance Sheet (31.197)

The split of the defined benefit obligation at the last valuation date 

between the various categories of members was as follows:

26.0% Active members 26.0%

17.0% Deferred Pensioners 17.0%

57.0% Pensioners 57.0%

Unfunded

(2.280) Present value of defined benefit obligation (2.078)

(2.280) Pension liability recognised on the Balance Sheet (2.078)

(43.869) Total (43.667)

 
 
Assets 
 
The assets allocated to the Employer in the Fund are notional and are assumed to be invested in line 
with the investments of the Fund for the purposes of calculating the return to be applied to those 
notional assets over the accounting period. The Fund is large and holds a significant proportion of its 
assets in liquid investments. As a consequence there will be no significant restriction on realising 
assets if a large payment is required to be paid from the Fund in relation to an employer's liabilities. 
The assets are invested in a diversified spread of investments and the approximate split of assets for 
the Fund as a whole (based on data supplied by the Administering Authority) is shown in the 
disclosures. 
 
The Administering Authority may invest a small proportion of the Fund's investments in the assets of 
some of the employers participating in the Fund if it forms part of their balanced investment strategy.  

 

Page 219



 

 

80 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Asset allocation

Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unquoted Total

49.4% 7.6% 52.7% Equities 45.8% 11.1% 56.9%

0.8% 5.3% 7.3% Property 0.9% 6.0% 6.9%

17.3% 0.0% 21.8% Government Bonds 17.2% 0.0% 17.2%

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% Corporate Bonds 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% Multi Asset Credit 9.0% 0.0% 9.0%

1.4% 0.0% 2.0% Cash 0.9% 0.0% 0.9%

15.9% 2.3% 16.2% Other 5.6% 3.5% 9.1%

84.8% 15.2% 100.0% Total 79.4% 20.6% 100.0%

31-Mar-2231-Mar-21

 
 
Movement in the present value of Pension Fund Obligations 
 
 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£m £m

Funded

116.965 Opening defined benefit obligation 138.089

2.178 Current service cost 3.415

2.657 Interest expense on defined benefit obligation 2.865

0.444 Contributions by participants 0.462

20.705 Actuarial (gains)/losses due to change in financial assumptions (7.766)

0.000 Actuarial (gains)/losses due to changes in demographic 

assumptions (1.337)

(1.457) Actuarial (gains)/losses due to liability experience 0.473

(3.403) Net benefits paid out (3.813)

- Past service cost 0.001

138.089 Closing defined benefit obligation 132.389

Unfunded

2.274 Opening defined benefit obligation 2.280

- Current service cost -

0.050 Interest expense on defined benefit obligation 0.046

0.161 Actuarial (gains)/losses due to change in financial assumptions (0.051)

- Actuarial (gains)/losses due to changes in demographic 

assumptions (0.036)

(0.032) Actuarial (gains)/losses due to liability experience 0.008

(0.173) Net benefits paid out (0.169)

2.280 Closing defined benefit obligation 2.078

Changes to the present value of the defined benefit obligation

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 220



 

 

81 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
Movement in the fair value of Pension Fund Assets 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£m £m

Funded

78.730 Opening fair value of assets 96.500

1.790 Interest income on assets 2.004

17.811 Remeasurement gains/(losses) on assets 4.870

1.128 Contributions by the employer 1.169

0.444 Contributions by participants 0.462

(3.403) Net benefits paid out # (3.813)

96.500 Closing fair value of assets 101.192

# The 'Net benefits paid out' figure includes an allowance for expenses of £0.021m

Unfunded

0.181 Contributions by the employer 0.169

(0.181) Net benefits paid out (0.169)

- Closing fair value of assets -

Changes to the fair value of assets

 
 
 

Actual return on Scheme Assets 
 

2020/21 2020/21

£m £m

1.790 Interest income on assets 2.004

17.811 Remeasurement gain/(loss) on assets 4.870

19.601 Actual return / (loss) on assets 6.874

Actual return on assets

 
 
Sensitivity Analysis 
 
The approximate impact of changing the key assumptions on the present value of the funded defined 
benefit obligation as at 31 March is set out below. 
 
In each case, only the assumption mentioned is altered; all other assumptions remain the same and 
are summarised on page 79. 
 
Sensitivity of unfunded benefits is not included on materiality grounds. 
 
 

Page 221



 

 

82 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Sensitivity analysis for funded LGPS benefits

Discount rate assumption

Adjustment to discount rate +0.1% pa Base figure -0.1% pa

Present value of total obligation (£m's) 130.006 132.389 134.904

% change in present value of total obligation -1.8% 1.9%

Projected service cost (£m's) 3.086 3.188 3.293

Approximate % change in projected service cost -3.2% 3.3%

Rate of general increase in salaries

Adjustment to salary increase rate +0.1% pa Base figure -0.1% pa

Present value of total obligation (£m's) 132.654 132.389 132.124

% change in present value of total obligation 0.2% -0.2%

Projected service cost (£m's) 3.188 3.188 3.188

Approximate % change in projected service cost 0.0% 0.0%

Rate of increase to pensions in payment and 

deferred pensions assumption and rate of 

revaluation of pension fund accounts

Adjustment to pension increase rate +0.1% pa Base figure -0.1% pa

Present value of total obligation (£m's) 134.640 132.389 130.271

% change in present value of total obligation 1.7% -1.6%

Projected service cost (£m's) 3.293 3.188 3.086

Approximate % change in projected service cost 3.3% -3.2%

Post retirement mortality assumption

Adjustment to mortality age rate assumption # -1 year Base figure +1 year

Present value of total obligation (£m's) 136.890 132.389 127.888

% change in present value of total obligation 3.4% -3.4%

Projected service cost (£m's) 3.316 3.188 3.064

Approximate % change in projected service cost 4.0% -3.9%

# A rating of +1 year means that members are assumed to follow the mortality pattern of the 

base table for an individual that is 1 year older than them

 

34. Contingent Liabilities 

 
 Browndown Tip 

 
The Council’s officers are of the opinion that the Council could have substantial liabilities under the 
provisions of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 as a class B person namely the current owner / 
occupier of the land. The extent of the liability depends on the contamination, whether a class A 
person (one who caused or knowingly permitted the contamination) can be identified and the future 
use of the land. 

 
 Alver Valley Country Park 

 
The Council owns land and has a 999 year lease of other land within the Country Park which was 
formally a gravel extraction quarry reclaimed as a landfill site.  The land is, in parts, known to be 
filled with both inert material and domestic waste.  The Council may have cost liabilities in respect of 
discharges of gas or contaminated water. 
 

Page 222



 

 

83 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 

35. Contingent Assets 
 

 Priddys Hard Profit Share 
 
In 2009/10 the Portsmouth Naval Base Property Trust purchased the Priddys Hard Heritage Area, 
including the Explosion Museum, from the Council. Under the terms of the agreement the Council 
would receive a share of profits that may arise from future developments, should certain conditions 
be met. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 223



 

 

84 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

36. Cash Flow Statement – notes

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

4,424 Depreciation and Impairments 4,669

932 Impairment and Downward Valuations 716

94 Amortisation 57

12,746 Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors (18)

(3,146) (Increase)/Decrease in Debtors 1,012

1,794 Movement in Pension Liability 2,985

3,136 Carrying amount of non-current assets and non-current assets held 

for sale, sold or derecognised 5,161

(345) Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus or deficit on the 

provision of services (1,583)

19,635 Net cash flow 12,999

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

(903) Proceeds from the sale of property plant and equipment, investment 

property and intangible assets 2,150

(1,069) Capital Grants credited to the surplus/deficit on the provision of 

services (1,665)

(1,972) 485

2020/21 Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 2021/22

£'000 £'000

(3,440) Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property 

and intangible assets (4,924)

(8,000) Purchase of short-term and long-term investments (18,500)

941 Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 

investment property, intangible assets (including deferred capital 

receipts) 1,890

11,500 Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments 14,500

2,108 Other receipts from investing activities 4,162

3,109 Net cash outflow from investing activities (2,872)

2020/21 Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 2021/22

£'000 £'000

12,000 Cash receipts of short and long-term borrowing 8,000

Cash payments for the reduction of outstanding liabilities relating to 

finance leases 

(19,100) Repayments of short and long-term borrowing (15,100)

(5,894) Billing Authorities - Council Tax and NNDR adjustments 2,640

(12,994) Net cash (inflow) / outflow from financing activities (4,460)

Adjustment for items included in the net surplus or deficit on 

the provision of services that are investing or financing 

activities

Adjustments to surplus or deficit on the provision of services 

for non-cash movements

 

Page 224



 

 

85 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

257 Interest Received 238

(1,951) Interest Paid (1,787)

(1,694) Net cash outflow from Interest and Dividends (1,549)

The cash flows for operating activities include the following 

items:

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 225



 

 

86 
 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

37. Certification and authorisation of the Accounts 

Statement of Accounts – unaudited draft authorised for issue 

Signed 

 

Date 29th July 2022 

C. WARD 

Borough Treasurer, Section 151 officer 
 

Statement of Accounts – audited statement authorised for issue 

Signed 

Date 15th March 2023 

C. WARD 

Borough Treasurer, Section 151 officer 

 

Statement of Accounts – audited and approved by Policy and Organisation Board 

Signed 

 

Date 15th March 2023 

COUNCILLOR P. CHEQWYN 

Leader of the Council 
 

Statement of Accounts – approved by Policy and Organisation Board and authorised 

for publication  

Signed 

 

 

Date 15th March 2023 

C. WARD 

Borough Treasurer, Section 151 officer 

 

Page 226



 

 

87 
 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
HRA INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

 
The HRA Income and Expenditure Statement shows the economic cost in the year of providing 
housing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount 
to be funded from rents and government grants. Authorities charge rents to cover expenditure in 
accordance with the legislative framework; this may be different from the accounting cost. The 
increase or decrease in the year, on the basis of which rents are raised, is shown in the Movement on 
the Housing Revenue Account Statement 
 

 

2020/21 HRA INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 2021/22 2021/22

£'000 £'000 £'000

EXPENDITURE

5,067 Repairs & maintenance 5,630

4,310 Supervision & management 4,769

309 Rents, rates, taxes & other charges 246

3,038 Depreciation, impairment and revaluation losses of 

non current assets 3,245

45 Debt management costs 46

55 Movement in the allowance for bad or doubtful debts 13

12,824 TOTAL EXPENDITURE 13,949

INCOME

(14,130) Dwelling rents (14,296)

(309) Non dwelling rents (312)

(550) Charges for services and facilities (584)

(14,989) TOTAL INCOME (15,192)

(2,165) NET INCOME OF HRA SERVICES AS INCLUDED 

IN THE WHOLE AUTHORITY COMPREHENSIVE 

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

(1,243)

168 HRA Services’ share of Corporate and Democratic 

Core 180

(1,997) NET INCOME FOR HRA SERVICES (1,063)

HRA SHARE OF THE OPERATING INCOME AND 

EXPENDITURE INCLUDED IN THE WHOLE 

AUTHORITY COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND 

EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

2,227 (Gain)/Loss on the disposal of HRA non-current 

assets 3,197

301 Payments to the Governments Housing Capital 

Receipts Pool 278

1,839 Interest payable and similar charges 1,784

(11) Interest and investment income (5)

250 Pension interest on net defined benefit liability 222

2,609

(SURPLUS) / DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR ON HRA 

SERVICES 4,413

 

Page 227



 

 

88 
 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 

2020/21 MOVEMENT ON THE HRA STATEMENT 2021/22 2021/22

£'000 £'000 £'000

(992) Balance on the HRA at the end of the previous year (992)

2,609 Surplus / deficit for the year on the HRA Income and 

Expenditure Account 4,413

(2,855) Adjustments between accounting basis and funding 

basis under regulations (detailed below) (4,157)

(246) Net (increase)/decrease before transfers to /(from) 

reserves 256

246 Transfers to / (from) Reserves (256)

0 Increase in year on HRA 0

(992) Balance on the HRA at the end of the current year (992)

2020/21 2021/22 2021/22

£'000 £'000 £'000

Items included in the HRA Income and 

Expenditure Account but excluded from the 

movement on HRA Balance for the year

(2,227) Gain/(Loss) on the disposal of HRA Non-Current 

Assets (3,197)

(301) Contributions from the Capital Receipts Reserve to 

finance payments to the Governments Housing Capital 

Receipts Pool (278)

196 Capital Expenditure funded by the HRA 0

(39) Net charges to Accumulated Absences Account 28

(843) Net charges made for retirement benefits in 

accordance with IAS19 (1,059)

3,027 Depreciation transfer to Major Repairs Reserve 3,239

(3,038) Depreciation transfer from Capital Adjustment 

Account (3,245)

(3,225) (4,512)

Items not included in the HRA Income and 

Expenditure Account but included in the 

movement on HRA Balance for the year

370 Employers contributions payable to the Local 

Government Pension Scheme and retirement benefits 

payable directly to pensioners 355

370 355

(2,855)

Net additional amount required by statute to be 

credited to the HRA Balance for the year (4,157)

ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING AND FUNDING BASES UNDER REGULATIONS

 

Page 228



 

 

89 
 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 

NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) 
 
 
1. Local Government and Housing Act 1989 
 
The Housing Revenue Account reflects a statutory obligation to maintain a separate revenue account 
for the provision of local authority housing in accordance with the Local Government and Housing Act 
1989. It includes the credit and debit items to be taken into account in determining the surplus or 
deficit on the HRA for the year. 
 
2. Value of Housing Revenue Account Property 
 
This analysis shows the net value and number of types of dwelling within the HRA. Council dwellings 
are valued at their Economic Use Value for Social Housing. 
 

Number Value Number Value

£'000 £'000

Operational Assets

2,922 146,294 Standard Dwellings 2,904 153,727

182 5,666 Sheltered Housing 182 8,381

504 1,163 Garages and Parking Spaces 504 1,163

5 43 Operational Property 5 42

1 33 Community Asset 1 33

3,614 153,199 3,596 163,346

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

 
 
The HRA asset base is valued annually – the 2021/22 stock valuation has been carried out by Savills 
(UK) Ltd on behalf of the Council and has been guided by the ‘Stock Valuation for Resource 
Accounting:  Guidance for Valuers – 2016’ published by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government in November 2016. The housing stock for 2021/22 has been valued at 1 April 2022. 
 
The table below shows the vacant possession value of dwellings within the HRA, this being the value 
as if they were sold on the open market with vacant possession and free from any legal or regulatory 
tenancies. The difference between the vacant possession value and the balance sheet value 
represents the economic cost of providing Council Housing at less than market rents. 
 
 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

£'000 £'000

459,321 Dwellings 490,076

1,163 Other Land & Buildings 1,163

460,484 491,239

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 229



 

 

90 
 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
3. Housing Stock 
 
The Council’s housing stock, including shared ownership properties, was made up as follows: 
 
 
 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

Numbers

1,248 Houses 1,233

428 Bungalows 428

1,428 Flats 1,422

3,104 3,083

Analysis of bedroom type

1,534 1 bedroom 1,529

544 2 bedroom 538

941 3 bedroom 931

85 4 or more bedrooms 85

3,104 3,083

Analysis of stock by age

252 Pre 1945 252

1,270 1945 - 1964 1,259

619 1965 - 1974 616

963 1974 onwards 956

3,104 3,083

 
 
4. Major Repairs Reserve 
 
The major repairs reserve is restricted to being applied towards new capital expenditure, the 
repayment of HRA debt and meeting liabilities under credit arrangements.  
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

- Balance at 1 April 812

3,027 HRA Depreciation 3,239

(2,215) HRA Capital Financed (3,073)

812 Balance at 31 March 978

 
 
5. Housing Repairs 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

7,292 Expenditure on Repairs 7,905

3,303 Of which planned 4,274

45.3% % of Planned / Response 54.1%

 
 
£3.073 million of the 2021/22 expenditure (£2.216 million in 2020/21) on repairs was capital 
expenditure. The main categories of expenditure were rewiring, disabled adaptations, kitchens, 
bathrooms and central heating installations. 
 

Page 230



 

 

91 
 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

6. Capital Expenditure 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

2,216 HRA Properties - capital repairs & maintenance 3,073

538 Purchase of Properties 97

- Affordable Housing - New Build Programme 146

2,754 3,316

 
 
 
7. Capital Financing 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

2,216 Major Repairs Reserve 3,073

538 Capital Receipts Reserves 243

2,754 3,316

 
 
 
8. Capital Receipts 
 
Capital receipts from the sale of housing revenue account property in the year were as follows:  
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

537 Right to Buy sales 1,839

537 1,839

 
 
 
9. Depreciation and Impairments of Assets 
 
Depreciation charges for Council Dwellings are shown below.  
 
There was no revaluation loss or impairment charge to the HRA in respect of reductions in the value 
the Council’s housing stock which could not be offset against a Revaluation Reserve balance in either 
2020/21 or 2021/22. 

 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

3,027 Depreciation of Council Dwellings 3,239

3,027 3,239

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 231



 

 

92 
 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
10. Rent Arrears 

 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

302 Current Tenants 242

155 Former Tenants 200

10 Garages 11

467 Total Rent Arrears 453

(14,406) Gross Rent Income (14,614)

3.2% Arrears as a % of Gross Rent Income 3.1%

 
 
The bad debt provision for all HRA debts at 31 March 2022 is £477,100 (£464,100 at 31 March 2021) 
 
 
11. Pensions 
  
The following transactions have been included in the HRA Income and Expenditure Statement and 
the Adjustments between Accounting and Funding bases under Regulations to the HRA Balance with 
no net residual cost to the HRA.   
 
 

2020/21 2021/22

£'000 £'000

Net Cost of Services

223 Current service costs and past service costs 482

Surplus or (Deficit) for the year on HRA Services

250 Pension interest on net defined benefit liability 222

Statement of Movement on the HRA Balance

(843) Reversal of net charges made for retirement benefits in accordance 

with IAS19

(1,059)

Actual amount charged against Rents

370 Employers’ contributions payable to scheme 355

 
 
 
 

Page 232



 

 

93 
 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2020/21

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Business 

Rates Council Tax Total

INCOME

(48,613) Council Tax - (51,496) (51,496)

(481)

- 8 8

(9,464) Income collectable from Business Ratepayers (14,143) - (14,143)

(58,558) (14,143) (51,488) (65,631)

EXPENDITURE

148 Central Government (3,055) - (3,055)

95 Gosport Borough Council (2,444) (3) (2,447)

(99) Hampshire County Council (550) (19) (569)

(21) Hampshire Police and Crime Commissioners - (3) (3)

(4) Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority (61) (1) (62)

Precepts, Shares and Demands

8,134 Central Government 8,179 - 8,179

12,746 Gosport Borough Council 6,543 6,300 12,843

36,244 Hampshire County Council 1,472 36,088 37,560

5,718 Hampshire Police and Crime Commissioners - 6,052 6,052

2,030 Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority 164 1,882 2,046

64,991 10,248 50,296 60,544

Charges to the Collection Fund

757 Write off of uncollectable amounts 1 321 322

648 (62) 23 (39)

(1,010) - - 0

75 Cost of collection 78 - 78

869 Transitional protection payments 127 - 127

- Disregarded Amounts 72 - 72

1,339 216 344 560

66,330 TOTAL EXPENDITURE 10,464 50,640 61,104

7,772 (Surplus) / Deficit arising during the year (3,679) (848) (4,527)

MOVEMENTS ON THE COLLECTION FUND

(1,098) (Surplus) / Deficit at 1 April 6,364 310 6,674

7,772 (Surplus) / Deficit for the year (3,679) (848) (4,527)

6,674 (Surplus) / Deficit at 31 March 2,685 (538) 2,147

Increase / (Decrease) in Provision for Appeals

COLLECTION FUND
----------2021/22----------

Apportionment of Previous Year Estimated 

Collection Fund Surplus / (Deficit)

Increase / (Decrease) in Bad Debt Provisions

Council Tax Benefits - Discretionary Hardship 

Payments

Page 233



 

 

94 
 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND 

 
 
1.  The Collection Fund 
 

The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing 
authorities to maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of the 
billing authority in relation to the collection from taxpayers and businesses and distribution to 
local authorities and the Government of council tax and non-domestic rates 
 
 

2. Council Tax 
 

Council Tax income is calculated by estimating the amount of income required from the 
Collection Fund for Hampshire County Council, Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority, the Police 
and Crime Commissioners for Hampshire and Gosport Borough Council.  This is then divided by 
the tax base and multiplied by the ratio shown below to give the council tax for each band of 
property.  

 
The Council’s tax base is the number of chargeable dwellings in each valuation band (adjusted 
for dwellings where discounts apply) converted to an equivalent number of band D dwellings, 
calculated as follows: 
 

Band Estimated Ratio Equivalent Band D

Number of Dwellings

Taxable

Properties

after 

Discounts

Disabled 6.30 5/9 3.5

A 3,887.90 6/9 2,591.9

B 10,361.60 7/9 8,059.0

C 7,736.10 8/9 6,876.5

D 4,190.20 9/9 4,190.2

E 1,795.00 11/9 2,193.9

F 1,306.00 13/9 1,886.5

G 290.50 15/9 484.2

H 27.30 18/9 54.5

26,340.2

Plus MOD contributions in lieu 777.7

Less allowance for losses on collection (395.1)

Tax Base for 2021/22 26,722.8

Tax base for 2020/21 27,039.1

 
 

  
The Band D Council Tax for a Gosport property in 2021/22 was £235.75 (£230.75 in 2020/21) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 234



 

 

95 
 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
Distribution of the Council Tax surplus or deficit 

 
Council tax is set before the start of financial year on the basis of estimates that would result in 
the Collection Fund balancing to zero. Inevitable changes in yield and assumptions about 
collectability, including variations in the tax base, during the year cause a surplus or deficit to 
arise on the fund at year end. 
 
For Council Tax, the year-end surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund is distributed between 
billing and precepting authorities on the basis of estimates of the year-end balance made by the 
preceding 15 January. 
 

Estimated 

2020/21 

(surplus) / 

deficit

Actual 

(surplus) / 

deficit       

31- Mar -21 Council Tax

Estimated 

2021/22 

(surplus) / 

deficit

Actual 

(surplus) / 

deficit       

31- Mar -22

(shared with 

preceptors 

2021/22)

(shared with 

preceptors 

2022/23 and 

future years)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

134 222 Hampshire County Council (342) (386)

7 12 Hampshire Fire & Rescue Authority (18) (20)

22 37 Hampshire Police and Crime Commissioners (57) (65)

24 39 Gosport Borough Council (60) (67)

187 310 (477) (538)

 
The difference between the estimated (surplus) / deficit for 2021/22 and the actual (surplus) / 
deficit will be shared with preceptors between 2022/23 and 2023/24. 
 
 

3. Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) 
 

From 1 April 2013, the national system of redistributing centrally pooled business rates to Local 
Authorities was replaced by a new system of Business Rates Retention whereby a proportion of 
the business rates collected is retained locally by billing and precepting authorities and the 
balance is paid over to central government. 
 
There is, therefore, the potential reward of additional income from an enhanced business rates 
base in the Borough. However, there is also the increased financial risk due to non-collection and 
the volatility of the NDR tax base – particularly due to factors outside of the Council’s control 
such as successful rating appeals to the Valuation Office which may be backdated. 
 
Non-Domestic or business rates are levied on businesses by reference to their rateable value 
multiplied by the NDR multiplier for the year which is set nationally by central government. The 
government has undertaken a Business Rates revaluation exercise that came into effect on the 
1st April 2017, at revaluation all properties are given a new rateable value and the NDR multiplier 
is revised. 

 
The standard non-domestic rating multiplier for the year was 51.2p pence (51.2p in 2020/21). 
The total non-domestic rateable value at the year-end was £43,376,322 (£43,423,252 in 
2020/21).  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 235



 

 

96 
 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Business Rates collected are then apportioned by shares to the following bodies as set out in 
legislation. 

 

Central Government 50% 

Gosport Borough Council 40% 

Hampshire County Council 9% 

Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority 1% 

 
 
Distribution of the Non Domestic Rates surplus or deficit 
 
Estimates for business rates to be collected in the following financial year are required to be 
made in the January before the year starts. As with Council Tax, there will be differences between 
the estimated and actual business rates collected leading to a Non-Domestic Rates surplus or 
deficit position within the Collection Fund at the year end. The year-end surplus or deficit on the 
Collection Fund is distributed between billing authority, precepting authorities and central 
government on the basis of estimates of the year-end balance made by the preceding 31 
January. 
 
This is then apportioned to the relevant precepting authorities, including the government, in the 
proportions set out above. 
  

Estimated 

2020/21 

(surplus) / 

deficit

Actual 

(surplus) / 

deficit       

31- Mar -21 Business Rates

Estimated 

2021/22 

(surplus) / 

deficit

Actual 

(surplus) / 

deficit       

31- Mar -22

(shared with 

preceptors 

2021/22)

(shared with 

preceptors 

2022/23 and 

future years)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

3,055 3,182 Government 1,892 1,342

550 573 Hampshire County Council 341 242

61 64 Hampshire Fire & Rescue Authority 38 27

2,444 2,545 Gosport Borough Council 1,514 1,074

6,110 6,364 3,785 2,685

 
 
The deficit at 31st March 2022 includes an exceptional balance of £2.430 million (£6.403 million at 
31st March 2021) which relates to business rates waived and not collected due to government 
support for businesses during the Covid-19 pandemic by introducing an expanded retail discount 
and nursery scheme. Local authorities will be fully compensated via Covid-19 S31 business rate 
relief grant for their lost business rate income and this grant will fund the exceptional deficit in 
2022/23.  
 
The difference between the estimated (surplus) / deficit for 2021/22 and the actual (surplus) / 
deficit will be shared with preceptors and central government between 2022/23 and 2023/24. 
 
 

4. Accounting for the Collection Fund balance 
 

The Code requires that the Council Tax and National Domestic Rating Income included in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account is the accrued income for the year rather than 
the amount included under regulations comprising for  
 

 Council Tax - the approved annual precept plus or minus the estimate of the Collection Fund 
surplus or deficit made at the previous 15 January 

Page 236



 

 

97 
 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 National Non-Domestic Rates - the relevant share of the estimated business rates to be 
collected as included within Council’s approved budget plus or minus the estimate of the 
Collection Fund surplus or deficit made at the previous 31 January.  
 

The difference between the accrued amount and the amount required to be included under 
regulations is adjusted through the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and as a reconciling 
item in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
 
The Code recognises that the collection of Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Rates is in 
substance an agency arrangement with the cash collected by the billing authority belonging 
proportionately to the billing authority, major preceptors and bodies receiving a share of the 
NDR. There is therefore a debtor / creditor position between the billing authority, major 
preceptors and bodies receiving a share of the Council Tax and NDR at the year end and this 
position is recognised in their respective balance sheets.  

 
The following Collection Fund balances relating to Gosport Borough Council are included in the 
Council’s balance sheet. 

 

----------31-Mar-21---------- ----------31-Mar-22----------

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Busines

s Rates

Council 

Tax

Total Busines

s Rates

Council 

Tax

Total

Debtors / (Creditors)

- 2,614 2,614 Hampshire County Council - 2,406 2,406

- 137 137 Hampshire Fire & Rescue Authority - 131 131

- 438 438 Hampshire Police and Crime 

Commissioners - 409 409

231 552 783 Tax Payers 124 610 734

384 - 384 Hampshire County Council 36 - 36

43 - 43 Hampshire Fire & Rescue Authority 4 - 4

(99) (134) (233) Tax Payers (66) (126) (192)

2,131 - 2,131 Central Government 200 200

Provisions

(972) - (972) Business Rates Appeals (972) - (972)

Unusable Reserves

2,546 39 2,585 Collection Fund Adjustment Account

1,074 (67) 1,007

4,264 3,646 7,910 400 3,363 3,763

 

 
The Council’s Unusable Reserves figures above exclude the Enterprise Zone £69,077 credit 
(£1,933 credit in 2020/21) 

 
 

  

Page 237



 

98 
 

 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

 
GOSPORT BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2021/22 

 
 
Scope of responsibility 
 
Gosport Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law 
and proper standards; that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for; and is used economically, 
efficiently and effectively.  Gosport Borough Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to 
make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having 
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
In discharging this overall responsibility, Gosport Borough Council is responsible for putting in place proper 
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, and which 
includes arrangements for the management of risk.  
 
This statement explains how Gosport Borough Council has complied with the Code and also meets the 
requirements of Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 
 
The purpose of the governance framework 
 
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by which the 
authority is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the 
community.  It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider 
whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services. 
 
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a 
reasonable level.  It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore 
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.  The system of internal control is based 
on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Gosport Borough 
Council’s policies, aims and objectives to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact 
should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 
 
 
 
The governance framework 
Gosport Borough Council's Governance Framework derives from the updated 2016 publication 'Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government'. The Framework identified 7 principles that should underpin the governance 
arrangements in a Local Authority.   

Page 238



 

99 
 

 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

 
 
 
Each principle will be outlined below and how the Council meets them: 

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule 

of law 

 

Constitution 

The Constitution sets out how the Borough Council operates, the roles and responsibilities of officers and 

members, how decisions are made and the procedures that are followed to ensure that these are efficient, 

transparent and accountable to local people. The constitution is managed by the Borough Solicitor/Monitoring 

Officer and was subject to a review to update the Member Code of Conduct and arrangements for dealing with 

complaints about Members during 2021/22. The Constitution is often a working document to enable changes 

made in relation to boards and Council decisions. Further amendments will be required following the change in 

administration in May 2022 to reflect changes to the board structure of the Council. This will be covered within 

the Annual Governance Statement for 2022/23. 

 

Key Statutory officers 

Head of Paid Service - Section 4 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 requires a Local Authority 

appoint a Head of Paid Service and provide that officer with such staff, accommodation and other resources as 

are, in his opinion, sufficient to allow his duties under this section to be performed. For Gosport Borough 

Council this officer is David Williams, Chief Executive. 

Monitoring Officer - An officer, appointed under section 5 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, who 

is required to report to the Council where it appears to them the authority has done, or is about to do, anything 

C. Defining outcomes 
in terms of sustainable 
economic, social and 

environmental benefits

D. Determining the 
interventions 

necessary to optimize 
the achievement of 

the intended 
outcomes

E. Developing the 
entity's capacity. 

Including the capability 
of its leadership and the 

individuals within it

F. Managing risks and 
performance through 

robust internal control and 
strong public financial 

management

G. Implementing 
good practices in 

transparency, 
reporting, and audit, 
to deliver effective 

accountability

A. Behaving with integrity, 

demonstrating strong 

commitment to ethical 

values, and respecting the 

rule of law 

B. Ensuring openness and 

comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement 

Page 239



 

100 
 

 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

which would contravene the law or which would constitute maladministration. For Gosport Borough Council this 

is the Borough Solicitor, Paul Grant.  

S151 Officer - As required with the Local Government Act 1972, s151, every local authority shall make 

arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs and shall secure that one of their officers has 

responsibility for the administration of those affairs. For Gosport Borough Council, this responsibility is that of 

the Borough Treasurer, Chris Ward.  

 

Councillors 

Local government is accountable and transparent in a number of ways. Elected local authority members are 
democratically accountable to their local area and this gives them a clear leadership role in building sustainable 
communities. All members must account to their communities for the decisions they have taken and the 
rationale behind those decisions.  

 

Councillor Board Structure 

As the Council chose to adopt ‘alternative arrangements’ following publication of the Local Government Act 

2000, a Board/Committee structure is in place and each party is represented proportionally on each Board and 

Committee according to the number of seats held. Consequently the Council enjoys a high level of transparency 

when it comes to decision making and any Member of the Council is afforded the right to sit on the Boards if 

they are nominated for such a position at the commencement of the Municipal Year. 

 

All decision making reports are structured and the contents demonstrate all relevant information in order to 

reach an informed decision. 

 

A report on Governance was taken to Council in May 2016 to review the arrangements for the discharge of the 

Council’s Functions and proposed changes to the Boards and Committees. The composition remained 

unchanged for 2021/22: 

 

Composition of Boards 

  

The following is the composition of the Boards;- 

  

  

Board/Sub Board Number of 

Members 

  

Policy and Organisation Board 12 

Community Board 12 

Economic Development Board 12 

Regulatory Board 12 

Standards and Governance Committee 12 

Housing Board 13 

Climate Change Board 12 

 

  

Decisions are made by Boards and Sub-Boards of the Council with the following having the responsibility for the 

majority of decision making: 

  

               Council 

               Policy and Organisation Board 

               Community Board 

               Economic Development Board 

               Regulatory Board (Licensing Sub-Boards) 

Page 240



 

101 
 

 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

 

 

 

As the Regulatory Board deals only with planning applications and the Licensing Sub-Boards with Licensing 

matters the law does not allow their work to be scrutinised by other Councillors. This is because the decisions 

made by these Boards are already subject to an appeal process, either through an independent inspector or the 

courts. 

 

In addition to the Boards, there is also a Standards and Governance Committee in place to promote and 

maintain the highest standards of conduct by members and officers of the Council. The Committee undertakes 

the core functions of an Audit Committee identified in CIPFA’s practical guidance. Additionally, the Monitoring 

Officer is enabled to convene an Initial Filtering Panel with three Councillors of the Standards and Governance 

Committee and/or the Council's Independent Person to determine allegations of failure to comply with the 

Council’s Code of Conduct, in accordance with the Council’s arrangements for dealing with such allegations. 

 

Officers of the Council 

Officers give advice, implement decisions and manage the day-to-day delivery of its services. Some officers 

have specific duties to ensure that the Council acts within the law and uses its resources wisely. A protocol 

contained in the Constitution governs the relationship between officers and members of the Council. In certain 

circumstances, senior and other officers of the Council can make decisions under delegated authority, as 

detailed in the Borough’s Constitution. 

 

The Council Management Team (CMT), consisting of Chief Executive, Assistant Chief Executive, and 

Monitoring Officer, Head of Finance, Head of Benefits Procurement and Insurance, Head of Streetscene, Head 

of Housing, Chief Internal Auditor and Head of IT, meets periodically to develop policy and strategic issues 

commensurate with the Council’s strategic priorities. Members of CMT meet collectively and individually with 

the Leader of the Council and other leading members of the Administration to consider new policies and 

strategies as well as managing, monitoring and reviewing existing policy and strategy. The Leader holds 

frequent meetings with the Chief Executive Officer, Assistant Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer to review 

progress in achieving the Council’s strategic priorities for action, performance management and finance forward 

planning for major issues and projects. 

 

Information that would be of benefit to other members of the Council staff is disseminated through regular 

meetings between Line Managers and the relevant Senior Manager, and then through to the rest of the Council 

via periodic section meetings. 

 

Information on policy, priorities, procedures and current issues is also disseminated to all staff through the Chief 

Executive (email) and staffroom (email) communications at least monthly. 

 

The Council has also adopted a number of codes and protocols that will govern both member and officer 

activities. These include: 

 

 Code of Conduct for Members of Gosport Borough Council 

 Code of Conduct for the Guidance of Employees 

 Code of Conduct for Councillors in the Regulatory Process  

 Protocol for Councillor/Officer Relationships 

 Whistleblowing Policy 

 

 

It is the shared responsibility of the Chief Officers [primarily the Chief Executive, Assistant Chief Executive, 

Monitoring Officer and Borough Treasurer] and the Human Resource section to ensure compliance with 

established policies, procedures, laws and regulations. Issues of conduct and governance must often be 

Page 241



 

102 
 

 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

considered by the Standards and Governance Committee, in which case a report and recommendations are 

prepared by the Monitoring Officer. All posts within the authority have a detailed job specification and training 

needs are identified on an on-going basis and also through the Personal Development Scheme. 

 

Boundary Review 

The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) informed the Council that they would be 

undertaking a statutory review of the electoral arrangements with regard to the Electoral Ward boundaries at an 

informal meeting with The Leader of the Council, the Chief Executive and the Electoral Registration Officer in 

January 2020. 

The LGBCE stated they are 'conducting a review of Gosport Borough Council (‘the Council’) as the value of 

each vote in borough elections varies depending on where you live in Gosport. Some councillors currently 

represent many more or fewer voters than others. This is ‘electoral inequality’. Our aim is to create ‘electoral 

equality’, where votes are as equal as possible, ideally within 10% of being exactly equal.' 

This electoral review is being carried out to ensure that: 

• The wards in Gosport are in the best possible places to help the Council carry out its responsibilities 

effectively. 

• The number of voters represented by each councillor is approximately the same across the borough. 

 

Following the review the LGBCE, the following recommendations were made 

 Gosport should be represented by 28 councillors, six fewer than there are now. 

 Gosport should have 14 wards, three fewer than there are now. 

 The boundaries of all wards should change except Lee East and Lee West wards. 

 

The recommendations were consulted on until 30th August 2021. Following the consultation, the 

recommendations of the Boundary Review were accepted and were put in place for the 5th May 2022 Local 

Elections. 

 
B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
 
Complaints 
Gosport Council has a clear and publicised 3 stage complaints procedure in place to allow the public an 
opportunity to raise an issue where they feel the Council has not performed the service is should have. In 
addition, should a complaint not be resolved within the process, the option to raise the issue with the Local 
Government Ombudsman is also advertised. GBC report statistical information on complaints relating to the 
Ombudsman. 
 
Partnerships 
Partnerships allow the Council to work with organisations, other local authorities and groups to aid in the 
delivery of the Councils services and objectives. The Borough has strong links with Hampshire County Council 
in relation to education within the Borough and highways management. In addition GBC also has formal 
partnership agreement with Fareham Borough Council in relation to Environmental Health, Licensing and 
Building Control Engagement. In addition, Gosport has a partnerships with Portsmouth City Council in relation 
to the sharing of senior management and services such as HR, Communications and Internal Audit. 
A recent audit review has highlighted that currently there is no best practice guidance on how to monitor and 
review the effectiveness of Local Authority partnerships and as such, GBC will be looking to liaise with the Local 
Government Association (LGA) in determining best practice for the ongoing monitoring of performance for Local 
Authority Partnerships. 
Gosport also works with local organisations such as Citizens Advice and Gosport Voluntary Action to ensure 
further engagement with the local area. 
 
 
 
Consultations 
The Council frequently consults residents both where there is a legal duty to consult and also on matters of 
particular interest including, but not limited to planned developments within the Borough. 
 

Page 242



 

103 
 

 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

 
The Council makes decisions at public meetings of its Boards and Committees. Members of the public are able 
to address the Council’s Boards and Committees using the Council’s process for public questions and 
deputations available in the Council’s Constitution and on the Council’s website. During 2020/21 all Council 
meetings were held remotely due to the Covid 19 Pandemic and therefore the meetings were live streamed on 
the internet to ensure the meetings were still deemed as public. Following Government guidance, the meetings 
of the Council's boards resumed being held in public for all of the 2021/22 financial year.. 
 
 
The Council complies with the Freedom of Information Act (2000) and requests can be submitted electronically 
or in person to be considered by the service unit concerned within 20 working days. 
 
 

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits & D. 
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes  
 
Financial Planning 
Over the past 10 years (since 2011/12), Central Government funding to Councils has reduced by over 40% in 
real terms. The Council has a strong track record of being able to live within its means, make savings and 
secure financial resilience. 
 
The medium term financial strategy is designed to meet the following criteria "In year" expenditure matches "in 
year" income over the medium term whilst providing sustainable high quality public services, improving the 
overall prosperity of residents and businesses and ensuring adequate financial resilience.  
Over the next 3 years, the Council has a forecast budget deficit to remedy amounting to £1.7m (+/- £0.5m 
arising from future uncertainty). This compares to a forecast deficit of £2.1m estimated in February 2021 and 
reflects the following: (i) An improved position regarding future estimates of Pension obligations (£0.3m) ii) An 
improved position for Waste Recycling Income (£0.3m) iii) The rolling 3 year forecast moving on a further year 
to now incorporate 2025/26 
 
However, it is important to note, as last year, there remains significant uncertainty regarding the future forecast 

which is estimated could vary between +/- £0.5m arising from the following:  The outcome of the Fair Funding 

Review  The outcome of the Business Rate Retention review  The legacy impact of Covid 19, and in 
particular, its effect on Council Tax Income and Business Rates Income. 
 
Financial Management Code 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (“CIPFA”) has published a new Financial 
Management Code for authorities to adhere to. The CIPFA Financial Management Code 2019 (FM Code) is 
designed to support good practice in financial management and to assist local authorities in demonstrating their 
financial sustainability. The FM Code sets out the standards of financial management for local authorities, 
based on broad principles. It does not prescribe the financial management processes that local authorities 
should adopt but requires each authority to demonstrate that its processes satisfy the principles of good 
financial management. 2020/21 was the ‘shadow’ year for the implementation of the FM Code with the first year 
of compliance being 2021/22.  
  
The Council will undertake a rapid review against the new FM Code in order to identify any areas for 
development.   
 
Climate change 
In 2020 Gosport Borough Council voted to implement a Climate Change Board. This board has the 
responsibility to formulate policies and initiatives in relation to climate change.  
 
 
Council Plan 
The Council’s plan on a page sets out Gosport Borough Council’s mission and core values (ambitious, 
supportive, collaborative, adaptable and efficient). The  Plan also identifies the Council’s strategic priorities 
(raise aspirations, enhance the environment, develop the economy, empower our residents and deliver effective 
services) which are based on a combination of factors including what matters most to local people, national 
priorities set by the Government and the challenges from Gosport’s changing social, economic and 

Page 243



 

104 
 

 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

environmental context.  The Council continues to keep its plan relevant and up to date; the plan has been 
developed through engagement with both the Council Management Team and officers of the Authority. 
 
The Council also has a Local Plan 2011-2029. The Local Plan sets out the Council’s proposals for the 
development and use of land from 2011 – 2029, and forms the basis for dealing with planning applications. The 
Local Plan has gone through several stages to adoption and was supported by an evidence base and 
a Sustainability Appraisal. In accordance with Government guidance the Council is required to keep its Local 
Plan up to date.  The Council has now started to prepare a revised Local Plan to cover the period to 2038. 
 
 
 
The Council’s Mission statement: 
 
“Build on our strengths to empower and support our communications and ensure the potential of the 
borough and all of our residents is achieved” 
 
The Council has continued to evolve its approach to performance management by promoting a transparent and 
open performance culture amongst Section Heads, who are responsible for managing performance on a day-to-
day basis.   Whilst in transition, key outcome based performance management measurements have been 
retained whilst new and relevant measures are being further developed.  Section Heads are accountable for 
performance to the Council's Management Team and to elected members.     
 
  

 

E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it  

 

Recruitment & training 

The Council has a robust recruitment process in place which includes tailored applications and interviews with 

the view to ensuring the right candidates are selected for the roles advertised. The Council also has an 

induction process linked to essential training and mandatory policies which must be read and understood by all 

new starters.  

Gosport Borough Council also has access to the Portsmouth Learning Gateway (PLG) which has a host of 

Local Authority specific training courses for all staff to access as and when required.  

The Council also utilises its partnership with Portsmouth City Council to recruit and employee individuals on the 

apprenticeship scheme, utilising the Government funded Apprenticeship Levy. Apprenticeships provide an 

opportunity for us to develop our workforce and provide employment and training opportunities for people in our 

community. As at March 2022 GBC has 4 apprentices and 1 member of staff studying an apprenticeship as part 

of their existing role. 

The Council plans to continue to recruit fresh talent into the workplace as well as looking at career pathway 

opportunities for existing staff. 

 

A designated Members’ Portal covers a wide range of useful materials and guidance. This is available for 

Members to view on the intranet system. This resource enables the Council to better provide for Members the 

opportunity to locate important stored information and data. Within the Portal is the Members’ Information Pack 

which provides Members with detailed corporate, strategic and financial information as well as relevant policies 

and other useful information such as floor plans and complaints guidance.. 

 

New Members are provided with an induction training programme to prepare them for their new role, 

commencing with an induction evening hosted by the Chief Executive, Assistant Chief Executive, Borough 

Solicitor and Borough Treasurer that covers topics such as the role of the councillor, finance, standards, code of 

conduct and major projects. Briefings such as those on planning and licensing issues are held throughout the 

year to correlate with the Board cycle. 

 

There is a wide range of further training opportunities available to Members to increase their knowledge base 
from skills development (e.g. chairing skills, dealing with challenging people and media and image) to need-to-

Page 244

https://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/your-council/council-services/planning-section/local-development-framework/gosport-borough-local-plan-2036/


 

105 
 

 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

know subjects (e.g. Code of Conduct, planning local government finance) detailed in the ‘ Training 
Opportunities for Members’ booklet within the Members Information Pack.  
 

 

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial 
management & G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit, to deliver 
effective accountability 

 

Risk Management 

The Council is committed to embedding a culture of risk awareness within everyday activities such that formal 

processes and unnecessary documentation can be minimised, but that risk management remains an effective 

part of the governance framework. 

GBC approved a new risk management policy in 2020 (reviewed in 2022) which aimed to embed risk 

management throughout the Authority with all sections taking ownership of their risks. Periodically, section risk 

registers are reviewed and analysed by a Risk Management Group to determine the risks which will form the 

Council's strategic risk register. The Risk Management Group consists of the Assistant Chief Executive, 

Borough Solicitor, Chief Internal Auditor and Senior Auditor. 

 

The Corporate Governance Group, consisting of the Chief Executive, Assistant Chief Executive, Monitoring 

Officer and Chief Internal Auditor, deep dive on the corporate risk register to challenge the risk level, mitigation 

and any subsequent actions on a quarterly basis. 

 

Value for money 

The Council has put significant focus on improving procurement processes within the organisation which has 

included the implementation of a new electronic procurement system. In addition, the Council had its Contract 

Procedure Rules (CPRs) reviewed by a specialist at CIPFA to ensure they are robust in ensuring compliance 

with relevant procurement legislation. These currently remain in draft for 2021/22. A 2019 internal audit has 

highlighted areas for improvement in relation to the adherence to the Council's CPRs and suitable actions have 

been agreed to address this issue. 

 

External Auditors reviewed progress against the action plan and noted that  

'Action plans have been developed since the publication of the report.  However, the extent of progress has not 

been as we would have expected for an issue of this significance. 

 Two were rated ‘Complete’  

 Seven were ‘In Progress’ 

 Four had ‘Not Yet Started’ 

 

Whilst it appears progress is being made to address compliance and contract management within its 

procurement process, the supporting evidence is still somewhat limited.' 

The council continues to work on the actions from the initial audit. A further audit will be conducted by the 

Internal Audit Team in 2022/23 as part of the audit plan. 

 

 

Financial management 

The Council maintains an objective and professional relationship with their appointed external auditors (Ernst & 
Young LLP) and statutory inspectors, as evidenced by the various reports being presented to the Standards 
and Governance Committee (available on the Council’s website). The Council uses the evidence and 
recommendations contained in those reviews to support performance improvement and risk management. 
 

The Financial Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure Rules are under constant review and these are 

incorporated in the Council’s Constitution 

 

Data Management 

Page 245



 

106 
 

 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

The organisation is a registered data controller with the Information Commissioners Officers and has both a 

Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO) and a Data Protection Officer (DPO). In 2020 the Information 

Governance Group was setup, including the aforementioned officers, to tighten controls on data protection and 

ensure continued compliance with the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and Freedom of Information 

Act. All staff are required to sign acceptance of the Council's information governance policy and data protection 

forms part of the induction process for all employees. 

Transparency agenda. On an annual basis, from 2021, the SIRO will report to the Standards and Governance 

Committee, information on the Council's effectiveness regarding information governance including any data 

breaches which may have occurred.  

 

 

Review of effectiveness 
 
Gosport Borough Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its 
governance framework including the system of internal control.  The review of effectiveness is informed by the 
work of the senior managers within the authority who have responsibility for the development and maintenance 
of the governance environment, the Chief Internal Auditor's annual report, and also by comments made by the 
external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. 
 
 

The process that has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the governance framework 

includes: 

 

1. The Monitoring Officer has a duty to monitor and review the operation of the Constitution to ensure its 

aims and principles are given full effect.  The Council reviews the Constitution regularly to incorporate 

any necessary changes.   

 

2. Internal Audit is responsible for monitoring the quality and effectiveness of systems of internal control.  
The reporting process for Internal Audit requires a report of each audit to be submitted to the relevant 
service manager.  The report includes 'agreed actions' for any issues/risks that have been identified. 
These issues/risks are graded as Critical, High, Medium or Low. All critical risk issues/risks are followed 
up within 3 months of the final report being issued. If a high risk issue is raised, the audit will be 
followed up in the next financial year.   
 

3. An Internal Audit Annual Report is taken to the Standards & Governance Committee (as per the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015) and this provides the overall opinion on the Council's internal 
control environment.  

 
 
The Standards & Governance Committee also received Internal Audit monitoring reports throughout 2021/22. 
 
The Council entered into an arrangement with Portsmouth City Council for shared Senior Management primarily 
as a means to address the future financial challenges faced by the Council.  The roles and responsibilities of 
the shared posts will continue to include those relating to the Governance of this Council in accordance to the 
policies and procedures of this Council.  
 
The shared management arrangement has brought costs savings (through the reduction in the cost of Senior 
Management) and improved operational resilience with the ability to call on resources and expertise from 
Portsmouth City Council which otherwise were not readily available.  
 
The Senior Management Team have been charged by the Administration to review the effectiveness of all of 
the Council's activities on a continuous basis.  Service reviews are ongoing across the Council focused on 
ensuring that customer demands are met with the changing landscape and working practices enforced by the 
global pandemic. Ensuring processes are effective, and that services have adequate capacity and resilience. 
These are especially prevalent since the Covid-19 pandemic which has required services to work remotely and 
flexibly to meet the current demands. 

 

Page 246



 

107 
 

 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

 

The financial management of the Authority is conducted in accordance with the financial rules set out in the 

Constitution and underpinned with Financial Procedure Rules. The Council has designated the Borough 

Treasurer as Chief Finance Officer complying with  the  CIPFA statement on the Role of the Chief Financial 

Officer in Local Government (2010) requiring the Chief Finance Officer to report directly to the Chief Executive 

and to be a member of the ‘Management Team’.  

 

The Standards and Governance Committee promotes, monitors and enforces probity and high ethical standards 

amongst the Members, as well as providing a vessel for audit, risk and compliance issues to be considered. All 

Governance reviews and the results of audits are considered by the Standards and Governance Committee 

 

Annual Audit Opinion  
During 2021/22, 22 audit reviews, 6 Grant sign offs & 5 full follow up reviews were undertaken and completed. 

85% of the audits undertaken achieved a level of ‘Full Assurance’ or ‘Reasonable Assurance and 15% of the 

audits completed resulted in a 'Limited Assurance' level. This is an increase of 13% of Full or Reasonable 

Assurance being given for audits on the previous year and therefore a reduction of 9% in 'Limited Assurance' 

results.  

The number of High risk exceptions raised has reduced from 19 to 17 this year and the number of Medium risk 

exceptions grew by 18. However 8 more pieces of audit work were completed in 2021/22 compared to the 

previous year so this will have contributed to this increase. 

The implementation of 'Agreed Actions' from previous year's audits has been low for another year. Only 29% of 

the agreed actions stated by Sections has been closed as part of the follow up testing undertaken, which is a 

minor increase from 27% in 2020/21. The reasoning given for the majority of the open exceptions is that 

sections are still managing their workload and resources since the pandemic. While this is understandable, the 

risks identified in the audits are current and should be prioritised and managed. Given the continued low 

completion rate of previously raised issues, all follow up audits with open exceptions will be reported to the 

Corporate Governance Group for corporate oversight and action. 

Significant work and discussions have been held throughout the year to aid in the management of governance 

issues arising from the Covid 19 pandemic. A Covid summary report reviewed 7 areas including 6 substantial 

grants received as part of the Government response to the pandemic. The results of these were positive, 

especially with regards to confirming the eligibility of the grants paid. Any errors which were found within the 

grants reviews were highlighted to the service and steps have been taken to reclaim that money. Audit will 

continue to provide assurance on the grants into the 2022/23 Audit Plan. 

Four audit opinion levels are in place and these are: no assurance, limited assurance, reasonable assurance 

and full assurance. Where there are mainly medium or low risk exceptions the annual audit opinion would be 

reasonable or full assurance. 85% of audits completed obtained Reasonable or Full Assurance, therefore the 

Annual Audit Opinion for 2021/22 is Reasonable Assurance on the internal control governance and framework 

for risk management and control within Gosport Borough Council, however there needs to be an increase in 

completion level of actions from exceptions improves to maintain this level of assurance 

 
   

Internal Audit will continue to work with Section Heads, the Assistant Chief Executive and the Chief Executive to 

improve on specific areas of control, risk management and governance weaknesses 

No Assurance  Limited Assurance Reasonable Assurance Full Assurance 

Page 247



 

108 
 

 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

Any significant corporate weaknesses and agreed actions will be reflected in the Annual Governance 

Statement. The impact of the Internal Audit work for 2021/22 may affect that year's work for External Audit. It 

may also inform their work for 2022/23 and where they consider there are weaknesses in control that could 

materially affect the accounts they may need to carry out further work to gain the necessary audit assurance 

required for a true and fair view of the financial position and compliance with professional codes of practice. 

Coronavirus Governance 
 
On the 17th March 2020, as a result of the global pandemic regarding Covid-19, Gosport Council moved to 
running business critical services only. This resulted in the majority of staff either working from home or being 
redeployed to critical services. GBC enacted its emergency procedures and created a Covid-19 Emergency 
Response Team lead by the Assistant Chief Executive. The composition of the team includes leads in the key 
areas of the Council deemed critical along with statutory officers such as the Monitoring Officer and Head of 
Emergency Planning. 
Decisions made by the Covid-19 Response group have been documented. 
 
As part of the audit plan a number of Covid related grants and processes were audited to ensure the Council 
had managed the fast paced challenging environment created by the pandemic.  
As a result of the global Covid 19 pandemic the Authority along with multiple agencies and organisations have 
responded and performed their role in safeguarding lives, maintaining critical services and functions and 
protecting the most vulnerable amongst our communities. The Authority has also administered government 
grants at pace and on some occasions against a changing framework. Internal Audit has aided the Authority in 
various activities one of which has been to provide independent assurance on normal activities, but also for 
those additional areas of service performed.  
 
Significant work and discussions have been held throughout the year to aid in the management of governance 
issues arising from the Covid 19 pandemic. A Covid summary report reviewed 6 grants and the National Fraud 
Initiative (NFI) programme 
 
Significant governance issues 
 
The following governance issues have been identified as a result of the review of arrangements and by the work 
of external and internal audit in 2021/22.   
 

NO YEAR 
RAISED 

GOVERNANCE 
ISSUE 

SOURCE ACTION PROGRESS 
TO DATE 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER 

1 2020/21 Procurement 
Compliance 

Chief 
Internal 
Auditor 

An audit of 
Procurement has 
been conducted, 
together with work 
with Cipfa on 
potential 
improvements to 
the CPRs to 
address localised 
issues and 
anticipated 
national changes 
 
 
. 

Contract 
Procedure 
Rules are 
completed 
and 
approved by 
Full Council 
in December 
2022 

Chief Executive 

2 2020/21 New ways of 
working in relation 
to pandemic, 
remote working, 
hybrid teams 

Risk 
Register 

Meetings to be 
held with Section 
Heads re future 
service delivery 
and transition from 

Completed Assistant Chief 
Executive 

Page 248



 

109 
 

 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

NO YEAR 
RAISED 

GOVERNANCE 
ISSUE 

SOURCE ACTION PROGRESS 
TO DATE 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER 

current 
arrangements, 
factoring in results 
from staff survey 
and views from 
Leadership. 

3 2020/21  Significant increase 
in COVID grants 
creating demand on 
stretched resources 

CMT  
Recruitment 
underway for an 
officer to manage 
the grants and 
appropriate 
resources needed 
to deliver them 
within the criteria 

Completed Assistant Chief 
Executive 

4 2020/21 Staff capacity and 
succession 
planning. In 
addition, staff 
wellbeing following 
the pandemic. 

Risk 
Register 

Review of vacant 
posts has been 
undertaken with 
job evaluation and 
design considered 
where posts have 
been hard to fill.  
Significant 
attention and 
support given to 
staff well-being 
during the 
pandemic and this 
will continue. 
Promotion of 
recruitment and 
retention tools to 
increase potential 
retention of skills 

Ongoing Chief Executive 

5 2020/21 Compliance with 
GDPR and 
protecting the 
Council's 
information 

Audit 
Report 

Actions have been 
put in place and 
are progressing to 
meet ongoing 
requirements of 
GDPR 

Follow up 
audit 
highlighted 
improvement 
in this area. 
Completed 

Senior 
Information 
Risk Owner 

6 2021/22 Cost of living impact 
may cause reliance 
on Local Authorities 
to deliver 
Government 
schemes with 
limited resources 

Corporate 
Governance 
Group 

Recruitment 
underway for an 
officer to manage 
the grants and 
appropriate 
resources needed 
to deliver them 
within the criteria 

Ongoing Chief Executive 

 
 
 
 

Page 249



 

110 
 

 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

 
We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our 
governance arrangements.  We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that were 
identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of our next 
annual review. 
 
 
 
Signed …………………………                                         ………….…………… 
 
      

Leader of the Council       Chief Executive 

Page 250



 

111 
 

 

AUDIT OPINION 

 
This page is deliberately left blank for the Draft Statement of Accounts 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 251



 

112 
 

 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

 

  GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 

Accounting 
Period 

The period of time covered by the accounts, normally a period of twelve 
months, commencing on 1 April for local authority accounts 

Accounting 
Policies 

The principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices that specify how the 
effects of transactions and other events are to be reflected in financial 
statements. Include  
 recognising 
 selecting measurement bases 
 inclusion of assets, liabilities, gains, losses and changes to reserves 

Accruals 
 

The recognition of income and expenditure as it is earned or incurred, as 
opposed to when cash is received or paid. 

Agency 
Services 
 

Services performed by or for another authority or public body, where the 
principal (the authority responsible for the service) reimburses the agent (the 
authority doing the work) for the cost of the work carried out 

Actuary An expert on pension scheme assets and liabilities 

Actuarial Gains 
& Losses 

Actuaries assess financial and non-financial information provided by the 
Council to project levels of future pension fund requirements. Changes in 
actuarial deficits or surpluses can arise leading to a loss or gain because: 
• events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last 
valuation 
• the actuarial assumptions have changed 

Asset Something the Council owns that has a value i.e. premises, property, vehicles, 
equipment, cash or a debt 

Authorised 
Limit 

This represents the legislative limit on the Council’s external debt under the 
Local Government Act 2003 

Balance Sheet A statement of the recorded assets, liabilities and other balances at the end of 
an accounting period 

Billing 
Authority 

A local authority empowered to collect Council Tax and Business Rates, and 
manage the collection fund, on behalf of itself, local authorities in its area and 
the government 

Budget A financial statement that expresses the Council’s service delivery plans and 
capital programme in monetary terms 

Capital 
Adjustment 
Account 

The Account accumulates (on the debit side) the write-down of the historical 
cost of fixed assets as they are consumed by depreciation and impairments or 
written off on disposal. 
It accumulates (on the credit side) the resources that have been set aside to 
finance capital expenditure. The same process applies to capital expenditure 
that is only capital by statutory definition (revenue expenditure funded by capital 
under statute).  
The balance on the account thus represents timing differences between the 
amount of the historical cost of fixed assets that have been consumed and the 
amount that has been financed in accordance with statutory requirements. 

Capital 
Expenditure 
 

Expenditure on the acquisition of a non-current asset or, expenditure which 
adds to and not merely maintains the value of an existing non-current asset. 
The asset may not be owned by the authority. Expenditure that does not fall 
within this definition must be charged to a revenue account. 

Capital 
Financing 
Charges 

The annual charge to the revenue account in respect of interest and principal 
repayments and payments of borrowed money, together with leasing rentals 

Capital 
Receipts 

Income from the sale of fixed assets. Capital receipts cannot be used to fund 
revenue services. 

Collection 
Fund 

The separate fund, administered by billing authorities,  recording the 
expenditure and income relating to Council Tax and Non Domestic Rates 

Community 
Assets 

Fixed Assets that the Council intends to hold in perpetuity which have no 
determinable finite useful life and, in addition, may have restrictions on their 
disposal e.g. Parks 

Page 252



 

113 
 

 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Componentisat
ion 

The identification and recording of the components of an asset in order to more 
accurately charge depreciation - includes the separate identification and 
derecognition of components as they are replaced. 

Contingency Money set aside in the budget to meet the cost of unforeseen items of 
expenditure, or shortfalls in income, and to provide for inflation where this is not 
included in individual budgets 

Contingent 
Liabilities or 
Assets 

Amounts potentially due to or from individuals or organisations which may arise 
in the future but which at this time cannot be determined accurately, and for 
which provision has not been made in the Council’s accounts 

Council Tax The main source of local taxation to Local Authorities. Council Tax is levied on 
households within its area by the Billing Authority and the proceeds are paid 
into its Collection Fund for distribution to precepting Authorities and for use by 
its own General Fund 

Council Tax 
Requirement 

The estimated revenue expenditure on General Fund services that needs to be 
financed from Council Tax after deducting income from fees and charges, 
grants and any funding from reserves 

Creditors 
 

Amounts owed by the Council for goods and services received, but not paid for 
at the end of the financial year 

Debtors 
 

Amounts owed to the Council for work or services rendered but not paid for by 
the end of the financial year.  

Deferred 
Liabilities 

Liabilities payable beyond the next year at some point in the future or paid off 
by an annual sum over a period of time 

Deferred 
Capital 
Receipts 

Amounts from the sale of assets, which will be received in the future or in 
instalments over agreed periods of time  

Depreciation 
 

The measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other reduction in the useful 
economic life of a fixed asset 

Derecognition Assets are removed from the Balance Sheet in total or in part when disposed of 
- whether by sale, demolition, abandonment, obsolescence, replacement etc. 
Financial assets and liabilities will need to be removed from the Balance Sheet 
once performance under the contract is complete or the contract is terminated. 

Discounts Discounts represent the outstanding discount received on the premature 
repayment of Public Works Loan Board loans. In line with the Code, gains 
arising from the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are written back to 
revenue – but where the repurchase or borrowing was coupled with a 
refinancing 
or restructuring of borrowing with substantially the same overall economic effect 
when viewed as a whole, gains are recognised over the life of the replacement 
loan. 

Expenditure 
 

Amounts paid by the authority for goods received or services rendered of either 
a capital or revenue nature. This does not necessarily involve a cash payment 
since expenditure is deemed to have been incurred once the goods or services 
have been received even if they have not been paid for 

Exceptional 
Items 
 

Material items deriving from events or transactions that fall within the ordinary 
activities of the Authority, but which need to be separately disclosed by virtue of 
their size and/ or incidence to give a fair presentation of the accounts. 

Fair Value Fair value is the price at which an asset could be exchanged in an arm’s length 
transaction between knowledgeable willing parties 

Finance Lease A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership of a fixed asset to the lessee 

Financial 
Instruments 

Any item that will cause the Council to receive or pay money. Generally 
considered to be treasury management related but also include certain debtors 
and creditors but not with a statutory basis  

Fixed Assets  Tangible or intangible assets that yield benefit to the Council for more than one 
year. Generally, further classified into Property, Plant and Equipment; Heritage 
Assets; Investment Property and Intangible Assets. Also known as Long Term 
or Non- Current Assets 

Financial 
Regulations 

The written code of procedures approved by the Council, intended to provide a 
framework for proper financial management. Financial regulations usually set 

Page 253



 

114 
 

 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

out rules on accounting, audit, administrative and budgeting procedures 

General Fund The main revenue fund of the Council, it includes income and expenditure on 
the Council’s day to day activities – excluding those of the Housing Revenue 
Account 

Group 
Accounts 

Group Accounts consolidate the financial results of the Council, any of its 
subsidiaries and/or associates. The Council is not required to produce these 
due to materiality. 

Heritage 
Assets 

Assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or 
environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for their 
contribution to knowledge and culture 

Housing 
Benefit 

This is an allowance to persons on low income (or none) to meet, in whole or 
part, their rent. Benefit is allowed or paid by Local Authorities but Central 
Government refunds part of the cost of the benefits and of the running costs of 
the services to Local Authorities. Benefits paid to the Authority’s own tenants 
are known as rent rebate and that paid to private tenants as rent allowances. 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account (HRA) 

Local Authorities are required to maintain a separate account - the HRA which 
sets out the income from and expenditure on the provision of council housing.  

Impairment  A reduction in the value of a non-current asset below its carrying amount in the 
balance sheet.  At the end of each reporting period, an assessment of assets 
must  take place to identify any potential impairments 

Infrastructure 
Assets 
 

Fixed Assets which generally cannot be sold and from which benefit can be 
obtained only by continued use of the asset created. I.e. footpaths, bridges, 
coast protection works 

International 
Financial 
Reporting 
Standards 
(IFRS) 

Defined Accounting Standards that must be applied by all reporting entities to 
all financial statements in order to provide a true and fair view of the entity’s 
financial position, and a standardised method of comparison with financial 
statements of the other entities. 

Income 
 

Amounts due to the Authority for goods supplied or services rendered of either 
a capital or revenue nature. This does not necessarily involve cash being 
received since income is deemed to have been earned once the goods or 
services have been supplied even if cash has not been received  

Intangible 
Assets 

Assets that do have a physical form i.e. software and licences 
 

Investment 
Properties 

Properties that are held solely for appreciation or income generation 

Leases - 
General 
 

Where a rental is paid for the use of an asset for a specified period of time. 
There are two forms of lease – finance and operating. The lessor leases the 
asset to the lessee. The Council is both lessee and lessor 

Leases - 
Finance Lease 

A lease or lease type arrangement whereby the risks and rewards of ownership 
are considered to be borne by the lessee and therefore the asset concerned is 
included on the lessee’s balance sheet 

Lease - 
Operating 
Lease 

Any lease or lease type arrangement which is not a finance lease. The assets 
concerned remain on the lessors balance sheet and the payments or income 
are dealt with as revenue income or expenditure 

Liabilities 
 

Amounts due to individuals or organisations payable at some time in the future. 
Current liabilities are usually payable within one year of the balance sheet date 

Major Repairs 
Allowance 
(MRA) 

The MRA was a government grant for capital expenditure to maintain the 
housing stock to a good standard. After a transition period that ended in 
2016/17, it was dropped in favour of fully componentised depreciation 
accounting 

Major Repairs 
Reserve 
(MRR) 

This reserve is restricted to being applied towards new capital expenditure, the 
repayment of HRA debt and meeting liabilities under credit arrangements 

Minimum 
Revenue 
Provision 
(MRP) 

The minimum amount that the council must charge to the revenue account in 
the year in respect of the repayment of principal of borrowing for capital 
purposes 

Page 254



 

115 
 

 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

National Non 
Domestic 
Rates (NNDR) 
(also known as 
Business 
Rates) 

Effective from 1 April 2013, the Business Rates Retention enables a proportion 
of the Business Rates collected to be retained locally by billing and precepting 
authorities with the balance being paid over to central government. There is 
therefore the potential reward of additional income or indeed reduced income, 
subject to the safety net. The scheme is subject to centrally set targets and 
thresholds as well as a complex system of tariffs, top-ups, safety nets and 
levies. 

Net Book 
Value (NBV) 
. 

The amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet, i.e. their 
historical cost or current value less the cumulative amounts provided for 
depreciation 

Operational 
Boundary 
 

This reflects the maximum anticipated level of external debt consistent with 
budgets and forecast cash flows. 

Pension - 
Current 
Service Cost 

The increase in the present value of the pension scheme liabilities expected to 
arise from employee service in the current period. i.e. the pension benefits 
“earned” by employees in the current year’s employment net of contributions 
paid 

Pension - Past 
service costs 

The increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment 
whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years  

Pension - 
Interest on the 
Net Defined 
Benefit Liability 
(Asset), 

The change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that 
arises from the passage of time - calculated by applying the discount rate used 
to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the 
net defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the period – taking into 
account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period 
as a result of contribution and benefit payments. 

Pension - 
Actuarial gains 
and losses 

Changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not 
coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the 
actuaries have updated their assumptions 

Pension - Past 
Service Cost 

Discretionary benefits awarded on early retirement are treated as past service 
costs  
 

Pension – 
Strain on 
Pension Fund 
Contribution 

Pension strain is a concept for the management of the pension fund finances 
arising from an employee retiring early, without actuarial reduction of pension. 
This causes lost contribution income and creates an interest cost arising from 
the associated earlier, increased cash flow 

Pension -
Curtailment 

Curtailments show the cost of the early payment of pension benefits if any 
employee has been made redundant in the previous financial year 

Precepts 
 

The method by which a non-charging authority obtains the income it requires by 
making a levy on the appropriate charging or billing authorities. Billing 
authorities, such as Gosport, will themselves precept on the Collection Fund to 
obtain their own income. 

Prior Period 
Adjustments 

These are material adjustments which are applicable to an earlier period arising 
from changes in accounting policies or for the correction of fundamental errors 

Provision An amount held in a reserve for a liability of uncertain timing or amount 

Public Works 
Loan Board 
(PWLB) 

An arm of Central Government which is the major provider of loans to finance 
long term funding requirements for Local Authorities 

Related 
Parties 
 

Related parties are Central Government, other Local Authorities, precepting 
and levying bodies, any subsidiary and associated companies, elected 
members, all senior officers and the Pension Fund.  
For individuals, related parties includes members of the close family, or the 
same household;  and partnerships, companies, trusts or other entities in which 
the individual, or member of their close family or the same household, has a 
controlling interest. 

Revaluation 
Reserve 
 

The Reserve records the accumulated gains on the fixed assets held by the 
Authority arising from increases in value as a result of inflation or other factors 
(to the extent that these gains have not been consumed by subsequent 
downward movements in value). 

Revenue The method of financing capital expenditure directly from revenue 

Page 255



 

116 
 

 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Contribution 

Revenue 
Expenditure 
 

Expenditure incurred on the day to day running of the Council. This includes 
employee costs, general running expenses and capital financing costs 

Revenue 
Support Grant 

A central government grant paid each year as a general contribution towards 
the cost of the Council’s services 

Service 
Reporting 
Code of 
Practice 
(SeRCOP) 

Prepared and published by CIPFA , the Service Reporting Code of Practice 
(SeRCOP) replaced the previous Best Value Accounting Code of Practice 
(BVACOP). It is reviewed annually to ensure that it develops in line with the 
needs of modern Local Government, Transparency, Best Value and public 
services reform. SeRCOP establishes proper practices with regard to 
consistent financial reporting for services and in England and Wales, it is given 
legislative backing by regulations which identify the accounting practices it 
propounds as proper practices under the Local Government Act 2003. 

The Code The CIPFA Code of Practice which is based on and compliant with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and which governs the preparation of the 
Council’s financial statements 

Treasury 
Management 

This is the process by which the Council controls its cash flow and its borrowing 
and lending activities 

Treasury 
Management 
Strategy (TMS) 

A strategy prepared with regard to legislative and CIPFA requirements setting 
out the framework for treasury management activity for the Council 

Usable 
Reserves 
 

Reserves that the council may use to provide services, subject to the need to 
maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations (for example 
the Capital Receipts Reserve can only be used fund capital expenditure) 

Unsupported 
(Prudential) 
Borrowing 

This is borrowing for which no financial support is provided by Central 
Government. The borrowing costs are met from current revenue budgets 

Unusable 
Reserves 

Reserves that are not used to provide services - but that represent 
 unrealised gains and losses (i.e. where amounts would only become 

available to provide services if the assets are sold) and 
 timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line 

'Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under 
regulations' (i.e. depreciation) 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 256



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
Kevin Suter 
Ernst & Young LLP 
Grosvenor House 
Grosvenor Square 
Southampton 
SO15 2BE 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please ask for: 

Keith Price 
Direct dial: 

(023) 9254 5313  
E-mail:  

Keith.price@gosport.gov.uk 

 

Date 15th March 2023 

Dear Mr Suter 
 
LETTER OF REPRESENTATION 
 

This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the financial 
statements of Gosport Borough Council (“the Council”) for the year ended 31 March 2022.  
We recognise that obtaining representations from us concerning the information contained in 
this letter is a significant procedure in enabling you to form an opinion as to whether the 
financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as of 31 
March 2022 and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended in accordance with 
the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2021/22. 

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial statements is to express an 
opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (UK), which involves an examination of the accounting system, 
internal control and related data to the extent you considered necessary in the 
circumstances, and is not designed to identify - nor necessarily be expected to disclose - all 
fraud, shortages, errors and other irregularities, should any exist. 

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the 
purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:  

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records. 

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory authorities, for the 
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 and CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 
in the United Kingdom 2021/22.  

2. We acknowledge, as members of management of the Council, our responsibility for the 
fair presentation of the financial statements.  We believe the financial statements 
referred to above give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
(or results of operations) and cash flows of the Council in accordance with the CIPFA 
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2021/22, and are free of material misstatements, including omissions.  We have 
approved the financial statements. 

3. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements 
are appropriately described in the financial statements. 

Page 257



 

4. As members of management of the Council, we believe that the Council has a system of 
internal controls adequate to enable the preparation of accurate financial statements in 
accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 
the United Kingdom 2021/22, that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. We have disclosed to you any significant changes in our processes, 
controls, policies and procedures that we have made to address the effects of the 
COVID-19 pandemic on our system of internal controls and the effects of the conflict and 
related sanctions in Ukraine, Russia and/or Belarus on our system of internal controls. 

5. We believe that the effects of any unadjusted audit differences, summarised in the 
accompanying schedule, accumulated by you during the current audit and pertaining to 
the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the 
financial statements taken as a whole.  We have not corrected these differences 
identified by and brought to the attention from the auditor because they are judgemental 
and therefore will not impact the understanding of a reader of the accounts. 

 
B. Non-compliance with law and regulations, including fraud  

 

 

1. We acknowledge that we are responsible to determine that the Council’s activities are 
conducted in accordance with laws and regulations and that we are responsible to 
identify and address any non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations, including 
fraud. 

2. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud.  

3. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial 
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

 

 

4. We have no knowledge of any identified or suspected non-compliance with laws or 
regulations, including fraud that may have affected the Council (regardless of the source 
or form and including without limitation, any allegations by “whistleblowers”), including 
non-compliance matters: 

 involving financial improprieties; 

 related to laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the determination of 
material amounts and disclosures in the Council’s financial statements; 

 related to laws and regulations that have an indirect effect on amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements, but compliance with which may be 
fundamental to the operations of the Council’s activities, its ability to continue to 
operate, or to avoid material penalties; 

 involving management, or employees who have significant roles in internal 
controls, or others; or  

 in relation to any allegations of fraud, suspected fraud or other non-compliance 
with laws and regulations communicated by employees, former employees, 
analysts, regulators or others. 

C. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions 

1. We have provided you with: 

 Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of 
the financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters; 

Page 258



 

 Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; 
and 

 Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

2. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and all material 
transactions, events and conditions are reflected in the financial statements, including 
those related to the COVID-19 pandemic and including those related to the conflict and 
related sanctions in Ukraine, Russia and/or Belarus. 

3. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the Council and 
committees (or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet 
been prepared) held through the period to the most recent meeting on the following date: 
1st March 2023.   

4. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification of 
related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council’s related parties and 
all related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware, including sales, 
purchases, loans, transfers of assets, liabilities and services, leasing arrangements, 
guarantees, non-monetary transactions and transactions for no consideration for the 
period ended, as well as related balances due to or from such parties at the period end.  
These transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the financial 
statements 

5. We believe that the methods, significant assumptions and the data we used in making 
accounting estimates and related disclosures are appropriate and consistently applied to 
achieve recognition, measurement and disclosure that is in accordance with the CIPFA 
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2021/22. 

6. We have disclosed to you, and the Council has complied with, all aspects of contractual 
agreements that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of 
non-compliance, including all covenants, conditions or other requirements of all 
outstanding debt. 

7. From the date of our last management representation letter through the date of this letter 
we have disclosed to you, to the extent that we are aware, any (1) unauthorized access 
to our information technology systems that either occurred or to the best of our 
knowledge is reasonably likely to have occurred based on our investigation, including of 
reports submitted to us by third parties (including regulatory agencies, law enforcement 
agencies and security consultants) , to the extent that such unauthorized access to our 
information technology systems is reasonably likely to have a material impact to the 
financial statements, in each case or in the aggregate, and (2) ransomware attacks 
when we paid or are contemplating paying a ransom, regardless of the amount 

D. Liabilities and Contingencies 

1. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, whether 
written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in the financial 
statements.   

2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims, whether or 
not they have been discussed with legal counsel. 

3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related to litigation and 
claims, both actual and contingent. 

E. Going Concern  

Page 259



 

1. Note 1 to the financial statements discloses all the matters of which we are aware that 
are relevant to the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern, including significant 
conditions and events, our plans for future action, and the feasibility of those plans. 

F. Subsequent Events  

1. Other than described in Note 5 to the financial statements, there have been no events, 
including events related to the COVID-19 pandemic, and including events related to the 
conflict and related sanctions in Ukraine, Russia and/or Belarus, subsequent to period 
end which require adjustment of or disclosure in the financial statements or notes 
thereto.  

G. Other information 

1.  We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the Narrative Report and the Annual Governance Statement. 

2.  We confirm that the content contained within the other information is consistent with the 
financial statements. 

H. Use of the Work of a Specialist 

1. We agree with the findings of the specialists that we engaged to evaluate the valuation 
of property, plant and equipment, investment property, HRA properties and IAS19 
pension fund liability and have adequately considered the qualifications of the specialists 
in determining the amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements and the 
underlying accounting records. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to 
the specialists with respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their 
work, and we are not otherwise aware of any matters that have had an effect on the 
independence or objectivity of the specialists. 

I. Estimates  

1. We confirm that the significant judgments made in making the revaluation of land and 
buildings classified as property, plant and equipment, investment property, and HRA 
properties, and the pension liability and asset valuation have taken into account all 
relevant information and the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic of which we are aware.  

2. We believe that the selection or application of the methods, assumptions and data used 
by us have been consistently and appropriately applied or used in making the land and 
buildings classified as property, plant and equipment, investment property, and HRA 
properties, and the pension liability and asset valuation. 

3. We confirm that the significant assumptions used in making the land and buildings 
classified as property, plant and equipment, investment property, and HRA properties, 
and the pension liability and asset valuation appropriately reflect our intent and ability to 
carry out these valuations on behalf of the entity. 

4. We confirm that the disclosures made in the financial statements with respect to the 
accounting estimates, including those describing estimation uncertainty and the effects of 
the COVID-19 pandemic, are complete and are reasonable in the context of CIPFA 
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22. 

5. We confirm that appropriate specialized skills or expertise has been applied in making 
the land and buildings classified as property, plant and equipment, investment property, 
and HRA properties, and the pension liability and asset valuation. 

6. We confirm that no adjustments are required to the accounting estimates and disclosures 
in the financial statements, including due to the COVID-19 pandemic  

Page 260



 

J. Retirement benefits 

1. On the basis of the process established by us and having made appropriate enquiries, 
we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the scheme liabilities are 
consistent with our knowledge of the business. All significant retirement benefits and all 
settlements and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for. 

 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
(Borough Treasurer and Section 151 Officer)  
 
 
 
I confirm that this letter has been discussed and agreed at the Policy & Organisation 
Board on 15th March 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
(Chairman of the Policy & Organisation Board) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 261



This page is intentionally left blank



 - 1 - 

Agenda item no  
 
 

Report to: 
 

POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD 

Meeting date: 
 

15th March 2023 
 

Title: TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY & 
MRP POLICY 2023/24 
 

Originator: 
 

BOROUGH TREASURER 

Status 
 

FOR DECISION 

 
 
Purpose 
 
This report outlines the Council’s policy for charging unfinanced capital expenditure to 
revenue (MRP) together with the expected treasury operations for this period. It fulfils a key 
legislative requirement. 
 
Recommendations 
 
Council is recommended to approve: 
 

 Minimum Revenue Provision Policy, as identified in 2.1 
 

 The Treasury Management Strategy, as identified in 2.2 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 Overview 

1.1.1  Treasury management is the management of the Council’s cash flows, borrowing and 
investments, and the associated risks. The Council has borrowed and invested 
substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks including the 
loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing interest rates.  The 
successful identification, monitoring and control of financial risk are therefore central 
to the Council’s prudent financial management.  

 
  Treasury risk management at the Council is conducted within the framework of the 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the 
Public Services: Code of Practice 2021 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires the 
Council to approve a treasury management strategy before the start of each financial 
year. This report fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 
2003 to have regard to the CIPFA Code. 

 
  Investments held for service purposes or for commercial profit are considered in a 

different report, the Investment Strategy. 

Page 263

Agenda Item 11



 - 2 - 

1.2 Reporting requirements 

1.2.1 The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main reports 
each year, which incorporate a variety of polices, estimates and actuals.  

 
1.2.2 Minimum Revenue Provision and Treasury Management Strategy (this report) - 

which covers: 

 a Minimum Revenue Provision Policy (how residual capital expenditure i.e. capital 
expenditure financed by debt - is charged to revenue over time); 

 the Treasury Management Strategy (how the treasury management investments 
and borrowings are to be organised) including treasury indicators;  

 
1.2.3 A Mid Year Treasury Management Report – this will update members with the 

progress of the capital position, amending prudential indicators as necessary, and 
whether the treasury strategy and investment strategies are meeting their objectives 
or whether any policies require revision 

 
1.2.4 An Annual Treasury Report – this provides details of a selection of actual prudential, 

investment and treasury indicators and actual treasury and investment operations 
compared to the estimates within the strategy.  

 
The latter two reports are combined and jointly and normally reported in September. 

 

1.3 Annual Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement 

1.3.1 The Council’s policy for calculating the annual amount charged to the revenue budget 
to repay capital expenditure financed by debt is set out in para 2.1. 

 
1.4 Treasury Management Strategy for 2023/24 
 
1.4.1 The strategy for 2023/24 (set out in section 2.2) includes the following areas: 
 

 Economic Outlook and prospects for interest rates (para 2.2.1) 

 Borrowing strategy (para 2.2.2)  

 Policy on borrowing in advance of need (para 2.2.3) 

 Debt rescheduling (para 2.2.4) 

 Investment strategy (Treasury Management Investments) (para 2.2.5) 

 Treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council (para 
2.2.6) 

 Other Items (para 2.2.7) 

 

1.4.2 These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the 
CIPFA Prudential Code, the MHCLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code and the MHCLG Investment Guidance. 

 
 
 
 

Page 264



 - 3 - 

2.0 REPORT 
 

2.1 MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION (MRP) POLICY STATEMENT 

2.1.1 Background 

Where the Council finances capital expenditure by debt, it must put aside resources to 
repay that debt in later years.  The amount charged to the revenue budget for the 
repayment of debt is known as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).  

 
The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to have regard to the former 
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government’s Guidance on Minimum 
Revenue Provision (the MHCLG Guidance) most recently issued in 2018. 
 
The broad aim of the MHCLG Guidance is to ensure that capital expenditure is 
financed over a period that is either reasonably commensurate with that over which 
the capital expenditure provides benefits, or, in the case of borrowing supported by 
Government Revenue Support Grant, reasonably commensurate with the period 
implicit in the determination of that grant.  
 
The 2018 updated guidance introduced a maximum useful life of 50 years for MRP 
purposes including any expenditure incurred on investment properties that provide a 
revenue stream, except where a longer life is supported by an opinion from a suitably 
qualified professional adviser. 
 
There is no requirement on the HRA to make a minimum revenue provision. 

 
2.1.2 Policy Statement 
 

 For unsupported capital expenditure MRP will be determined by charging the 
expenditure over the expected useful life of the relevant asset as the principal 
repayment on an annuity with an interest rate by reference to the relevant PWLB 
rate at 31st March, starting in the year after the asset becomes operational. MRP 
on purchases of freehold land will be charged over 50 years. 

 

 For assets acquired by leases, MRP will be determined as being equal to the 
element of the rent or charge that goes to write down the balance sheet liability. 

 

 No MRP will be charged in respect of assets held within the Housing Revenue 
Account. 

 

 Capital expenditure incurred during 2023/24 will not be subject to a MRP charge 
until 2024/25 or later 

 

 The 2023/24 budget inclues an estimated MRP provision of £739,000 
 

 
 
 

Page 265



 - 4 - 

2.2 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 

2.2.1 Economic Outlook and prospects for interest rates 

Economic background: (commentary provided by Arlingclose Ltd) 

The ongoing impact on the UK from the war in Ukraine, together with higher inflation, 
higher interest rates, uncertain government policy, and a deteriorating economic 
outlook, will be major influences on the Authority’s treasury management strategy for 
2023/24. 

The Bank of England (BoE) increased Bank Rate by 0.50% to 4.0% in February 2023  
the ninth successive rise since December 2021.  

The November quarterly Monetary Policy Report (MPR) forecast a prolonged but 
shallow recession in the UK with CPI inflation remaining elevated at over 10% in the 
near-term. While the projected peak of inflation is lower than in the August report, due 
in part to the government’s support package for household energy costs, inflation is 
expected remain higher for longer over the forecast horizon and the economic outlook 
remains weak, with unemployment projected to start rising. 

The UK economy grew by 0.2% between April and June 2022, but the BoE forecasts 
Gross Domestic Product (GDP) will decline 0.75% in the second half of the calendar 
year due to the squeeze on household income from higher energy costs and goods 
prices. Growth is then expected to continue to fall throughout 2023 and the first half of 
2024. 

CPI inflation is expected to peak at around 11% in the last calendar quarter of 2022 
and then fall sharply to 1.4%, below the 2% target, in two years’ time and to 0% in 
three years’ time if Bank Rate follows the path implied by financial markets with a 
peak of 5.25%. However the BoE has stated it considers this path to be too high, 
suggesting that the peak in interest rates will be lower, reducing the risk of inflation 
falling too far below target. 

The labour market remains tight for now, with the most recent statistics showing the 
unemployment rate fell to 3.5%, driven mostly by a shrinking labour force. Earnings 
were up strongly in nominal terms by 6% for total pay and 5.4% for regular pay but 
factoring in inflation means real total pay was -2.4% and regular pay -2.9%. Looking 
forward, the MPR shows the labour market weakening in response to the deteriorating 
outlook for growth, leading to the unemployment rate rising to around 6.5% in 2025. 

Interest rates have also been rising sharply in the US, with the Federal Reserve 
increasing the range on its key interest rate by 0.75% in November 2022 to 3.75%-
4.0%. This was the fourth successive 0.75% rise in a pace of tightening that has seen 
rates increase from 0.25%-0.50% in March 2022. Annual inflation has been slowing in 
the US but remains above 8%. GDP grew at an annualised rate of 2.6% between July 
and September 2022, a better-than-expected rise, but with official interest rates 
expected to rise even further in the coming months, a recession in the region is widely 
expected at some point during 2023. 

 

Page 266



 - 5 - 

Inflation has been rising consistently in the Euro Zone since the start of the year, 
hitting an annual rate of 10.7% in October 2022. Economic growth has been 
weakening with an expansion of just 0.2% in the three months to September 2022. As 
with the UK and US, the European Central Bank has been on an interest rate 
tightening cycle, pushing up its three key interest rates by 0.75% in October, the third 
major increase in a row, taking its main refinancing rate to 2% and deposit facility rate 
to 1.5%. 

Credit outlook:  

Credit default swap (CDS) prices have followed an upward trend throughout the year, 
indicating higher credit risk. They have been boosted by the war in Ukraine, increasing 
economic and political uncertainty and a weaker global and UK outlook, but remain 
well below the levels seen at the beginning of the Covid-19 pandemic. 

CDS price volatility has been higher in 2022 compared to 2021 and this year has seen 
a divergence in prices between ringfenced (retail) and non-ringfenced (investment) 
banking entities once again. 

The weakening economic picture during 2022 led the credit rating agencies to reflect 
this in their assessment of the outlook for the UK sovereign as well as several local 
authorities and financial institutions, revising them from to negative from stable. 

There are competing tensions in the banking sector which could impact bank balance 
sheet strength going forward. The weakening economic outlook and likely recessions 
in many regions increase the possibility of a deterioration in the quality of banks’ 
assets, while higher interest rates provide a boost to net income and profitability. 

However, the institutions on our adviser Arlingclose’s counterparty list remain well-
capitalised and their counterparty advice on both recommended institutions and 
maximum duration remain under constant review and will continue to reflect economic 
conditions and the credit outlook. 

The Council uses Arlingclose Limited as its treasury advisor and the following is their 
view of the economic outlook and interest rates  

Interest rate forecast: The Authority’s treasury management adviser Arlingclose 
forecasts that Bank Rate will rise to 4.25% in March 2023 as the Bank of England 
attempts to subdue inflation which is significantly above its 2% target. 

Yields are expected to remain broadly at current levels over the medium-term, with 5-, 
10- and 20-year gilt yields expected to average around 3.89%, 4.03%, and 3.85% 
respectively over the 3-year period to December 2025. The risks for short, medium 
and longer-term yields are judged to be broadly balanced over the forecast horizon. 
As ever, there will undoubtedly be short-term volatility due to economic and political 
uncertainty and events. 

For the purpose of setting the budget, it has been assumed that new treasury 
investments will be made at an average rate of 2.5%, and that new long-term loans 
will be borrowed at an average rate of 3.8%. 

Interest rate forecasts (February 2023) : 

Page 267



 - 6 - 

 

 Bank 
Rate % 

PWLB Borrowing Rates % 
(including certainty rate adjustment) 

  5 year 10 year 20 year 50 year 

Mar-23 4.25 4.00 4.10 3.85 4.40 

Jun-23 4.25 4.00 4.10 3.85 4.40 

Sep-23 4.25 4.00 4.10 3.85 4.40 

Dec-23 4.25 4.00 4.10 3.85 4.40 

Mar-24 4.00 3.90 4.00 3.85 4.40 

Jun-24 3.75 3.90 4.00 3.85 4.40 

Sep-24 3.50 3.90 4.00 3.85 4.40 

Dec-24 3.25 3.80 4.00 3.85 4.40 

Mar-25 3.00 3.80 4.00 3.85 4.40 

Jun-25 3.00 3.80 4.00 3.85 4.40 

Sep-25 3.00 3.80 4.00 3.85 4.40 

Dec-25 3.00 3.90 4.00 3.85 4.40 

Average 
rate 

  
3.63 

 

 

3.89 

 

4.03 

 

3.85 

 

4.40 

 
  

2.2.2 Borrowing Strategy 

The Council expects to hold £63 million of loans at 31/3/23, an increase of £5 million 
from the previous year, as part of its strategy for funding previous years’ capital 
programmes. The value of loans are expected to increase to £74 million by the end of 
2025/26 as a result of new borrowing and reduction in available existing resources 
which internally fund the planned capital programme.  

Objectives: The Council’s primary objective when borrowing money is to strike an 
appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs and achieving cost 
certainty over the period for which funds are required. The flexibility to renegotiate 
loans should the Council’s long-term plans change is a secondary objective. 

 
Strategy: Given the significant cuts to public expenditure and in particular to local 
government funding, the Council’s borrowing strategy continues to address the key 
issue of affordability without compromising the longer-term stability of the debt 
portfolio. With short-term interest rates currently lower than long-term rates, it is likely 
to be more cost effective in the short-term to use internal resources, and / or to borrow 
short-term loans instead. By doing so, the Council is able to reduce net borrowing 
costs (despite foregone investment income) and reduce overall treasury risk. This 
means that the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not 
been fully financed with loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances 
and cash flow has been used as a temporary measure.  
 
The benefits of internal and short term borrowing will be monitored regularly against 
the potential for incurring additional costs by deferring borrowing into future years 
when long-term borrowing rates are forecast to remain broadly at existing levels.  
 

Page 268



 - 7 - 

At 31st March 2023 the Council expects to be underborrowed by £16.7 million, this will 
reduce to around £9.1 million by 31st March 2026.  
 
The Council will undertake a ‘cost of carry’ and breakeven analysis to determine 
whether to  borrow additional sums at long-term fixed rates in 2023/24 with a view to 
keeping future interest costs low, even if this causes additional cost in the short-term. 
 
PWLB loans are no longer available to local authorities planning to buy investment 
assets primarily for yield; the Council intends to avoid this activity in order to retain its 
access to PWLB loans. The Council will consider borrowing any long-term loans from 
other robust sources including banks, pensions and other local authorities. 
 
In addition, the Council may borrow short-term loans (normally for up to one year) to 
cover unexpected cash flow shortages and reduce treasury costs if the opportunity 
presents. 

 
  The approved sources of long term and short term borrowing are: 

 HM Treasury’s PWLB lending facility (formerly the Public Works Loan 
Board) 

 Banks or building societies authorised to operate in the UK 

 Money Market Loans 

 Any other UK public body e.g. other Local Authorities 

 UK public and private sector pension funds 

 Internal funds – the cash held in internal funds can be used short term to 
fund capital expenditure or the repayment of debt, thus delaying the 
need to borrow externally 

 UK Municipal Bonds Agency 
 

Other sources of debt finance: In addition, capital finance may be raised by the 
following methods that are not borrowing, but may be classed as other debt liabilities: 
 

 leasing 

 hire purchase 

 sale and leaseback 
 

Liability benchmark : To compare the Council’s actual borrowing against an 
alternative strategy, a liability benchmark has been calculated showing the lowest risk 
level of borrowing.  
 
The liability benchmark is an important tool to help establish whether the Council is 
likely to be a long-term borrower or long-term investor in the future, and so shape its 
strategic focus and decision making. The liability benchmark itself represents an 
estimate of the cumulative amount of external borrowing the Council must hold to fund 
its current capital and revenue plans while keeping treasury investments at the 
minimum level required to manage day-to-day cash flow. 
 
The Council following this borrowing strategy. 
 

 

Page 269



 - 8 - 

Liability Benchmark 2023/243 2024/25 2025/265

Estimate Estimate Estimate

£m £m £m

Capital Financing Requirement 83,925.0 83,593.0 82,896.0

Less: Balance Sheet Resources (18,206.0) (13,951.0) (14,701.0)

Net Loans Requirement 65,719.0 69,642.0 68,195.0

Plus Liquidity Allowance 4,000.0 4,000.0 4,000.0

Liability Benchmark 69,719.0 73,642.0 72,195.0

 
2.2.3 Policy on borrowing in advance of need 
 
 The Council may from time to time borrow in advance of need, providing this does not 

exceed the authorised limit for borrowing which is £89.4 million for 2023/24 and where 
this is expected to provide the best long term value for money and the Council can 
ensure the security of such funds. The Borough Treasurer may do this under 
delegated powers where, for instance, a sharp rise or fall in interest rates is expected 
meaning borrowing early at fixed interest rates will be economically beneficial or meet 
budgetary constraints. Whilst the Borough Treasurer will adopt a cautious approach to 
any such borrowing, where there is a clear business case for doing so borrowing may 
be undertaken to fund the approved capital programme or to fund future debt 
maturities.  

 
 The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to 

profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in 
advance is expected to be within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement 
estimates. Exceptionally, should a new Capital Invesment opportunity arise in the year 
where it would be appropriate to finance through borrowing and where it could be 
demonstrated that borrowing in advance of need would provide value for money the 
Council may borrow beyond its forward approved Capital Financing Requirement 
estimates. 

 
2.2.4 Debt rescheduling 

 The PWLB allows authorities to repay loans before they mature and either pay a 
premium or receive a discount according to a set formula based on current interest 
rates. The Council may take advantage of this and replace some loans with new 
loans, or repay loans without replacement, where this is expected to lead to an overall 
cost saving or a reduction in risk.  The recent rise in interest rates mean that more 
favourable debt rescheduling opportunities should arise than in previous years. 

 
 Any rescheduling undertaken will be reported to Policy and Organisation Board.  
 

2.2.5 Treasury Investment Strategy 

The Council holds invested funds, representing income received in advance of 
expenditure plus balances and reserves held. 
 
During 2022/23, the Council’s treasury investment balances have averaged £15 
million, this is expected to reduce to around £10 million in the forthcoming year. 

Page 270



 - 9 - 

Objectives: The CIPFA  Code requires the Council to invest its treasury funds 
prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its investments before 
seeking the highest rate of retrun or yield.  

 
The Council’s objective when investing money is to strike an appropriate balance 
between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the 
risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income. Where balances are expected to 
be invested for more than one year, the Council will aim to achieve a total return that 
is equal or higher than the 3 month LIBID rate. 
 
Approved Counterparties: The Council may invest surplus funds with any of the 
counterparty types in the table below, subject to the cash limits (per counterparty), the 
time limits subject to the sector limits shown. 
 

Sector 
Time 
limit 

Counterparty 
limit 

Sector 
limit 

The UK Government 
50 
years 

Unlimited n/a 

Local authorities & 
other government 
entities 

5 years £3m Unlimited 

Secured investments * 5 years £3m Unlimited 

Banks (unsecured) * 
13 
months 

£2m Unlimited 

Building societies 
(unsecured) * 

13 
months 

£2m £6m 

Registered providers 
(unsecured) * 

5 years £2m £6m 

Money market funds * n/a £3m Unlimited 

Strategic pooled funds 
Strategic pooled investment fund £2m per fund 

           Local Authority Property Fund mamimum £4m.  
Subject to an overall maximum Investment of £6m 

Other investments * 5 years £2m £6m 

Security
Liquidity

Yield

Page 271



 - 10 - 

* Minimum+ credit rating: Treasury investments in the sectors marked with an 
asterisk will only be made with entities whose lowest published long-term credit rating 
is no lower than [A-]. Where available, the credit rating relevant to the specific 
investment or class of investment is used, otherwise the counterparty credit rating is 
used. However, investment decisions are never made solely based on credit ratings, 
and all other relevant factors including external advice will be taken into account. 
 
For entities without published credit ratings, investments may be made either (a) 
where external advice indicates the entity to be of similar credit quality; or (b) to a 
maximum of £3 million per counterparty as part of a diversified pool e.g. via a peer-to-
peer platform. 
 
The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from the UK 
or a foreign country with a sovereign rating of AA or higher for direct investment. 
No country limit will apply to investments in UK banks or building society. It is 
recommended that an aggregate limit for Investments outside the UK be applied of 
£8million and that in order to minimise the sytemic credit risk of investments in any 
region it is recommended that a £4million limit be applied to the following geographical 
areas where investments can be made in foreign countries. 
 

 Asia & Australia 
 Americas 
 Eurozone 
 Continental Europe outside the Eurozone 

 
Government (including Local Government) : Loans to, and bonds and bills issued 
or guaranteed by, national governments, regional and local authorities and multilateral 
development banks. These investments are not subject to bail-in, and there is 
generally a lower risk of insolvency, although they are not zero risk. Investments with 
the UK Government are deemed to be zero credit risk due to its ability to create 
additional currency and therefore may be made in unlimited amounts for up to 50 
years. 
 
Secured investments: Investments secured on the borrower’s assets, which limits 
the potential losses in the event of insolvency. The amount and quality of the security 
will be a key factor in the investment decision. Covered bonds and reverse 
repurchase agreements with banks and building societies are exempt from bail-in. 
Where there is no investment specific credit rating, but the collateral upon which the 
investment is secured has a credit rating, the higher of the collateral credit rating and 
the counterparty credit rating will be used. The combined secured and unsecured 
investments with any one counterparty will not exceed the cash limit for secured 
investments. 
 
Banks and Building Societies (unsecured): Accounts, deposits, certificates of 
deposit and senior unsecured bonds with banks and building societies, other than 
multilateral development banks. These investments are subject to the risk of credit 
loss via a bail-in should the regulator determine that the bank is failing or likely to fail. 
See below for arrangements relating to operational bank accounts. 

 

Page 272



 - 11 - 

Registered Providers (unsecured): Loans and bonds issued by, guaranteed by or 
secured on the assets of Registered Providers of Social Housing and registered social 
landlords, formerly known as Housing Associations.  These bodies are regulated by 
the Regulator of Social Housing (in England) and, as providers of public services, they 
retain the likelihood of receiving government support if needed.   
 
Money market funds: Pooled funds that offer same-day or short notice liquidity and 
very low or no price volatility by investing in short-term money markets. They have the 
advantage over bank accounts of providing wide diversification of investment risks, 
coupled with the services of a professional fund manager in return for a small fee. 
Although no sector limit applies to money market funds, the Council will take care to 
diversify its liquid investments over a variety of providers to ensure access to cash at 
all times.  
 
Strategic pooled funds: Bond, equity and property funds that offer enhanced returns 
over the longer term but are more volatile in the short term.  These allow the Council 
to diversify into asset classes other than cash without the need to own and manage 
the underlying investments. Because these funds have no defined maturity date, but 
are available for withdrawal after a notice period, their performance and continued 
suitability in meeting the Council’s investment objectives will be monitored regularly. 
 
Other investments: This category covers treasury investments not listed above, for 
example unsecured corporate bonds and company loans. Non-bank companies 
cannot be bailed-in but can become insolvent placing the Council’s investment at risk.  
 
Operational bank accounts: The Council will incur operational exposures, through 
operation of it’s current account with National Westminster Bank (credit rating above 
A-). These are not classed as investments, but are still subject to the risk of a bank 
bail-in, and balances will therefore be kept below £250,000 which may for operational 
reasons be occassionally exceeded.  
 
Risk Assessment and Credit Ratings: Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by 
the Councl’s treasury advisers, who will notify changes in ratings as they occur. 
Where an entity has its credit rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the approved 
investment criteria then: 

 

 no new investment will be made 

 any existing investment that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be, and 

 full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing 
investments with the affected counterparty 

 
Where a credit rating agency announces that a credit rating is on review for possible 
downgrade so that it may fall below the approved rating criteria, then only investments 
that can be withdrawn (on the next working day) will be made with that organisation 
until the outcome of the review is announced. This policy will not apply to negative 
outlooks, which indicate a long-term direction of travel rather than an imminent change 
of rating. 

 
Other Information on the Security of Investments : the Council understands that 
credit ratings are useful, but not perfect, predictors of investment default. Full regard 

Page 273



 - 12 - 

will therefore be given to other available information on the credit quality of the 
organisations, in which it invests, including credit default swaps, share prices, 
information on government support for banks and reports in the quality financial press 
and analysis and advice from the Council’s treasury management adviser. No 
investments will be made with an organisation if there are substantive doubts about its 
credit quality, even though it may otherwise meet the above criteria. When 
deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all 
organisations, as happened in 2008 and 2020, this is not generally reflected in credit 
ratings, but can be seen in other market measures. In these circumstances, the 
Council will restrict its investments to those organisations of higher credit quality and 
reduce the maximum duration of its investments to maintain the required level of 
security. The extent of these restrictions will be in line with prevailing financial market 
conditions. If these restrictions mean that insufficient commercial organisations of high 
credit quality are available to invest the Authority’s cash balances, then the surplus will 
be deposited with the UK Government, or with other local authorities.  This will cause 
investment returns to fall but will protect the principal sum invested. 

 
2.2.6 Treasury Management Indicators  

 2.2.6.1 Interest Rate Exposures  
This indicator measures the Council’s exposure to interest rate risk. The limits on one-
year revenue impact of a 1% rise or fall in interest rates will be: 
 

Interest rate exposures 2023/24

£'000

Limits on one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise in interest rates 23

Limits on one-year revenue impact of a 1% fall in interest rates (23)

 
 

The impact of a change in interest rates is calculated on the assumption that maturing 
loans and investments will be replaced at new market rates. 
 
 

 2.2.6.2 Maturity Structure of Borrowing 
 

This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to refinancing risk i.e the risk of 
replacement loans being unavailable. The upper and lower limits on the maturity 
structure of borrowing will be: 

 

2023/24 2023/24

Lower Upper

Refinancing risk indicator

Under 12 months 0% 25%

12 months to 2 years 0% 25%

2 years to 5 years 0% 25%

5 years to 10 years 0% 20%

10 years to 30 years 0% 20%

30 years to 50 years 30% 50%

 

Page 274



 - 13 - 

 
 (NB Time periods start on the first day of each financial year) 

 
2.2.6.3 Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than 364 days 
The purpose of this indicator is to control the Council’s exposure to the risk of 
incurring losses by seeking early repayment of its investments. The limits on the long-
term principal sum invested to final maturities beyond the year end will be: 

 

2023/243 2024/25 2025/26

Estimate Estimate Estimate

£m £m £m

Principal sums invested > 364 days 5.0 5.0 5.0

Maximum principal sums invested

>365 days

 
2.2.7  Other Items 
 
 2.2.7.1 Other Options Considered 

The CIPFA Code does not prescribe any particular treasury management strategy for 
local authorities to adopt. The S151 Officer believes that the above strategy 
represents an appropriate balance between risk management and cost effectiveness.  
Some alternative strategies, with their financial and risk management implications, are 
listed below. 

 

Alternative Impact on income and 
expenditure 

Impact on risk 
management 

Invest in a narrower range 
of counterparties and/or 
for shorter times 

Interest income will be 
lower 

Lower chance of losses 
from credit related 
defaults, but any such 
losses may be greater 

Invest in a wider range of 
counterparties and/or for 
longer times 

Interest income will be 
higher 

Increased risk of losses 
from credit related 
defaults, but any such 
losses may be smaller 

Borrow additional sums at 
long-term fixed interest 
rates 

Debt interest costs will 
rise; this is unlikely to be 
offset by higher 
investment income 

Higher investment balance 
leading to a higher impact 
in the event of a default; 
however long-term interest 
costs may be more certain 

Borrow short-term or 
variable loans instead of 
long-term fixed rates 

Debt interest costs will 
initially be lower 

Increases in debt interest 
costs will be broadly offset 
by rising investment 
income in the medium 
term, but long-term costs 
may be less certain  

Reduce level of borrowing  Saving on debt interest is 
likely to exceed lost 
investment income 

Reduced investment 
balance leading to a lower 
impact in the event of a 
default; however long-term 
interest costs may be less 
certain 

Page 275



 - 14 - 

2.2.7.2 Investment Training 
The training needs of the officers involved on treasury management are identified 
through the annual personal review process, and additionally when the responsibilities 
of individual members of staff change. Staff attend relevant training courses, seminars 
and conferences. 

 
2.2.7.3 Treasury management consultants 
The Council have appointed Arlingclose Limited as its external treasury management 
advisors and they provide a range of services to the Council including:  

 
• Investments advice 
• Borrowing advice 
• Technical support on treasury matters and capital finance issues 
• Economic and interest rate analysis 
• Training and briefing sessions 

 
The contract with Arlinclose commenced July 2016 for an initial period of 3 years with 
an option to extend for a further year. The option to extend has been taken. A further 
series of contract extensions have subsequently been agreed. A joint procurement 
with Portsmouth City and Council and Isle of Wight Council is currently being 
undertaken  for a new 3 year (with the option to extend the term by a further 2 years) 
Treasury Management  Consultancy contract commencing in the Summer of 2023. 
 
The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions 
remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not 
placed upon our external service providers. 

 

2.2.7.4 Policy on Apportioning Interest to the HRA 

On 1st April 2012, the Council notionally split each of its existing long-term loans into 
General Fund and HRA pools the later included £57million borrowed on the 28th 
March 2012 to make a payment to the Government under the HRA Self Financing 
scheme. In the future, new long-term loans borrowed will be assigned in their entirety 
to one pool or the other. Interest payable and other costs/income arising from long-
term loans (e.g. premiums and discounts on early redemption) will be 
charged/credited to the respective revenue account. Differences between the value of 
the HRA loans and the HRA’s underlying need to borrow will be charged an interest 
from the General Fund equivalent to the General Funds average interest on its 
borrowing. HRA balance sheet resources available for investment will result in a 
notional cash balance which will receive the Council’s average interest rate on 
investments.   

 

2.2.7.5 Markets in Financial Instruments Directive: 

The Council has opted up to professional client status with it’s providers of financial 
services, including advisers, banks, brokers and fund managers, allowing it access to 
a greater range of services but without the greater regulatory protections afforded to 
individuals and small companies. With the recent increase in borrowing costs together 
with the requirement to maintain at least £10 million investment balances to maintain 

Page 276



 - 15 - 

MIFID status the  the S151 Officer will keep this decision under review and may elect 
for retail client status if this is considered more appropriate to the Council’s position.  

 

2.2.7.6 Financial Implications 

The budget for investment income in 2023/24 is £158,100, based on an average 
investment portfolio of £10 million at an interest rate of 2.5%.  The budget for debt 
interest paid in 2023/24 is £1,950,700, based on an average debt portfolio of 
£58,200,000 at an average interest rate of 3.35%. If actual levels of investments and 
borrowing, or actual interest rates, differ from those forecast, performance against 
budget will be correspondingly different. 

 

3.0 CONCLUSION 

The effect of the proposals set out in this report is to allow the Council to effectively 
and efficiently manage cash balances in line with the relevant CIPFA and MHCLG 
guidance. The low risk nature of the Council’s current policy is consistent with the 
current economic climate.  
 

 

Financial Services 
comments 

As set out in the report 

Legal Services comments This report fulfils the Council’s 
legal obligation under the Local 
Government Act 2003 to have 
regard to the CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code of Practice. 

Equality and Diversity N/A 

Climate Change No direct impact 

Crime and Disorder N/A 

Service Improvement Plan  
 

N/A 

Corporate Plan: N/A 

Risk Assessment: As contained in the report 

Background papers:  

Appendix  
 

N/A 

Report Author/Lead 
OfficerLead Officer 

Keith Price 

 
 

Page 277



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

Board/Committee: POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD 

Date of meeting: MARCH 15TH 2023 

Title: GBC Waterfront (Bus Station) Redevelopment - Dedication of 
Council Freehold Land as Public Highway to Facilitate 
Construction and Operation of New Bus Station. 

Author: Julie Smith, Head of Housing, Gosport Borough Council 

Status: FOR DECISION 

 

Purpose 

This Report sets out the details of the Council's proposed dedication of land to 
become public highway at Mumby Road and South Street, to facilitate the 
construction and operation of the new bus station, taxi rank, drop-off & short-term 
parking. 

Recommendation 

That the Council: 

i) Approve the dedication of the four areas of land indicated on the two 
drawings at Appendix 2 as public highway. 
 

ii) Grant delegated authority to the Chief Executive Officer and Borough 
Solicitor & Monitoring Officer to conclude negotiations and agree 
details associated with i) above and complete the transaction. 

 

1.0 Background 
 

1.1 On 17th March 2021 the Council's Economic Development Board approved 
the acquisition of a small area of freehold land from Premier Marinas to 
facilitate the construction of the new bus station.  The area of land is 
shown on the plan at Appendix 1. 
 

1.2 The Council already held the freehold interest in the land fronting Mumby 
Road and South Street adjacent to and including the site of the current bus 
station.  
 

1.3 The Council, working with Hampshire County Council (HCC) the project 
lead for the new bus station, has always recognised that certain small 
areas of Council land will need to be dedicated as public highway as part 
of the new bus station development.  The dedication ensures that going 
forward, the subject land will be maintainable by the Highway Authority, not 
at the Council's expense.  The Council will however retain the freehold 
interest in the land and thus if the highway rights are removed at some 
future date, the land will remain in the Council's ownership 
 

  

Page 279

Agenda Item 12



 

 

 
2.0 Report 

 
2.1 Following HCC recently concluding the detailed design of the new bus 

station, the four areas of land for dedication as public highway have now 
been accurately determined and are shown on the two plans at Appendix 
2. 
 

2.2 There are no financial implications for the Council in connection with the 
dedication of these small areas of land or their subsequent maintenance. 
 

  
 

3.0 Conclusion 
 

3.1 The dedication of the land indicated at Appendix 2 is key to the delivery 
and operation of the new bus station.  This has been the case since project 
commencement however the full extent of these areas is only now known 
following completion of the detailed design by HCC. 
 

 

Financial Services comments:  
Contained within the report  
 

Legal Services comments: The proposal is within the scope of the 
authority and the delegation enables matters to 
proceed- the authority may proceed upon a 
competent basis. 

Equality and Diversity:  
 
 

Climate Change implications: This proposal is in accordance with the 
Council's Climate Change Strategy 2022. 
 

Crime and Disorder: No crime and disorder impacts. 
 

Corporate Plan: The redevelopment of the Waterfront (Bus 
Station) site is a Council priority, enabling the 
delivery of modern, transformational bus, 
pedestrian, ferry, taxi and cycling facilities at 
the Borough's key transportation hub.  In turn 
the delivery releases the existing bus station 
site to facilitate the final stage of the 
redevelopment and regeneration of the town 
centre & waterfront area. 
 

Risk Assessment: Failure to dedicate the land would severely 
complicate future repair arrangements and 
result in the Council being responsible for the 

Page 280



 

 

future maintenance of the land and the 
accompanying ongoing liabilities.  The Council 
would also have to grant formal access rights, 
public and private, to adjacent land owners and 
to protect the Council's land interests going 
forward. 
 

Background Papers: 
 

Adopted Local Plan and SPD. 
 

Appendices: Appendix 1.  Plan showing area of land 
recently acquired from Premier Marinas 
(coloured yellow).   
Appendix 2.  2 No HCC Plans each marked 
'Appendix 2' showing the four areas of land to 
be dedicated as public highway.  
 

Report Author/Lead Officer: Martin Harvey, Portsmouth City Council. 
Andrew Broster, Gosport Borough Council. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 281



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 282



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 283



This page is intentionally left blank



PCs

 H
ig

h
 W

a
te

r

W
a
te

r

PC

Car Park

8

78

2

TCBs

Gosport Bus Station

Office
Tourist Information

FB

S
lo

p
in

g
 m

a
so

n
ry

1 to 6

S
M

Charles House

5

War Meml

Stone

3

Yachtsman

1
 t
o
 6

(War Meml)

Fn

Clock Tower

Gardens
Falklands

ESS

Shelter

The

LB

PH

1

S
l o

p
i n

g
 m

a
so

n
ry

Memorial

ESS

7

FB

King Charles's Fort

(site of)

Q
U

A
Y

 L
A

N
E

FB

S
M

Posts

Car Park

arterdeck

Line Of Posts

TCB

El

9 to 15

Warrior Court

Sub Sta

73

69

93

5 56 to 59

96
95

62

H
o

b
b

s
 P

a
s
sa

g
e

94
97

Car Park

Posts

El Sub Sta

MUMBY ROAD

El Sub Sta

14

87

10

84 to 86

80
81 to 83

Posts

Car Park

94c

94b

92 91

Posts

© Crown copyright and database right.  Ordnance Survey Licence Number: 100019671 (2020)

GBC Bus Station, Mumby Road.

PCC Regeneration

Land Acquired from Premier Marinas.
1:1250

08/02/2023Geographic Information Service

Prepared for:

Prepared by:

Title:
Drg No:

Date:

Scale:

N

143eepr

Page 285



This page is intentionally left blank



HP688055 Gosport

Borough Council

HP710342

Gosport Borough Council

87m²

99m²

0m 10m 25m 50m 100m

DO NOT SCALE

THIS MAP IS REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH

THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE

CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE. © CROWN

COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN

COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.

License No. 1000 19180

Copyright   C   Atkins Limited (2022)

County Gate, County Way

Trowbridge, Wiltshire England

BA14 7FJ

United Kingdom

www.atkinsglobal.com

Tel:

Fax:

+44 (0)1225 730360

+44 (0)

County Council
Hampshire

STUART JARVIS BSc DipTP FCIHT MRTPI: DIRECTOR OF ECONOMY, TRANSPORT & ENVIRONMENT

Area of land to be dedicated to HCC as

Highway

Scale

Drawing Title

Project Title

Original Size

A3

1:1250

Key

Location Plan

1:5000

Existing Highway Boundary

GOSPORT BUS STATION

HIGHWAY DEDICATION PLAN

Drawing No.

HCCSPCO-ATK-HGN-C591-DR-CH-1007

A

3

2

 

M

u

m

b

y

 

R

o

a

d

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t

T
h
e
 E

s
p
la

n
a
d
e

S

t

r

e

e

t

S

o

u

t

h

Gosport

Ferry

Marina

P
age 287



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HP135197

Premier Marinas

(Gosport) Ltd

96m²

HP710342

Gosport Borough Council

HP695307

Gosport Borough Council

HP700208

Gosport Borough Council

593m²

3m²

49m²

HP700208

Gosport Borough Council

3m²

0m 10m 25m 50m 100m

HP700208

Gosport Borough Council

0.4m²

DO NOT SCALE

THIS MAP IS REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH

THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE

CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE. © CROWN

COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN

COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.

License No. 1000 19180

Copyright   C   Atkins Limited (2022)

County Gate, County Way

Trowbridge, Wiltshire England

BA14 7FJ

United Kingdom

www.atkinsglobal.com

Tel:

Fax:

+44 (0)1225 730360

+44 (0)

County Council
Hampshire

STUART JARVIS BSc DipTP FCIHT MRTPI: DIRECTOR OF ECONOMY, TRANSPORT & ENVIRONMENT

Area of land to be dedicated to HCC as

Highway

Scale

Drawing Title

Project Title

Original Size

A3

1:1250

Key

Location Plan

1:5000

Existing Highway Boundary

GOSPORT BUS STATION

HIGHWAY DEDICATION PLAN

Drawing No.

HCCSPCO-ATK-HGN-C591-DR-CH-1005

A

3

2

 

M

u

m

b

y

 

R

o

a

d

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t

T
h
e
 E

s
p
la

n
a
d
e

S

t

r

e

e

t

S

o

u

t

h

Gosport

Ferry

Marina

Denotes repairing liability

P
age 289



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

  
  
  

Board/Committee: Policy and Organisation Board 

Date of Meeting: 15th March 2023  

Title: Consultation draft Statement of Community Involvement  

Author: Manager of Planning Policy 

Status: For Decision 

  
  

PURPOSE 
 To seek Members’ approval to undertake public consultation on a draft 

Statement of Consultation.  
  
 RECOMMENDATION 
 That this Board: 

 
- Approves the draft Statement of Community Involvement (as set 

out in Appendix 1 to this Report) for public consultation 
purposes.  

1 Background 
  
1.1 The preparation of a Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) is a 

requirement of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
Furthermore, the Localism Act 2011 emphasises the importance of 
community involvement in the planning system, and of enabling 
communities to make a significant contribution towards shaping the places 
where they live. 

  
1.2 The SCI sets out how the Council as the Local Planning Authority involves 

local residents, businesses and other interested parties in the relevant 
stages of the plan-making process, other planning policy documents and 
the development management process. 

  
1.3 In accordance with the provisions of the 2004 Act and associated 

Regulations, the Council adopted its first SCI in 2007. There have been two 
subsequent reviews in 2012 and 2019. The Council is required to review 
this document at least every five years or when there have been significant 
changes in the way it consults the public. 

  
2 The draft Statement of Community Involvement Report  
  
2.1 The draft SCI is included in this report in Appendix 1. It sets out the key 

principles for community involvement and the type of planning policy 
documents that will be consulted on including the consultation 
arrangements for: 
 

  the draft Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038; 

Page 291

Agenda Item 13



2 
 

 other planning policy documents, for example supplementary 
planning documents and the Community Infrastructure Levy 
Charging Schedule; and 

 planning applications and other development management matters. 
 

2.2 The document sets out the statutory requirements for consultation for each 
type of planning policy document and also includes the types of methods of 
consultation which can be considered. The consultation arrangements take 
into account the General Data Protection Regulations 2018 (as amended).  
 

2.3 It also sets out changes in the consultation procedures to the preparation 
of a draft Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule. The 
Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) (England) (No.2) Regulations 
2019 now requires only one formal round of public consultation from the 
previous two rounds. Other changes to the draft SCI since the adopted 
2019 document relate to the Council’s Coastline magazine which has 
moved from paper and online formats to online only. Local improvements 
to communication such as use of the Council’s Facebook, Twitter e-alerts 
system to promote further digital engagement in the plan-making process 
have also been taken into account. The SCI recognises that not all 
members of the local community will have access to digital platforms or 
wish to engage with the plan-making process in that way and therefore the 
draft SCI also includes consideration of more traditional forms of public 
engagement such as exhibitions in local venues, site notices, consultation 
letters and face-to-face meetings as part of the potential suite of 
consultation options the Council can utilise.  
 

2.4 The draft SCI itself will be subject to public consultation. The Council would 
normally undertake consultation over a six week period, however due to 
the Easter school holiday period, it is proposed to extend the consultation 
period for a further two week period with the consultation period 
commencing on 24th March and ending on 19th May 2023.  

  
2.5 The draft SCI will be published on the Council’s website and e- notification 

letters (and where necessary printed letters) will be sent out to those 
specific consultation bodies as set out in Appendix 1 of the draft SCI and to 
other organisations and individuals on the Council’s Local Plan 
Consultation Database.  

  
3 Next steps 
  
3.1 Following consultation, a Schedule of Responses to those representations 

received will be prepared to accompany a revised SCI which will be 
reported to Board for Members to approve for adoption.  

  
4 Risk Assessment 
 
4.1 

 
SCIs now have to be reviewed at least every five years under the 
provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) 
(England)(Amendment) Regulations 2017. Failure to prepare an updated 

Page 292



3 
 

version of the SCI could leave the Council open to a legal challenge with 
regard to the preparation of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 and the 
new Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule as they proceed 
towards submission and examination.  

  
 

Financial Services 
comments: 

None arising from this report 

Legal Services 
comments: 

None received 

Equality and 
Diversity: 

The preparation of the SCI will ensure that all 
members of the Gosport community have an 
opportunity to be involved in the preparation of the 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038, other related 
planning documents and the development 
management process. An Equalities Impact 
Assessment has been prepared and relevant actions 
incorporated into the SCI. 

Climate Change: See IIA (Appendix 2) 

Crime and Disorder See IIA (Appendix 2) 

Council Plan: The SCI will help to facilitate greater participation in 
the planning process in line with the core values of 
the Council Plan. 

Risk Assessment: See Section 4 

Background papers: None. 

Appendices Appendix 1: Statement of Community Involvement: 
Consultation Draft (March 2023)  
Appendix 2: Integrated Impact Assessment 

Report author/ Lead 
Officer: 

Kim Catt, Senior Planning Officer  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 293



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 295



 

Gosport Borough Council 

 

Statement of Community Involvement 2023 
Consultation Draft 

 

This revised draft Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) was approved by the 

Council’s Policy and Organisation Board for public consultation purposes on 15th March 

2023. 

The consultation period runs from 24th March until 19th May 2023 

Comments on the draft SCI must be made in writing and can be submitted using either the 

online comments form; or alternatively there is a printable form that can be downloaded 

from www.gosport.gov.uk/SCI/consultation and emailed to the Planning Policy Team at: 

planningpolicyconsultation@gosport.gov.uk or post to: 

The Planning Policy Team 

Planning and Regeneration Services 

Gosport Borough Council 

Town Hall, High Street 

Gosport, PO12 1EB. 

 

Paper copies of the draft SCI and response forms are also available from the Town Hall, the 

Discovery Centre, Bridgemary Library, and the community library hubs at Elson and Lee-on-

the-Solent. 

 

 

March 2023 

 

Gosport Borough Council is committed to equal opportunities for all. If you 

need this document in large print, on tape, CD, in Braille or in another 

language please ask.

Page 296

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/SCI/consultation
mailto:planningpolicyconsultation@gosport.gov.uk


Contents  

1 Introduction .........................................................................................................................................................7 

2 Principles of Community Involvement ............................................................................................... 8 

3 Consultation Considerations for Planning Policy Documents .............................................. 9 

What are the Council’s legal responsibilities? ............................................................................... 9 

General Data Protection Regulations 2018 (as amended) ............................................................. 9 

Duty to Cooperate and Statement of Common Ground ................................................................ 9 

Who will be consulted? ................................................................................................................ 11 

How will the local community be involved? ................................................................................ 11 

What documents will the community be consulted on? ............................................................. 13 

4 Development Plan Documents (DPDs) ............................................................................................. 15 

Local Plan ...................................................................................................................................... 15 

Local Plan process and key consultation stages ........................................................................... 15 

Other specific consultation undertaken as part of Local Plan preparation ................................. 19 

How will the Borough Council deal with comments received to the Local Plan? ....................... 20 

Area Action Plans ......................................................................................................................... 21 

Neighbourhood Plans ................................................................................................................... 21 

5 Supplementary Planning Documents ............................................................................................... 23 

6 Other Planning Policy Documents ...................................................................................................... 25 

Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule .................................................................... 25 

Local Development Orders ........................................................................................................... 26 

Conservation Area Appraisals ...................................................................................................... 27 

7 Involvement in the Planning Application Process ..................................................................... 28 

Pre-Applications ........................................................................................................................... 28 

Planning Performance Agreements ............................................................................................. 28 

Planning Applications ................................................................................................................... 29 

Prior approvals ............................................................................................................................. 31 

Brownfield Land Register – Permission in Principle ..................................................................... 32 

How comments are considered ................................................................................................... 32 

What happens after a planning application is determined?........................................................ 33 

Page 297



Appeals ......................................................................................................................................... 33 

Enforcement ................................................................................................................................. 33 

8 Monitor and Review ..................................................................................................................................... 34 

Appendix 1: Consultees for Planning Policy Documents and Planning Applications .... 35 

Local Development Documents ................................................................................................... 35 

Specific Consultation Bodies ........................................................................................................ 35 

Other Consultees .......................................................................................................................... 36 

Planning Applications ................................................................................................................... 36 

Consultees .................................................................................................................................... 36 

Appendix 2: Methods of Consultation on Planning Policy Documents .................................. 38 

The Glossary .............................................................................................................................................................. 42 

 

Page 298



Figures 

Figure 1: Planning Policy Documents ................................................................................................... 14 

 

Tables 

Table 1: Preparation of a draft Local Plan (Regulation 18) .................................................................. 16 

Table 2: Publication of a Local Plan (Regulation 19) ............................................................................ 17 

Table 3: Public Participation on Draft Supplementary Planning Documents (Regulation 12) ............ 23 

Table 4: Public Participation on Draft CIL Charging Schedule (Regulation 16) .................................... 25 

Table 5: Consultation Methods for Planning Applications .................................................................. 29 

Table 6: Consultation Methods for Prior Approvals and Prior Notifications ....................................... 31 

 

Page 299



Abbreviations 

AMR Authority Monitoring Report 

CIL Community Infrastructure Levy 

DPDs Development Plan Documents 

GBLP Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 (adopted 

October 2015) 

GBLP 2038 Draft Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 

GDPR General Data Protection Regulations 

LDO Local Development Order 

LDS Local Development Scheme 

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 

PfSH Partnership for South Hampshire 

SCI Statement of Community Involvement 

SPDs Supplementary Planning Documents 

TPO Tree Preservation Order 

Page 300



Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

7 

1 Introduction 

1.1 The Borough Council’s Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) sets out the consultation 

arrangements for all planning policy documents prepared by the Council and planning 

applications received by the Council. 

1.2 The Localism Act 2011 places closer working with local communities at the heart of the 

planning system in order to shape the places where they want to live, work and play. The 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) published in July 2021 provides the framework 

for local authorities and their local communities to prepare local and neighbourhood plans 

that reflect each area’s own needs and priorities through the local planning process. 

1.3 As part of this process, there is now a requirement for local planning authorities to review 

their SCI’s every five years in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 

Planning (Local Planning) (England) 2012 (as amended). 

1.4 The local planning framework for the Borough is made up of a suite of documents that 

comprise the statutory development plan documents (DPDs), this also includes preparing a 

SCI for the plan area. In addition to the preparation of DPDs, non-statutory local 

development documents can be prepared to support the development plan such as 

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs). 

1.5 This SCI sets out how the Council can involve the local community and other key 

stakeholders in the planning process. The SCI covers a number of key issues including the 

principles of community involvement (Sections 2 - 3). How consultation can be carried out 

and when, what methods of consultation can be used and how comments received will be 

dealt with for planning policy documents (Sections 4 - 6). It sets out the Council’s 

consultation and notification arrangements relating to planning applications (Section 7) and 

identifies management, resource and monitoring matters relating to consultation (Section 8). 

1.6 Locally, Gosport Borough Council is responsible for preparing planning policies and proposals 

for the Borough. These are currently contained in the adopted Gosport Borough Local Plan 

2011-2029. The Council is preparing a revised Local Plan covering the plan period to 2038. 

1.7 The Council is also responsible for determining most planning applications1 within its area. 

Community involvement is essential to this process and has been further strengthened 

through the provisions in the Localism Act 2011.

                                                      
1
 Hampshire County Council determines planning applications covering ‘County Matters’ and proposals for minerals and 

waste. 

Page 301



Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

8 

2 Principles of Community Involvement 

2.1 One of the key aims of the planning system is to strengthen community involvement. Local 

planning authorities should improve opportunities to encourage public involvement in 

drafting planning documents and informing decisions on planning applications. 

2.2 The Borough Council will through the Statement of Community Involvement: 

 Seek to offer a wide range of opportunities to stakeholders and the local community to 

participate in the preparation of local planning documents within the resources available; 

and 

 Comply with, and where practicable exceed, the minimum legal requirements for 

consultation and publicity for planning applications. 

2.3 The key principles of how the Council will involve the local community are set out below: 

 Present information in a clear and effective way;  

 Value the opinions and expertise of stakeholders, groups and individual members of the 

community; 

 Provide different opportunities for people to contribute their ideas and suggestions 

through the use of a variety of appropriate consultation techniques; 

 Ensure fair and equal treatment for all and recognise the value of diversity;  

 Try to ensure that its consultation methods encourage the involvement of people that do 

not normally become involved in the planning process;  

 Involve the public at an early stage in the process; 

 Ensure information is accessible and available in a variety of formats to encourage a wide 

readership and encourage views from all parts of the community; 

 Analyse consultation responses and report them in a clear and understandable way; and 

 Provide feedback about progress and outcomes. 

Page 302



Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

9 

3 Consultation Considerations for Planning Policy 
Documents 

What are the Council’s legal responsibilities? 

General Data Protection Regulations 2018 (as amended) 

3.1 In May 2018 the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) came into force. The GDPR is a 

new European Union wide requirement that works alongside the Data Protection Act 2018 

and replaces the Data Protection Act 1998. It places greater obligations on how organisations 

handle personal data. 

3.2 For planning policy documents, the Council have a Local Plans Consultation Database. 

Individuals or organisations can request to have their contact details added to or removed 

from the Local Plan Consultation Database at any time. The Council will also contact 

members on the database to make sure they still wish to be on the database and to ensure 

individual contact details are still correct. Further information can be found on the Council’s 

website2. 

3.3 The Borough Council is committed to protecting personal data. The Council has a Privacy 

Notice following the implementation of the GDPR which can be viewed on the Council’s 

website3. 

Duty to Cooperate and Statement of Common Ground 

3.4 The Localism Act 2011 sets out the statutory framework regarding the duty to co-operate.  

The duty to co-operate covers a number of public bodies and these are set out in the Town 

and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended). Further 

policy amplification of these requirements are contained in the NPPF 2021 in paragraphs 24-

27)). 

3.5 Local authorities are under a Duty to Co-operate with each other and with other prescribed 

bodies on strategic matters such as housing, economic growth and transport and 

infrastructure provision which have cross-administrative boundary implications for 

development proposals and environmental conservation and enhancement. This needs to be 

undertaken constructively, actively and on an ongoing basis to maximise the effectiveness of 

Local Plan preparation in the context of strategic cross boundary matters. 

3.6 In South Hampshire, there is a long history of cross-boundary working between local 

authorities and their strategic partners. The Borough Council has been a founding member of 

the Partnership for South Hampshire (PfSH) which was formed in 2003. PfSH currently 

                                                      
2
 www.gosport.gov.uk/article/1650/Local-Plan-Consultation-Database-Consent  

3
 www.gosport.gov.uk   

Page 303

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/article/1650/Local-Plan-Consultation-Database-Consent
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/


Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

10 

includes twelve local authorities4 and closely collaborates with the Solent Local Enterprise 

Partnership, the Environment Agency, Natural England and Homes England. Further 

information about PfSH can be found online: www.push.gov.uk 

3.7 Work undertaken by PfSH has been a core element in demonstrating collaborative working 

on strategic cross boundary issues between the various local authorities within the sub-

region. The role of PfSH was a critical element cited in the Council’s Duty to Cooperate 

Statement (2014) produced for the Examination in Public for the current Gosport Borough 

Local Plan 2011-2029. This sets out how the Borough Council works with its neighbouring 

partners and other key organisations on common issues. The Duty to Co-operate Statement 

can be found on the Council’s webpage5. 

3.8 In June 2016 the South Hampshire Spatial Position Statement (SPS) was published setting out 

development targets for each Council to 2034. The SPS is based on significant cross-

boundary evidence and assists local authorities to meet the duty to cooperate on strategic 

and cross boundary matters. Work is now on-going by the PfSH authorities to meet the 

current identified unmet housing requirement across the sub-region. 

3.9 The NPPF (2021) introduces the requirement to prepare a Statement of Common Ground 

which will document the cross-boundary matters being addressed and setting out progress 

made in co-operating to address these issues. The Statement of Common Ground will be 

made publicly available to view as part of the plan-making process. 

3.10 Statements of common ground are prepared and maintained on an on-going basis 

throughout the plan making process. The advice in the Planning Practice Guidance is that as 

a minimum these statements should be published when the area covered and the 

governance arrangements for the co-operation process have been identified and the 

substantive matters to be addressed have been determined. The Statement of Common 

Ground can then be used to identify any outstanding matters that will need to be addressed 

and the process for reaching agreements and where possible an indication of when such 

statements are likely to be updated. The Statement of Common Ground also forms part of 

the evidence required to demonstrate that the local authority has complied with the duty to 

co-operate. 

3.11 The PfSH are now preparing a new spatial strategy which will form the basis of a multi-lateral 

Statement of Common Ground. A copy of the latest Statement of Common Ground is 

available on the PfSH website6. 

                                                      
4
 East Hampshire District Council (part); Eastleigh Borough Council; Fareham Borough Council; Gosport Borough 

Council; Hampshire County Council (part) ; Havant Borough Council;; New Forest District Council; New Forest National 
Park Authority; Portsmouth City Council; Southampton City Council; Test Valley Borough Council (part); Winchester City 
Council (part). 
5
 www.gosport.gov.uk/localplan2029-evidencestudies (Document number: LP/A4/5). 

6
 www.push.gov.uk/work/planning-and-infrastructure/  

Page 304

http://www.push.gov.uk/
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/localplan2029-evidencestudies
http://www.push.gov.uk/work/planning-and-infrastructure/


Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

11 

3.12 The Council has also signed a Statement of Common Ground with Fareham Borough Council 

relating to the Fareham Borough Local Plan 2037 in February 2022 and this is available online 

(document FBC039): 

www.fareham.gov.uk/planning/local_plan/examination/examinationlibrary.aspx   

3.13 The Statement of Common Ground in relation to the emerging Local Plan will be published 

once the draft Local Plan has reached the Regulation 19 stage in order to show how 

collaborative working has been undertaken and be kept up to date. 

Who will be consulted? 

3.14 Current Government regulations require that the Borough Council consults particular 

organisations during the preparation of planning policy documents. Appendix 1 provides 

further detail about the types of organisations we consult including the statutory consultees. 

3.15 During the plan-making process the Council will consult with a wide range of different people 

and organisations. This includes: 

 local residents 

 local businesses 

 community groups and voluntary organisations 

 local societies and interest groups 

 national charity groups  

 infrastructure providers 

 statutory bodies and Government organisations (such as Historic England, Natural 

England) 

 neighbouring local authorities 

 landowners 

 developers 

3.16 The Council maintains a database of organisations and individuals that have registered an 

interest in being consulted on the Local Plan and other Development Plan Documents and 

Local Development Documents such as supplementary planning documents and the SCI. The 

database includes a number of businesses, developers and local interest groups. The 

database is reviewed during the different stages of plan preparation to ensure it is as up to 

date as possible. The inclusion of additional contacts is welcomed at all stages of the process. 

How will the local community be involved? 

3.17 There are a number of potential consultation techniques that could be used for all or various 

parts of the Local Plan and other associated planning documents. These are outlined in 

Appendix 2. 

Page 305

http://www.fareham.gov.uk/planning/local_plan/examination/examinationlibrary.aspx


Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

12 

3.18 The preferred methods of consultation for each part of the preparation process will also 

depend on a number of factors including: 

 Issues raised by a particular Development Plan Document (DPD) or Supplementary 

Planning Document (SPD); 

 Geographical coverage of the document; 

 The stage of preparation; and 

 Availability of resources (including financial constraints, staff and premises). 

3.19 The Council recognises the value and importance of public consultation throughout the 

planning process. In order to achieve this, the Council may need to provide additional 

support to certain groups or individuals who wish to participate (including methods set out 

in Appendix 2). This involves the consideration of different venues, consultation times and 

alternative formats for documentation as described in paragraph 3.25 of this document. 

3.20 Groups or individuals seeking assistance in accessing these documents can contact the 

Planning Policy Section either by telephone on 02392 545461, or by email on 

planning.policy@gosport.gov.uk or come to the Main Reception area at the Town Hall in 

Gosport. 

3.21 In addition the Council works in partnership with the voluntary and community sector to 

improve understanding, coordination and cross-sector partnership working. 

3.22 Consultation arrangements on the Local Plan or other planning policy documents will be 

approved by either the appropriate Board or Full Council7 at the same time the document 

itself is approved for consultation purposes.   

3.23 The Planning Policy Team will work with the Council’s Media and Communications Team and 

other Council Sections as appropriate. 

3.24 The Council will have regard to Government guidance and best practice carried out by other 

local planning authorities. Wherever possible the Council will use local expertise to develop 

and conduct its consultation exercises for example the production of publicity material, 

exhibitions, PowerPoint presentations and maps. From time to time the Council may buy-in 

relevant expertise for certain aspects of the consultation process; this could include 

workshop facilitators or trainers to enable staff to manage and conduct workshops or apply 

other techniques.  

                                                      
7 

The pre-submission version of a DPD will need to be approved by Full Council. 

Page 306

mailto:planning.policy@gosport.gov.uk


Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

13 

3.25 The Council wishes to make its consultation processes as inclusive as possible and gather a 

diverse range of views. This can be achieved by using a range of different consultation 

techniques and will also consider the following: 

 Venues 

o Physically accessible (to comply with the Equality Act 2010 or equivalent Act); 

o Accessible by public transport; and 

o Near to main populations. 

 Consultation times 

o Different times of the day; and 

o Different days of the week. 

 Format 

o Braille, CD and tape versions upon request; 

o Other languages upon request; 

o Large print version upon request; and 

o Website. 

3.26 The Gosport Access Group and Disability Forum are able to provide advice on improving the 

accessibility of consultation processes and procedures for disabled persons. 

What documents will the community be consulted on? 

3.27 There are a number of different types of Planning Policy documents which can be consulted 

on including Development Plan Documents (DPDs) such as the Local Plan, Area Action Plans, 

and Neighbourhood Plans (where these are appropriate) and Supplementary Planning 

Documents (SPDs). 

3.28 In addition to these, there are a number of other planning policy related documents such as 

the Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule, Local Development Orders and 

Conservation Area Appraisals. A brief explanation of the purpose of these documents and 

the consultation arrangements are set out below. 

3.29 Figure 1 aims to identify the range of documents that make up the proposed planning policy 

documents and identifies which of these are subject to public consultation. 

Page 307



Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

14 

Figure 1: Planning Policy Documents 

Page 308



Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

15 

4 Development Plan Documents (DPDs) 

Local Plan 

4.1 The Local Plan sets out Gosport Borough Council’s planning strategy for the Borough. It is the 

key part of the statutory Development Plan8 for the Gosport area. Local Plans incorporate a 

number of elements including the following: 

 Provide an overall vision for the Borough; 

 Set out the Council’s core policies for land use and development planning during the plan 

period; 

 It will set out the Council’s proposals and policies for the allocation of key land uses in the 

Borough such as employment, housing, retail and leisure uses; 

 Safeguards important land required for open space, community facilities and nature 

conservations; 

 Includes policies to promote good design and safeguard the Borough’s rich heritage; 

 It includes infrastructure requirements in connection with development proposals; and 

 It will include detailed development management policies that will be used to assess 

planning applications and other development proposals. 

4.2 The current Local Plan covers the period 2011-2029 (and was adopted in October 2015). This 

plan is currently being revised and the draft Gosport Borough Local Plan will cover the period 

to 2038. 

Local Plan process and key consultation stages 

4.3 The key stages of the preparation of the Local Plan are set out in the Town and Country 

Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended). In summary these are 

set out in stages: 

 Regulation 18: Public participation in the preparation of a Local Plan9; 

 Regulation 19 and 2010: Publication of a Local Plan and making representations; 

 Regulation 22: Submission of documents to the Secretary of State; 

 Regulations 23-25: Examination process; and  

 Regulation 26: Adoption of Local Plan.  

                                                      
8 

The Development Plan also includes the relevant Waste and Mineral Plans produced by Hampshire County Council, 
Southampton and Portsmouth City Councils, New Forest Park Authority, South Downs Park Authority. 
9
 Or other Development Plan Document such as an Area Action Plan. 

10
 Under Regulation 20 opportunity to make representations on the draft plan will be over a six week consultation 

period. 

Page 309



Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

16 

4.4 Those stages in plan preparation that are subject to public consultation are expected to 

exceed the minimum requirements. The details for this are set out in the tables below: 

 Preparation/Publication of draft plan (Regulation 18) (see Table 1). 

 Publication of Pre submission plan (Regulation 19) (see Table 2). 

4.5 The Council has undertaken a Regulation 18 consultation for its emerging Gosport Borough 

Local Plan 2038 which accorded with the 2019 adopted version of the SCI. If the Council 

decided to undertake any additional Regulation 18 consultation, this would be in accordance 

with the 2023 SCI. 

Table 1: Preparation of a draft Local Plan (Regulation 18) 

Aim: To establish community views on draft planning policies that will guide the future 
development of the Borough and provide the opportunity for feedback to be incorporated in the 
next stage of the process. 

Requirements: Regulation 18 in the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 
Regulations 2012 (as amended) sets out the requirements on who is consulted but does not set a 
formal time period for consultation. Consequently the local planning authority has greater flexibility 
on how it can consult the public at this stage. 

Consultation period: At least 6 weeks consultation on draft local plan. A number of stakeholders 
will be consulted informally in advance of the publication of the draft as part of the evidence 
gathering stage and/or as part of the Duty to Cooperate and the Statement of Common Ground 
obligations. 

Consultees: Those specific consultation bodies identified in the Town and Country Planning (Local 
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended). The list of these consultees and other relevant 
general consultation bodies as described in the 2012 Regulations are listed in Appendix 1 and the 
types of consultees included in paragraph 3.15 of the SCI11. 

Minimum consultation requirements: 

 Letters either by post or electronic communication to all statutory consultees and other 
interested parties who requested to be kept informed on the draft Local Plan. 

 Documents with questionnaires made available at Council Offices, the Gosport Discovery Centre 
and Bridgemary Library. Other appropriate sites will be considered. 

 Copy of the document and associated documents on: www.gosport.gov.uk/gblp2038  

Discretionary consultation measures that the Council may consider appropriate: 

 Events: These can enable participants to explore issues and options in more depth. These events 
may require active community participation at a local public venue.  Exercises could include 
‘Planning for Real’ or ‘Enquiry by Design’. 

 Workshops/Focus Groups/other ‘Active’ type sessions may also be depending on the nature and 
scope of document and the resources and time available. 

                                                      
11

 The Council regularly updates the Local Plan Consultation database to reflect changes to the list of consultees as 
appropriate. 

Page 310

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/gblp2038


Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

17 

 One to one meetings with local amenity groups and other organisations. 

 Exhibitions at a network of venues including Council Offices and the local community libraries at 
Elson and Lee-on-the-Solent as well as other sites where appropriate. Some exhibitions may be 
staffed at notified times. 

 Site notices in relation to development allocations that are not subject to a planning consent or 
a ‘live’ planning application. 

 Articles in the Council’s on-line ‘Coastline’ and on the Invest in Gosport website. 

 Summary Leaflets/Posters to raise awareness of consultation. 

 Press release. 

 Media briefing. 

 Use of Council’s social media as a signpost to relevant consultation pages12. 

4.6 After the public consultation period closes, the Borough Council will carefully consider all 

representations received and they will inform any amendments to the Local Plan. The 

Council will publish a summary and consideration of representations received as well as full 

copies of the representations received. Contact details will be redacted when published 

online although hard copies will retain address details. 

Table 2: Publication of a Local Plan (Regulation 19) 

Aim: To establish community views on the Publication version of the draft Local Plan prior to formal 
submission of proposals to the Secretary of State for examination. 

Requirements: Under Regulation 19 as set out in the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) 
(England) Regulations 2012 (as amended). 

Consultation period: There is a formal six week consultation period to make representations on the 
draft Local Plan. 

Consultees: Statutory consultees as set out in the Government Regulations (Reg.18 (1) and other 
relevant consultees on the Council’s Local Plan Consultation database (see Appendix 1) and the 
types of consultees included in paragraph 3.15 of the SCI 13. 

Minimum consultation requirements:  

 Formal letters either by post or electronic communication to statutory consultees  

 Documents with comments form made available at Council Offices as well as the Gosport 
Discovery Centre and Bridgemary Library. Other appropriate sites will be considered. 

                                                      
12

 The Council will make use of social media where appropriate and will post information on Facebook, Twitter and 
other social media platforms to promote consultations. Such posts will signpost users to the appropriate Council’s 
webpage. At Regulation 18 stage only comments posted to the Council’s social media pages will be considered. Those 
posted to external pages will not be taken into account. During the formal consultation stages (Regulation 19), 
representations will not be able to be accepted via social media as these need to be duly made in order to submit to 
the Planning Inspector to be examined. Those making posts to GBC social media pages at the Regulation 19 stage will 
be advised of the need to make a formal representation. 
13

 The Council regularly updates the Local Plan Consultation database to reflect changes to the list of consultees as 
appropriate. 

Page 311



Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

18 

 Copy of document with comments form at: www.gosport.gov.uk/gblp2038 

Discretionary consultation measures that exceed the minimum statutory consultation 
requirements that the Council may consider appropriate (see Appendix 2): 

 Letters to other relevant consultees.  

 Site notices in relation to development allocations that are not subject to a planning consent 
or a ‘live’ planning application. 

 Press release/Media briefing. 

 Articles in the Council’s on-line ‘Coastline’ and on the Invest in Gosport website 

 One to one meetings with local amenity groups and other organisations. 

 Exhibitions at a network of venues including Council Offices and the local community 
libraries at Elson and Lee-on-the-Solent as well as other sites where appropriate. Some 
exhibitions may be staffed at notified times. 

 Summary Leaflets/Posters to raise awareness of consultation. 

 Use of the Council’s social media as a signpost to relevant consultation pages14. 

4.7 The Borough Council will prepare a summary of responses that will be submitted to the 

Secretary of State together with copies of the responses. They will accompany the 

submission version of the Local Plan or other DPDs in accordance with Regulation 22. 

4.8 The Borough Council will send notification of where and how the submission documents are 

available for inspection and also notify those individuals and organisations who requested to 

be notified of the submission of the Local Plan to the Secretary of State. 

4.9 The Local Plan or other DPD will be examined by an independent Planning Inspector who will 

examine the plan in order to ensure it has been prepared in accordance with the Duty to 

Cooperate, has met all legal and procedural requirements and is ‘sound’. A sound plan is 

currently15 defined as a plan that is: 

 Positively prepared; 

 Justified; 

 Effective; and 

 Consistent with national policy. 

4.10 The Council will publicise and where relevant notify the details of the Examination including 

the name of the Inspector, Programme Officer, the matters that are to be heard, programme 

for sessions, times and venues. 

                                                      
14

 The Council will make use of social media where appropriate and will post information on Facebook, Twitter and 
other social media platforms to promote consultations. During the formal consultation stages (Regulation 19), 
representations will not be able to be accepted via social media as these need to be duly made in order to submit to 
the Planning Inspector to be examined. 
15

 Please note the ‘tests’ are currently being revised by Government and any changes will be reflected in the latest 
version of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). 

Page 312

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/gblp2038


Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

19 

4.11 In accordance with Regulation 25, the Council will notify those persons who requested to be 

notified of the publication of the Inspector’s recommendations. 

4.12 Following the adoption of the Local Plan16, the Council will in the locations listed in Tables 1 

and 2 make available the following documents: 

 The Local Plan; 

 An adoption statement; 

 Sustainability Appraisal Report. 

4.13 It will also send a copy of the adoption statement to anyone who has been asked to be 

notified of the Plan’s adoption. 

Other specific consultation undertaken as part of Local Plan preparation 

4.14 As part of the Local Plan process there are some evidence-related work that requires specific 

consultation. 

4.15 Call for Sites: This provides an opportunity for the Council to invite those with an interest in 

the Borough to put forward sites for consideration for inclusion in the Local Plan. This covers 

a wide range of stakeholders including developers, landowners and infrastructure providers 

to local community and amenity groups. Potential allocation sites can be put forward for a 

variety of land uses and environmental enhancements and retention of land in its current 

use. This provides the Council with an opportunity to consider all sites that are potentially 

available.  All sites that are put forward need to be considered through the sustainability 

appraisal process and does not mean automatic inclusion of a site in the Local Plan. 

4.16 The ‘Call for Sites’ process also links to the Council’s Brownfield Land Register17 (see 

paragraphs 7.16-7.17 and the Glossary). 

4.17 Sustainability Appraisal: The Council is required to carry out a Sustainability Appraisal for 

each DPD it produces. This forms part of the Council’s Strategic Environment Assessment of 

its policies, plans and programmes as required by the European Directive as transposed into 

UK law. The Sustainability Appraisal aims to identify the social, economic and environmental 

effects likely to arise from the different options, policies and proposals outlined in the 

various parts of the local planning policy preparation. 

4.18 The Sustainability Appraisal Report will be available for public comment at the relevant stage 

of consultation for the DPD. Initially the Council will prepare a Sustainability Appraisal 

Scoping Report and will consult relevant organisations prescribed by the Government. The 

Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report sets out the Council’s framework for conducting 

Sustainability Appraisals. 

                                                      
16

 Full Council adopts the Local Plan. 
17

 www.gosport.gov.uk/brownfield-land-register  

Page 313

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/brownfield-land-register


Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

20 

4.19 Other evidence: Other evidence studies and documents will be subject to consultation at 

each main stage of consultation as outlined in Tables 1 and 2. 

How will the Borough Council deal with comments received to the Local Plan? 

4.20 Comments received from the public at each consultation stage are highly valued by the 

Borough Council. 

4.21 In the context of making comments or representations on statutory planning documents 

such as the Local Plan, representations cannot be treated as confidential and are published 

on our website and made available for public inspection alongside the name of the person 

making the representation. However other personal contact details will not be published for 

example email/postal address, telephone numbers or signatures. Redacted hard copies of 

the representations will be made available for public viewing at the Town Hall by prior 

appointment. 

4.22 In the case of representations to a Local Plan and other documents that are to be formally 

examined, respondents’ details and representations will be forwarded to the Inspector 

carrying out the examination of the Local Plan after the period for receiving representations 

has finished. 

4.23 All responses received by letter or electronic communication will be acknowledged. Anyone 

making comment on the early stages of the Local Plan (or other DPD) will be automatically 

consulted at the later stages unless the respondent no longer wishes to be involved in the 

process. Comments made will be considered and these will inform the preparation of the 

next stage of the document. 

4.24 Copies of the representations placed on the Council’s website will be redacted so that 

personal contact details do not appear and redacted hard copies will also be made publicly 

available. However, all representations in their original form will be sent to the Secretary of 

State along with the other relevant DPD documents at the time of submission. A summary of 

all comments received and how the Council proposes to deal with the comments will be 

produced in a schedule and made available at the Borough Council’s offices for inspection 

prior to the relevant Board/Council meeting. 

4.25 The Council will publish on its website a summary of how the representations have been 

considered by the Borough Council together with an explanation of the next stage of the 

process. 

4.26 In relation to the Local Plan the Council will produce a ‘Statement of Consultation’ outlining 

the following details at the Submission to the Secretary of State stage. The statement will 

include: 

 A list of consultees;  

 How the consultees were consulted; 

Page 314



Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

21 

 A summary of the main issues raised by consultation; and 

 How those main issues have been addressed in the DPD. 

4.27 These reports will be made available on the Council’s Main Reception Libraries and 

community venues during normal opening hours: 

 Gosport Discovery Centre, High Street, Gosport, PO12 1BT; 

 Bridgemary Library, 74 Brewers Lane, Bridgemary, Gosport, PO13 0LA; 

4.28 These reports can also be made available (subject to availability in the community libraries) 

in: 

 Elson Library and Community Hub, 136 Chantry Road, Gosport, PO12 4NG; 

 Lee-on-the-Solent Library and Community Hub, High Street, Lee-on-the-Solent, PO13 

9BZ; and  

 Any other sites used at the preparation stages for the document in question where 

available, however it may be necessary to use alternative sites. 

4.29 The Borough Council will inform those that have outstanding representations of the details 

for the Independent Examination in accordance with the Government regulations (Reg. 24) 

and also advise them of the Inspector’s recommendations (Reg. 25) and the eventual 

adoption of the Local Plan (Reg. 26). 

Area Action Plans 

4.30 Area Action Plans can be used where a more detailed framework is required for areas likely 

to experience significant change or where conservation is needed. There are currently no 

Area Action Plans or other potential DPDs programmed in the Council’s Local Development 

Scheme (LDS). The considerations and process would follow those outlined above for Local 

Plans. 

Neighbourhood Plans 

4.31 There are currently no Neighbourhood Plans adopted or planned within the Borough. These 

arrangements are set out in case such a document is proposed. 

4.32 Neighbourhood planning was introduced by the Localism Act 2011 and the regulatory 

process for preparing them is set out in the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 

2012 (as amended). 

4.33 These plans can be prepared by local communities through Parish or Town Councils, 

Neighbourhood Forums or a community organisation (these are known as the ‘qualifying 

body’) with assistance on certain aspects from the Local Planning Authority. Adopted 

Neighbourhood Plans can set planning policies to determine planning applications or grant 

planning permission through Neighbourhood Development Orders and Community Right to 

Page 315



Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

22 

Build for specific development and sit alongside the Local Plan as part of the Development 

Plan. However a Neighbourhood Plan must be in general conformity with the Local Plan and 

cannot promote less development than that set out in the Local Plan. A Neighbourhood Plan 

comes into force as part of the Development Plan for an area only once it has been approved 

at a referendum. 

4.34 As part of the process of preparing Neighbourhood Plans, the qualifying body is responsible 

for carrying out a wide range of tasks including pre-submission consultation and publicity 

before submitting their proposals to the Council. Once submitted the Council will then 

publicise the Neighbourhood Plan’s proposals as required by The Neighbourhood Planning 

(General) Regulations 2012 (as amended). The Council undertakes consultation on the final 

submission version of the Neighbourhood Plan and organises the referendum.  The Council 

will have prepared a number of evidence studies and other material in the preparation of 

DPDs and SPDs which may be of assistance in the preparation of Neighbourhood Plans. 

4.35  The Government has published National Planning Practice Guidance on Neighbourhood 

planning setting out detailed guidance on the key stages and considerations required in 

preparing a Neighbourhood Plan18 and the roles and responsibilities of the local community 

(the ‘qualifying body’) and the Council. The guidance can be viewed here: 

www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning--2 

                                                      
18

 The Government is proposing changes to the Neighbourhood Plans system which will be published in the NPPF and 
accompanying PPG later in 2023. 

Page 316

http://www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning--2


Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

23 

5 Supplementary Planning Documents 

5.1 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) are non-statutory documents providing further 

detail to expand on policies contained within the Local Plan. 

5.2 Examples include the Design SPD (February 2014), Gosport Waterfront and Town Centre SPD 

(March 2018) and Lee West Area of Special Character (July 2019). Others will be produced 

from time to time as the need arises. 

5.3 Community involvement will be important in preparing SPDs but they will not be subject to 

an independent examination by an Inspector. The only stage of consultation is public 

participation on a draft SPD (see Table 3). However for certain large sites it may be necessary 

to undertake a consultation event (such as Planning for Real) prior to the publication of a 

draft SPD and use the feedback received to inform the preparation of the draft SPD. 

Table 3: Public Participation on Draft Supplementary Planning Documents (Regulation 12) 

Aim: To establish community views on the draft SPD to the local community in order to seek their 
comments, and where appropriate make amendments to the SPD prior to formal adoption by the 
Borough Council. 

Requirements: These are set out in the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 
Regulations 2012 (as amended) including the availability of the document. The Council’s proposals 
meet and seek to exceed these minimum requirements. 

Consultation period: will be for no less than 4 weeks (Regulation 12). 

Consultees: Statutory Consultees and other relevant interested organisations/groups and members 
of the local community that are interested in particular issues included in the SPD (see Appendix 1) 
and the types of consultees included in paragraph 3.15 of the SCI19.   

Minimum requirements: There are no minimum requirements specified under the current 
regulations, however as a minimum, the Council will undertake the following:  

 Letters by post or by electronic communication to statutory consultees. 

 Relevant documents to be made available at Council Offices as well as the Gosport Discovery 
Centre and Bridgemary Library. Other appropriate sites will be considered. 

 Copy of document with comments form at: www.gosport.gov.uk/article/1240/Supplementary-
Planning-Documents-SPD  

Further discretionary consultation that the Council may consider appropriate: 

 Depending on the nature and scope of SPD other locations for viewing documents will be 
considered including the local community library hubs at Lee-on-the-Solent and Elson. 

 In certain cases, such as a high profile development site, an exhibition may be held in the 

                                                      
19

 The Council regularly updates the Local Plan Consultation database to reflect changes to the list of consultees as 
appropriate. 

Page 317

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/article/1240/Supplementary-Planning-Documents-SPD
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/article/1240/Supplementary-Planning-Documents-SPD


Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

24 

Council Offices or other appropriate venue(s) certain exhibitions will be staffed for specified 
periods. 

 Press release. 

 Consultation letter (posted or by electronic communication) and document to all interested 
parties 

 Summary Leaflets/Posters to raise awareness of consultation where appropriate 

 Presentation to local interest/amenity groups may be appropriate for certain SPDs. 

 For large sites it may be necessary to undertake a consultation event (such as Planning for Real) 
prior to the publication of a draft SPD and use feedback received to inform the draft SPD. 

 Advertisement in local newspaper. 

 Use of Council’s social media for highlighting consultation exercise20. 

5.4 The Council will consider all representations received and amend the draft SPD if necessary. 

Then the Council will publish the final SPD together with an adoption statement. The 

adoption statement will be sent to anyone who has asked to be notified of the adoption of 

the SPD. 

5.5 The statement will set out those persons consulted when preparing the document, a 

summary of the main issues raised during consultation and how those issues were addressed 

in the SPD will also be prepared and made available alongside copies of the SPD. This is 

undertaken in accordance with Regulation 12.

                                                      
20

 The Council will make use of social media where appropriate and will post information on Facebook, Twitter and 
other social media platforms to promote consultations. Such posts will signpost users to the appropriate Council’s 
webpage. Only comments posted to the Council’s social media pages will be considered. Those posted to external 
pages will not be taken into account. 

Page 318



Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

25 

6 Other Planning Policy Documents 

Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule 

6.1 The Council has an adopted Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule which came 

into effect on 1st February 2016. Any review of the CIL Charging Schedule will be informed by 

evidence studies to understand the viability issues surrounding development. A timetable 

will be set for the preparation of a review of the CIL Charging Schedule and it will be 

published in the Local Development Scheme on the Council's website.  

6.2 The review of the CIL Charging Schedule will be prepared in accordance with the regulatory 

requirements set out in the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended).  

The draft Charging Schedule is subject to public consultation where formal representations 

can be made prior to the submission of the document, representations received and 

evidence studies to the Secretary of State for examination.   

6.3 Although the CIL document is not a DPD the charging schedule will be subject to 

independent examination, which could take place concurrently with the Local Plan 

examination or at a separate time. The consultation arrangements for preparing a CIL 

Charging Schedule are set out in Table 4 below. 

Table 4: Public Participation on Draft CIL Charging Schedule (Regulation 16) 

Aim: To establish views on the draft Charging Schedule from the local community and consultation 
bodies as set out in Regulation 16 of the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended). There is an 
opportunity to make formal representations on a Draft Charging Schedule prior to its formal 
submission to the Secretary of State for Examination. 

Requirements: These are set out in The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as 
amended). 

Consultation period: There will be a period of not less than 4 weeks as per the Community 
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended). However the Council will consult for a 6 week 
period to be in line with the Local Plan Regulation 19 public consultation period. 

Consultees: Consultation bodies and other relevant interested organisations/groups, businesses 
and members of the local community (see Appendix 1) and the types of consultees included in 
paragraph 3.15 of the SCI21.   

Minimum requirements: There are no minimum requirements specified under the current 
regulations, however as a minimum, the Council  will undertake the following:  

 Letters by post or by electronic communication to the consultation bodies with the relevant 
attachments. 

                                                      
21

 The Council regularly updates the Local Plan Consultation database to reflect changes to the list of consultees as 
appropriate. 

Page 319



Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

26 

 Relevant documents to be made available at Council Offices as well as the Gosport   Discovery 
Centre, and Bridgemary Library 

 Copy of document with comments form at: www.gosport.gov.uk/cil  

Further discretionary consultation that the Council may consider appropriate: 

 Press release. 

 Consultation letter (posted or by electronic communication) and document to all other 
interested parties. 

 Summary Leaflets/Posters to raise awareness of consultation where appropriate. 

 Presentation to local interest/amenity groups may be appropriate as part of the wider 
consultation on the draft Local Plan. 

 Relevant documents in the local community libraries of Elson and Lee-on-the-Solent. 

 Use of Council’s social media for highlighting consultation exercise22. 

6.4 Any other planning policy documents will need to be in conformity with the adopted Local 

Plan. These documents will also involve partnership working and consultation with local 

residents, businesses and other organisations. Examples of potential other LDDs could 

include sub regional planning work such as infrastructure and environmental studies for 

example coastal and flood management, Bird Aware Solent, transport plans at a strategic 

level and local planning policy protocols. 

Local Development Orders 

6.5 Local Development Orders (LDO) grant permission for the type of development specified in 

such an order and by doing so remove the need for a planning application to be made by the 

developer. Consultation is very important. 

6.6 There are currently no LDOs in the Borough and at present there are currently no plans to 

prepare one.  However it is considered necessary to set out the arrangements in case such 

circumstances arise. It is at the discretion of the Council whether it wishes to make an LDO.  

The Borough Council is required to consult persons whose interests they consider would be 

affected by the Order and those persons they would have been required to consult on an 

application for planning permission for development proposed by the LDO. 

6.7 In carrying out the consultation, the Council will send a copy of the draft order and 

statement of reasons to consultees.  In addition the draft LDO statement of reasons and the 

environmental statement must be made available at the Council’s offices and other 

appropriate locations in the Borough such as the local libraries as well as on the Council’s 

website and advertised in the local paper. 

                                                      
22

 The Council will make use of social media where appropriate and will post information on Facebook, Twitter and 
other social media platforms to promote consultations. However, formal representations will not be able to be 
accepted via social media as these need to be duly made in order to submit to the Planning Inspector to be examined. 

Page 320

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/cil


Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

27 

6.8 The Council will display a site notice on or near site and serve a site notice on everyone the 

Council knows to be the owner or tenant of the site. 

6.9 As part of the consultation process, the Council shall specify a consultation period, this must 

not be less than 28 days within which time representations must be received. 

6.10 Once representations have been taken into account, the Council can consider if any 

modifications are needed or whether the draft LDO can be adopted. 

6.11 Once all the consultation requirements have been met, the Council must send a draft of the 

LDO, any environmental statement relating to that Order, a statement of reasons and any 

modifications resulting from consultation to the Secretary of State. 

Conservation Area Appraisals 

6.12 Conservation Area Appraisals are prepared by the Local Planning Authority under the 

provisions of Part II of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. The 

Borough currently has 17 Conservation Areas23. From time to time the Council will prepare 

Conservation Area Appraisals. These act as a guide to the buildings and features that 

contribute to the character of a particular area. Once a Conservation Area Appraisal has been 

adopted it is used to help inform consideration of planning applications. 

6.13 As with LDF related documents, there will be an opportunity for the public and other 

interested organisations to view and comment on the draft proposals and the comments 

received will be taken into consideration and reported to the relevant Council Board prior to 

them making a decision to adopt the Conservation Area Appraisal. 

6.14 The Council will undertake public consultation in a number of ways including: 

 Letters by post or by electronic communication to statutory consultees and local interest 

groups. 

 The relevant documents will be made available at the Council Offices as well as the 

Discovery Centre and other local libraries. 

 The relevant documents will be available to view on the Council’s website. 

 Presentation to local interest and amenity groups to raise awareness of the draft 

proposals (See Reg. 71 (2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 

1990). 

 Publicity in accordance with the relevant legislative requirements. Press release/media 

briefing. 

 Article in the on-line Coastline where timing allows. 

                                                      
23

 www.gosport.gov.uk/conservation-area-appraisals  

Page 321

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/conservation-area-appraisals


Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

28 

7 Involvement in the Planning Application Process 

7.1 Public consultation is an important part of the development management process. The 

Council processes an average of 306 planning and related applications a year. This Statement 

of Community Involvement explains how the Council undertakes notification and 

consultation on planning applications with members of the public, interested organisations 

and statutory consultees. This ensures that anyone who is interested in a particular planning 

application has the opportunity to view and make comments on the proposals and these are 

fully considered before any planning decisions are made. 

7.2 The requirements for consultation and notification on planning applications is made in 

accordance with the relevant planning legislation and associated planning regulations, 

primarily this is contained within the Town and Country Planning (Development 

Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as amended). The Council complies (as a 

minimum) with these Regulations and exceeds them where appropriate and practicable. 

Pre-Applications 

7.3 The NPPF places significant emphasis on the role of pre-application engagement and early 

community engagement as part of the decision making process. 

7.4 The Council encourages pre-application discussion on proposals before applications are 

formally submitted. This allows key issues to be identified and advice given prior to a formal 

submission of an application. This approach does not prejudice the full public consultation 

process or planning procedures as all planning applications are subject to publicity 

procedures and the representations received are an integral part of the determination 

process. Pre-application advice does not influence how an application will eventually be 

determined. Further guidance on pre-application advice is available on the Council’s 

website24.  

7.5 The Council actively encourages developers to undertake their own consultation 

arrangements with local communities to explain their development proposals.  Future 

updates to the Council’s website may include advice to developers emphasising the 

importance of the need for them to carry out and submit evidence demonstrating 

community consultation along with the planning application. 

Planning Performance Agreements 

7.6 The NPPF encourages the use of Planning Performance Agreements. These are voluntary 

agreements between the Local Planning Authority and an applicant to agree matters of 

project management for particular planning applications that may be (but not exclusively) 

large scale or have complex issues. A Planning Performance Agreement can be used to agree 

                                                      
24

  www.gosport.gov.uk/article/1220/Pre-application-advice  

Page 322

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/article/1220/Pre-application-advice


Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

29 

timescales, actions and resources for processing a particular application.  It can cover the 

pre-application and formal planning application stages but may also include the post 

determination stage as well. They can be useful tools as part of the pre-application process 

prior to any application being submitted. 

7.7 The use of these agreements can be helpful in setting out an efficient clear cut process for 

determining large or complex planning applications and encourage joint working between 

the Council, the applicant and other interested parties such as statutory consultees. 

Planning Applications 

7.8 Decisions on planning applications may be taken by the Regulatory Board or an officer of the 

Council in accordance with the scheme of delegation set out in the Council’s Constitution. 

This can be viewed at the Council’s website at www.gosport.gov.uk/constitution  

7.9 The Council currently consults on planning and related applications in accordance with the 

requirements of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 

(England) Order 2015 (as amended). Bodies such as Natural England will be allowed a longer 

period of time to comment on applications where this is prescribed by legislation. Table 4 

summarises the consultation techniques that the Council uses to consult on planning 

applications. 

Table 5: Consultation Methods for Planning Applications 

 Method of Publicity 

Application Type  Press Notice Site Notice Neighbourhood 
Notification Letter 

Major:  Y Y Y 

Minor:  N Y Y 

Other: 

Listed Building Consent Y Y Y 

Works to TPO trees N Y Y 

Advertisement Consent  N Y N 

Change of Use  N Y Y 

Householder applications  N N Y 

Special Cases: 

All applications for development to 
Listed Buildings and/or on sites 
within Conservation Areas      

Y Y Y 

Applications submitted with an 
Environmental Impact Assessment. 

Y Y Y 

Applications for development that 
constitutes a departure from 
development plan policies. 

Y Y Y 

Applications for planning 
permission for Telecommunication 

Y Y Y25 

                                                      
25

 Head Teachers of schools with a boundary within 500 metres of the site will also be notified by letter. 

Page 323

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/constitution


Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

30 

Equipment or for prior approval of 
siting and appearance of 
Telecommunications Equipment. 

7.10 When the Council consults on planning and related applications it allows a period of 21 days 

from the date of the publication of the consultation which may be by notification letter, press 

notice and/or site notice, for the public to respond in writing. After this publicity period 

expires the application can be determined. However, any representations received up to the 

date of determination will be taken into consideration. There are seven categories of 

application that are advertised both by press and site notices. 

7.11 When used site notices are displayed (usually on a lamp post or other street furniture) for 3 

weeks on the site frontage or as close to the site frontage as possible. For sites that front 

more than one road, where possible, a site notice will be displayed on each frontage.  For 

sites where occupiers of adjacent properties will not pass the frontage of the application site 

when accessing their properties, site notices will be displayed in locations which as far as 

possible ensures occupiers accessing their properties will pass the notice. 

7.12 For most applications, the Council will send a Neighbour Notification Letter to all properties 

with a boundary within 5 metres (excluding the width of any road or footpath) of the 

boundary of the application site. 

7.13 The Council offers an on-line service where applications can be viewed on the Council’s 

website https://www.gosport.gov.uk/planningapplications . These are usually on the website 

within 2-3 days of validation. The notification letter that is sent out always gives a 21 day 

consultation period.  Prospective consultees can view the applications on the website. It is 

possible to make comments on-line before the end of the publicity expiry date. The Council 

is able to take comments into consideration submitted by email or letter as long as the 

application has not been determined if it is delegated to officers and up until 5 p.m. on the 

day the application is considered by the Regulatory Board. The Council publishes weekly lists 

on-line and these are also available in the Discovery Centre.  Hard copies of the applications 

are available to view by appointment at the Town Hall during normal office hours.   

7.14 Applicants and members of the public who have made representations will be advised if and 

when the application will be considered by Members of the Regulatory Board. Agendas and 

reports are available 5 working days before the meeting in hard copy at the Town Hall and on 

the website. Deputations can be made at meetings of the Council’s Regulatory Board.  

Deputation requests must be made no later than 12 noon two working days before the 

meeting. A request to speak must be made in writing through the completion of a 

deputation form and must be supported by 10 signatures of electors of the Borough or 

signed by or on behalf of the person or persons having a private interest in the object of the 

deputation, and addressed to the Borough Solicitor at the Town Hall, High Street, Gosport, 

PO12 1EB. A deputation will be minuted and 20 copies of any relevant paperwork must be 

Page 324

https://www.gosport.gov.uk/planningapplications


Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

31 

provided. These arrangements may be subject to change but the Council’s website will 

provide up to date guidance on how this process works. These guidelines can be viewed at: 

https://www.gosport.gov.uk/deputations 

7.15 The Council will consult the statutory consultees using any minimum thresholds for 

development they provide to the Council at both pre-application and application stages. 

Prior approvals 

7.16 Some forms of development are granted planning permission without the need for a formal 

planning application process. This is known as ‘permitted development’. However within the 

legislation there are limits and conditions which apply to each Class of development26.  

7.17 In certain cases, some forms of permitted development require Prior Approval from the 

Council or there is a need to determine if Prior Approval is required. This allows the Council 

to consider the proposals with regards to certain factors such as transport, flood risk and 

conservation areas. The Council will consult in accordance with the requirements of the 

legislation. Consultation n arrangements will vary depending on the nature of the prior 

approval but generally follow the same format as for planning applications and have a 21 day 

consultation period. 

Table 6: Consultation Methods for Prior Approvals and Prior Notifications 

Prior Approval and Prior Notifications 

 Method of publicity 

 Press Notice Site Notice Neighbourhood 
Notification Letter 

Applications for prior 
approval 

N Y Y 

7.18 In the same way as for planning applications, the Council offers an on-line service where 

prior approval proposals can be viewed on the Council’s website 

www.gosport.gov.uk/planning. These are usually on the website within 2-3 days of 

validation. The notification letter that is sent out always gives a 21 day consultation period. 

Prospective consultees and members of the public can view the applications for Prior 

Approval on the website. It is possible to make comments before the end of the publicity 

expiry date. The Council is able to take comments into consideration submitted by email or 

letter. The Council publishes weekly lists on-line and these are also available in the Discovery 

Centre.  Hard copies of the prior approval applications are available to view by appointment 

at the Town Hall during normal office hours.  

7.19 There are certain proposals that are not publicised such as those where there are interests of 

national security and applications for Certificates of Lawfulness for existing or proposed 

works. Although works to trees in Conservation Areas must be notified to the Local Planning 

                                                      
26

 The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended). 

Page 325

https://www.gosport.gov.uk/deputations
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/planning


Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

32 

Authority they do not require planning permission and therefore are not publicised in line 

with the consultation methods outlined above. However if the Council is minded to make a 

Tree Preservation Order as a result of a Tree Notification local residents will be consulted.   

7.20 Under the provisions of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 

(England) Order 2015 there are some forms of development that can proceed under 

Permitted Development rights and do not require planning permission. However, there are 

some restrictions and exemptions to this and it is therefore advisable to contact the Council 

before commencing any works on a project. 

Brownfield Land Register – Permission in Principle 

7.21 Local Authorities are now required to publish a Register of previously developed sites (this is 

known as brownfield land) and to keep the Register under review. Sites included on the list 

are included because they may be suitable for future development. There are two parts to 

the Register: 

Part 1 is a comprehensive list of suitable brownfield sites; and 

Part 2 is a list of only those sites granted ‘permission in principle’.   

7.22 Permission in Principle (PIP) is a new type of planning permission that will approve key 

planning principles such as land use, location and scale of development. When a site has 

‘permission in principle’ a developer will still need to obtain a Technical Details Consent 

before the development can proceed. An application for PIP will be publicised by the Council 

in accordance with the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Permission in Principle) 

(Amendment) Order 2017 (as amended).   

How comments are considered 

7.23 Representations made by interested parties are acknowledged and considered and taken 

into account when an application is determined. Comments made by the public, other 

interested groups and organisations can help to secure improvements to the original scheme 

or highlight particular issues. However, only comments that are relevant to planning can be 

taken into account; the impact of a proposal on property prices, private disputes or matters 

dealt with under other legislation are not material considerations in the planning process. 

Issues that have been raised by interested parties are summarised and addressed in the final 

report on the application. All written comments that are received by the Council will be 

available on the website and officers’ reports to Regulatory Board are also available on the 

Council’s website. The Council will take reasonable steps to remove personal (but not 

business) telephone numbers, email addresses and signatures.  The Council will not take into 

account, or display on the website, comments that include any inappropriate or offensive 

material. Further information relating to commenting on planning applications is contained 

on Council’s website and can be viewed at: www.gosport.gov.uk/planning.  

Page 326

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/planning


Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

33 

What happens after a planning application is determined? 

7.24 Once a decision is made it will be published on the Council’s website together with the 

Officer’s Report. 

Appeals 

7.25 An applicant has the right to appeal to the Secretary of State if: a planning application is 

refused; or they do not consider a particular condition attached is reasonable; or a decision 

has not been made within the statutory period for determining applications and no 

alternative date has been agreed. The length of time an applicant has to make an appeal 

varies depending on the type of application made. The Planning Inspectorate has detailed 

advice relating to the planning appeals process and this information can be found at: 

www.gov.uk/government/organisations/planning-inspectorate  

7.26 When a planning appeal is lodged the Council will send copies of any responses received to 

the Planning Inspectorate. The Council will inform local residents and other interested 

parties when an appeal has been made. 

Enforcement 

7.27 The NPPF recognises the important role enforcement plays in maintaining public confidence 

in the planning system.  

7.28 The Council intend to prepare and adopt a Local Enforcement Plan that will set out how 

breaches of planning control will be investigated and resolved. Potential breaches of 

planning control can be reported confidentially to the Council’s Development Management 

Team. 

7.29 Planning applications that are submitted following investigations by the Development 

Management Team will be advertised in the same way as other applications. 

7.30 Where formal enforcement action has been taken, details are held in an Enforcement 

Register that is available to view by appointment at the Town Hall during opening hours.

Page 327

http://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/planning-inspectorate


Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

34 

8 Monitor and Review 

8.1 As part of any public engagement exercise it will be important to assess any feedback 

received regarding the consultation process itself to determine what improvements can be 

made in the future. In some instances it may be possible to make improvements during the 

consultation period.  As part of the assessment it will be important to consider any feedback 

received relating to any inequalities or barriers to participation identified by any stakeholder. 

8.2 The SCI itself will be reviewed at least every 5 years in accordance with the latest 

Government Regulations, new best practice or material changes in local circumstances 

Page 328



Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

35 

Appendix 1: Consultees for Planning Policy Documents 
and Planning Applications 

Local Development Documents 

Specific Consultation Bodies 

The following bodies are known as specific consultation bodies (or consultation bodies in the case 

of a Neighbourhood Plan or Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule) and who are 

consulted in accordance with and the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 

Regulations 2012 (as amended). Please note, this list is not exhaustive and also relates to successor 

bodies where re-organisations occur. 

 Hampshire County Council 

 Portsmouth City Council 

 Fareham Borough Council 

 Solent Local Enterprise Partnership 

 Neighbourhood Forum (where appropriate) 

 Hampshire and Isle of Wight Constabulary (not required for Neighbourhood Plans) 

 Natural England (or equivalent)  

 The Environment Agency (or equivalent) 

 Historic Buildings and Monuments Commission for England (Historic England) (or equivalent) 

 Network Rail Infrastructure Limited (company number 02904587) 

 National Highways (or equivalent) 

 Active Travel England (or equivalent) 

 The Marine Management Organisation (or equivalent) 

 The Coal Authority27 

 Any person to whom the electronic communications code applies by virtue of a direction given 

under Section 106 (3)(a) of the Communications Act 2003 

 Any person who owns or controls electronic communications apparatus situated in any part of 

the area of the local planning authority  

 Any of the bodies from the following list exercising functions in any part of the local planning 

authority: 

 Hampshire and Isle of Wight Integrated Care Board (or equivalent); 

 Person to whom a licence has been granted under section 6(1) (b) or (c) of the Electricity 

Act 1989; 

 Person to whom a licence has been granted under Section 7 (2) of the Gas Act 1986; 

 Sewage Undertaker; 

                                                      
27

 The Coal Authority wrote on 16th April 2012 specifying that as Gosport’s administrative areas lies outside of currently 
defined coalfields it will not be necessary for the Borough Council to specifically consult the Coal Authority on emerging 
planning documents. 

Page 329



Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

36 

 Water Undertaker; and  

 Homes England (or equivalent). 

Other Consultees 

There are a wide range of organisations that the Borough Council will consult. The Local Plan 

Consultation database of organisations and individuals for consultation is regularly updated and 

additional interested parties are welcome to be included at any time. Types of organisations 

include: 

 Bodies which represent the interests of different racial, ethnic or national groups within the 

Gosport area; 

 Bodies which represent the interests of different religious groups in the Borough; 

 Bodies which represent the interests of disabled persons in the Borough; 

 Bodies which represent the interests of persons carrying out business including transport 

providers in the Borough; and 

 Other types of groups including environmental, amenity, youth, charities, sports, tenants, 

residents associations, neighbourhood groups and other voluntary bodies. 

Planning Applications 

Consultees28 

The Joint Committee of the National Amenity 
Societies29 

The Gosport Society 

Historic Buildings and Monuments Commission 
for England (Historic England) 

Gosport Borough Council – other services 

Theatres Trust County Archaeologist 
Hampshire Gardens Trust Crown Estate Office  
Marine Management Organisation DEFRA  
Kings Harbour Master  Defence Estates / MOD 
Natural England Environment Agency 
Hampshire County Council - Lead Local Flood 
Authority 

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust  

Portsmouth Water Southern Water 
RSPB Forestry Commission 
Hampshire County Council – other Departments Building Control Partnership 
Coastal Partners  Fareham LPA  
Portsmouth LPA Department of Transport 

Active Travel England  
National Highways Hampshire Fire and Rescue 

                                                      
28

 This is not an exhaustive list and it is not necessary to consult all these bodies for every application. The list will be 
periodically reviewed.  Please contact Planning and Regeneration Services to obtain further information. 
29

 The following organisations are members of the Joint Committee of the National Amenity Societies: 
Historic Buildings and Places (formerly Ancient Monuments Society); Council for British Archaeology; The Gardens 
Trust; The Georgian Group; Society for the Protection of Ancient Buildings; The Twentieth Century Society and the 
Victorian Society. Further information can be found at: www.jcnas.org.uk/  

Page 330

http://www.jcnas.org.uk/


Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

37 

Health and Safety Executive OFCOM NATS 
Open Spaces Society Sport England 
Scottish & Southern Energy Civil Aviation Authority 
Design Council The General Aviation Awareness Council (GAAC)  
Aircraft Owners and Pilots Association (AOPA)  National Planning Casework Unit 

Page 331



Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

38 

Appendix 2: Methods of Consultation on Planning Policy 
Documents 

A summary of potential consultation techniques that could be used for all or various parts of the 

consultation process are outlined below. 

 METHODS MAIN CONSIDERATIONS 

Availability of paper 

versions of 

consultation 

documents 

A copy of all documents will be available at the Council’s Office. This is a 

minimum requirement prescribed by the Regulations. 

Copies will also be placed in the Gosport Discovery Centre, and 

Bridgemary Library. 

Where available, copies of those documents which are the subject of 

public consultation (i.e. the Local Plan or SPDs) could be placed in the 

community libraries and hubs of Lee-on-the-Solent and Elson. Other 

venues could be used for particular documents depending on the 

cooperation of the site manager. The geographical extent of a document 

or issues covered will have a bearing on what venues are approached. 

The Council operates a popular community loan scheme whereby local 

groups and residents can borrow consultation documents. This improves 

availability to documents for those that do not have internet access or 

wish to consider the document over a period of time. 

These services can be provided at little cost but need to be well 

publicised. Attention will need to be given to how accessible the venues 

are in terms of location and the ease of being able to enter and move 

around the venue. 

Availability of 

documents in 

electronic format 

The Council’s website includes information relating to the Gosport Local 

Plan. This will be updated regularly and allow access to all the relevant 

documents as well as an opportunity to make representations. 

This can deliver an extensive information base and interactive possibilities 

at relatively little cost. Regular updating is necessary. The audience is 

limited to those with internet access. Website needs to be user-friendly. 

The Borough Council will also consider using website surveys for certain 

DPDs and SPDs where appropriate. 

Consultation by e-mail The Council has established a mailing list for any organisation or individual 

who wishes to be consulted on all or part of the Gosport Borough Local 

Page 332



Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

39 

Plan. This list is GDPR compliant. A list of statutory organisations and a list 

of other types of organisations are shown in Appendix 1. 

Consultation by letter Organisations and individuals can be consulted by printed letter upon 

request. 

Use of Council’s 

community 

publications 

The Council will use its own on-line newsletter ‘Coastline’. The Council will 

use these articles to inform residents about the draft Gosport Borough 

Local Plan, its progress, how they can get involved and make 

representations. The on-line Coastline can be subscribed to and details of 

how to do this are on the Coastline section of the Council’s website and is 

available to view here: www.gosport.gov.uk/coastline 

Use of the Council’s 

Housing Department 

consultation initiatives 

The Council’s Housing Department already have some established 

methods of reaching Council tenants and other resident groups. These 

may represent an excellent opportunity to consult with parts of the 

community that may not normally be engaged in long term spatial 

planning issues.  

Initiatives which could be used include: 

 The Resident Panel which is attended by tenants and leaseholders who 

are interested in ‘Housing’ issues. 

 Twice yearly newsletter ‘At Your Service’ which is delivered to Council 

tenants and leaseholders. 

 Neighbourhood Involvement database which is a network of tenants 

and leaseholders who wish to be consulted on local issues. 

Use of local media 

(local press, TV and 

radio) 

In addition to statutory requirements to advertise development plan 

documents, the Council will brief local media (press, TV and radio) in the 

form of a press release. This can be an effective way of reaching a large 

proportion of the community. 

Leaflets The Council will produce short summary leaflets with certain consultation 

documents. These leaflets will be available as hard and electronic versions 

and be available in large print. These need to be well designed and user 

friendly. 

Leaflets will be available at the Council Offices, local libraries and in some 

instances certain community venues, doctors’ surgeries and other 

appropriate sites. These will also be available on-line. 

Hotline Telephone link to a Planning Policy team member to assist with Planning 

Policy consultation queries. 

Page 333

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/coastline


Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

40 

Public 

exhibitions/displays 

The Council will set up public exhibitions for certain Development Plan 

Documents (DPDs) and Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs). The 

Council will assess which documents will require a public exhibition and 

whether these should be in a number of venues across the Borough or 

targeted at a specific site. Sites include the Council Offices, the Gosport 

Discovery Centre and the three other libraries in the area and other sites 

as appropriate. Choices for sites will depend on availability and 

appropriateness, for example where a document focuses on a particularly 

area, it will be good practice to hold the exhibition in a site nearby. 

Certain exhibitions may be staffed to provide further information and 

answer questions. 

This is a good method of bringing information and advice to local 

communities. Attendees are self-selecting and good publicity is required 

beforehand. Attention will need to be given to how accessible the venues 

are in terms of location and the ease of being able to enter and move 

around the venue.  Displays will need to be well-designed. 

Use of general notices  The Council may also consider raising awareness of planning policy 

documents and consultation arrangements through the use of notices 

which can be placed in a network of community venues and/or 

appropriate public street furniture. 

This can be an inexpensive way of informing the community although only 

limited information can be conveyed. 

The Council may also consider raising awareness from limited targeted 

advertising for example a notice on the Gosport Ferry or on local buses. 

Use of site notices  The Council may consider using site notices in the vicinity of those new 

allocations which do not already have a planning consent or are not 

currently the subject of a ‘live’ planning application. 

The Local Plan will include a number of site allocations; some of which 

may be carried over from previous Local Plans because development on 

such sites may have commenced but has not yet been completed and 

therefore still needs to be included in any new Local Plan. In cases where 

the allocated site already has a planning consent or is the subject of a 

‘live’ planning application, such sites will already be in the public domain 

and will have been the subject of the planning application consultation 

process as set out in Section 7 above. Therefore in these cases a Local 

Plan site allocation notice will not be needed. 

Page 334



Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

41 

Surveys/ 

questionnaires 

The Council will from time to time conduct general surveys of public 

attitudes on issues facing the Borough. 

Where appropriate, research focussed on particular types of 

organisations/ individuals who may have an interest on a particular 

issue/topic will be undertaken often in relation to particular evidence 

studies. 

One to One informal 

meetings 

The Council values the input of stakeholders and will arrange meetings 

where appropriate in order to inform planning policy documents as well 

as seeking to resolve any objections that are made. 

The Council will consider having one-to-one meetings with organisations 

and individuals as part of a wider event (focus group/workshop/active 

planning session). 

These are good for in-depth discussions but can be resource intensive. 

Focus 

groups/Workshop 

Sessions 

In order to inform certain documents, the Borough Council will consider 

setting up focus groups/workshops to discuss particular issues.   Focus 

groups could also be used to understand the views of a particular group 

within the community, including hard to reach groups. 

They are a good way of presenting information in detail. They can 

generate constructive comments and can create ownership of a policy 

document. They can be resource intensive and involve significant 

preparation work. 

Active planning 

sessions 

Where the Council is producing a development plan document or 

supplementary planning document relating to a particular site, it will 

consider the merits of using particular active methods of consultation 

with local residents, businesses and community organisations.  Such 

methods could include Enquiry By Design and Planning For Real (see 

glossary). 

They can be expensive and resource intensive and generate significant 

preparation work.  However they are a good way of presenting 

information in detail and generating ideas. 

Page 335



Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

42 

The Glossary 

The Act (2004): The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

Authority Monitoring Report (AMR): (Formerly known as the Annual Monitoring Report) The AMR 

will assess the implementation of the Local Development Scheme and the extent to which policies 

in the Local Plan (and other planning policy documents) are being successfully implemented. 

Area Action Plan: Used to provide a planning framework for areas of change and areas of 

conservation. Area Action Plans will have the status of Development Plan Documents. 

Brownfield Land Register: Local authorities are required to keep a statutory Brownfield Land 

Register as part of the Government’s commitment to delivering 90% of suitable brownfield sites 

which have planning permission by 2020 to boost national housebuilding. The Register which can 

be found on the Council’s Planning web pages and is in two parts: 

 Part 1 is a comprehensive list of brownfield sites across the Borough that are considered 

suitable at least in part for residential development, regardless of planning status; and 

 Part 2 is a list of only those sites granted ‘Permission in Principle’.  This is a new type of 

planning permission that will approve the fundamental principles of development such as 

land-use, location, and scale.  When a site has ‘permission’ a developer will still need to 

obtain a Technical Details Consent before development can begin. 

Community Infrastructure Levy: is a charge on development, which, in Gosport, is set by the 

Borough Council to help the funding of infrastructure. The levy allows the Borough Council to raise, 

and pool contributions from developers to pay for transport, leisure and open spaces, schools and 

other infrastructure needed to support new development. 

Development Plan: As set out in Section 38(6) of the Act 2004. In Gosport’s case the development 

plan consists of the relevant Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (adopted 2013) and the Gosport 

Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 (adopted 2015). 

Development Plan Documents: Types of documents that form the development plan which require 

formal examination. This includes Local plans, Area Action Plan and Neighbourhood Plans. 

Diversity: Encompasses acceptance and respect. It means understanding that each individual is 

unique and recognising individual differences. Part of valuing diversity is about creating 

environments that everyone can be included in and can thrive in. 

Enquiry by Design:  This process challenges local stakeholders, planners and professionals to 

respond to the issues of a particular site through an intensive design process. An example of this 

can be found at: https://princes-foundation.org/ 

Page 336

https://princes-foundation.org/


Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

43 

General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR): the GDPR is a new European Union wide 

requirement that works alongside the Data Protection Act 2018. It places greater obligations on 

how organisations handle personal data. The Regulations came into force in May 2018. 

Local Development Document: The collective term in the Act for Development Plan Documents, 

Supplementary Planning Documents and the Statement of Community Involvement. 

Local Development Framework: The name for the portfolio of Local Development Documents. It 

consists of Development Plan Documents, Supplementary Planning Documents, a Statement of 

Community Involvement, the Local Development Scheme and Authority Monitoring Reports. 

Together, these documents will provide the framework for delivering the spatial planning strategy 

for a local authority area and may also include Local Development Orders. 

Local Development Order: Allows local planning authorities to introduce local permitted 

development rights. 

Local Development Scheme: Sets out the programme for preparing Local Development Documents. 

Major Development: 10 or more dwellings or 0.5 hectares or over. For commercial floorspace this 

is 1,000 m² or more. 

Minor Development: 9 or less dwellings or land area under 0.5 hectares or up to 999m². 

NPPF: The NPPF, originally published in March 2012 sets out the Government’s planning policies for 

England and how these are expected to be applied. It should be read alongside other national 

policies. The NPPF was revised in 2021. 

Permitted Development: Forms of development for which planning permission is automatically 

given provided that no restrictive condition is attached or that the development is exempt from the 

permitted development rights. 

Planning for Real: This uses consultation techniques which are designed to use simple models as a 

focus for people to put forward and prioritise ideas on how their area can be improved. 

PPG: Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) is updated as needed to provide the most up-to-date advice 

on the interpretation of the NPPF published by the Government. 

Policies Map: The adopted Policies Map illustrates on a base map (reproduced from, or based upon 

a map base to a registered scale) allocations and designations contained in the local plan. 

Regulations: Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended), 

The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as amended) and the Town and Country 

Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015. 

Solent Local Enterprise Partnership: Led by businesses and supported by a number of university 

partners, the further education sector, three unitary authorities, eight district councils, one county 

Page 337



Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft March 2023 

44 

council and the voluntary and community sector to act as a central driver for economic prosperity 

and job generation.  Further details about the Solent LEP can be found at: https://solentlep.org.uk/ 

Strategic Environmental Assessment: A generic term used to describe environmental assessment 

as applied to policies, plans and programmes. The European `SEA Directive' (2001/42/EC) requires a 

formal ‘environmental assessment of certain plans and programmes, including those in the field of 

planning and land use’. 

Supplementary Planning Documents: Provide supplementary information in respect of the policies 

in the Local Plan (or other Development Plan Documents). They do not form part of the 

Development Plan and are not subject to independent examination. 

Sustainability Appraisal: Tool for appraising policies to ensure they reflect sustainable 

development objectives (i.e. social, environmental and economic factors) and required in the Act to 

be undertaken for all local development documents. This includes the requirements of the Strategic 

Environmental Assessment.  

Page 338

https://solentlep.org.uk/


 

 

 

Page 339



This page is intentionally left blank



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

1 
 

Gosport Borough Council  

Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 

Completion Instructions for IIA Leads:  

Use this IIA during development to initially assess the likely impact, on both customers and staff, of a proposed new policy, 

strategy, function or service or a proposed change to an existing one. This IIA aims to provide an early warning of any potential 

issues that could adversely impact our customers or staff or result in costly errors in terms of financial or reputational management. 

Evaluating the proposed changes against our key considerations regarding equality & diversity and climate change allows us to 

modify or mitigate any adverse impacts before implementation. It also demonstrates transparency in the Council’s decision making. 

It is a working document with named Subject Expert Officers (SEOs) who can support you - as the IIA Lead, through this process. 

Please do ask the SEOs for advice about potential impacts. 

Impacts in the template are marked: +ve (positive) -ve (negative) or neutral. Once completed the IIA must be signed off by your 

Head of Service and a summary copy attached to the Board or Committee report. Officers have a Duty to ensure that 

Councillors/decision makers understand the impact of decisions before those decisions are made. 

 

Policy/Strategy/Function/ Project  New Existing  IIA Lead Contact Details Date 

This is an updated policy document       
 
 

 

What is the aim of this policy/strategy/function/project? What will it change? 

Review of the existing Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) which was adopted in 2019. New legislation requires a review of 
the SCI at least every five years. 
 
The SCI is part of the Council’s Local Development Framework and supports the preparation of new Local Plans and other 

P
age 341



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

2 
 

planning policy documents such as Supplementary Planning Documents. It also sets out the requirements for consultation on 
planning applications. Consultation is a key part of the plan-led system and decision making process for planning applications 
allowing local residents and businesses and other key stakeholders with an interest in the Borough to participate in the planning 
process. 
 
It is a statutory requirement for Councils to have in place a Local Plan and its main objective is to provide a planning policy 
framework against which future development can be assessed. 
 
 
 
 
 

Has any consultation been undertaken on this proposed change?                                   yes           no 

If yes, summarise the methods used  and results of the consultation:  
 
The draft SCI has been prepared for the purposes of public consultation which will be undertaken with a wide range of stakeholders 
including voluntary organisations.  There are opportunities for members of the public to engage in the process either on-line or 
through traditional hard copy format. The consultation documents including comments forms will be available on the Council’s 
website and in paper form in a number of local venues.  
 
The findings of consultation will be taken into consideration in the preparation of the final document and will be reported to P and O 
Board in due course.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 342



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

3 
 

A. EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 

The Public Sector Equality Duty is part of the Equality Act 2010. The Duty requires the Council to have due regard to the 
following three aims: 
• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 
• advance equal opportunities between people from different groups 
• foster good relations between people from different groups.   

Having due regard means considering how this policy, strategy, project or function has or will advance equal opportunities for 
each of the protected groups below. 

Please note: If this proposal means a change in the availability, degree of provision or access to a service, benefit or 
facility for any group of people, then this Equality &Diversity impact assessment must be completed to assess if this 
proposal could be deemed unlawfully discriminatory.  

SEO for support to complete this section- Mandy Baggaley, CPCS, x5695 mandy.baggaley@gosport.go.uk 

Protected Characteristic + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Age    

As an example, research shows some older people are less likely 
to have access to the internet while many younger people are very 
comfortable and used to participating online. Providing a range of 
online consultation methods and using a wide variety of 
communication methods about forthcoming consultation is 
important to ensuring age is not a barrier to taking part. Location, 
timing and accessibility of physical consultation opportunities also 
helps to encourage participation of age groups that may historically 
be under represented in planning consultation. 

Disability    

Participating in consultation can be difficult for anyone with a 
disability. The Council works with the Gosport Access and 
Disability Forum seeking practical advice on ensuring disability is 
not a barrier to taking part. Providing accessible venues for 
consultation and alternative formats to documents, such as large 

P
age 343

mailto:mandy.baggaley@gosport.go.uk


Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

4 
 

print, CD, etc. are some measures that can be undertaken. 

Gender reassignment    

The Draft SCI sets out how the Council will engage with members 
of the Gosport community and different organisations and how they 
can get involved with the plan making process and on planning 
applications. 
 
Preparing a Local Plan is a statutory requirement for Councils. 
There are wide and varied beneficiaries for the Local Plan, 
potentially including all residents, employees and visitors to 
Gosport. This is because of the strategic and far-reaching nature of 
the document, which will directly or indirectly affect the environment 
of Gosport stakeholders.  
 
Consultation with a wide range of community interest groups (as 
described in Appendix 1: Consultees for Planning Policy 
documents and Planning Applications allows direct engagement 
with the process and for a wide range of community issues to be 
taken on board. 
 

Marriage and Civil Partnership    Please see above. 

Pregnancy     

The range of consultation methods both online and in person, 
including accessibility of venues and offer of different times of day 
are designed not to provide a barrier to gaining views from 
pregnant women and those  persons caring for children. 

Race (ethnicity,  nationality, colour)    

The population of Gosport is becoming increasingly diverse and 
consultation documents are designed to be as accessible as 
possible to anyone whose first language is not English. Clear 
simple language is used in consultation and the Council does have 
a procedure in place for providing documents in alternative 
languages when needed. 

Religion or Belief (and lack of belief)    

The Council tries to be mindful of religious beliefs and holidays 
when scheduling meetings or running consultations. The range of 
consultation methods helps to ensure all those interested in taking 
part in consultation are able to do so.    

Sex    The Draft SCI sets out how the Council will engage with members 

P
age 344



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

5 
 

of the Gosport community and different organisations and how they 
can get involved with the plan making process and on planning 
applications. 
 
Preparing a Local Plan is a statutory requirement for Councils. 
There are wide and varied beneficiaries for the Local Plan, 
potentially including all residents, employees and visitors to 
Gosport. This is because of the strategic and far-reaching nature of 
the document, which will directly or indirectly affect the environment 
of Gosport stakeholders.  
 
Consultation with a wide range of community interest groups (as 
described in Appendix 1: Consultees for Planning Policy 
documents and Planning Applications allows direct engagement 
with the process and for a wide range of community issues to be 
taken on board. 

Sexual Orientation    Please see above. 

The Armed Forces Bill  places a new duty on public bodies to have due regard to ensure those who serve in the Armed Forces, whether 
Regular or Reserve, those who have served in the past, and their families, should face no disadvantage compared to other citizens in the 
provision of public and commercial services. Special consideration is appropriate in some cases, especially for those who have given most 
such as the injured and the bereaved. Please refer to these resources for more information about the needs and characteristics of the armed 
forces community and our commitment to the Covenant.  GBC Covenant Agreement 2020 Local AFC Profile, needs assessment, resources   

Section of the Armed Forces 
Community 

+ ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

    

The Draft SCI sets out how the Council will engage with members 
of the Gosport community and different organisations and how they 
can get involved with the plan making process and on planning 
applications. 
 
Preparing a Local Plan is a statutory requirement for Councils. 
There are wide and varied beneficiaries for the Local Plan, 
potentially including all residents, employees and visitors to 
Gosport. This is because of the strategic and far-reaching nature of 

P
age 345

file://///knuckles/department/strat_policy/Equalities%20-MB/Equality%20Impact%20Assessments/Integrated%20EIA%202021%20w%20CC/GBC%20Covenant%20Agreement%202020
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/gosportarmedforcescommunity


Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

6 
 

the document, which will directly or indirectly affect the environment 
of Gosport stakeholders.  
 
Consultation with a wide range of community interest groups (as 
described in Appendix 1: Consultees for Planning Policy 
documents and Planning Applications allows direct engagement 
with the process and for a wide range of community issues to be 
taken on board. 

     
     

Are there any other groups which could be impacted (e.g. socially or financially excluded) by this item? If yes, identify below: 

No      

     

     

What actions will be taken to address/ mitigate potential negative impacts identified: 

Action By whom By when 

N/A   

   

    

P
age 346



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

7 
 

B. CLIMATE CHANGE & ENVIRONMENT 

Consider how this change will have an impact with regard to 

 Greenhouse gas emissions 

 Ability to adapt to the impacts of climate change 

 Waste Management 

 Air Quality 

 Natural Environment 

SEOs for support to complete this section- Tim Pratt, CPCS, x5573    tim.pratt@gosport.gov.uk 

Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions 

Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Emissions from buildings 
Gas or electricity use and provision of 
renewable electricity, by GBC or others 

    

Emissions from transport 
Amount of travel (including goods 
transportation), travel modes and fuels 
used, by GBC or others 

 

 

 

 

Emissions from agriculture 
and land use 

Creation or removal of carbon sinks in 
Gosport, and changes to food consumption 

 
 

 
 

P
age 347

mailto:tim.pratt@gosport.gov.uk


Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

8 
 

Embedded emissions 
Emissions from manufacturing goods and 
materials used by GBC or others 

 

xx  

Whilst there will be some impacts arising this is 
due to the need to prepare some printed 
materials in order to fulfil the Council’s 
obligations on delivering consultation to as wide 
an audience as possible. The draft SCI promotes 
the use of on-line engagement as much as 
possible and printed material is kept to a 
minimum. 
 
The draft SCI forms part of the examination 
framework for the statutory Local Plan and 
effective and inclusive consultation forms a key 
part of the Inspector’s consideration of how the 
Local Plan has been prepared. Therefore it is not 
possible for consultation to be undertaken 
entirely on-line as this would be unfair on 
individuals and organisations who wish to 
engage in the process but who do not have 
access to or wish to engage in an on-line 
process. 

Climate Change 
Adaptation 

Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Vulnerability to storms 
Flood prevention and extent to which 
buildings, habitats and species would be 
affected by flooding and high winds 

  

 

 

Vulnerability to heat waves 

Provision of shading, ventilation and 
insulation in buildings, and extent to which 
habitats and species would be affected by 
heat 

 

 

 

 

Vulnerability to drought 

Water use in buildings, agriculture, and 
industrial processes, and extent to which 
habitats and species would be affected by 
drought 

 

 

 

 

P
age 348



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

9 
 

Vulnerability to food 
insecurity 

Opportunity for local food production 
 

   

Waste Management Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Amount of waste 
generated 

Levels of consumption by GBC, households 
and businesses, and extent to which 
materials used are reusable 

 

xx  

Please see explanation to the section on 
‘Embedded emissions’ above.  
 
When preparing consultation materials, where it 
is possible to do so, material from other 
consultations is reused.  Printing is managed so 
that any hard copies are printed on an ‘as 
required basis’ in order to minimise printing costs 
and reduce waste. 

Proportion of waste 
recycled 

Recyclability of materials used by GBC, 
households and businesses, and provision 
of recycling services 

 

   

Air Quality Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Emissions of key pollutants 
from transport 

Amount of travel (including goods 
transportation), travel modes and fuels 
used, by GBC and others; impacts on 
congestion and amount of idling of more 
vehicles 

 

 

 

 

Emissions of key pollutants 
from industrial processes 

Emissions from chemical processes 
 

 
 

 

Emissions of key pollutants 
from other sources 

Domestic and other fires 
 

 
 

 

Impact of key pollutants 
Rate at which pollutants are absorbed or 
dispersed 

 
 

 
 

Natural Environment Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 
Sustainability of public 
spaces 

Amount of vegetation and maintenance 
 

 
 

 

P
age 349



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

10 
 

Biodiversity and quality of 
habitats 

General impacts on habitats and direct 
impacts on species of concern 

 
 

 
 

What actions will be taken to address/ mitigate potential negative impacts identified: 

Action By whom By when 

On-line engagement will be encouraged as far 
as practicable in the Local Plan and planning 
applications process.  

Planning Policy Team  On-going  

   

    

C. IIA SUMMARY 

Have any positive or negative impacts been identified in 
sections A and B? 

 

Subject + ive - ive Explanation 

A. Equality & Diversity   The draft SCI forms part of the Local Development Framework and 
sets out how the Gosport community can get involved in the Council’s 
planning policy documents including in the plan making process for 
the Council’s statutory Local Plan and in planning applications. 
 
Consultation is an important part of the plan making and the decision 
making process through planning applications.   

B. Climate Change & Environment   As set out above, whilst it is recognised there will be some impacts 
arising; this is due to the need to prepare some printed materials in 
order to fulfil the Council’s obligations on delivering consultation to as 
wide an audience as possible. The draft SCI promotes the use of on-
line engagement as much as possible and printed material is kept to a 
minimum. 
 
The draft SCI forms part of the examination framework for the 
statutory Local Plan and effective and inclusive consultation forms a 

P
age 350



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

11 
 

key part of the Inspector’s consideration of how the Local Plan has 
been prepared. Therefore it is not possible for consultation to be 
undertaken entirely on-line as this would be unfair on individuals and 
organisations who wish to engage in the process but who do not have 
access to or wish to engage in an on-line process. 

Can any negative impacts be mitigated? 
 

Subject Yes No N/A Explanation 

A. Equality & Diversity   N/A  

B. Climate Change & Environment    The draft SCI encourages the use of on-line consultation as far as 
practicable given the reasons set out above.   
 
The amount of printing is kept under review and kept to a minimum.  
 
Where possible, previous material is reused in new consultation 
stages. 

Is further assessment in either subject area necessary to conclude this assessment? 

Subject Yes No If yes, timetable for completion 

A. Equality & Diversity    

B. Climate Change &Environment     

P
age 351



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

12 
 

D. IIA CONCLUSION 

  This IIA is complete. No further assessment is required if identified actions are undertaken. This summary can be 
included with Board or Committee reports. 

     This IIA identified further assessment should be undertaken in the identified areas before implementation of this 

proposed change. 

Signed by Head of Service: Jayson Grygiel 

Date: 22nd February 2023 

 

P
age 352



1 
 

  
  
  

Board/Committee: Policy and Organisation Board 

Date of Meeting: 15 March 2023 

Title: Local Development Scheme for the emerging Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2038 

Author: Manager of Planning Policy 

Status: For Decision 

  
  

Purpose 
 The Council is required by legislation to prepare a Local Plan for its area. 

The timetable for the preparation of a Local Plan must be published in a 
Local Development Scheme (LDS). This report seeks approval to publish 
the latest version of the LDS. 

  
 Recommendation 
 That this Board: 

 
- Approves the Local Development Scheme (March 2023) (as 

set out in Appendix A). 

  
1 Background 
  
1.1 The preparation of an LDS is a statutory requirement of the Planning and 

Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended). The current interim LDS 
was agreed by the Council in September 2021. 

  
1.2 It is now necessary to update this LDS with a revised timetable to produce 

the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 (GBLP2038) which once adopted 
will replace the current Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 (adopted in 
October 2015). The revised LDS reflects a number of material 
considerations which have occurred since the initial consultation of the 
emerging GBLP2038 was produced in September 2021 (often referred to 
as the Regulation 18 stage). 

  
1.3 Key considerations relating to the timetable include the following matters: 

 The Government’s Chief Planner has recently stated that Local 
Planning Authorities (LPAs) should continue with plan-making 
notwithstanding the Government’s recent consultation on wholesale 
planning reforms. 

 Ongoing work by the Partnership for South Hampshire (PfSH), 
which includes Gosport Borough, to prepare a Statement of 
Common Ground and a revised non-statutory spatial strategy to 
replace the PUSH Spatial Position Statement agreed in June 2016. 
Part of this work will aim to meet the unmet housing need for a 
number of LPAs on a sub-regional basis. This includes the unmet 

Page 353

Agenda Item 14



2 
 

need identified in the emerging GBLP2038. 

 The consideration of a number of required evidence studies to 
support the Local Plan process including whole plan and site 
specific studies. 

 Changes in availability of a number of key residential/mixed use 
sites since the Regulation 18 consultation (for example the Police 
Station and Haslar Barracks sites) as well as changes in the release 
dates for other key sites (such as Blockhouse 1). 

  
2 Background to the role of a Local Plan  
  
2.1 The proposed LDS is required to include a programme for preparing and 

adopting the Local Plan. The Local Plan is a form of Development Plan 
Document (DPD) and it is a statutory requirement for each local authority 
area to be covered by a DPD. It is a requirement set in law that planning 
decisions must be taken in accordance with the Local Plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 

  
2.2 The Local Plan sets out a vision and a framework for the future 

development of the area, addressing needs and opportunities in relation to 
housing, the economy, community facilities and infrastructure. It is also 
used as a basis for conserving and enhancing the natural and historic 
environment, mitigating and adapting to climate change, and achieving well 
designed places. The Local Plan is used by Development Management 
and the Regulatory Board to make decisions on planning applications. 

  
3 Report 
  
3.1 The LDS sets out the key stages of the Local Plan including when 

community involvement will take place and when it is anticipated to be 
examined by an independent Planning Inspector. 

  
3.2 The LDS must be made publicly available and kept up-to-date. It is 

important that local communities and interested parties can keep track of 
progress. LPAs should publish their LDS on their website. The LDS 
represents the best estimate based on the information known at the time 
and it is noted from the experience with the adopted Local Plan there may 
need to be further updates during preparation due to changing 
circumstances including additional Government requirements. In this 
instance the Government is proposing major changes to the planning 
system which may result in further amendments to the timetable. 

  
3.3 In relation to the Local Plan, LPAs are now required to ‘review’ their plans 

every five years after adoption. This is a requirement set out in the NPPF 
since its 2018 review and was applied retrospectively to plans adopted 
prior to this date. 

  
3.4 Members may recall that the current LDS approved in September 2021 

was termed an interim report due to the proposed significant changes in 

Page 354



3 
 

the planning system including the local plan process which at that time did 
not include any transitional arrangements and therefore there was 
significant uncertainty over whether the GBLP2038 would be able to reach 
adoption stage. On 22 December 2022 the Government published it latest 
proposals as part of the wider Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill. Whilst a 
significant amount of uncertainty still exists it has been made clear by the 
Government that LPAs should continue with preparing local plans under 
the current system. It is considered that the Council will be able to adopt 
the emerging GBLP2038 under the current system to ensure that it will be 
in a strong position to take a plan-led approach when determining planning 
applications. 

  
3.5 Table 1 below sets out the proposed timetable included in the latest LDS. A 

detailed version is included in Appendix 2 of the LDS. 
  
 Table 1: Summary of  the new Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 Timetable 

 
Stage Timescale Progress 

Consultation on Draft Local Plan  
(Reg 18) (10 week informal 
consultation) 

September – December 
2021 

Completed 

Seek Policy and Organisation Board 
and Full Council approval for 
consultation and ultimately submission 
of Reg 19 draft Local Plan 

November/December 
2023 

Work ongoing 

Consultation on Publication Plan  
(Reg 19) (6 week consultation) 

January – February 
2024 

N/A 

Submission of Plan to Secretary of 
State 

Summer 2024 N/A 

Examination in Public Autumn 2024 
 

N/A 

Adoption January 2025 
 

N/A 

 

  
3.6 The Regulation 19 consultation Local Plan will include: the various land-

use allocations relating to employment and residential uses, updates of the 
existing Local Plan policies as well as new policies which will relate to 
issues relating to the Government’s commitment to net zero carbon 
emissions by 2050, enhancing biodiversity, improving health and wellbeing 
and increasing the diversity of town centre uses (which is also reflected in 
the recent changes of the Use Class Orders).  It will also take into account, 
where appropriate, representations received to the Regulation 18 
consultation and it will be accompanied by a detailed consideration of all 
responses received. 

  
3.7 For completeness the LDS includes provisions for other non-DPD planning 

documents although this is not a statutory requirement. This includes the 
revised Charging Schedule for the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
included in Appendix 2 of the LDS. The latest Government proposals 
published in December 2022 regarding the Community Infrastructure Levy 
state that it is likely to be abolished and replaced with a completely different 
mechanism and therefore the LDS will be amended once we are aware of 

Page 355



4 
 

the details of the latest provisions. 
  
4 Risk Assessment 
 
4.1 

 
The LDS includes a section on risk assessment and recognises that 
inevitably there will be various factors, mainly unforeseen, which will affect 
the programmes for the preparation of the Local Plan and associated 
documents. This could include the following: 
 

 Staff retention 

 Staff capacity and skills 

 Any diversion of staff time to other Council corporate priorities 

 Recruitment problems of qualified officers 

 Staff illness 

 Changes to Government guidance and legislation 

 Budgetary constraints 

 Lack of clarity from landowners on the extent and timescale of any 
land releases which can affect the evidence gathering process and 
ultimately the ability to allocate sites 

 Capacity of external agencies to provide comment and guidance 

 Programme slippage on evidence studies 

 Level of representations received at each stage of consultation. 
  
4.2 Consideration will be given to appropriate contingency arrangements, 

especially if this would lead to key milestone dates not being met. In certain 
circumstances it may be necessary to prepare a revised Scheme where the 
programmes in the LDS may not have been met. The LDS is kept under 
review via the Planning and Regeneration Service Management meetings. 
Any material revisions will be reported to the Policy and Organisation 
Board for approval. 

  
5 Conclusion 
  
5.1 The LDS has been updated in the light of significant uncertainty for plan-

making in England with ongoing proposals for changes to national planning 
policy and guidance. Notwithstanding this, the Council is required to 
publish an LDS and if approved the LDS in Appendix A will be published to 
meet statutory obligations. It is acknowledged that the production of the 
emerging Local Plan will be a difficult process due to the uncertainty 
regarding key allocation sites which is further complicated by the proposed 
overhaul of the planning system in the context of the significant social and 
economic uncertainties currently facing the UK.  However, a Local Plan 
based on sound planning principles which facilitates regeneration, provides 
homes and employment opportunities, and protects our environment 
should provide a firm strategy for sustainable development. The LDS 
therefore sets out the Council’s proposed approach to continue work on 
adopting a new Local Plan. 

 
 

Page 356



5 
 

Financial Services 
comments: 

None arising from this report 

Legal Services 
comments: 

None received 

Equality and 
Diversity: 

Not applicable- This is a programme for producing 
the Local Plan which is accompanied by its own 
Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA). The 
consultations arrangements themselves are set out 
in the Statement of Community Involvement which is 
also being reported to this Board and has been 
subject to an IIA.  

Climate Change: Not applicable – This is a programme for producing 
the Local Plan which is accompanied by its own 
Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA).  

Crime and Disorder: This is a programme for producing the Local Plan 
which is accompanied by its own IIA. 

Council Plan: The delivery of the Local Plan requires an LDS to be 
published. The Local Plan will assist in developing 
the economy, enhancing the environment and raising 
aspirations. 

Risk Assessment: See Section 4 
 

Background Papers: None 
 

Appendices: Appendix A: Local Development Scheme for the 
emerging Gosport Borough Local Plan (March 2023) 

Report author/ Lead 
Officer: 

Jayson Grygiel, Manager of Planning Policy 

 

Page 357



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

Local 
Development 
Scheme 
For the Gosport Borough Local Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

March 2023 

  

Page 359



Gosport Borough Council 

 

Local Development Scheme 

 

Further Information 

The latest information regarding the new Gosport Borough Local 

Plan can be found at: www.gosport.gov.uk/GBLP2038  

This Local Development Scheme (LDS) was approved by the Council’s Policy and 

Organisation Board on 15th March 2023. 

 

 

If you have any queries regarding the new Gosport Borough Local Plan, or this document, 

please contact the Planning Policy Team at Gosport Borough Council. 

 

Email: planning.policy@gosport.gov.uk 

Telephone: 023 9254 5461 

Address: The Planning Policy Team 

Planning and Regeneration Services 

Gosport Borough Council 

Town Hall, High Street 

Gosport, PO12 1EB 

 

 

 

 

Gosport Borough Council is committed to equal opportunities for all. If you 

need this document in large print, on tape, CD, in Braille or in another 

language please ask. 

Page 360

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/GBLP2038
mailto:planning.policy@gosport.gov.uk


Contents 

1 Introduction ........................................................................................................................................................ 6 

Background and Purpose of the Local Development Scheme ....................................................... 6 

2 Legislation and Guidance relating to Local Plans (and other DPDs) ................................ 8 

Legislation relating to the preparation of a Local Plan .................................................................. 8 

The requirements for a Local Plan as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework ........... 8 

3 Current Development Plan and other Planning Policy Documents for Gosport 
Borough ............................................................................................................................................................... 10 

Introduction .................................................................................................................................. 10 

Development Plan Documents (DPDs) ......................................................................................... 11 

Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 ....................................................................................... 11 

Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan ........................................................................................... 11 

Supplementary Planning Documents ........................................................................................... 12 

Conservation Area Appraisals ...................................................................................................... 12 

Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule .................................................................... 13 

4 Preparation and Adoption of the Gosport Borough Local Plan ......................................... 15 

Introduction .................................................................................................................................. 15 

Reasons for reviewing the Local Plan ........................................................................................... 16 

Uncertainty created by the Government’s Proposed Planning Reforms .................................... 17 

Documents supporting the Local Plan ......................................................................................... 18 

Policies Map ................................................................................................................................. 18 

Habitats Regulation Assessment .................................................................................................. 18 

Sustainability Appraisal ................................................................................................................ 18 

Evidence Studies ........................................................................................................................... 19 

Statement of Community Involvement ........................................................................................ 21 

Statement of Consultation ........................................................................................................... 21 

Duty to Cooperate Statement and Statement of Common Ground ............................................ 21 

Timetable and Process for preparing the GBLP ........................................................................... 22 

5 Resource Considerations .......................................................................................................................... 23 

Member responsibilities ............................................................................................................... 23 

Staff responsibilities and resources ............................................................................................. 23 

Page 361



Risk Assessment ........................................................................................................................... 25 

6 Monitoring and Review of the Local Development Scheme ............................................... 26 

Authority Monitoring Report ....................................................................................................... 26 

Review of the Local Development Scheme .................................................................................. 26 

Appendices ................................................................................................................................................................ 27 

Appendix 1: The timetable for planning policy documents ......................................................... 27 

Appendix 2: Key Milestones in the Production and Adoption Process of GBLP and the Revised 

CIL Charging Schedule .................................................................................................................. 28 

Appendix 3: Local Plan Process .................................................................................................... 30 

Glossary of Terms .................................................................................................................................................. 32 

 

  

 

Page 362



Figures and Boxes 

Figure 1: Types of planning policy documents .................................................................................... 10 

 
Box 1: What is the role of a Local Plan? ................................................................................................. 7 

Box 2: Plan Reviews – Extracts from the Planning Practice Guidance relating to Plan Review .......... 15 

 

Tables 

Table 1: Conservation Area Appraisals in Gosport Borough ............................................................... 13 

Table 2: Currently known studies which will contribute towards the evidence base ......................... 19 

Table 3: Summary of new Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 Timetable ............................................ 22 

Table 4: Work with other Council teams ............................................................................................. 23 

 

Page 363



Local Development Scheme March 2023   6 

1 Introduction 

Abbreviations and Glossary of Terms used in this document can be found at the end of this 
document. It is recognised that there are a number of terms and abbreviations within this 
document. However this has been necessary due to the need to refer to terminology 
included in Government Regulations and Guidance. 

Background and Purpose of the Local Development Scheme 

1.1 Local planning authorities are required to prepare and maintain a Local Development 

Scheme (LDS) under Section 15 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 20041 (as 

amended). 

1.2 An LDS sets out the programme for preparing and adopting Development Plan Documents 

(DPDs) for a local planning area. It is proposed that the DPD for Gosport Borough will be in 

the form of a Local Plan. 

1.3 The current Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was adopted in October 2015 following 

public consultation and an examination by an independent inspector. This document will be 

superseded in due course by the proposed new Gosport Borough Local Plan (GBLP) once it 

has been adopted. The role of the Local Plan is set out in Box 1. 

1.4 This LDS sets out the key stages of the GBLP including when community engagement will 

take place and when it will be examined by a Planning Inspector. In addition it sets out 

provisions for other planning policy documents where known2. 

1.5 The LDS must be made publicly available and kept up-to-date, and consequently will be 

published on the Council’s website at www.gosport.gov.uk/LDS. It is important that local 

communities and interested parties can keep track of progress. This LDS will supersede the 

last version agreed in September 2021. 

1.6 This revised LDS reflects a number of material considerations which have occurred since the 

initial consultation of the emerging Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 was produced in 

September 2021 (often referred to as the Regulation 18 stage). 

1.7 Section 2 of this document sets out Government guidance and legislation which relates to 

the need to prepare a Local Plan and consequently the need to set out a timetable to 

prepare one which is in the form of an LDS. 

1.8 Section 3 sets out the current planning policy documents relevant to Gosport Borough whilst 

Section 4 sets out the arrangements for updating the Local Plan. Section 5 considers the 

                                                      
1
 www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/section/15  

2
 Under the Regulations an LDS is only required to make provisions for DPDs however for completeness it is considered 

useful to include arrangements for non DPDs. 

Page 364

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/LDS
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/section/15


Local Development Scheme March 2023   7 

resource issues and assesses risk and section 6 considers how the LDS arrangements are 

reviewed. 

Box 1: What is the role of a Local Plan? 

The Local Plan is at the heart of the planning system with a requirement set in law that 
planning decisions must be taken in line with the Local Plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 

Plans set out a vision and a framework for the future development of the area, addressing 
needs and opportunities in relation to housing, the economy, community facilities and 
infrastructure. It is also used as a basis for conserving and enhancing the natural and historic 
environment, mitigating and adapting to climate change, and achieving well designed places. 
It is essential that plans are in place and kept up to date. 

Source: Planning Practice Guidance (DLUHC 15/03/19) 

Page 365



Local Development Scheme March 2023   8 

2 Legislation and Guidance relating to Local Plans 
(and other DPDs) 

Legislation relating to the preparation of a Local Plan 

2.1 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended)3 sets out that each local 

planning authority must identify their strategic priorities and have policies to address these 

in their development plan documents (taken as a whole). 

2.2 Section 19 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 20044 sets out specific matters to 

which the local planning authority must have regard when preparing a local plan. Regulations 

8 and 9 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 20125 

prescribe the general form and content of local plans and adopted policies maps, while 

regulation 10 states what additional matters local planning authorities must have regard to 

when drafting their local plans6. 

The requirements for a Local Plan as set out in the National 
Planning Policy Framework 

2.3 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was originally published by the Government 

in March 2012 with subsequent revisions in July 2018, February 2019 and July 2021. 

2.4 The NPPF requires local planning authorities to produce up-to-date local plans that ‘provide a 

positive vision for the future of each area; a framework for addressing housing needs and 

other economic, social and environmental priorities; and a platform for local people to shape 

their surroundings’. 

2.5 The NPPF adds that plans should: 

 Be prepared with the objective of contributing to the achievement of sustainable 

development7; 

 Be prepared positively, in a way that is aspirational but deliverable; 

 Be shaped by early, proportionate and effective engagement between plan-makers and 

communities, local organisations, businesses, infrastructure providers and operators and 

statutory consultees; 

 Contain policies that are clearly written and unambiguous, so it is evident how a decision 

maker should react to development proposals; 

                                                      
3
 www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/introduction  

4
 www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/section/19  

5
 www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/part/4/made  

6
 www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/regulation/10/made  

7
 This is a legal requirement of local planning authorities (Section 39(2) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004). 

Page 366

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/section/19
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/part/4/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/regulation/10/made


Local Development Scheme March 2023   9 

 Be accessible through the use of digital tools to assist public involvement and policy 

presentation; and 

 Serve a clear purpose, avoiding unnecessary duplication of policies that apply to a 

particular area. 

2.6 The NPPF confirms that plans must be based on adequate, up-to-date and relevant evidence 

and prepared in accordance with the Duty to Cooperate, legal and procedural requirements, 

and be ‘sound’. 

2.7 The tests of soundness are examined by a Planning Inspector at the Examination in Public 

and are set out below: 

a) Positively prepared – providing a strategy which, as a minimum, seeks to meet the area’s 

objectively assessed needs8; and is informed by agreements with other authorities, so 

that unmet need from neighbouring areas is accommodated where it is practical to do so 

and is consistent with achieving sustainable development; 

b) Justified – an appropriate strategy, taking into account the reasonable alternatives, and 

based on proportionate evidence; 

c) Effective – deliverable over the plan period, and based on effective joint working on 

cross-boundary strategic matters that have been dealt with rather than deferred, as 

evidenced by the statement of common ground; and 

d) Consistent with national policy – enabling the delivery of sustainable development in 

accordance with the policies in this Framework [i.e. the NPPF] and other statements of 

national planning policy, where relevant. 

2.8 Where appropriate, Local Plans can be reviewed in whole or in part to respond flexibly to 

changing circumstances. The requirements for a ‘review’ are set out in Section 4 of this LDS. 

                                                      
8
 Where this relates to housing, such needs should be assessed using a clear and justified method, as set out in 

paragraph 61 of the NPPF. 

Page 367



Local Development Scheme March 2023   10 

3 Current Development Plan and other Planning Policy 
Documents for Gosport Borough 

Introduction 

3.1 Figure 1 identifies the types of document that comprise (or could comprise) the main types 

of planning policy documents in Gosport Borough and the associated consultation 

arrangements (which are set out in the Statement of Community Involvement). This section 

identifies the current development plan for the Borough; and other planning policy 

documents that have been adopted by the Borough Council. 

Figure 1: Types of planning policy documents 

 

  

Page 368



Local Development Scheme March 2023   11 

Development Plan Documents (DPDs) 

3.2 The Development Plan for Gosport Borough is made up of two parts. 

 The Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 which was prepared by Gosport Borough 

Council and adopted in October 20159; and 

 The Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan which was adopted in 2013 by Hampshire 

County Council, who are the planning authority for minerals and waste in Gosport 

Borough, and the other mineral and waste ‘Hampshire authorities’10. 

Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 

3.3 The adopted Local Plan covers the whole of Gosport Borough. It was subject to several 

rounds of public consultation and was considered by a planning inspector at an ‘examination 

in public’ in 2015. 

3.4 The Local Plan sets out the overarching vision for the Borough and identifies opportunities 

for development including within a number of regeneration areas such as the Gosport 

Waterfront, Daedalus, Haslar Peninsula, Rowner and the Alver Valley as well as a number of 

other development proposals. It aims to encourage new economic development and the 

delivery of supporting infrastructure as well as a range of new housing to meet local needs. It 

aims to protect those features important to the character of the Borough including open 

spaces and heritage assets. It sets out a policy framework for determining planning 

applications on a number of themes including design, heritage, nature conservation, flood 

risk, and community facilities. 

3.5 The adopted Local Plan webpage www.gosport.gov.uk/localplan2029 includes all the 

relevant evidence and supporting documents. 

3.6 This LDS relates to the timetable of updating the Local Plan and this is detailed in in Section 4 

and Appendices 1 and 2. 

Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 

3.7 The Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan was adopted in 2013. This sets out the key waste 

minerals and waste allocations in Hampshire. It is used by Hampshire County Council within 

its jurisdiction to determine applications for minerals and waste proposals. Hampshire 

County Council and its partner authorities are working to produce a partial update to the 

Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan which will guide decision making up until 2040. A 

consultation on the Draft Plan ran for 12 weeks, from November 2022 to January 2023. 

                                                      
9
 www.gosport.gov.uk/localplan2029  

10
 The Hampshire Authorities are Hampshire County Council, Portsmouth City Council, Southampton City Council, New 

Forest National Park Authority and the South Downs National Park Authority. 

Page 369

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/localplan2029
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/localplan2029


Local Development Scheme March 2023   12 

Supplementary Planning Documents 

3.8 Supplementary Planning Documents provide more detailed guidance to explain policies and 

proposals set out in the Local Plan. They can relate to a specific theme or development 

site/area. They have been subject to public consultation but are not examined by an 

independent public examination. The current SPDs are set out below in order of adoption: 

 Marine Parade Area of Special Character (adopted 2007) 

 Daedalus SPD (2011) 

 Design Guidance (2014) 

 Parking (2014) 

 Gosport Waterfront and Town Centre (2018) 

 Lee West Area of Special Character (2019) 

3.9 As part of the revised Local Plan the relevance of the SPDs will be considered. Where they 

are deemed to be still relevant without change or with relatively minor change they will be 

linked to the new Local Plan. 

3.10 If the SPD is still relevant but a more significant review is required this will be highlighted in 

the revised Local Plan and a review of the SPD will take place once the Local Plan is adopted. 

3.11 From time to time there may be a need for further supplementary planning documents. It 

will be important that these do not divert resources from the Local Plan process. 

3.12 The timetable for SPDs do not need to be included in the LDS but for completeness a 

timetable for any proposed SPDs will be included in a future LDS. None are currently 

proposed. 

3.13 It is noted that the Government’s latest consultation on planning reforms (December 2022) 

proposes to introduce a new type of document called a Supplementary Plan (SP), which 

would replace SPDs. These new SPs would be subject to Examination. When further details 

are known this may prompt a review of the LDS. 

Conservation Area Appraisals 

3.14 Section 71 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 places on local 

planning authorities the duty to draw up and publish proposals for the preservation and 

enhancement of conservation areas in their districts. This can take the form of a 

Conservation Area Appraisal (CAA) and/or Conservation Area Appraisal and Management 

Plan (CAAMP). 

3.15 CAAs are intended to act as a guide to the buildings and features that make a special 

contribution to the character of a designated Conservation Area. They assess how each area 

developed historically, their character, the scale and form of development and opportunities 

for continuing enhancement. As each Appraisal is adopted by the Borough Council they will 

Page 370



Local Development Scheme March 2023   13 

be used to inform planning decisions through the Development Management process and 

the development of Planning Policy. CAAMPS include further information on how 

Conservation Areas should be managed. 

3.16 Table 1 sets out the current Conservation Area Appraisals. These Appraisals are available on 

the Council’s website at www.gosport.gov.uk/conservation-area-appraisals. In a similar way 

to the SPDs there is no requirement to publish a timetable to produce a CAA. The SCI sets 

out the consultation arrangements for these documents. Following consultation and revision 

of the appraisal and the resulting management proposals to take account of public 

responses, they can be adopted formally in accordance with the local authority’s internal 

procedures. Planning inspectors have accepted appraisals as material considerations of 

considerable weight in appeals. 

Table 1: Conservation Area Appraisals in Gosport Borough 

Bury Road (November 2018) 

Daedalus (March 2007) 

Forton (November 2008) 

Hardway (March 2007) 

Haslar Barracks (March 2018) 

Haslar Peninsula (March 2007) 

High Street (Gosport Town Centre) (October 2006) – revised version being considered as 
part of the High Street Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) 

Lee-on-the-Solent (March 2009) 

Peel Road (March 2007) 

Rowner (March 2007) 

Stoke Road (March 2007) – revised version being considered as part of the High Street 
Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) 

Stokes Bay (October 2022) 

3.17 The Council is currently working on a CAAMP for the Priddy’s Hard Conservation Area and 

one which will include the Gosport Lines. 

Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule 

3.18 The current Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule was adopted on 14th 

October 2015 and covers the whole Borough. It was adopted following an examination by a 

planning inspector which immediately followed the Examination in Public for the GBLP. The 

schedule came into effect on 1st February 2016. 

3.19 The CIL has generally, but not totally replaced the need to take developer contributions 

secured through a Section 106 Agreement, with a tariff being placed on certain types of 

Page 371

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/conservation-area-appraisals


Local Development Scheme March 2023   14 

development. Following work on viability it was found that residential development and 

retail warehousing were the forms of development capable of generating CIL receipts. 

3.20 The CIL is not a DPD and is not required to be included in the LDS. In this case it is considered 

that the CIL Charging Schedule will use significant evidence from the Local Plan process and 

will therefore be updated at the same time as the GBLP. The latest Government proposals 

published in December 2022 state that CIL is likely to be abolished and replaced with a 

completely different mechanism and therefore the LDS will be amended when further details 

are known. A timetable for the Council’s CIL is included in Appendix 1 and key milestones in 

Appendix 2.

Page 372



Local Development Scheme March 2023   15 

4 Preparation and Adoption of the Gosport Borough 
Local Plan 

Introduction 

4.1 As highlighted previously it is a statutory requirement for each local planning authority to 

have an up-to-date Local Plan. The NPPF11 and associated Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)12 

provides further detail on these matters. 

4.2 The NPPF states that Local Plans should be ‘reviewed’ every five years. The Government’s 

Planning Practice Guidance sets out in more detail what is meant by review (see Box 2 

below). 

Box 2: Plan Reviews – Extracts from the Planning Practice Guidance relating to Plan Review 

How often should a plan or policies be reviewed? 

To be effective plans need to be kept up-to-date. The National Planning Policy Framework states 

policies in local plans and spatial development strategies, should be reviewed to assess whether 

they need updating at least once every 5 years, and should then be updated as necessary. 

Most plans are likely to require updating in whole or in part at least every 5 years. Reviews should 

be proportionate to the issues in hand. Plans may be found sound conditional upon a plan update 

in whole or in part within 5 years of the date of adoption. 

Paragraph: 062 Reference ID: 61-062-20190315 Revision date: 15 03 2019 

Are policies considered out-of-date if they are not updated after 5 years? 

The National Planning Policy Framework is clear that strategic policies should be prepared over a 

minimum 15 year period and a local planning authority should be planning for the full plan period. 

Policies age at different rates according to local circumstances and a plan does not become out-of-

date automatically after 5 years. The review process is a method to ensure that a plan and the 

policies within remains effective. Applications for planning permission must be determined in 

accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Due 

weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans according to their consistency with the 

National Planning Policy Framework. It will be up to the decision-maker to decide the weight to give 

to the policies. 

Paragraph: 064 Reference ID: 61-064-20190315 Revision date: 15 03 2019 

Source: Planning Practice Guidance (DLUHC) 

 

                                                      
11

 www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2  
12

 www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance  

Page 373

https://gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/5-Delivering-a-sufficient-supply-of-homes#para73
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/climate-change#how-can-local-planning-authorities-identify-appropriate-mitigation-measures-in-plan-making
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
http://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance


Local Development Scheme March 2023   16 

Reasons for reviewing the Local Plan 

4.3 Whilst the current adopted Local Plan was adopted in 2015 and covers the period to 2029 it 

has been considered necessary to prepare a revised Local Plan to cover the period to 2038. 

There are a number of reasons which prompt the need to prepare an updated Local Plan 

which are set out below. 

 The Local Plan is now five years old and in accordance with Government requirements 

plans should be reviewed every five years. 

 Since the adoption of the GBLP the Partnership for Urban South Hampshire (PUSH)13 

(now known as Partnership for South Hampshire (PfSH) has produced its Spatial Position 

Statement (June 2016)14 which sets out the quantum of employment floorspace and 

housing required for the sub-region including figures for each district over the period to 

2034. Ongoing work is also being undertaken by PfSH to prepare a Statement of Common 

Ground and a revised non-statutory sub-regional spatial strategy to replace the PUSH 

Spatial Position Statement. 

 Since the adoption of the current Local Plan, the Government has revised the NPPF (in 

July 2018 and 2021) and introduced a standard method for calculating housing need for 

each district, a requirement to meet the Housing Delivery Test, and a number of other 

significant changes which are being considered further as part of the Local Plan as well as 

collectively by the PfSH authorities. 

 In November 2016 the Government announced the release of two major Ministry of 

Defence sites within the Borough. Blockhouse was originally due to be released in 2020 

but this is now planned for 2025, and HMS Sultan was originally proposed to be released 

in 2026 but the site will now not be released until at least 2029. These sites have 

significant implications for the future development strategy of the Borough. It is 

important to recognise that it is the Council’s position to strongly lobby for the retention 

of HMS Sultan as a training base and where achievable consider intensifying the 

employment and training uses of the site for military and civilian organisations. 

 The Government’s legal requirement that the UK will be producing net zero carbon 

emissions by 2050; and other Government announcements and initiatives such as the 

requirement for biodiversity net gain also require new Local Plan policies. 

                                                      
13

 PUSH is a sub-regional grouping of 12 authorities: East Hampshire District Council (part); Eastleigh Borough Council; 
Fareham Borough Council; Gosport Borough Council; Hampshire County Council (part); Havant Borough Council; New 
Forest District Council; New Forest National Park Authority; Portsmouth City Council; Southampton City Council; Test 
Valley Borough Council (part)( 
14

 This is the agreed name of the ‘South Hampshire Strategy Review’ referred to by the Inspector in his EIP Report 
http://www.push.gov.uk/item_12_-_appendix_1_-_position_statement.pdf  

Page 374

http://www.push.gov.uk/item_12_-_appendix_1_-_position_statement.pdf


Local Development Scheme March 2023   17 

 The Councils own ambitions to explore new initiatives and planning policies which 

include improving health and wellbeing, and addressing the impacts of climate change 

also necessitate changes to the Local Plan. 

4.4 Once adopted the new Local Plan will supersede the current Local Plan 2011-2029. The 

process of preparing and adopting a Local Plan is included in Appendix 3. 

Uncertainty created by the Government’s Proposed Planning Reforms 

4.5 Notwithstanding the above considerations regarding the need to review the Local Plan under 

the current Local Plan system, there have been various Government proposals for changes to 

the planning system in previous years which have led to uncertainty and delays in plan-

making across England. Despite this uncertainty, the Council has been proceeding with plan-

making and continues to work towards adopting a new Local Plan under the current system. 

4.6 In August 2020 the Government published far-reaching reforms to the whole planning 

system in its White Paper ‘Planning for the Future’ which were described as the most 

significant changes since 1947. These Government proposals were at an early stage and 

lacked detail. Consequently the Council felt it necessary to produce an interim Local 

Development Scheme in 2021 to take into account the significant uncertainty. Despite the 

proposals, the Council still proceeded with an informal consultation (Regulation 18) on the 

Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 in late 2021. 

4.7 The 2020 White Paper proved very controversial and throughout 2021 and early 2022 it 

became clear that the proposals were unlikely to be pursued in full by the Government. 

4.8 This was confirmed in May 2022 when the Governments Department for Levelling Up, 

Housing and Communities published the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill (LURB) and 

accompanying information which only incorporated some of the proposals for planning 

reform outlined in the earlier Planning for the Future White Paper (August 2020). At that 

time, the LURB only included high level indications of the Government’s direction on 

planning reform. 

4.9 On 22 December 2022, the Government launched a consultation on the Levelling Up and 

Regeneration Bill: reforms to national planning policy. This consultation set out proposed 

immediate changes to the NPPF (subject to and following consultation), as well as a wider 

range of proposals which the Government says will be considered in a wider review of 

national planning policy following Royal Assent of the LURB. This includes a revised Local 

Plan system and National Development Management Policies. The Government has stated 

that it intends to undertake consultation on the implementation of the Government’s 

proposals for wider changes to the planning system, including the LURB throughout 2023.  

4.10 Despite these proposed changes to the planning system and continued uncertainty, the 

Council is still required to proceed with plan-making under the current system. The 

Government’s Chief Planner has recently stated that local planning authorities should 

Page 375



Local Development Scheme March 2023   18 

continue with plan-making and therefore this LDS sets out how the Council will proceed. 

Nevertheless there remains significant uncertainty but it is currently considered that the 

Council will be able to adopt the emerging GBLP2038 under the current system to ensure 

that it will be in a strong position to take a plan-led approach when determining planning 

applications. 

Documents supporting the Local Plan 

4.11 A fundamental step in the process of preparing a Local Plan is the gathering of sufficient 

evidence which is robust enough to support planning policies. As part of the Local Plan 

process a number of supporting documents and evidence studies are required and these are 

set out below and in Table 2. Some of these will be prepared internally whilst others will 

require external expertise. 

Policies Map 

4.12 The Policies Map geographically identifies the adopted Local Plan policies. The revised 

Policies Map will primarily include the policies of the new Local Plan but will also include 

relevant proposals in the Hampshire Minerals & Waste Plan. It will supersede the current 

Policies Map that accompanies the GBLP 2011-2029. 

Habitats Regulation Assessment 

4.13 A Habitats Regulation Assessment is a requirement of the Conservation of Habitats and 

Species Regulations 2017 (as amended, commonly known as ‘the Habitats Regulations’). The 

assessment focuses on the likely significant effects of the plan on the nature conservation 

interests of internationally and nationally protected areas in and around the Borough, and 

seeks to establish whether or not there will be any adverse effects on the ecological integrity 

of these sites as a result of proposals in the plan. This is an integral part of the Local Plan 

process and will include specific consultation with key stakeholders such as Natural England 

throughout the process as well as wider public consultation at the same time the GBLP is 

available for consultation. 

4.14 The Council published a Screening Assessment Report as part of the Regulation 18 

consultation in 2021. A full Habitats Regulation Assessment will be published for consultation 

at Regulation 19 stage. 

Sustainability Appraisal 

4.15 A Sustainability Appraisal (SA) has been undertaken for the Local Plan policies to assess their 

economic, environmental and social impact, and to ensure that the policies and proposals 

will promote sustainable development. The Environmental Assessment of Plans and 

Programmes Regulations 2004 (referred to as the SEA Regulations) require the Local Plan to 

undergo a formal Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA). The SA is an iterative process 

and fulfils the SEA Regulations, and will be amended throughout the plan-making process to 

Page 376



Local Development Scheme March 2023   19 

take into account the latest policy framework, evidence and consultation. To date, the SA 

includes a number of elements: 

 A Scoping Report which includes the Gosport Profile Information and a review of all the 

relevant strategies affecting the Borough. This was subject to consultation with statutory 

consultees from January to March 2021. 

 A Sustainability Appraisal Report of the Draft Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 

(Regulation 18), including Annex A – Detailed Sustainability Appraisal of Strategic Policies 

and General Development Policies and Annex B – Detailed Sustainability Appraisal of 

Development Sites. This was subject to consultation alongside the draft Local Plan at 

Regulation 18 stage from September to December 2021. A version will also be published 

as part of the Regulation 19 consultation. 

Evidence Studies 

4.16 Table 2 sets out the key evidence studies required for the emerging Local Plan, based on past 

experience and the requirements set out in NPPF and PPG. The table gives some indication 

as to whether the study is likely to be internal research conducted primarily by officers or 

whether it will likely to be external and prepared primarily by consultants. The table also 

highlights those studies recently instigated on a sub-regional basis by PfSH. 

Table 2: Currently known studies which will contribute towards the evidence base 

Study Comment 

Internal 

Infrastructure Assessment Report (IAR) 

and Delivery Plan (IDP) 

Available as part of the Local Plan consultation. The 

IAR takes into account the Solent LEP report Gosport 

Infrastructure Investment Plan (GIIP). 

The IDP is published annually as part of the 

Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS). 

Open Space Monitoring Report Available as part of the Local Plan consultation.  

Strategic Housing Land Availability 

Assessment 

Available as part of the Local Plan consultation. 

Strategic Flood Risk Assessment of Local 

Plan Sites 

Available as part of the Local Plan consultation. 

Gosport Economic Development Strategy 

2021-2031 and evidence base 

Available as part of the Local Plan consultation. 

A range of topic background papers Available as part of the Local Plan consultation. 

Page 377



Local Development Scheme March 2023   20 

PfSH-led 

Air Quality Study Completed 2018 

Integrated Water Management Strategy Completed. A PfSH working group meets regularly on 

water quality matters across the area. 

Strategic Flood Risk Assessment Under preparation and will inform internal work on 

Strategic Flood Risk Assessment of Local Plan Sites. 

PfSH Statement of Common Ground 

Studies relating to employment, strategic 

development opportunity areas and 

related transport implications. 

Under preparation 

External for GBC 

Demographic Projections  Completed (2019) and available as part of the Local 

Plan consultation. 

Economic Development Needs Assessment 

(EDNA)/ Employment Land Availability 

Assessment (ELLA) 

Completed (Feb 2019) and available as part of the 

Local Plan consultation. 

Gosport Infrastructure Investment Plan Commissioned by the Solent LEP and completed in 

2018 

Gosport Retail, Leisure and Tourism Study Completed (July 2020) and available as part of the 

Local Plan consultation. 

Site specific Individual site studies conducted by a range of 

organisations will contribute towards the evidence 

base- continual discussions underway. 

Built Facilities and Playing Pitch 

Assessment 

Under preparation and will be available as part of the 

Local Plan consultation. 

Transport Assessment Stage 1 – Modelling completed 

Stage 2 – Transport Assessment –under preparation 

and will be available as part of the Local Plan 

consultation. 

Whole Plan Viability Report Under preparation and will be available as part of the 

Local Plan consultation. 

Page 378



Local Development Scheme March 2023   21 

4.17 This is by no means an exhaustive list and the Local Plan will draw significantly upon other 

studies and strategies produced by a number of organisations on a range of themes. The 

Council’s website relating to the current Local Plan outlines the range of evidence used15. 

Other studies may be required as and when issues arise from revised Government guidance, 

changing circumstances (such as land releases), and new evidence or as a result of issues 

arising from consultation. 

4.18 In addition the Council will prepare a number of thematic background papers which bring 

together the following: 

 the latest policy framework and best practice; 

 key findings from various evidence studies; and 

 consultation outcomes 

4.19 These are useful living drafts for officers which will eventually be published. These set out 

how key policies and main themes have been formulated. They include issues such as 

housing, the economy, retail, nature conservation, and the urban area boundary. 

Statement of Community Involvement 

4.20 The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) sets out how the community will be 

consulted and involved in the preparation of the Local Plan and other planning documents. It 

sets out the Council’s approach to community involvement on planning applications within 

the Borough. A revised SCI was produced in 2023. 

Statement of Consultation 

4.21 As part of the Examination of the Local Plan, the Council is required to produce a Statement 

of Consultation which demonstrates to a Planning Inspector and stakeholders how the 

Council consulted with the public and other stakeholders throughout the process and what 

were the main outcomes. This will be published as part of the Regulation 19 consultation. 

Duty to Cooperate Statement and Statement of Common Ground 

4.22 The Council is required to produce a Duty to Cooperate Statement to demonstrate how it has 

fulfilled its statutory obligations to fulfil the duty to cooperate under the provisions of the 

Localism Act and the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 

2012. This will be considered by an Inspector at the Examination in Public. 

4.23 In addition under arrangements included in the NPPF (first introduced in the 2018 NPPF) it is 

necessary for local authorities to prepare Statements of Common Ground which need to be 

prepared and maintained on an on-going basis throughout the plan making process. These 

documents deal with how cross-boundary matters are being addressed. At March 2023, work 

is ongoing on the following statement: 

                                                      
15

 www.gosport.gov.uk/localplan2029-evidencestudies 

Page 379



Local Development Scheme March 2023   22 

 Partnership for South Hampshire (multi-lateral statement covering the South Hampshire 

sub-region) 

4.24 The Council has signed a Statement of Common Ground with Fareham Borough Council 

relating to the Fareham Borough Local Plan 2037 in February 2022 and this is available online 

(document FBC039): www.fareham.gov.uk/planning/local 

plan/examination/examinationlibrary.aspx  

Timetable and Process for preparing the GBLP 

4.25 Notwithstanding the uncertainties highlighted in this LDS Table 3 sets out the proposed GBLP 

timetable. In addition Appendix 1 identifies the timeline in comparison with other proposed 

planning documents, whilst Appendix 2 sets out key milestones. Appendix 3 outlines in 

further detail the key elements of each stage. 

Table 3: Summary of new Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 Timetable 

Sought Economic Development Board 
approval for consultation purposes 

September 2021 (Completed) 

Consultation on Draft Local Plan  

(Reg 18) (10 week informal consultation) 

September - December 2021 (Completed) 

Seek Policy and Organisation Board and Full 
Council approval for consultation and 
ultimately submission of Reg 19 draft Local 
Plan 

November/December 2023 

Consultation on Publication Plan  

(Reg 19) (6 week consultation) 

January – February 2024 

Submission of Plan to Secretary of State Summer 2024 

Examination in Public Autumn 2024 

Adoption January 2025 

 

Page 380

http://www.fareham.gov.uk/planning/local%20plan/examination/examinationlibrary.aspx
http://www.fareham.gov.uk/planning/local%20plan/examination/examinationlibrary.aspx


Local Development Scheme March 2023   23 

5 Resource Considerations 

5.1 A crucial element in the successful delivery of an up to date Local Plan for Gosport will 

involve effective resource management and allocation. 

5.2  Gosport Borough Council is a relatively small authority with limited financial and staff 

resources so it is particularly important to ensure resources are well directed. 

Member responsibilities 

5.3 The Economic Development Board (now consolidated into the Policy and Organisation 

Board) approved the Local Plan for consultation at Regulation 18 stage in September 2021. 

The Policy and Organisation Board will also consider the document at Regulation 19 stage for 

consultation but it will be necessary for the document to be approved by Full Council prior to 

consultation and submission to the Secretary of State. Similarly once the Inspector’s Report 

is received it will be for Full Council to formally adopt the Local Plan following consideration 

at the Policy and Organisation Board. 

Staff responsibilities and resources 

5.4 Overall responsibility for the successful delivery and implementation of the Gosport Local 

Plan and associated documents will be with the Planning Policy Section of the Borough 

Council’s Planning and Regeneration Service. Much of the work of the Planning Policy Section 

will be dedicated to the preparation of the Local Plan. The structure of the Planning Policy 

Section is set out below: 

 Manager of Planning Policy 

 Principal Planning Officer 

 Senior Planning Officer 

 Senior Planning Officer 

 Senior Planning Officer p/t 

 Cartographic & Technical Officer p/t 

5.5 Officers from other sections in the Council will also have involvement in aspects of the 

preparation of the Local Plan. In particular the following linkages (Table 4) are anticipated: 

Table 4: Work with other Council teams 

Teams Types of work 

Development Management Development management policies, transport policies, site 

allocations 

Conservation and Design Conservation and design policies, and specific sites 

Page 381



Local Development Scheme March 2023   24 

Economic Development Employment and retail policies, site allocations 

Housing Housing policies 

Property Specific site allocations 

Streetscene Open space policies, flood management policies with the 

Coastal Partners, recycling and sustainability policies, Alver 

Valley 

Environmental Health Contamination issues both generally and in relation to 

specific sites 

Corporate Policy Community liaison 

Legal Advice throughout the plan-making process 

Finance Advice throughout the plan-making process  

Communications Team Assistance with publicity and media 

5.6 The Borough Council will also continue its established working relationships with officers of 

Hampshire County Council on a range of issues. It will also work in partnership with other 

authorities in PfSH, with a particular emphasis on joint studies and cooperative policy 

development. The Council will work with colleagues at Portsmouth City Council and Fareham 

Borough Council on particular cross-boundary issues, which will form part of the Duty to 

Cooperate and inform Statements of Common Ground in order to deliver quality planning 

outcomes. 

5.7 Similarly, the Borough Council will work with organisations such as the Environment Agency, 

Historic England, Natural England, the Solent Local Enterprise Partnership, the Hampshire & 

Isle of Wight Local Nature Partnership, the Wildlife Trust, the Queen’s Harbour Master, 

Homes England and the Defence Infrastructure Organisation. 

5.8 Additional resources will be contracted to undertake particular tasks or to meet deadlines at 

times of particular pressure. In some cases this may involve individual officers from other 

departments, other local authorities and in other cases external consultants, including 

specialist consultants. Wherever possible these additional resources should either have a 

sound knowledge of planning issues in Gosport and South Hampshire, or should have sound 

experience of the specialist work required. Procurement of any external resource and/or 

services will be undertaken in accordance with the Council’s procurement processes.  

Page 382



Local Development Scheme March 2023   25 

Risk Assessment 

5.9 The preparation of the LDS will allow for more effective resource planning, but inevitably 

there will be various factors, mainly unforeseen, which will affect the programmes for the 

preparation of the Local Plan and associated documents. This could include the following: 

 Staff retention 

 Staff capacity and skills 

 Any diversion of staff time to other Council corporate priorities 

 Recruitment problems of qualified officers 

 Staff illness 

 Changes to Government guidance and legislation 

 Budgetary constraints 

 Lack of clarity from landowners on the extent and timescale of any land releases which 

can affect the evidence gathering process and ultimately the ability to allocate sites 

 Capacity of external agencies to provide comment and guidance 

 Programme slippage on evidence studies 

 Level of representations received at each stage of consultation. 

5.10 Consideration will be given to appropriate contingency arrangements, especially if this would 

lead to key milestone dates not being met. In certain circumstances it may be necessary to 

prepare a revised Scheme where the programmes in the LDS may not have been met. The 

LDS is kept under review via the Planning and Regeneration Services Management meetings. 

Any material revisions will be reported to the Policy and Organisation Board for approval. 

Page 383



Local Development Scheme March 2023   26 

6 Monitoring and Review of the Local Development 
Scheme 

Authority Monitoring Report 

6.1 The Government has placed increased importance on monitoring the progress of Plan 

preparation in recent years. The Local Development Scheme will therefore be subject to 

regular monitoring and revised where necessary. 

6.2 The Government requires the Council to publish the Authority Monitoring Report (AMR) 

annually. The AMR includes a section which considers the progress of the Gosport Borough 

Local Plan as set out in this LDS. The AMR is published on the Council’s webpage (normally in 

the last quarter of each year): www.gosport.gov.uk/AMR. 

6.3 The AMR includes information which can influence the need to review both a local plan and 

its timetable. It includes the following: 

 Monitoring of the progress of the LDS 

 Monitoring the progress of development on key sites 

 Housing Supply information including the latest Five Year Housing Supply and Housing 

Delivery Test 

 Information on employment and retail completions 

 Nature conservation, open space and green infrastructure indicators and other indicators 

set out in the Local Plan 

 Infrastructure delivery 

 Issues arising from particular policies 

 Report on activity relating to the duty to cooperate 

6.4 The AMR will assess the implementation of the LDS and the extent to which policies in the 

Local Plan (and other planning policy documents) are being successfully implemented. 

Review of the Local Development Scheme 

6.5 The Council will continue to monitor the Local Development Scheme and submit any further 

revision or update as appropriate. 

Page 384



Local Development Scheme March 2023         27 

Appendices 

Appendix 1: The timetable for planning policy documents 

(Indicative subject to Government reforms to the planning system) 

 

 
2023 2024 2025 

 
Spring Summer Autumn Winter Spring Summer Autumn Winter 

 
 
Gosport Borough 
Local Plan 2038 
 
 

PREPARATION/ONGOING WORK 
REG 19 
PUBLIC 

CONSULTATION 
 

SUBMISSION 
PREPARATION 

AND 
SUBMISSION 

EXAMINATION 
IN PUBLIC 

BY INSPECTOR 
 ADOPTION 

 
 
CIL Gosport 
Charging 
Schedule 
 
 

PREPARATION/ONGOING WORK 
REG. 16 
PUBLIC 

CONSULTATION 
 

SUBMISSION 
PREPARATION 

AND 
SUBMISSION 

EXAMINATION 
IN PUBLIC 

BY INSPECTOR 
 ADOPTION 

 

 PREPARATION/ONGOING WORK 

  

P
age 385



Local Development Scheme March 2023   28 

Appendix 2: Key Milestones in the Production and Adoption Process of 
GBLP and the Revised CIL Charging Schedule 

New Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 

Evidence Gathering and Preparation of Draft 
Local Plan 

January 2019 – August 2021 (Completed) 

Sought Economic Development Board approval 
for ten week consultation 

September 2021 (Completed) 

Consultation on Draft Local Plan (often referred 
to as Regulation 18 stage) (10 week informal 
consultation) with accompanying Sustainability 
Appraisal and evidence base 

September – December 2021 (Completed) 

Analysis of consultation comments and prepare 
any amendments to Local Plan and undertake 
further evidence work 

December 2021 – November/December 2023 
(Ongoing) 

Seek Policy and Organisation Board and Full 
Council approval for consultation and ultimately 
submission of Reg 19 draft Local Plan 

November – December 2023 

Consultation on Publication Plan (often referred 
to as Regulation 19 stage) (REQUIRED FOR A 
STATUTORY 6 WEEK PERIOD) 

January – February 2024 

Submission of Plan to Secretary of State Summer 2024 

Examination in Public Autumn 2024 

Inspector’s report - Fact Check Autumn/Winter 2024 

Anticipated receipt of Inspector’s Report Autumn/Winter 2024 

Provisional Date of Adoption January 2025 

  

Page 386



Local Development Scheme March 2023   29 

Community Infrastructure Levy: Gosport Charging Schedule 

Evidence Gathering and Preparation of 
Publication Schedule 

January 2019 – November/December 2023 

Seek Policy and Organisation Board and Full 
Council approval for consultation purposes 

November – December 2023 

Public Consultation on Publication Schedule* 
(often referred to as Regulation 16 stage) 

Legislation requires not less than 4 week – it is 
proposed that a six week consultation is 
undertaken to link with the Local Plan 
consultation 

January – February 2024 

Submission to Secretary of State Summer 2024 

Examination Autumn 2024 

Examiner’s Report – Fact Check Autumn/Winter 2024 

Anticipated receipt of Examiner’s Report Autumn/Winter 2024 

Provisional Date of Adoption January 2025 

* Since 2018 the regulations have been amended and consequently Local Planning Authorities now 
only need to consult once on the schedule rather than twice. 

  

Page 387



Local Development Scheme March 2023   30 

Appendix 3: Local Plan Process 

Page 388



Local Development Scheme March 2023   31 

Abbreviations 

AMR Authority Monitoring Report (formerly known as 
Annual Monitoring Report) 

CAA Conservation Area Appraisal 
CIL Community Infrastructure Levy 

DLUHC Department for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities (formerly MHCLG) 

DPD Development Plan Document 
GBLP The forthcoming Gosport Borough Local Plan 

GBLP 2011-2029 Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 
(Adopted October 2015) 

HAZ Heritage Action Zone 
HRA Habitats Regulation Assessment 
LDD Local Development Documents 
LDS Local Development Scheme 
LEP Local Enterprise Partnership 

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
PfSH Partnership for South Hampshire 
PPG Planning Practice Guidance 

Reg(s) Regulation(s) 
SA Sustainability Appraisal 
SCI Statement of Community Involvement 

SEA Strategic Environmental Assessment 

  

Page 389



Local Development Scheme March 2023   32 

Glossary of Terms 

Allocations Sites specifically identified on the Proposals Map for development. 

Authority Monitoring 

Report (AMR) 

Produced by the Council annually to review the progress made against 

targets and the performance of local plan policies. The monitoring 

period is 1 April to 31 March. The annual report on progress in 

implementing the Local Development Scheme. 

Community 

Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

A levy allowing local authorities to raise funds from owners or 

developers of land undertaking liable new building projects. Money 

raised can be used to support development by funding infrastructure 

that the council, community and neighbourhoods want. 

Designations Areas shown on the Policies Map to which specific policies apply (not 

allocations). 

Development Plan Is defined in section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004, and includes adopted local plans, neighbourhood plans that 

have been made and published spatial development strategies, 

together with any regional strategy policies that remain in force. 

Neighbourhood plans that have been approved at referendum are also 

part of the development plan, unless the local planning authority 

decides that the neighbourhood plan should not be made. Under the 

Planning Acts, this is the prime consideration in the determination of 

planning applications. 

Development Plan 

Document (DPD) 

A type of Local Development Document that contains policies and 

proposals for development, and are subject to consultation and 

independent examination. They carry significant weight in determining 

planning applications.  

Duty to Cooperate The duty to cooperate is a legal test, it is separate from but related to 

the Local Plan test of soundness. The Duty Requires local councils to 

work together when preparing their local policies and plans, to ensure 

that ‘bigger than local’ issues which cross local boundaries are dealt 

with properly. 

Heritage Action Zone 

(HAZ) 

The Borough has a Borough-wide HAZ as well as a High Street HAZ 

covering Gosport High Street and Stoke Road. Further details are 

available at: https://gosporthaz.org.uk/  

Local Development Generic term for planning policy documents. Comprises Development 

Page 390



Local Development Scheme March 2023   33 

Documents (LDDs) Plan Documents, Supplementary Planning Documents and the 

Statement of Community Involvement. 

Local Development 

Scheme (LDS) 

Statement of the Council’s programme for the production of Local 

Development Documents. 

Policies Map Geographically expresses the policies and proposals of the 

Development Plan Document. 

PfSH The Partnership for South Hampshire comprising local authorities and 

other organisations formerly known as Partnership for Urban South 

Hampshire (PUSH). 

Statement of Community 

Involvement (SCI) 

Sets out how the local planning authority involves the local 

community, businesses and other stakeholders in preparing and 

reviewing its Local Development Documents and includes consultation 

arrangements for planning applications. 

Section 106 Agreement The legal agreements that are made when local authority seeks to 

secure planning obligations for particular actions from a developer 

when granting planning permission. This can include the securing of 

financial contributions in lieu of providing services or facilities that 

would be required in order for the development to be acceptable. 

Statement of Common 

Ground 

A statement of common ground is a written record of the progress 

made by strategic policy-making authorities during the process of 

planning for strategic cross-boundary matters. It documents where 

effective co-operation is and is not happening throughout the plan-

making process, and is a way of demonstrating at examination that 

plans are deliverable over the plan period, and based on effective joint 

working across local authority boundaries. In the case of local planning 

authorities, it also forms part of the evidence required to demonstrate 

that they have complied with the duty to cooperate. 

Strategic Environmental 

Assessment (SEA) 

A procedure (set out in the Environmental Assessment of Plans and 

Programmes Regulations 2004) which requires the formal 

environmental assessment of certain plans and programmes which are 

likely to have significant effects on the environment. 

Supplementary Planning 

Documents (SPD) 

Documents which add further detail to the policies in the development 

plan. They can be used to provide further guidance for development 

on specific sites, or on particular issues, such as design. Supplementary 

planning documents are capable of being a material consideration in 

Page 391



Local Development Scheme March 2023   34 

planning decisions but are not part of the development plan. 

Sustainability Appraisal 

(SA) 

A systematic process that must be carried out during the preparation 

of local plans. Its role is to promote sustainable development by 

assessing the extent to which the emerging plan, when judged against 

reasonable alternatives, will help to achieve relevant environmental, 

economic and social objectives. 

 

Page 392



 

 

March 2023 

Local Development Scheme 

 

Gosport Borough Council 

Town Hall, High Street 

Gosport 

Hampshire 

PO12 1EB 

(023) 9254 5461 

planning.policy@gosport.gov.uk 

www.gosport.gov.uk/planning  

Page 393



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting of the board held on 18 January 2023
	6 New Council Branding
	06a Appendix Updated Council Brand PandO 16 March 2023 - appendix A

	7 Council plan
	07 Appendix A
	Slide 1
	Slide 2: Corporate plan: introduction  
	Slide 3: Foreword
	Slide 4: Council plan: business-as-usual 
	Slide 5: Council plan: partnerships 
	Slide 6
	Slide 7: Council priorities: introduction  
	Slide 8: Council priorities 
	Slide 9: Council plan: delivering priorities  
	Slide 10: Council plan: delivering priorities  
	Slide 11: Council plan: delivering priorities 
	Slide 12: Council plan: delivering priorities 
	Slide 13: Council plan: delivering priorities 
	Slide 14: Council plan 
	Slide 15: Council plan 
	Slide 16: Council plan 
	Slide 17: Council plan 
	Slide 18: Council plan 
	Slide 19: Council plan 


	8 Annual Governance Statement 2021/22
	08A AGS Appendix a

	9 EY - Audit Results Report 2021/22
	09 appendix Gosport Borough Council Audit Results Report - February 2023
	09 GBC Procurement Action Plan.docx updated 2.3.2023

	10 Final Accounts 2021/22
	10A Statement of Accounts 2021-22 to P&O
	10B Appendix B Letter of representation

	11 Treasury Management Strategy and MRP Policy 2023/24
	12 GBC Waterfront - Bus Station Redevelopment  Dedication of Council Freehold Land as Public Highway to facilitate construction and operation of New Bus Station
	12A GBC Waterfront (Bus Station) Drg for Appendix 1 of P&O Board Report 150323
	12AB Appendix 2 of P&O Board Report 150323    HCCSPCO-ATK-HGN-C591-DR-CH-1007
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2


	12B GBC Waterfront(Bus Station) Drg 1 for Appendix 2 of P&O Board Report 150323     HCCSPCO-ATK-HGN-C591-DR-CH-1005 P02
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2



	13 Consultation draft Statement of Community involvement
	13a Appendix 1- SCI document- final
	13b Appendix 2- IIA- final

	14 Local Development Scheme
	14 Appendix A - Local Development Scheme 2023 Final


